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9.20am 2 Board Management
10.15am | Morning tea
B: PUBLIC SESSION
10.30 am 3 Compelling reason changes in PES 1
3.1 Board meeting summary paper Note Paper
3.2 Issues paper Consider Paper
3.21 Breaches compelling reason test Note Paper
3.2.2 Breaches comparison Note Paper
3.2.3 NOCLAR compelling reason test Note Paper
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3.2.5 PIE & other provisions compelling reason test Note Paper
3.2.6 PIE & other provisions analysis Note Paper
11:45 4 Strategic Action Plan Progress for year 2018
4.1 Board meeting summary paper Note Paper
4.2 Actual progress against 2017/18 SAP Note Paper
12:15 pm | Lunch
1.00 pm 5 The Audit of Service Performance Information
5.1 Board meeting summary paper Note Paper
5.2 Issues paper Consider Paper
5.3 Amended Standard (Mark up from April) Consider Paper
5.4 Amended Standard (Clean) Note Paper
5.5 Analysis of all feedback received Note Paper
3:00 pm | Afternoon tea
3:15 pm 6 Audit committee guidance
6.1 Board meeting summary paper Note Paper
6.2 Issues paper Consider Paper
6.3 Audit Committees — A Guide to Good Practice Note - -
(confidential Copyright)
6.4 PwC Audit Committee Guide [link] Note - -
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4:20 pm 8 IESBA strategy and work plan
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8.3 IESBA Consultation Paper Proposed Strategy and Note Paper
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4:40 pm 9 Environmental Scanning
9.1 International monitoring update Note Paper
9.2 Domestic monitoring update Note Paper
9.3 Academic research update Note Paper
C: NON-PUBLIC SESSION
4.50 pm 10 Closing items
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 31
Meeting date: 6 June 2018
Subject: Compelling Reason Amendments — extant PES 1 (Revised)
Date: 21 May 2018
Prepared by: Sharon Walker
Action Required X | For Information Purposes Only

Agenda Item Objectives

1.

The objective for this agenda item is:

a) Forthe Board to AGREE the compelling reason amendments to be made to the
draft [proposed] restructured Professional and Ethical Standard (PES) 1,
International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners, in respect of the
provisions relating to other assurance engagements.

Background

2.

At its September 2017 meeting the Board considered a marked draft of the close off text
of Phase 1 of the IESBA’s revised and restructured Code of Ethics. The marked text
included changes necessary to reflect New Zealand terminology and New Zealand
compelling reason amendments included in extant PES 1 (Revised). The Board requested
staff to consider the existing compelling reasons for amendments to extant PES 1
(Revised) and to challenge whether those compelling reasons changes continue to be
appropriate.

At the October 2017 meeting, the Board confirmed the compelling reason amendments
to extant PES 1 (Revised) in respect of audit and review engagements are appropriate.
Questions were raised as to the continuing appropriateness of existing compelling
reason amendments relating to other assurance engagements.

Extant PES 1 (Revised) is intended to apply to all those who perform assurance
engagements, even if they are not part of the accountancy profession®. The provisions
of extant PES 1 (Revised) pertaining to other assurance engagements apply equally to
assurance of financial and non-financial information. Concerns were raised that in

1 PES 1 (Revised), paragraph NZ1.2
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extending the provisions for audit and review engagements to other assurance
engagements, the Board may have inadvertently placed more onerous requirements on
a practitioner in New Zealand than necessary to meet the intent of the international
Code.

A subcommittee was established to consider whether the compelling reason test
continues to be met in respect of the existing compelling reason amendments as they
relate to other assurance engagements. Subcommittee members are: Clyde D’Souza, lan
Marshall, Marje Russ and Rowena Sinclair. As well as providing feedback on draft Board
papers, the Subcommittee has met four times: 27 November 2017, 6 December 2017,

1 March 2018, and 2 May 2018.

The Board considered the Subcommittee’s recommendations at its February 2018
meeting. The Board agreed to further deliberate the Subcommittee’s recommendations
and requested the following items to be included in the agenda materials for the April
2018 meeting:

a) The comparison of extant requirements with the IESBA provisions for those
areas where the Subcommittee recommends reverting to the IESBA wording;
and

b) The Subcommittee’s compelling reason test analysis.

In developing its recommendations, the Subcommittee considered the existing
compelling reason amendments with reference to the mandate of the NZAuASB:

Section 12(b) of the Financial Reporting Act 2013

The [XRB] Board has the following functions:
(b) to prepare, and if it thinks fit, issue auditing and assurance standards for —

(i) the purposes of the Auditor Regulation Act 2011 or any other
enactment that requires a person to comply with those standards; or

(ii) the purposes of any rules or codes of ethics of an association of
accountants where those rules or codes require the association’s members to
comply with those standards; or

(iii) any other purpose approved by the Minister by notice in writing to the
Board.

The Terms of Reference for the NZAuASB dated 24 August 2011, state:

The NZAUASB is responsible for the development, approval and promulgation of
auditing and assurance standards and professional and ethical standards for auditors
undertaking statutory assurance engagements.

The NZAuASB's specific responsibilities are:
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10.

e Develop or adopt, expose, finalise and promulgate:

o Auditing and assurance standards for use in assurance engagements
required by statute;

o Professional and ethical standards to be applied by auditors undertaking
statutory assurance engagements;

o Other assurance standards within the scope of any “additional
assurance standards” approval provided by the Responsible Minister in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993.

The issues paper at agenda item 3.2 considers each of the compelling reason changes in
greater depth. The Subcommittee continues to hold the view that, in respect of many
of the existing Other Assurance amendments to PES 1 (Revised), the compelling
reason test has not been met.

International Activities

11.

12.

199500.1

In April 2018, the IESBA announced the finalization of a completely rewritten Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “International Code”). Beyond its new

structure, the International Code brings together key initiatives of the IESBA over the
past four years and is clearer about how accountants should deal with ethics and
independence issues.

While the fundamental principles of ethics have not changed, major revisions have been
made to the ethics’ conceptual framework — the approach that underpins compliance
with the fundamental principles and independence. Major changes to the International
Code include:

a) Revised safeguards provisions better aligned to threats to compliance with the
fundamental principles;

b) Stronger independence provisions regarding long association of personnel with
audit clients;

c) New and revised sections dedicated to professional accountants in business;

d) Clear guidance that relevant provisions for professional accountants in business
are also applicable to those in public practice;

e) New guidance to emphasize the importance of understanding facts and
circumstances when exercising professional judgement;

f) New guidance to explain how compliance with the fundamental principles
supports the exercise of professional scepticism in an audit or other assurance
engagement.


https://www.ifac.org/system/files/publications/files/Final-Pronouncement-The-Restructured-Code_0.pdf
https://www.ifac.org/system/files/publications/files/Final-Pronouncement-The-Restructured-Code_0.pdf

Key enhancements to the international Code arising from the Safeguards project

13. The Basis for Conclusions: Provisions Pertaining to Safeguards in the Code describes the

enhancements to the conceptual framework. The enhanced conceptual framework
includes more explicit requirements relating to the threats and safeguards approach, as
well as enhanced application material to explain how to identify, evaluate and address
threats to compliance with the fundamental principles.

14. The Basis for Conclusions explains that the revisions will require a change in mindset in

how professional accountants and firms apply the conceptual framework. In particular,
they will require more careful thinking as to how an identified threat should best be
addressed, and in particular whether an action will be effective in addressing the threat
and therefore meet the revised definition of a safeguard.

15. The enhanced conceptual framework now explicitly addresses independence and links
independence to the fundamental principles, specifically the principles of objectivity and
integrity.

16. A building block approach has been applied in restructuring the international Code. The
enhanced conceptual framework set out in Part 1, Section 120, applies to all
professional accountants and is not repeated in subsequent Parts or sections of the
International Code. It is expected that the conceptual framework will be applied during
the course of the engagement.

17. The provisions of Section 120 specify a logical and systematic approach to identify,
evaluate and address threats irrespective of the facts and circumstances. The provisions
in subsequent sections of the International Code build on the conceptual framework
and provide general and context specific guidance.

18. To help emphasise the need for a careful thought process when applying the conceptual
framework, the overarching requirements clarify that in all three stages of the
conceptual framework, i.e., identifying, evaluating and addressing threats, professional
accountants are required to:

a) Exercise professional judgement, based on an understanding of known facts and
circumstance;

b) Use the reasonable and informed third-party test; and
¢) Remain alert for new information and to changes in facts and circumstances.
19. The enhanced conceptual framework makes it explicit that applying safeguards is only
one of three ways to address threats:

a) Eliminating the circumstances, including interests of relationships, that are
creating the threat:

b) Applying safeguards, when available and capable of being applied; or
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c) Declining or ending the specific professional activity.

20. Conditions, policies and procedures, are no longer categorised as safeguards. Rather,
conditions, policies and procedures are factors that are relevant in evaluating the level
of threats. If a threat is not at an acceptable level, the professional accountant is
required to address the threat as indicated in paragraph 19.

21. Safeguards are actions, individually or in combination, that the professional accountant
applies to reduce threats to compliance with the fundamental principle to an acceptable
level.

22. The Subcommittee has taken into account the enhancements to the International
Code in its consideration of the compelling reason changes. It has also considered the
relationship of the auditing and assurance standards and the quality control standards
with the International Code, noting that it is the interaction of the standards that
makes them effective.

Matters for Consideration

23. The NZAuASB is asked to AGREE the compelling reason amendments to be made to the
draft [proposed] restructured PES 1 in respect of the provisions relating to other
assurance engagements.

Material Presented

Agenda item 3.1 Board Meeting Summary Paper

Agenda item 3.2 Issues Paper

Agenda item 3.2.1 Breaches compelling reason test [from April Board papers, item 4.1.1]

Agenda item 3.2.2 Breaches comparison [from April Board papers, item 4.1.2]

Agenda item 3.2.3 NOCLAR compelling reason test [from April Board papers, item 4.1.3]

Agenda item 3.2.4 NOCLAR comparison [from April Board papers, item 4.1.4]

Agenda item 3.2.5 PIE & other provisions compelling reason test [from April Board papers,
item 4.1.5]

Agenda item 3.2.6 PIE & other provisions analysis [from April Board papers, item 4.1.6]
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Agenda Item 3.2: Issues Paper — extant compelling reason changes PES 1 (Revised)

1. As is normal in the process of adopting international standards into the New Zealand suite
of auditing and assurance standards, the Subcommittee has started with the presumption
that the International Code will be adopted without making any substantive changes. The

Subcommittee has then applied the compelling reason test to the extant compelling
reason amendments (related to other assurance engagements) to determine whether any
changes should be made to the International Code for application in New Zealand.

2. The Subcommittee’s recommendations to the Board are based on whether or not, in the
Subcommittee’s view, the compelling reason test has been met. Where the Board
disagrees with the Subcommittee view, it will be necessary to articulate how, in the
Board’s view, the compelling reason test has/has not been met.

3. Compelling reasons for modification of an international standard may arise when:
e The international standard does not reflect, or is not consistent with:
o the New Zealand regulatory arrangements: or

o principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand
(including the use of significant terminology)

Where the international standard does not reflect, or is not consistent with New Zealand
regulatory arrangements, the following criteria have to be met before the standard is
modified:

e the standard can be modified so as to result in a standard the application of
which results in effective and efficient compliance with the legal framework in
New Zealand, and

¢ the modification to the standard does not result in a standard that conflicts
with, or results in lesser requirements than the international standard.

Where the international standard does not reflect, or is not consistent with, principles and
practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand, the following criteria have to be
met before the standard is modified:

e the standard can be modified so as to result in a standard:

o the application of which results in compliance with principles and practices
considered appropriate by the NZAuASB;

o thatis clear and promotes consistent application by all practitioners in New
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Zealand;

o that promotes significant improvement in audit quality (as described by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board’s Framework for
Audit Quality) in the New Zealand environment; and

e the relative benefits of modifying the standard outweigh the costs (with costs
primarily being compliance costs and the cost of differing from international
standards, and benefit primarily relating to audit quality); and

¢ the modification to the standard does not result in a standard that:

o conflicts with or results in lesser requirements than the international
standard;

o is overly complex and confusing; or

o inadvertently changes the meaning or intent of the international standard
wording or places more onerous requirements on practitioners in New
Zealand than necessary.

4, The Subcommittee has considered the compelling reason test in the context of the
mandate of the NZAuASB, which is to issue auditing and assurance standards, including
professional and ethical standards, for auditors undertaking statutory assurance
engagements. The Subcommittee also considered the need to ensure that the standards
are fit for purpose and can be applied to the evolving nature of the subject matters on
which assurance is sought.

5. The Subcommittee also took into consideration, new information that the Board has
obtained through recent research with respect to the types of assurance engagements
being undertaken. It also considered the engagement standards, ethical standards and
quality control standards, and the way in which these standards are always used together,
i.e., in addition to complying with the ethical standards, the assurance practitioner must
also comply with the quality control standards, through the firm’s system of quality
control, and the relevant engagement standards, e.g., ISAs (NZ); ISAEs (NZ); ISRE (NZ).

6. Other assurance engagements are performed in accordance with ISAE (NZ) 3000
(Revised)! and its related subject matter specific standards, where applicable.

7. ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) is premised on the basis that:

e The members of the engagement team and the engagement quality control
reviewer are subject to Professional and Ethical Standard (PES) 1 (Revised)? or other

1ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information
2 PES 1 (Revised), Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners
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professional requirements, or requirements in law or regulation, that are at least as
demanding; and

e The assurance practitioner who is performing the engagement is a member of a firm
that is subject to Professional and Ethical Standard 3 (Amended)? or other
professional requirements, or requirements in law or regulation, regarding the firm’'s
responsibility for its system of quality control, that are at least as demanding as PES
3 (Amended).

8. The objective of the Subcommittee was to apply the compelling reason test, as described
in paragraph 3, to the extant compelling reason changes with respect to other assurance
engagements and make recommendations to the Board.

9. The Subcommittee considered the following existing compelling reason changes:

e Breaches of the independence requirements for other assurance engagements
(paragraph 9)

e Noncompliance with laws and regulations (paragraph 22)

e PIE requirements included in extant section 290% extended to section 291°
(including long association) (paragraph 58)

e Temporary staff assignments (other assurance engagements) (paragraph 98)

e Multiple threats to independence (audit and review engagements and other
assurance engagements) (paragraph 106)

Breaches of the independence requirements for other assurance engagements

Existing amendment and reason therefor

10. Extant PES 1 (Revised) is amended to incorporate the same framework that applies to
breaches of independence for audit and review engagements for other assurance
engagements. At the time this amendment was approved by the Board, the Board was of
the view that there is no reason why an abbreviated framework would apply to a breach
of the independence requirements when performing other assurance engagements
(under extant section 291) compared with an audit or review engagement (under section
290). Accordingly, the NZAuASB included the same framework as described in section 290
within section 291.

3 PES 3 (Amended), Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and Other Assurance
Engagements

4 Extant PES 1 (Revised), section 290, Independence — Audit and Review Engagements

5 Extant PES 1 (Revised), section 291, Independence — Other Assurance Engagements
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Subcommittee consideration
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11. Inconsidering whether the compelling reason test has been met with respect to the
existing amendment, the Subcommittee compared the extant requirements® with the

relevant paragraphs from the revised and restructured International Code’.

12. The Subcommittee found, when put side by side, the two frameworks result in

substantially the same action taken by the assurance practitioner when a breach of the

independence requirements is identified. The abbreviated framework for other assurance

engagements is more principles based than the companion framework for audit and

review engagements which is more prescriptive in terms of the communications to be

made.

13. The following table indicates areas where differences in the framework have been

identified.

Audit/Review Framework

Other Assurance Framework

Comment

R400.80 When a firm
identifies a breach:

(a) End, suspend or eliminate
the interest and address
consequences of the breach

(b) Consider legal or
regulatory requirements

(c) Communicate breach in
accordance with firm policies
and procedures

(d) Evaluate significance and
impact of breach

(e) End engagement or take
satisfactory action to address
consequences of breach

R900.50 When a firm
identifies a breach:

(a) End, suspend or eliminate
the interest

(b) Evaluate significance and
impact of breach

(c) Take satisfactory action to
address consequences of
breach

PES 3 (Amended)® requires
firms to establish policies and
procedures designed to
provide it with reasonable
assurance that (1) the firm and
its personnel comply with
relevant ethical requirements
and (2) it is notified of
breaches of independence
requirements and to enable it
to take appropriate actions to
resolve such situations.

The assurance practitioner
should always consider legal
or regulatory requirements.

R400.81 If action cannot be
taken to address the
consequences of the breach,

R900.51 If action cannot be
taken to address the
consequences of the breach,

In an audit/review
engagement, the engaging
party is those charged with

6 Extant PES 1 (Revised), 291.33-291.43
7 Paragraphs R400.80-R400.89 of part 4A for audit and review engagements and paragraphs R900.50-R900.55 of part 4B
for other assurance engagements
8 Professional and Ethical Standard (PES) 3 (Amended), Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review of
Financial Statements, and Other Assurance Engagements, paragraphs 20-25
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inform those charged with
governance and take steps
necessary to end the
engagement.

inform the party that engaged
the firm or those charged with
governance, as appropriate.

R400.82 If action can be taken
to address the consequences
of the breach, discuss with
those charged with
governance. (specifies matters
to communicate)

R900.52 If action can be taken
to address the consequences
of the breach, discuss with the
engaging party or those
charged with governance, as
appropriate.

governance.

In other assurance
engagements, whether or not
to communicate with TCWG is
a matter of professional
judgement, taking into
consideration the subject
matter of the engagement.

R400.86 If the breach
occurred prior to the issuance
of the previous audit report,
comply with the provisions of
Part 4A in evaluating the
significance of the breach and
the impact on the current
period.

No equivalent

Recognises that assurance
engagements are not always
repetitive in nature. In the
case of other assurance, the
assurance practitioner/firm
complies with Part 4B.

14. For a detailed comparative, please refer to the analysis presented at agenda item 3.2.2.

15. The Subcommittee view is of the view that the existing amendment to PES 1 (Revised):

e js more cosmetic rather than substantive in nature;

e adds unnecessary duplication in the Code; and

e inappropriately extends a framework applicable to engagements the subject matter

of which is financial statements, to other engagements with varying subject matters.

The compelling reason test presented at agenda item 3.2.1 identifies the specific

considerations on which the Subcommittee is of the view that the compelling reason test

has not been met.

16. We recognise that concerns have been expressed by some Board members that breaches

of independence should always be communicated to those charged with governance®. The

audit/review framework requires the assurance practitioner to communicate breaches of

independence with those charged with governance. Under the other assurance

framework, the assurance practitioner is required to communicate with the party that

engaged the firm or those charged with governance, as appropriate [emphasis added]. The

view expressed, is that it will always be appropriate, and therefore should be required,

that the assurance practitioner communicate breaches of independence to those charged

91SA (NZ) 260 (Revised) defines those charged with governance, The person(s) or organisation(s) (e.g., corporate trustee)
with responsibility for overseeing the strategic direction of the entity and obligations related to the accountability of the
entity. This includes overseeing the financial reporting process.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Arahi Piirongo Mo

with governance.

In an audit/review engagement, those charged with governance engage the firm. The
assurance practitioner will always have a direct line to those charged with governance.
Additionally, the subject matter in an audit or review engagement is historical financial
statements for which those charged with governance have a direct responsibility.

In other assurance engagements, undertaken under ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised), the
assurance practitioner agrees the terms of the engagement with the engaging party which
may or may not be those charged with governance.

In the other assurance framework, the requirement to communicate with the engaging
party or those charged with governance, as appropriate, recognises that, for example, the
subject matter of the engagement may be of limited significance to those charged with
governance. The assurance practitioner uses professional judgement in determining with
whom to communicate. In applying professional judgement, the assurance practitioner
will consider matters, such as, the nature and significance of the breach, the subject
matter of the engagement, the position of the engaging party within the entity.

ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) recognises that management and governance structures vary by
jurisdiction and by entity, reflecting influences such as different cultural and legal
backgrounds, and size and ownership characteristics. Identifying the appropriate
personnel or those charged with governance with whom to communicate will require the
exercise of professional judgement to determine which person(s) have the appropriate
responsibilities for, and knowledge of, the matters concerned.

Consistent with the NZAuASB’s harmonisation strategy with Australia, the Subcommittee
also considered the wording of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board'’s
(APESB) proposed standard APES 110, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, noting
that no changes to the international Code have been proposed in this regard.

While recognizing the concerns expressed, the Subcommittee continues to hold the view
that the compelling reason test has not been met and, therefore, recommends that the
wording of the international Code is not changed.

23.

Does the Board agree with the Subcommittee view that the compelling reason test has
not been met in respect of the existing change to the framework for addressing breaches
of independence for other assurance engagements? If not, with which aspects of the
compelling reason test do you disagree? Please be as specific as possible.

10 |SAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised), paragraph A20
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Noncompliance with laws and regulations (NOCLAR)

24. The compelling reason amendments for NOCLAR are considered under the following sub-
headings:

e Aligning requirements for review engagements with those for audit engagements

e Aligning requirements for other assurance engagements with those for audit
engagements

e Documentation

i. Aligning requirements for review engagements with those for audit engagements

(modification 1, agenda item 3.2.3)

Existing amendment and reason therefor

25. Section 225 of extant PES 1 (Revised) was amended to expand the requirements for
audit engagements to apply also to review engagements.

26. The reason given by the IESBA for not aligning the requirements for audit and review
engagements was that the provision of a review engagement varies significantly around
the world and that audits tend to be more significantly legislated or regulated than other
assurance engagements'?,

27. The New Zealand legislative environment allows for some entities to have the financial
statements reviewed rather than audited. In the case of a review, the public will have the
same level of reliance on the assurance practitioner as would be on the auditor. The
review would be regulated in the same manner as if that entity had elected to have an
audit.

28. Section 291 equates the independence requirements for an audit and a review. It seems
inconsistent therefore to draw a distinction between audit and review in section 225
where no such distinction is made in section 291 (from a clarity perspective the
International Code uses the term audit to mean audit and review in section 291, and
therefore this inconsistency could result in confusion and misapplication in practice.)

29. The Subcommittee supports the extant compelling reason amendment, agreeing that the
compelling reason test has been met:

e Some medium sized charities can elect for a review or an audit of the financial
statements. Aligning the requirements for an audit and review are consistent with
this legislative requirement for some form of assurance over the financial

11 Extant PES 1 (Revised), section 225, Responding to Non-compliance with Laws and Regulations
12 |ESBA Exposure Draft, Responding to Non-compliance with Laws and Regulations, paragraph 82, May 2015
13 Section 291, Independence — Other Assurance Engagements, renamed Part 4B in the restructured international Code.
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statements.

e The modification simplifies the standard, making the framework for audit and
review engagements consistent.

e Inconsistency of the NOCLAR provisions with the independence requirements is
removed.

e Additional requirements are not expected to be onerous for a review engagement as
the appropriate authorities for audit/review engagements would be similar.

30. Does the Board agree with the Subcommittee that the compelling reason test has been
met in respect of aligning the NOCLAR provisions for review engagements with those for
audit engagements? If not, with which aspects of the compelling reason test do you

disagree? Please be as specific as possible.

ii. Aligning requirements for other assurance engagements with those for audit engagements

(modifications 2a, 2b and 2¢, agenda item 3.2.3)

Existing amendment and reason therefor

31. Section 225 of extant PES 1 (Revised) is amended to apply to all other assurance
engagements. Expanding the provisions to review engagements is considered separately
as discussed in the preceding paragraphs. This section addresses only the changes made
that relate to other assurance and the reasons therefor.

32. Specific paragraphs that apply only to auditors performing audits of financial statements
are amended to apply to all assurance engagements. Specific paragraphs applying to non-
audit services are then deleted. In most instances, the modifications result in streamlining
the provisions and reducing repetition. There are, however, some paragraphs that are
specific to non-audit services and will remain so. These provisions relate to the
communication of non-audit services within the firm and to network firms.

33. The reason given for these changes is that the Board has previously extended the
independence requirements applicable to other assurance engagements to equate to the
requirements of an audit. The Board considered that there is no reason for the
independence requirements for an audit to differ from other assurance engagements.
Similarly, there is no reason why the assurance practitioner should react differently if the
engagement is an audit or some other assurance engagement where the assurance
practitioner suspects or identifies NOCLAR.

Subcommittee consideration

34. In considering whether the compelling reason test has been met in respect of the extant
compelling reason changes to align the provisions for non-audit services to the provisions
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for audit engagements when addressing NOCLAR the Subcommittee compared the extant

requirements* with the relevant paragraphs from the revised and restructured

International Code®.

35. The following table indicates areas where differences in the framework have been

identified.

Audit/Review Framework

Other Assurance Framework

Comment

Obtaining an understanding (modification 2a)

R360.10 shall obtain an
understanding of the matter

R360.29 shall seek to obtain
an understanding of the
matter

If the assurance practitioner is
unable to obtain an
understanding, regardless of
engagement type, the
assurance practitioner needs
to consider the implications
for the engagement and the
report,.

R360.11 discuss the matter
with the appropriate level of
management and, where
appropriate, those charged
with governance.

R360.30 discuss the matter
with the appropriate level of
management. If the assurance
practitioner has access to
those charged with
governance, discuss the
matter with them were
appropriate.

Recognizes that, depending on
the subject matter, the
assurance practitioner may
not have access to those
charged with governance. This
is more likely to be the case
when the subject matter is
further removed from
financial statements.

R360.12 If management
involved, discuss with those
charged with governance

R360.30 discuss the matter
with the appropriate level of
management. If the assurance
practitioner has access to
those charged with
governance, discuss the
matter with them were
appropriate.

The assurance practitioner
applies judgement in
determining with whom to
communicate.

Addressing the matter (modification 2b)

R360.13 Advise them to take

appropriate and timely actions

These requirements were
identified by the

14 Extant PES 1 (Revised), section 225

15 Section 360 of the restructured International Code.
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R360.14 Consider whether
management and those
charged with governance
understand their regulatory
and legal responsibilities.

R360.15 comply with (a) laws
and regulations; and (b)
auditing and review standards

Subcommittee as “nice to
have”. These are the matters
that would be discussed with
management/those charged
with governance under
R360.11 or R360.30

Communication with respect
to groups, R360.16, R360.17,
R360.18

Communication requirements
specific to audits of group
financial statements; these are
not applicable to other
assurance engagements

Communication to the entity’s
external auditor R360.31,
R360.32, R360.33

Communications to the
entity’s external auditor are
specific to other assurance
engagements only.

Further action needed (modifica

tion 2c)

R360.19 assess the
appropriateness of the
response and R360.20
determine if further action is
needed in the public interest

R360.36 consider if further
action is needed in the public
interest.

Requirement to consider
whether further action is
needed addresses the need to
assess the appropriateness of
the response.

R360.21 exercise professional
judgement taking into account
reasonable and informed third

party

Assurance practitioner always
required to exercise
professional judgement. The
reasonable and informed third
party test is part of the
conceptual framework.

Predecessor/successor
accountant communications,
R360.22, R360.23

R320.6, R320.8

Section 360 is repetitive of
Section 320 dealing with
predecessor/successor
communications.

36.

37.

e is more cosmetic rather than substantive in nature;

199501.1
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e rather than improving clarity by combining all requirements and guidance, may
create a level of confusion as not all requirements are applicable to all engagement
types (specifically R360.16-R360.18% which apply only to group audits and R360.31-
R360.33" which apply only to non-audit services).

e inappropriately extends a framework applicable to engagements the subject matter
of which is financial statements, to other engagements with varying subject matters.

The compelling reason tests presented at agenda item 3.2.3 identify the specific
considerations on which the Subcommittee is of the view that the compelling reason tests
have not been met.

38. The Subcommittee has challenged the premise, previously expressed by the Board, that
the same framework as audit and review engagements is equally appropriate for other
assurance engagements. In particular, the Subcommittee notes that the principles and
practices considered appropriate for financial statement assurance engagements may not
be the most appropriate principles and practices for assurance over other subject matters.
The principles based approach for other assurance services permits a more flexible
approach to addressing NOCLAR.

39. The Subcommittee agrees that consistency in the framework for audit and review
engagements is beneficial to the assurance practitioner, promoting consistent application
of the standard across differing engagement types. We note however, that clarity may not
be provided for other types of assurance engagement due to differing reporting
structures.

40. Assurance practitioners performing other assurance engagements often do not have the
same level of responsibility to respond to identified or suspected non-compliance as do
auditors; however, they are not precluded from considering the guidance applicable to
audits (and reviews, as proposed). The Subcommittee is of the view that adding detailed
requirements from the audit/review framework is unlikely to lead to a significant
improvement in the quality of other assurance engagements. The subject matter of other
assurance engagements is diverse. Assurance practitioners may not have the same level of
access to information, management and those charged with governance as an auditor
does. This may particularly be the case when the assurance practitioner has not been
engaged by those charged with governance or where the engagement being performed is
not of a recurring nature.

41. Concern has been expressed by some Board members that the assurance practitioner
should always be required to communicate identified or suspected NOCLAR to those
charged with governance. For an audit engagement (and, as proposed, review
engagement), the International Code requires identified or suspected non-compliance

16 Extant paragraphs NZ225.21.1-NZ225.22.1 dealing with communication with respect to group audits
17 Extant paragraphs NZ225.17.1- NZ225.17.5 apply only to non-audit services
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42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.
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that has occurred or might occur to be discussed with the appropriate level of
management and, where appropriate those charged with governance®®. This is also the
extant requirement in PES 1 (Revised). The assurance practitioner uses professional
judgement in determining when to communicate with those charged with governance.

By comparison, for non-audit services, the international Code requires identified or

suspected non-compliance that has occurred or might occur to be discussed with the
appropriate level of management. The matter is also required to be discussed with those
charged with governance where appropriate, if the assurance practitioner has access to
them® [emphasis added)]. This requires the assurance practitioner to use professional
judgement in determining with whom to communicate.

The view of some members of the Board is that the assurance practitioner should always
have access to those charged with governance.

Recent events in the Australian banking industry highlight the need for the assurance
practitioner, whether performing an audit, review, or other assurance, to have access to
and an open dialogue with those charged with governance.

The Subcommittee view is that the existing amendment to align the requirements for
other assurance with audit engagements is more cosmetic rather than substantive in
nature. This is acknowledged in the NZAuASB'’s Explanation for Decisions (Explanation for

Decisions) made by the NZAuASB in Finalising Amendments to Professional and Ethical

Standard 1 (Revised) Responding to Non-Compliance with Laws and Regulations which

notes, “the IESBA has developed similar, but separate responsibilities for professional
accountants performing audits of financial statements as opposed to responsibilities when

On «.

performing services other than audits of financial statements the frameworks are

similar in many respects, i.e., the IESBA framework for professmnal accountants providing

non-audit services repeats a number of requirements that apply to auditors.?”

The Subcommittee is of the view that changes that are substantially cosmetic in nature do
not meet the compelling reason test. Accordingly, the Subcommittee recommends that
the draft restructured PES 1 separately address noncompliance with laws and regulations
for audit (and as proposed, review) engagements and other assurance engagements.

Consistent with the NZAuASB’s harmonisation strategy with Australia, the Subcommittee
also considered the wording of APESB’s proposed standard APES 110 noting that no
changes to the international Code have been proposed in this regard.

48.

Does the Board agree with the Subcommittee that the compelling reason test has been
met in respect of aligning the NOCLAR provisions for review engagements with those for

18 paragraph R360.11

19 paragraph R360.30

20 paragraph 7 of the Explanation for Decisions
21 paragraph 10 of the Explanation for Decisions
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audit engagements? If not, with which aspects of the compelling reason test do you
disagree? Please be as specific as possible.

iii. Documentation of identified or suspected NOCLAR (modification 2d, agenda item 3.2.3)

Existing amendment and reason therefor

49. The International Code requires certain matters to be documented for audit
engagements. Under the International Code, documentation for other assurance
engagements is encouraged. Section 225 of PES 1 (Revised) has been amended to specify
certain matters to be documented for other assurance engagements consistent with other
assurance standards. This modification has the effect of requiring rather than encouraging
documentation of NOCLAR in all assurance engagements, which is required by the other
assurance standards in any event.

Subcommittee consideration

50. The IESBA Basis for Conclusions, Responding to Non-Compliance with Laws and
Regulations, notes that the IESBA has taken a proportionate approach to documentation.
The encouragement for the assurance practitioner to document recognizes that

practitioners performing other assurance engagements are not subject to the same extent
of regulatory oversight as auditors.?

51. The following table indicates areas where differences in the framework have been
identified.

Audit/Review Framework

Other Assurance Framework

Comment

Documentation (modification 2d)

R360.28 shall document:

e Response of
management and
those charged with
governance to the
matter

e Courses of action
considered,
judgements made,
decisions taken

e Fulfilment of

360.40 Al encourage to
document:

e The matter

e Results of discussions
with management and
those charged with
governance and their
response

e Courses of action
considered,
judgements made,

Proportionate approach to
documentation by IESBA
recognises that the
practitioner performing other
assurance engagements are
not subject to the same extent
of regulatory oversight as
auditors.”

For other assurance
engagements, ISAE (NZ) 3000
(Revised) and subject matter
specific standards, as

22 paragraph 133
23 |ESBA Basis for Conclusions, Responding to Non-Compliance with Laws and Regulations, paragraph 133
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responsibility R360.20 decisions taken applicable, establish the

. documentation requirements.
e Fulfilment of q

responsibility R360.36 | ("€f€" Paragraph 54)

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

For a detailed comparative, please refer to the analysis presented at agenda item 3.2.4.

The compelling reason test presented at agenda item 3.2.3 identifies the specific
considerations on which the Subcommittee is of the view that the compelling reason test
has not been met.

As noted in the reason for the amendment, paragraph 49, the modification has the effect
of requiring rather than encouraging documentation of NOCLAR in all assurance
engagements, which is required by the other assurance standards in any event. For other
assurance engagements ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised), subject matter specific ISAEs (NZ) and
SAEs will specify the documentation requirements. ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) requires the
assurance practitioner to prepare, on a timely basis, documentation that provides a record
of the basis for the assurance report that is sufficient and appropriate to enable an
experienced practitioner, having no previous connection with the engagement to
understand,... (c) the significant matters arising during the engagement, the conclusions
reached thereon, and significant professional judgements made in reaching those
conclusions.?

The Subcommittee is of the view that the modification does not significantly improve
audit quality as the matters the assurance practitioner is encouraged to document are
those matters that would ordinarily be required to be documented in accordance with the
assurance standards.

Consistent with the NZAuASB’s harmonisation strategy with Australia, the Subcommittee
also considered the wording of the APESB’s proposed standard APES 110 noting that no
changes to the international Code have been proposed in this regard.

57.

Does the Board agree with the Subcommittee that the compelling reason test has not
been met in respect of aligning the NOCLAR provisions for other assurance engagements
with those for audit engagements? If not, with which aspects of the compelling reason
test do you disagree? Please be as specific as possible.

PIE Requirements, including Long Association

Existing amendment and reason therefor

58.

Extant PES 1 (Revised) extends some of the more restrictive public interest entity
requirements included in section 290 to section 291. These include prohibitions on:

24 paragraph 79 of ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits of Reviews of Historical Financial

Information
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valuation services, certain IT systems services, certain recruiting services, as well as
provisions pertaining to relative fees and long association.

The view of the Board, at the time, was that threats to independence do not differ
whether the subject matter of the engagement is financial statements or another subject
matter. Accordingly, the prohibitions are appropriate for other assurance clients, if they
are public interest entities, and that prohibiting such services in these circumstances is
appropriate to maintaining independence, given the high level of interest in a public
interest entity.

Subcommittee consideration

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

199501.1

Concurrent with the structure project, the IESBA has undertaken the safeguards project,
the aim of which was to improve the clarity, appropriateness and effectiveness of
safeguards in the International Code.

Enhancements to the conceptual framework include more explicit requirements to the
threats and safeguards approach, as well as enhanced application material to explain how
to identify, evaluate and address threats to compliance with the fundamental principles
and threats to independence.

These revisions will require a change in mindset in how assurance practitioners and firms
apply the conceptual framework. In particular, they will require more careful thinking as
to how an identified threat should best be addressed, and whether an action will be
effective in addressing the threat and therefore meet the revised description of a
safeguard. The enhanced conceptual framework now explicitly addresses independence.

The conceptual framework sets out a logical and systematic approach for assurance
practitioners to identify, evaluate and address the threats irrespective of the facts and
circumstances.

To emphasise the need for a careful thought process when applying the enhanced
conceptual framework, the overarching requirements in each section clarify that in all
three stages of the conceptual framework, i.e., identifying, evaluating and addressing
threats, the assurance practitioner is required to:

e Exercise professional judgement, based on an understanding of known facts and
circumstances;

e Remain alert for new information and changes in facts and circumstances; and
e Use the reasonable and informed third-party test.

Enhancements specific to the provision of non-assurance services to assurance clients
include:
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e Explaining that examples are “actions that might be safeguards” to address the
threat created by providing the specific type of non-assurance service. This change is
intended to prompt firms and network firms to be mindful of other actions that
might be more appropriate to address specific threats, depending on the facts and
circumstances of each specific engagement.

e C(Clarifying that seeking advice from another party no longer meets the revised
description of a safeguard.

e Increasing the prominence of the requirement that prohibits firms from assuming a
management responsibility when providing a non-assurance service.

e Adding new application material for evaluating and addressing threats in relation to
non-assurance services, specifically new application with respect to materiality.

e Including clear, explicit and prominent statements that in certain situations, the
International Code prohibits firms and network firms from providing certain non-
assurance services to an audit/review client because there can be no safeguards to
address the threats to independence. These highlight that safeguards may not in all
cases be sufficient to address an independence threat.

e C(Clarifying that the threats from providing multiple non-assurance services to an
assurance client are to be identified, evaluated in aggregate and addressed.

66. The IESBA recognises that, as a result of new business practices, the evolution of financial
markets and changes in information technology amongst other developments, it is
impossible for the International Code to include an all-inclusive list of non-assurance
services that might be provided to a client. Accordingly, the enhanced conceptual
framework emphasises the general provisions that are always applicable.

67. The Subcommittee recognises and has taken into account the enhancements to the
conceptual framework when considering the modifications to extant PES 1 (Revised) in
respect of the PIE requirements, including long association.

68. The following table provides a summary of the existing compelling reason changes
considered by the Subcommittee. For the detailed analysis, refer to agenda item 3.2.6.

Audit/Review Framework

Introductory paragraphs

NZ291.3.1, NZ291.3.2, NZ291.27.1¢

* These paragraphs are necessary only if the Board determines to make compelling reason changes to the
International Code.

199501.1



NZ AUDITING
x R B AND ASSURANCE
STANDARDS BOARD

EXTERNAL REPORTING BOARD
Arahi Piirongo Mo

Valuation services

R605.3 prohibition on providing a valuation service to an audit or review client that is a public
interest entity if the valuation would have a material effect on the financial statements being
audited/reviewed.

IT system services

R606.5 prohibition on providing IT systems services to an audit/review client that is a public
interest entity if the services involve designing or implementing IT systems that:

(a) Form a significant part of the internal control over financial reporting

(b) Generate information that is significant to the client’s accounting records or financial
statements on which the firm will express an opinion.

Recruiting services

R609.7 prohibition on recruiting services to an audit or review client that relates to searching
for or seeking out candidates or undertaking reference checks with respect to:

e Adirector or officer of the entity

e A member of senior management in a position to exert influence over the preparation
of the client’s accounting records or the financial statements.

Fees — Relative size

R410.4-R410.6

R410.4 Where the audit or review client is a public interest entity and for two consecutive years
total fees represent more than 15% of total fees of the firm:

(a) Disclose this fact to those charged with governance

(b) Discuss whether the following action might be a safeguard and apply it:
i.  Perform a pre-issuance review by someone outside the firm; or
ii. Perform a post-issuance review by someone outside the firm.

R410.5 If the post-issuance review would not reduce the threat to an acceptable level, a pre-
issuance is required.

R410.6 If the fees continue to exceed 15%:
(a) Disclose and discuss with those charged with governance (per R410.4); and

(b) Comply with R410.4(b) and R410.5

Long association

NZ291.141.1 — NZ291.141.15 applying the long association provisions applicable to audit and
review engagements to other assurance engagements.

199501.1
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NZ291.141.1 Assurance practitioner shall not act in any of the following roles, or a combination
thereof, for a period of more than seven cumulative years:

e Engagement partner

e Individual responsible for EQCR

e Other key assurance partner role
Cooling off period:
NZ291.141.3 Engagement partner — 5 consecutive years
NZ291.141.4 Individual responsible for EQCR — 3 consecutive years
NZ291.141.5 Key assurance partner — 2 consecutive years

NZ291.141.6 Combination of roles, serving as engagement partner for four or more cumulative
years — 5 consecutive years

NZ291.141.7 Combination of roles, services as individual responsible for EQCR for four or more
cumulative years — 3 consecutive years

NZ291.141.8 Combination of engagement partner and individual responsible for EQCR for four
or more cumulative years:

e 5 consecutive years where the individual has been the engagement partner for three of
more years; or

e 3 consecutive years in the case of any other combination
NZ291.141.9 Any other combination of key assurance partner roles, 2 consecutive years

NZ291.141.10 Length of the relationship includes time on as a key assurance partner at a prior
firm.

NZ291.141.12 Threats and safeguards approach applies even if the time served is less than
seven years.

NZ291.141.13 Rare circumstances due to unforeseen circumstances where, with the
concurrence of those charged with governance, permitted to serve an additional year as along
as the threat to independence can be eliminated or reduced to an acceptable level.

NZ291.141.14 When the assurance client becomes a public interest entity, length of service
before the client becomes a public interest entity is taken into account.

NZ291.141.15 Regulator may specify exemptions from rotation requirements.

69. The Subcommittee is of the view that the existing amendments to PES 1 (Revised) do not
meeting the compelling reason test:

e Do not promote significant improvement in assurance quality.

e Place more onerous requirements on a practitioner in New Zealand than necessary

199501.1
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to meet the intent of the international Code

The compelling reason test presented at agenda item 3.2.5, modification 1, identifies the
specific considerations on which the Subcommittee is of the view that the compelling
reason test has not been met.

The view of the Subcommittee is that threats to independence in other assurance
engagements do vary and depend on a number of factors, including: the subject matter;
the purpose of the assurance engagement; the needs of the users. Establishing rules-
based prohibitions based on principles and practices considered appropriate for a financial
statement audit/review is not consistent with a principles based Code.

Requirements in the International Code for other assurance engagements are
intentionally not as specific because of the wide range of possible subject matters and
subject matter information.

Nevertheless, the assurance practitioner is required to be independent, in mind and
appearance, and is required to apply the same conceptual framework to identify, evaluate
and address threats to independence.

The provision of non-assurance services, a significant level of fees from an individual client
or long association with a client create threats to independence. This is the case
regardless of whether the client is a public interest entity or not.

Valuation services, IT systems services, Recruiting services

75.

76.

Before providing a non-assurance service to an assurance client, the firm is required to
determine whether providing such a service might create a threat to independence®. The
International Code recognises that new business practices, the evolution of financial
markets and changes in information technology are among the developments that make it
impossible to draw up an all-inclusive list of non-assurance services that might be
provided to an assurance client.

Additionally, the firm is prohibited from assuming a management responsibility related to
the subject matter or subject matter information of an assurance engagement provided
by the firm?. Management responsibilities involve controlling, leading and directing an
entity, including making decisions regarding the acquisition, deployment and control of
human, financial, technological, physical and tangible resources.

Fees — relative size

77.

In the case of fees, when the total fees generated from an assurance client by the firm
expressing the conclusion in an assurance engagement represent a large proportion of the
total fees of that firm, the dependence on that client and concern about losing the client

25 paragraph R950.3 of the International Code
26 paragraph R950.6 of the international Code
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create a self-interest or intimidation threat.

For an audit/review engagement that is a public interest entity, when fees from one client
and its related entities exceed 15% of total fees received by the firm for two consecutive
years, the assurance practitioner is required to disclose this to those charged with
governance and apply one of the two specified safeguards, either: a pre-issuance review
or a post-issuance review by an assurance practitioner who is not a member of the firm
expressing a conclusion. There is an assumption that using an external assurance
practitioner will reduce the threat to an acceptable level.

The International Code does not establish such a requirement in respect of other
assurance engagements for public interest entities. For an other assurance engagement,
the assurance practitioner applies the conceptual framework?” to identify, evaluate and
address the threat, either by eliminating the threat, applying safeguards to reduce it to an
acceptable level or resigning from or declining the engagement. Factors that are relevant
in evaluating the threat include: the operating structure of the firm, whether the firm is
well established or new; the significance of the client qualitatively and/or quantitatively to
the firm.

Where the firm performs both an assurance engagement and an audit or review
engagement for the same client, the requirements in Part 4A apply to the firm, a network
firm and the audit or review team members, i.e., the firm would be subject to the 15%
threshold.

Where the firm performs only an assurance engagement for the client, the assurance
practitioner applies the conceptual framework?,

The Subcommittee is of the view that such a requirement in the other assurance
framework is unlikely to lead to a significant improvement in audit quality, as the
conceptual framework applies. Additionally, in the initial assessment of this provision by
the Board, it was noted that in practical terms this provision was likely to have little
impact as clients are likely to be audit clients of the firm and, therefore, subject to the
provisions of Part 4A%,

Long association

83.

84.

In line with its previous view that the threats to independence do not differ whether the
subject matter of the engagement is financial statements or another subject matter, in
finalising the recent revised long association provisions, the Board determined that the
long association provisions for audit and review engagements should also be applicable to
other assurance engagements of public interest entities.

At the time of approving these amendments, the Board did not reconsider whether the
compelling reasons test is met. Rather, it deferred consideration of the compelling reason

27paragraph R120.5 of the International Code.
28 Section 120 of the International Code, specifically paragraph R120.5
29 As indicated in the February 2012 Board papers, agenda item 4.1b
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test to the Subcommittee.

The explanation for decisions made notes that while stakeholders agreed that

conceptually the independence requirements should be the same for all assurance
engagements, some respondents questioned whether the compelling reason test is still
met, given the impact of the long association changes. The majority of respondents were
opposed to applying those changes across the board.*®

The more prescriptive independence requirements applicable to public interest entities
were introduced by the IESBA in response to the loss in credibility of financial statements
due to several high profile corporate/audit failures related to audits of public entities.

The familiarity or self-interest threat that is created by long service with an assurance
client is the same regardless of the engagement type, i.e., audit, review or other assurance
engagement, and whether the entity is a public interest entity or otherwise. The
assurance practitioner is required to apply the conceptual framework to identify, evaluate
and address threats to independence, both in mind and appearance. In applying the
conceptual framework, the assurance practitioner is required to:

e Exercise professional judgement;
e Remain alert for new information and to changes in facts and circumstances; and

e Use the reasonable and informed third party test.

The reasonable and informed third party test is a consideration by the assurance
practitioner about whether the same conclusion would likely be reached by another party.
Such consideration is made from the perspective of a reasonable and informed third
party, who weighs all the relevant facts and circumstances that the assurance practitioner
knows, or could reasonably be expected to know, at the time the conclusions are made.
The reasonable and informed third party does not need to be an assurance practitioner,
but would possess the relevant knowledge and experience to understand and evaluate
the appropriateness of the assurance practitioner’s conclusions in an impartial manner.

The Subcommittee considers that threats to independence due to long service may be
stronger when the subject matter is the same from year to year, such as the case in an
annual audit or review engagement. This may not always be the case with other assurance
engagements as the subject matter can change and the engagement may be infrequent,
for example, every three years.

The Subcommittee also notes that where an assurance client is also an audit/review
client, the provisions of Part 4A, and therefore the public interest entity provisions, will

apply.

The International Code relies on the proper application of the conceptual framework, i.e.,

30 paragraph 32 of the explanation of decisions made.
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the identification, evaluation and addressing of threats by the assurance practitioner.

Board member concerns

92.

93.

94.

95.

96.

Concerns have been expressed by some members that it is important for the public
interest entity provisions applicable to audit and review engagements to be included in
the provisions for other assurance engagements as the auditor of a public interest entity
may rely on an assurance report of another practitioner, for example, a report on the
controls at a service organisation.

In this regard, the Subcommittee notes that there are specific procedures the auditor is
required to perform in order to use on the work of others. For example, in relation to the
service auditor’s report, the auditor is required to be satisfied as to the service auditor’s
professional competence and independence. This may involve making inquiries about the
service auditor to the service auditor’s professional organisation or other practitioners
and inquiring whether the service auditor is subject to regulatory oversight.3!

The Subcommittee puts significant weight on the integrated nature of the standards, i.e.,
the combined effect of auditing and assurance standards with the Code of Ethics and the
quality control standards, along with the enhancements made to the International Code
through the Safeguards project. It is the interaction of the standards that makes them
most effective. The Code is not intended to be read and applied in isolation.

While recognizing the concerns expressed, the Subcommittee continues hold the view
that the compelling reason test has not been met.

Consistent with the NZAuASB’s harmonisation strategy with Australia, the Subcommittee
also considered the wording of the APESB’s proposed standard APES 110 noting that no
changes to the international Code have been proposed in this regard.

97.

Does the Board agree with the Subcommittee that the compelling reason test has not been
met in respect of applying certain of the PIE requirements for audit and review engagements
to other assurance engagements? If not, with which aspects of the compelling reason
analysis do you disagree? Please be as specific as possible.

Temporary Staff Assignments

Existing amendment and reason therefor

98.

Extant PES 1 (Revised) Section 291 includes guidance from Section 290 relating to
temporary staff assignments. Lending staff may create a self-review threat if that staff
member is later involved in providing assurance over that subject matter or that subject
matter information. This guidance is not intended to be a prohibition and does not apply

311SA (NZ) 402, Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation, paragraphs 13 and A21
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where the role is not related to the subject matter of the assurance engagement.

99. This guidance which is expanded guidance on the threats and safeguards approach, is as
relevant to other assurance engagements as it is to audits and reviews and therefore the
addition promotes audit quality®2.

100. This guidance indicates that lending of staff by a firm to an assurance client may create a
self-review threat. Assistance may be given but the firm’s personnel shall not be involved
in:

e Providing non-assurance services that would be prohibited; or

e Assuming management responsibilities.

Threats are to be evaluated and safeguards applied when necessary to eliminate the threat
or reduce it to an acceptable level.

Subcommittee view

101. The Subcommittee agrees that it is necessary for the assurance practitioner to consider
the threat to the fundamental principles and independence arising from temporary staff
assignments. However, the Subcommittee view in respect of this extant amendment is
that the compelling reason test has not been met. The Subcommittee is of the view that,
under the conceptual framework, there is unlikely to be any significant difference in the
identification, evaluation or addressing of the threat. Accordingly, the addition of this
guidance is likely to have little impact on assurance quality.

102. The International Code, prohibits a firm from assuming a management responsibility

related to the subject matter or subject matter information of an assurance engagement
provided by the firm33. The assurance practitioner is required to apply the conceptual
framework to identify, evaluate and address threats to the fundamental principles®®.
When applying the conceptual framework, the assurance practitioner: exercises
professional judgement; remains alert for new information and changes in facts and
circumstances; and uses the reasonable and informed third party test®.

103. The compelling reason test presented at agenda item 3.2.5, modification 2 identifies the
specific considerations on which the Subcommittee is of the view that the compelling
reason test has not been met.

104. Consistent with the NZAuASB’s harmonisation strategy with Australia, the Subcommittee
also considered the wording of the APESB’s proposed standard APES 110 noting that no

32 paragraph 40 of the explanation for decisions made by the NZAuASB in finalizing PES 1.
33 |nternational Code, R950.6
34 International Code, R120.3
35 International Code, R120.5
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changes to the international Code have been proposed in this regard.

105. Does the Board agree with the Subcommittee that the compelling reason test has not
been met? If not, with which aspects of the compelling reason analysis do you disagree?
Please be as specific as possible.

Multiple Threats to Independence

Existing amendment and reason therefor

106. Extant PES 1 (Revised) includes guidance that clarifies the need for the assurance
practitioner to evaluate multiple threats to independence, which individually may not be
significant, in the aggregate. This guidance is included in both extant sections 290 and 291.
This change is made in line with the NZAuASB’s harmonisation policy with the Australian
Code.

Subcommittee recommendation

107. The discussion on the conceptual framework at the start of extant section 290 has been
relocated in the restructured International Code to section 120 on the overall conceptual

framework elements. The restructured International Code includes a reference to multiple
threats®® but it is not as detailed as the extant NZ paragraph and is in a different section to
the Independence Standards.

108. In line with the NZAuASB’s harmonisation policy with Australia, it is proposed that the
following wording be included in Parts 4A and 4B of the proposed restructured PES 1%,

Where an assurance practitioner identifies multiple threats to
independence, which individually may not be significant, the assurance
practitioner shall evaluate the significance of those threats in aggregate
and apply safeguards to eliminate or reduce them to an acceptable level
in aggregate.

109. This paragraph is based on a similar addition to the APESB’s proposed standard APES 110.

110. The Subcommittee view is that the compelling reason test has been met in respect of this
proposed modification. Refer to agenda item 3.2.5, modification 3.

111. Does the Board agree with the Subcommittee that the compelling reason test has been
met? If not, with which aspects of the compelling reason analysis do you disagree? Please
be as specific as possible.

36 paragraph 120.8 Al of the International Code states, “The consideration of qualitative as well as quantitative factors is
relevant in the assurance practitioner’s evaluation of threats, as is the combined effect of multiple threats, if applicable.”
37 Based on the wording in extant PES 1 (Revised), paragraphs NZ290.11.1 and NZ291.10.1
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Moadification: Breaches of the independence requirements for other assurance engagements

Modification to the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International

Independence Requirements)

Modification

Amend the provisions in Part 4B of the International Independence Standards, Independence for
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audit and Review Engagements, so that the same framework
that applies to Part 4A, Independence for Audit and Review Engagements, also applies to Part 4B
when there has been a breach of the independence provisions.

Paragraphs affected R900.50-R900.55

Rationale for the modification

The international standard is not
consistent with NZ regulatory
arrangements.

n/a

OR

The international standard does not
reflect, or is not consistent with, principles
and practices that are considered
appropriate in NZ

The International Code includes an abbreviated version of
the provisions for addressing a breach of the independence
requirements in Part 4B (previously section 291). The
NZAuASB was of the view that there is no reason why an
abbreviated framework would apply to a breach of the
independence requirements when performing other
assurance engagements (under section 291) compared to
an audit or review engagement (under section 290, now
part 4A). The consequences of a breach of independence
are as significant regardless of the subject matter of the
engagement. The NZAuASB has therefore included the
same framework as described in Section 290 within Section
291.

A. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard is not consistent
with New Zealand regulatory requirements.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the modification meets the

Principles of Convergence

criteria

The standard can be modified so as to
result in a standard the application of
which results in effective and efficient
compliance with the legal framework in
NZ.

n/a

The modification does not result in a
standard that conflicts with, or results in

n/a
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lesser requirements than the international
standard.

B. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard does not reflect
principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the modification meets the

Principles of Convergence

criteria

1. The application of the
modification will result in
compliance with principles and
practices considered appropriate
by the NZAuASB

As identified by the analysis comparing the International
Code (refer attachment 2) other assurance provisions
(section 900) with the audit and review provisions (section
400), the two frameworks result in substantially the same
action taken by the assurance practitioner when a breach
of the independence requirements is identified. The
abbreviated framework in section 900 is more principles
based.

In the other assurance arena, the Subcommittee is of the
view that we do not have sufficient context to say what
practices will be appropriate. Rather, the more principles
based approach in the other assurance framework permits
a more flexible approach to addressing the breach.

2. The modification results in a
standard that is clear and
promotes consistent application
by all practitioners.

(For example, excluding options not
relevant in NZ and Australia )

The modification would result in consistency between
audit and review and other financial assurance
engagements. It may not provide such clarity for other
types of assurance engagement due to differing reporting
structures.

3. The modification will promote
significant improvement in audit
quality in New Zealand

(With improvement in audit quality being
linked to one or more of the Applicable
elements in the IAASB’s Framework for
Audit Quality)

There is no evidence to support a significant improvement
in audit quality. The comparison of the two frameworks
indicates that the assurance practitioner would perform
substantially the same procedures.

4. The relative benefits of
modification outweigh the cost
(with cost being compliance cost
and the cost of differing from the
international standard, and
benefit relating to audit quality).

No cost/benefit analysis has been performed.

5. The modification does not conflict
with or result in lesser
requirements than the
international standard.

The modification would not conflict with or result in lesser
requirements than the International Code.
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The proposed modification
overall does not result in the
standard being overly complex
and confusing.

The modification may cause confusion among assurance
practitioner trying to fit the response to a breach into the
financial assurance model.

The proposed modification does
not inadvertently change the
meaning of the international
wording by placing more onerous
requirements on a practitioner in
NZ than necessary to meet the
intent of the international.

The modification places more onerous requirements on a
practitioner in NZ than necessary to meet the intent of the
International Code. As indicated by the comparison of the
frameworks, the Subcommittee is of the view that the two
frameworks result in substantially the same action taken
by the assurance practitioner when a breach of the
independence requirements is identified.

Conclusion

Based the above, the Subcommittee is of the view that the
compelling reason test has not been met.
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Breaches of the independence requirements

Agenda 3.2.2

This table compares the provisions of extant PES 1 (Revised) section 291 with the restructured International Code section 400 (audit and review) and section 900
(other assurance). Yellow highlight is used to identify differences between the International frameworks, section 400 and section 900. Extant PES 1 (Revised) is

included for information.

EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (NZ)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

Breach of an Independence Provision
for Audit and Review Engagements

Breach of an Independence Provision
for Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audit and Review Engagements

Breach of a Provision of this Section

When a Firm Identifies a Breach

When a Firm Identifies a Breach

NZ291.34 When the firm concludes
that a breach has occurred, the firm
shall terminate, suspend or eliminate
the interest or relationship that caused
the breach and address the
consequences of the breach.

NZ291.37 Depending upon the
significance of the breach, it may be
necessary to terminate the assurance
engagement or it may be possible to
take action that satisfactorily
addresses the consequences of the
breach. The firm shall determine
whether such action can be taken and
is appropriate in the circumstances. In
making this determination the firm
shall exercise professional judgement

R400.80 If a firm concludes that
a breach of a requirement in this Part
has occurred, the firm shall:

(a) End, suspend or eliminate the
interest or relationship that
created the breach and address
the consequences of the breach;

(b) Consider whether any legal or
regulatory requirements apply to
the breach and, if so:

(i) Comply with those
requirements; and
(ii) Consider reporting the breach

to a professional or regulatory
body or oversight authority if

R900.50 If a firm concludes that
a breach of a requirement in this Part
has occurred, the firm shall:

(a) End, suspend or eliminate the
interest or relationship that
created the breach;

(b) Evaluate the significance of the
breach and its impact on the firm’s
objectivity and ability to issue an
assurance report; and

(c) Determine whether action can be
taken that satisfactorily addresses
the consequences of the breach.

In making this determination, the firm
shall exercise professional judgment

Consideration of whether legal or
regulatory requirements apply to the
breach is necessary regardless of
whether or not the Code specifies
consideration.

Paragraphs 20-25 of PES 3 (Amended)
address compliance with relevant
ethical requirements including
independence and the communication
of breaches. ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised)
requires the firm to apply PES 3
(Amended) or other professional
requirements that are at least as
demanding.

The Subcommittee is of the view that
the detailed requirements applicable




EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

and take into account whether a
reasonable and informed third party,
weighing the significance of the
breach, the action to be taken and all
the specific facts and circumstances
available to the assurance practitioner
at that time, would be likely to
conclude that the firm's objectivity
would be compromised and therefore
the firm is unable to issue an
assurance report.

such reporting is common
practice or expected in the
relevant jurisdiction;

(c) Promptly communicate the breach
in accordance with its policies and
procedures to:

(i) The engagement partner;

(ii) Those with responsibility for
the policies and procedures
relating to independence;

(iii) Other relevant personnel in
the firm and, where
appropriate, the network; and

(iv) Those subject to the
independence requirements in
Part 4A who need to take
appropriate action;

(d) Evaluate the significance of the
breach and its impact on the firm’s
objectivity and ability to issue an
audit report; and

(e) Depending on the significance of
the breach, determine:

(i) Whether to end the audit
engagement; or

and take into account whether a
reasonable and informed third party
would be likely to conclude that the
firm’s objectivity would be
compromised, and therefore, the firm
would be unable to issue an assurance
report.

to audit and review engagements
(highlighted) are addressed by the
requirements of PES 3 (Amended) and
the need to follow applicable law or
regulation.
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

(i) Whether it is possible to take
action that satisfactorily
addresses the consequences of
the breach and whether such
action can be taken and is
appropriate in the
circumstances.

In making this determination, the firm
shall exercise professional judgment
and take into account whether a
reasonable and informed third party
would be likely to conclude that the
firm's objectivity would be
compromised, and therefore, the firm
would be unable to issue an audit
report.

NZ291.33 A breach of a provision of
this section may occur despite the firm
having policies and procedures
designed to provide it with reasonable
assurance that independence is
maintained. A consequence of such a
breach may be that termination of the
assurance engagement is necessary.

400.80 A1 A breach of a provision of
this Part might occur despite the firm
having policies and procedures
designed to provide it with reasonable
assurance that independence is
maintained. It might be necessary to
end the audit engagement because of
the breach.

Guidance supporting the requirement
in paragraph R400.80. Not essential
material. Considered “nice to have”.

NZ291.36 When a breach is identified,
the firm shall in accordance with its
policies and procedures, promptly

400.80 A2 The significance and
impact of a breach on the firm’s

Guidance supporting the requirement
in paragraph R400.80. Not essential
material. Considered “nice to have”.
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

communicate the breach to the
engagement partner, those with
responsibility for policies and
procedures relating to independence,
other relevant personnel in the firm,
and, where appropriate, the network,
and those subject to the independence
requirements who need to take
appropriate action. The firm shall
evaluate the significance of that
breach and its impact on the firm’s
objectivity and ability to issue an
assurance report. The significance of
the breach will depend on factors such
as:

e The nature and duration of the
breach;

e The number and nature of any
previous breaches with respect to
the current assurance
engagement;

e  Whether a member of the
assurance team had knowledge of
the interest or relationship that
caused the breach;

e  Whether the individual who
caused the breach is a member of
the assurance team or another

objectivity and ability to issue an audit
report will depend on factors such as:

e The nature and duration of the
breach.

e The number and nature of any
previous breaches with respect to
the current audit engagement.

e Whether an audit team member
had knowledge of the interest or
relationship that created the
breach.

e Whether the individual who
created the breach is an audit
team member or another
individual for whom there are
independence requirements.

e [f the breach relates to an audit
team member, the role of that
individual.

e If the breach was created by
providing a professional service,
the impact of that service, if any,
on the accounting records or the
amounts recorded in the financial
statements on which the firm will
express an opinion.
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

individual for whom there are
independence requirements;

e [f the breach relates to a member
of the assurance team, the role of
that individual;

e If the breach was caused by the
provision of a professional service,
the impact of that service, if any,
on the subject matter or subject
matter information on which the
firm will express an opinion; and

e The extent of the self-interest,
advocacy, intimidation or other
threats created by the breach.

° The extent of the self-interest,
advocacy, intimidation or other threats
created by the breach.

NZ291.38 Examples of actions that the
firm might consider include:

e Removing the relevant individual
from the assurance team;

e Conducting an additional review of
the affected assurance work or re-
performing that work to the extent
necessary, in either case using
different personnel;

e Recommending that the assurance
client engage another firm to
review or re-perform the affected

400.80 A3 Depending upon the
significance of the breach, examples of
actions that the firm might consider to
address the breach satisfactorily
include:

e Removing the relevant individual
from the audit team.

e Using different individuals to
conduct an additional review of
the affected audit work or to re-
perform that work to the extent
necessary.

Guidance supporting the requirement
in paragraph R400.80. Not essential
material. Considered “nice to have”.
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

assurance work to the extent
necessary; and

e  Where the breach relates to a non-
assurance service that affects the
subject matter or subject matter
information, engaging another firm
to evaluate the results of the non-
assurance service or having
another firm re-perform the non-
assurance service to the extent
necessary to enable it to take
responsibility for the service.

e Recommending that the audit
client engage another firm to
review or re-perform the affected
audit work to the extent
necessary.

e If the breach relates to a non-
assurance service that affects the
accounting records or an amount
recorded in the financial
statements, engaging another firm
to evaluate the results of the non-
assurance service or having
another firm re-perform the non-
assurance service to the extent
necessary to enable the other firm
to take responsibility for the
service.

NZ291.39 If the firm determines that
action cannot be taken to satisfactorily
address the consequences of the
breach, the firm shall inform those
charged with governance as soon as
possible and take the steps necessary
to terminate the assurance
engagement in compliance with any
applicable legal or regulatory
requirements relevant to terminating
the assurance engagement. Where

R400.81  If the firm determines that
action cannot be taken to address the
consequences of the breach
satisfactorily, the firm shall inform
those charged with governance as
soon as possible and take the steps
necessary to end the audit
engagement in compliance with any
applicable legal or regulatory
requirements. Where ending the
engagement is not permitted by laws

R900.51 If the firm determines
that action cannot be taken to address
the consequences of the breach
satisfactorily, the firm shall, as soon as
possible, inform the party that
engaged the firm or those charged
with governance, as appropriate. The
firm shall also take the steps necessary
to end the assurance engagement in
compliance with any applicable legal

Communication in other assurance
engagement is with the party that
engaged the firm or those charged
with governance. In an audit/review,
those charged with governance engage
the firm.

This communication requirement
recognizes that in an other assurance
engagement, the assurance
practitioner may not have access to
TCWG or the matter may be deemed
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

termination is not permitted by law or
regulation, the firm shall comply with
any reporting or disclosure
requirements.

or regulations, the firm shall comply
with any reporting or disclosure
requirements.

or regulatory requirements relevant to
ending the assurance engagement.

to be of less importance to TCWG. The
assurance practitioner uses
professional judgement to determine
the appropriate party with whom to
communicate.

R400.81 makes an allowance for
situations where the firm is not
permitted by law or regulation to end
the audit. When this is the case, law or
regulation will determine the reporting
or disclosure requirements.

NZ291.40 If the firm determines that
action can be taken to satisfactorily
address the consequences of the
breach, the firm shall discuss the
breach and the action it has taken or
proposes to take with those charged
with governance. The firm shall discuss
the breach and the action as soon as
possible, unless those charged with
governance have specified an
alternative timing for less significant
breaches. The matters to be discussed
shall include:

e The significance of the breach,
including its nature and duration;

R400.82 If the firm determines
that action can be taken to address the
consequences of the breach
satisfactorily, the firm shall discuss
with those charged with governance:

(a) The significance of the breach,
including its nature and duration;

(b) How the breach occurred and how
it was identified;

(c) The action proposed or taken and
why the action will satisfactorily
address the consequences of the
breach and enable the firm to
issue an audit report;

(d) The conclusion that, in the firm’s

R900.52 If the firm determines
that action can be taken to address the
consequences of the breach
satisfactorily, the firm shall discuss the
breach and the action it has taken or
proposes to take with the party that
engaged the firm or those charged
with governance, as appropriate. The
firm shall discuss the breach and the
proposed action on a timely basis,
taking into account the circumstances
of the engagement and the breach.

Requirement is substantially the same,
albeit R400.82 is significantly more
granular.
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

e How the breach occurred and how
it was identified;

e The action taken or proposed to be
taken and the firm’s rationale for
why the action will satisfactorily
address the consequences of the
breach and enable it to issue an
assurance report;

e The conclusion that, in the firm’s
professional judgement, objectivity
has not been compromised and
the rationale for that conclusion;
and

e Any steps that the firm has taken
or proposes to take to reduce or
avoid the risk of further breaches
occurring.

professional judgment, objectivity
has not been compromised and
the rationale for that conclusion;
and

(e) Any steps proposed or taken by
the firm to reduce or avoid the risk
of further breaches occurring.

Such discussion shall take place as
soon as possible unless an alternative
timing is specified by those charged
with governance for reporting less
significant breaches.

Communication of Breaches to Those
Charged with Governance

400.83 A1 Paragraphs R300.9 and
R300.10 set out requirements with
respect to communicating with those
charged with governance.

R300.9 When communicating with
those charged with governance in
accordance with the Code, an
assurance practitioner shall determine
the appropriate individual(s) within the
entity's governance structure with
whom to communicate. If the

R300.9 and R300.10 apply to all
assurance practitioners and therefore
are applicable to other assurance
engagements. The application material
referencing R300.9 and R300.10 is not
considered essential to include for
other assurance engagements.
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

assurance practitioner communicates
with a subgroup of those charged with
governance, the assurance practitioner
shall determine whether
communication with all of those
charged with governance is also
necessary so that they are adequately
informed.

R300.10 If an assurance
practitioner communicates with
individuals who have management
responsibilities as well as governance
responsibilities, the assurance
practitioner shall be satisfied that
communication with those individuals
adequately informs all of those in a
governance role with whom the
assurance practitioner would
otherwise communicate.

NZ291.41 The firm shall communicate
in writing with those charged with
governance all matters discussed in
accordance with paragraph NZ291.40
and obtain the concurrence of those
charged with governance that action
can be, or has been taken to

R400.84  With respect to breaches,
the firm shall communicate in writing
to those charged with governance:

(a) All matters discussed in
accordance with paragraph
R400.82 and obtain the
concurrence of those charged with

ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) requires the
assurance practitioner to consider
whether... any matter has come to the
attention of the assurance practitioner
that is to be communicated [to various
parties including those charged with
governance].! There is no specific

LISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised), paragraph 78
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)

SECTION 400 International Code

SECTION 900 International Code

COMMENTS

OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291) (PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290) (PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)
satisfactorily address the governance that action can be, or requirement for this communication to
consequences of the breach. The has been, taken to satisfactorily be in writing. R900.54 requires those
communication shall include a address the consequences of the matters discussed with TCWG to be
description of the firm’s policies and breach; and documented.
pros:edures relevgnt .to the breach (b) A description of: The Subcommittee is of the view that
designed to provide it with reasonable .
i i . __— . the requirements of ISAE (NZ) 3000
assurance that independence is (i) The firm’s policies and . )
o . (Revised) and section 900 (R900.51-
maintained and any steps that the firm procedures relevant to the )
. Sy R900.52) of the International Code, are
has taken, or proposes to take, to breach designed to provide it : _ _
" - . consistent with the requirements of
reduce or avoid the risk of further with reasonable assurance i
) . . section 400.
breaches occurring. If those charged that independence is
with governance do not concur that maintained; and
the action satisfactorily addresses. the (i) Any steps that the firm has
consequences of the breach, the firm taken, or proposes to take, to
shall .take the stepf necessgry to reduce or avoid the risk of
terminate the audit or review further breaches occurring.
engagement, where permitted by law
or regulation, in compliance with any
applicable legal or regulatory
requirements relevant to terminating
the audit or review engagement.
Where termination is not permitted by
law or regulation, the firm shall comply
with any reporting or disclosure
requirements.
NzZ291.41 If those charged with R400.85 If those charged with R900.53 If the party that Similar requirement

governance do not concur that the
action satisfactorily addresses the
consequences of the breach, the firm

governance do not concur that the
action proposed by the firm in
accordance with paragraph

engaged the firm does not, or those
charged with governance do not
concur that the action proposed by the
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)
OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291)

SECTION 400 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290)

SECTION 900 International Code
(PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

COMMENTS

shall take the steps necessary to
terminate the audit or review
engagement, where permitted by law
or regulation, in compliance with any
applicable legal or regulatory
requirements relevant to terminating
the audit or review engagement.
Where termination is not permitted by
law or regulation, the firm shall comply
with any reporting or disclosure
requirements.

R400.80(e)(ii) satisfactorily addresses
the consequences of the breach, the
firm shall take the steps necessary to
end the audit engagement in
accordance with paragraph R400.81.

firm in accordance with paragraph
R900.50(c) satisfactorily addresses the
consequences of the breach, the firm
shall take the steps necessary to end
the assurance engagement in
compliance with any applicable legal
or regulatory requirements relevant to
ending the assurance engagement.

Breaches Before the Previous Audit
Report Was Issued

NZ291.42 If the breach occurred prior
to the issuance of the previous
assurance report, the firm shall comply
with this section in evaluating the
significance of the breach and its
impact on the firm’s objectivity and its
ability to issue an assurance report in
the current period. The firm shall also
consider the impact of the breach, if
any, on the firm’s objectivity in relation
to any previously issued assurance
reports, and the possibility of
withdrawing such assurance reports,

R400.86 If the breach occurred
prior to the issuance of the previous
audit report, the firm shall comply
with the provisions of Part 4A in
evaluating the significance of the
breach and its impact on the firm’s
objectivity and its ability to issue an
audit report in the current period.

The requirement applicable to audit
and review engagements is based on
the annual nature of the engagement.
Other assurance engagements are not
always performed on an annual basis.
In the case of other assurance
engagements, if a breach occurs,
paragraphs R900.50-R900.52 apply.

199428.1
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)

SECTION 400 International Code

SECTION 900 International Code

COMMENTS

OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291) (PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290) (PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)
and discuss the matter with those
charged with governance.
NZ291.42 The firm shall also consider | R400.87  The firm shall also: The requirement applicable to audit
tﬁe llmpaf:t OJ.‘t'he‘breachf if any, on the (a) Consider the impact of the and review engagements is based on
firm’s objectivity in relation to any . - S the annual nature of the engagement.
; : breach, if any, on the firm’s objectivity
previously issued assurance reports, . ) . . Other assurance engagements are not
L ; i in relation to any previously issued .
and the possibility of withdrawing such . s always performed on an annual basis.
. audit reports, and the possibility of
assurance reports, and discuss the . . . . In the case of other assurance
i ) withdrawing such audit reports; and .
matter with those charged with engagements, if a breach occurs,
governance. (b) Discuss the matter with paragraphs R900.50-R900.52 apply.
those charged with governance.
Documentation Documentation
NZ291.43 The firm shall document R400.88 In complying with the R900.54 In complying with the | Hard to argue that discussions with a

the breach, the action taken, key
decisions made and all the matters
discussed with those charged with
governance and any discussions with a
professional body, relevant regulator
or oversight authority. When the firm
continues with the assurance
engagement, the matters to be
documented shall also include the
conclusion that, in the firm’s
professional judgement, objectivity has
not been compromised and the

requirements in paragraphs R400.80
to R400.87, the firm shall document:

(a) The breach;
(b) The actions taken;
(c) The key decisions made;

(d) All the matters discussed with
those charged with governance;
and

requirements in paragraphs R900.50
to R900.53, the firm shall document:

(a) The breach;
(b) The actions taken;
(c) The key decisions made; and

(d) All the matters discussed with the
party that engaged the firm or
those charged with governance.

professional or regulatory body or
oversight authority should not be
documented in an other assurance
engagement. Implied by R900.54 (a)-
(c)?

199428.1
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EXTANT PES 1 (REVISED) (N2)

SECTION 400 International Code

SECTION 900 International Code

COMMENTS

OTHER ASSURANCE (Section 291) (PREVIOUSLY SECTION 290) (PREVIOUSLY SECTION 291)

rationale for why the action taken (e) Any discussions with a professional

satisfactorily addressed the or regulatory body or oversight

consequences of the breach such that authority.

the firm could issue an assurance

report.

NZ291.43 When the firm continues R400.89 If the firm continues with R900.55 If the firm continues Same requirement

with the assurance engagement, the
matters to be documented shall also
include the conclusion that, in the
firm’s professional judgement,
objectivity has not been compromised
and the rationale for why the action
taken satisfactorily addressed the
consequences of the breach such that
the firm could issue an assurance
report.

the audit engagement, it shall
document:

(a) The conclusion that, in the firm’s
professional judgment, objectivity
has not been compromised; and

(b) The rationale for why the action
taken satisfactorily addressed the
consequences of the breach so
that the firm could issue an audit
report.

with the assurance engagement, it
shall document:

(a) The conclusion that, in the firm’s
professional judgment, objectivity
has not been compromised; and

(b) The rationale for why the action
taken satisfactorily addressed the
consequences of the breach so
that the firm could issue an
assurance report.

199428.1

13




Compelling Reason Test: NOCLAR

Agenda 3.2.3

Compelling reason tests are included in this paper for the following modifications:

# Moadification Additional materials

1 Aligning of requirements for review engagement with | N/A
those for audit engagements

2a Align requirements for other assurance engagements | Refer attachment 4
with those for audit engagements — Obtaining an (Extant PES 1 (Revised) paragraphs
Understanding of the Matter 225.12 —225.17)

2b | Align requirements for other assurance engagements | Refer attachment 4
with those for audit engagements — Addressing the (Extant PES 1 (Revised) paragraphs
Matter 225.18 —225.20)

2c Align requirements for other assurance engagements | Refer attachment 4
with those for audit engagements — Further Action is (Extant PES 1 (Revised) paragraphs
Needed 225.23 —225.30)

2d | Align requirements for other assurance engagements | Refer attachment 4
with those for audit engagements —Documentation (Extant PES 1 (Revised) paragraphs

225.37 — NZ225.38.1)

Moadification 1: Align requirements for review engagements with those for audit engagements

Modification to the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Requirements)

Modification

Section 360, paragraphs R360.10 — 360.28 Al that apply only to auditors performing audits
of financial statements are expanded to apply also to review engagements.

Rationale for the modification

The international standard is not n/a
consistent with NZ regulatory
arrangements.

OR

The international standard does not
reflect, or is not consistent with, principles
and practices that are considered
appropriate in NZ

The reason given by IESBA for not aligning the
requirements was that the provision of a review
engagement varies significantly around the world
and that audits tend to be more significantly
legislated or regulated than other assurance
engagements?.

We consider that due to the NZ legislative
environment that allows for some entities to have
the financial statements reviewed rather than

audited, in the case of a review, the public will have
the same level of public reliance on the reviewer as

1 |ESBA Exposure Draft, Responding to Non-compliance with Laws and Regulations, paragraph 82, May 2015
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would be on the auditor. The review would be
regulated in the same manner as if that entity had
elected to have an audit.

We also note that Part 4A equates the independence
requirements for an audit and a review. It seems
inconsistent therefore to draw a distinction between
audit and review in section 360 where no such
distinction is made in Part 4A (from a clarity
perspective the IESBA Code uses the term audit to
mean audit and review in Part 4A, and therefore we
consider that this inconsistency would result in
confusion and misapplication in practice.)

A. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard is not
consistent with New Zealand regulatory requirements.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the modification meets the

Principles of Convergence

criteria

The standard can be modified so as to
result in a standard the application of
which results in effective and efficient
compliance with the legal framework in
NZ.

n/a

The modification does not result in a
standard that conflicts with, or results in
lesser requirements than the international
standard.

n/a

B. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard does not
reflect principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the modification meets the

Principles of Convergence

criteria

1. The application of the
modification will result in
compliance with principles and
practices considered appropriate
by the NZAuASB

Some medium sized charities can elect for a review
or an audit of the financial statements. We consider
that aligning the requirements for an audit and
review are consistent with this legislative
requirement for some form of assurance over the
financial statements.

Where management or those charged with
governance agree that non-compliance has or may
occur, it is appropriate for the assurance practitioner
in a review engagement to prompt them to take
appropriate and timely action, after discussing the
matter with them.

2. The modification results in a
standard that is clear and

The modification simplifies the standard, making the
framework consistent for audit and review
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promotes consistent application
by all practitioners.

(For example, excluding options not
relevant in NZ and Australia )

engagements. Part 4A equates the independence
requirements for an audit and a review. From a
clarity perspective the IESBA Code uses the term
audit to mean audit and review in Part 4A, and
therefore we consider that this inconsistency would
result in confusion and misapplication in practice.

3. The modification will promote
significant improvement in audit
quality in New Zealand

(With improvement in audit quality being
linked to one or more of the Applicable
elements in the IAASB’s Framework for
Audit Quality)

The modifications require the practitioner to prompt
management to take appropriate actions rather than
just discussing the matter with them. If management
or those charged with governance take appropriate
remedial action then that would be the desired
outcome of applying the framework, and avoid the
need for further action.

4. The relative benefits of
modification outweigh the cost
(with cost being compliance cost
and the cost of differing from the
international standard, and
benefit relating to audit quality).

The benefits are expected to exceed the costs. The
main differences between the audit and other
assurance framework as proposed is that the
following two steps only apply to an audit: a) If
applicable, the auditor shall prompt management
and those charged with governance to take
appropriate action and b) The auditor shall comply
with applicable laws and regulations, including
requirements of reporting to an appropriate
authority, and professional standards including the
implications for the auditor’s report. We consider
that these are not onerous requirements for a
review engagement as the appropriate authorities
for audit/review engagements would be similar.

5. The modification does not conflict
with or result in lesser
requirements than the
international standard.

IESBA notes (paragraph 81-83 of explanatory
memorandum) that jurisdictions would not be
precluded from extending the proposed framework
to cover specific types of assurance engagement
other than audits should they believe that doing so
would be appropriate for their national contexts.

6. The modification overall does not
result in the standard being overly
complex and confusing.

The modification will simplify the framework as it
would apply to audit and review engagements in the
same way (see B2).

7. The modification does not
inadvertently change the meaning
of the international wording by
placing more onerous
requirements on a practitioner in
NZ than necessary to meet the
intent of the international
standard.

The IESBA permits modification by national standard
setters.

We consider that aligning the requirements for an
audit and review are consistent with the legislative
requirement for some form of assurance over the
financial statements.

Conclusion

Compelling reason test met.
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Moadification 2a-: Align requirements for other assurance engagements with those for audit
engagements — Obtaining an Understanding of the Matter

Modification to the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Requirements)

Modification

We propose to expand section 360, paragraphs R360.10 — R360.12 that apply only to auditors
performing audits of financial statements (and as per modification 1 propose to amend to apply
to review engagements) to apply also to all assurance engagements.

Paragraphs R360.29 — 360.30 A2 would be deleted.
The modification would require the assurance practitioner to:

a. obtain an understanding of information concerning non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance (rather than seek to obtain);

b. discuss the matter with management and, where appropriate, those charged with
governance; and

c. ifthe assurance practitioner believes that management is involved in the identified or
suspected non-compliance, discuss the matter with those charged with governance.

Aligning the frameworks for audit/review (as proposed in modification 1) and other assurance
would result in a simplification of the framework for assurance practitioners that perform both
audit and review engagements and other assurance engagements.

Rationale for the modification

The international standard is not n/a
consistent with NZ regulatory
arrangements.

OR
The international standard does not The NZAuUASB has previously extended the
reflect, or is not consistent with, principles | independence requirements for audit and review
and practices that are considered engagements to other assurance engagements.
appropriate in NZ Similarly, the NZAuASB considers that there is no

reason why the assurance practitioner should react
differently if the engagement is an audit or some
other assurance engagement where the assurance
practitioner suspects or identifies NOCLAR.
Accordingly, the frameworks for considering NOCLAR
for audit and review and other assurance
engagements have been combined by the Board.

A. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard is not
consistent with New Zealand regulatory requirements.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed Consideration whether the modification meets the
Principles of Convergence criteria
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The standard can be modified so as to
result in a standard the application of
which results in effective and efficient
compliance with the legal framework in
NZ.

n/a

The modification does not result in a
standard that conflicts with, or results in
lesser requirements than the international
standard.

n/a

B. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard does not
reflect principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the proposed modification

Principles of Convergence

meets the criteria

1. The application of the proposed
modification will result in
compliance with principles and
practices considered appropriate
by the NZAuASB

Based on a more informed understanding of the
other assurance market, the Subcommittee is of the
view that the NZAuASB’s previously expressed view
that the same framework as audit and review
engagements is equally appropriate for other
assurance may no longer be conclusive.

The principles and practices considered appropriate
for financial statement assurance may not be the
most appropriate for other assurance over other
subject matters.

In the other assurance arena, the Subcommittee is of
the view that we do not have sufficient context to
say what practices will be appropriate. Rather, the
more principles based approach in the other
assurance framework permits a more flexible
approach to addressing NOCLAR.

2. The modification results in a
standard that is clear and
promotes consistent application
by all practitioners.

(For example, excluding options not
relevant in NZ and Australia )

The modification results in consistency between
audit and review and other financial assurance
engagements. It may not provide such clarity for
other types of assurance engagement due to
differing reporting structures.

3. The modification will promote
significant improvement in audit
quality in New Zealand

(With improvement in audit quality being
linked to one or more of the Applicable
elements in the IAASB’s Framework for
Audit Quality)

The nature of other assurance engagements that
assurance practitioners may perform is extremely
diverse. These assurance practitioners may not have
the same level of access to information,
management and those charged with governance
auditors. Additionally, the engagements may be one-
off limited scope engagements and their duration
relatively short.
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The requirement to seek to obtain an understanding
and to communicate with those charged with
governance, if the assurance practitioner has access
to them, recognise and respond to this diversity. The
difference in wording recognises the particular
nature of the auditors’ remit and the higher public
expectations of them.

In practice, the subcommittee is of the view that two
frameworks achieve substantially the same result.
Within the mandate of the NZAuASB, the assurance
practitioner is likely to be able to obtain an
understanding of the matter. The assurance
practitioner in these circumstances is also likely to
have access to those charged with governance and
therefore, if appropriate, will be able to discuss the
matter with those charged with governance.

Where the assurance practitioner does not have
access to those charged with governance, the other
assurance framework establishes requirements to
for the assurance practitioner to
communicate/consider whether to communication
with the firm/external auditor.

Accordingly, the Subcommittee is of the view that
the modification is unlikely to lead to significant
increase in assurance quality. Rather, streamlining
the requirements is identified as a nice to have
rather than a compelling reason to change.

4. The relative benefits of No cost/benefit analysis has been performed.
modification outweigh the cost
(with cost being compliance cost
and the cost of differing from the
international standard, and
benefit relating to audit quality).
5. The modification does not conflict | IESBA notes (paragraph 81-83 of explanatory
with or result in lesser memorandum) that jurisdictions would not be
requirements than the precluded from extending the proposed framework
international standard. to cover specific types of assurance engagement
other than audits should they believe that doing so
would be appropriate for their national contexts. The
modifications are IESBA plus.
6. The modification overall does not | The modifications simplify the framework for

result in the standard being overly
complex and confusing.

assurance practitioners who perform audit and
review engagements as well as other assurance
engagements as the framework would be the same
for all engagement types. This is well suited to
engagements over financial information.
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However, the Subcommittee notes that the
framework may be overly prescriptive and rules
based for other assurance engagements over non-
financial information. For such engagements, the
subcommittee prefers the principles based approach
of the International Code.

7. The modification does not
inadvertently change the meaning
of the international wording by
placing more onerous
requirements on a practitioner in
NZ than necessary to meet the
intent of the international
standard.

The modification does place more onerous
requirements on a practitioner in New Zealand than
necessary to meet the intent of the International
Code.

Conclusion

Based on the above, the Subcommittee is of the view
that the compelling reason test has not been met.
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Modification 2b: Align requirements for other assurance engagements with those for audit
engagements — Addressing the Matter

Modification to the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Requirements)

Modification

We propose to expand section 360, paragraphs R360.13 — 360.15 Al that apply only to
auditors performing audits of financial statements (and as per modification 1 propose to amend
to apply to review engagements) to apply also to all assurance engagements.

These requirements are not addressed separately in the other assurance framework and require
the assurance practitioner to:

a. Advise management and where applicable those charged with governance to take
appropriate and timely action, if they have not done so already;

b. Consider whether management and those charged with governance understand their
legal and regulatory responsibilities with respect to non-compliance; and

c. Comply with applicable laws and regulations and auditing and assurance standards

This would result in a simplification of the framework for assurance practitioners that perform
both audit and review engagements and other assurance engagements.

Rationale for the modification

The international standard is not n/a
consistent with NZ regulatory
arrangements.

OR
The international standard does not The NZAuUASB has previously extended the
reflect, or is not consistent with, principles | independence requirements for audit and review
and practices that are considered engagements to other assurance engagements.
appropriate in NZ Similarly, the NZAuASB considers that there is no

reason why the assurance practitioner should react
differently if the engagement is an audit or some
other assurance engagement where the assurance
practitioner suspects or identifies NOCLAR.
Accordingly, the frameworks for considering NOCLAR
for audit and review and other assurance
engagements have been combined previously by the
Board.

A. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard is not
consistent with New Zealand regulatory requirements.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed Consideration whether the modification meets the
Principles of Convergence criteria

The standard can be modified so as to n/a
result in a standard the application of
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which results in effective and efficient
compliance with the legal framework in
NZ.

The modification does not result in a
standard that conflicts with, or results in
lesser requirements than the international
standard.

n/a

B. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard does not
reflect principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the proposed modification

Principles of Convergence

meets the criteria

1. The application of the proposed
modification will result in
compliance with principles and
practices considered appropriate
by the NZAuASB

Based on a more informed understanding of the
other assurance market, the Subcommittee is of the
view that the NZAuASB’s previously expressed view
that the same framework as audit and review
engagements is equally appropriate for other
assurance may no longer be conclusive.

The principles and practices considered appropriate
for financial statement assurance may not be the
most appropriate for other assurance over other
subject matters.

In the other assurance arena, the Subcommittee is of
the view that we do not have sufficient context to
say what practices will be appropriate. Rather, the
more principles based approach in the other
assurance framework permits a more flexible
approach to addressing NOCLAR.

2. The modification results in a
standard that is clear and
promotes consistent application
by all practitioners.

(For example, excluding options not
relevant in NZ and Australia )

The modification results in consistency between
audit and review and other financial assurance
engagements. It may not provide such clarity for
other types of assurance engagement due to
differing reporting structures.

3. The modification will promote
significant improvement in
audit/assurance quality in New
Zealand

(With improvement in audit quality being
linked to one or more of the Applicable
elements in the IAASB’s Framework for
Audit Quality)

The nature of other assurance engagements that
assurance practitioners may perform is extremely
diverse. These assurance practitioners may not have
the same level of access to information,
management and those charged with governance as
auditors. Additionally, the engagements may be one-
off limited scope engagements and their duration
relatively short.

It is also noted that assurance practitioners do not
have the same level of responsibility to respond to
identified or suspected non-compliance as do
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auditors, however, they are not precluded from
considering the guidance applicable to audits (and as
proposed, reviews.)

The Subcommittee is of the view that an appropriate
response when the assurance practitioner identifies
actual or suspected non-compliance is for these
matters to be brought to the attention of the entity’s
auditor (if the entity is audited) as required by
paragraphs R360.31-R360.33.

Adding the detailed requirements of the
audit/review framework (identified at the top of this
form under the heading modification) is unlikely to
lead to a significant improvement in audit/assurance
quality.

4. The relative benefits of No detailed cost/benefit analysis has been
modification outweigh the cost performed.
(with cost being compliance cost
and the cost of differing from the
international standard, and
benefit relating to audit quality).
5. The modification does not conflict | IESBA notes (paragraph 81-83 of explanatory
with or result in lesser memorandum) that jurisdictions would not be
requirements than the precluded from extending the proposed framework
international standard. to cover specific types of assurance engagement
other than audits should they believe that doing so
would be appropriate for their national contexts.
6. The modification overall does not | The modifications simplify the framework for
result in the standard being overly | assurance practitioners who perform audit and
complex and confusing. review engagements as well as other assurance
engagements as the framework would be the same
for all engagement types. This is well suited to
engagements over financial information.
However, the Subcommittee notes that the
framework may be overly prescriptive and rules
based for other assurance engagements over non-
financial information. For such engagements, the
subcommittee prefers the principles based approach
of the International Code.
7. The modification does not The modification does place more onerous

inadvertently change the meaning
of the international wording by
placing more onerous
requirements on a practitioner in
NZ than necessary to meet the
intent of the international
standard.

requirements on a practitioner in New Zealand than
necessary to meet the intent of the International
Code.
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Conclusion Based on the above, the Subcommittee is of the view
that the compelling reason test has not been met.
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Moadification 2c: Align requirements for other assurance engagements with those for audit
engagements — Further Action is Needed

Modification to the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Requirements)

Modification

We propose to expand section 360, paragraphs R360.19 — 360.21 A2 that apply only to
auditors performing audits of financial statements (and as per modification 1 propose to amend
to apply to review engagements) to apply also to all assurance engagements.

Paragraphs R360.36 — 360.36 A2 would be deleted.

The other assurance framework requires the assurance practitioner to consider whether further
action is needed in the public interest.

Under the modification, the assurance practitioner would:

a. Assess the appropriateness of the response;

b. Determine if further action is needed in the public interest; and

c. Exercise professional judgement and take into account whether a reasonable and
informed third party would be likely to conclude that the assurance practitioner has
acted appropriately in the public interest.

This would result in a simplification of the framework for assurance practitioners that perform
both audit and review engagements and other assurance engagements.

Rationale for the modification

The international standard is not n/a
consistent with NZ regulatory
arrangements.

OR
The international standard does not The NZAuUASB has previously extended the
reflect, or is not consistent with, principles | independence requirements for audit and review
and practices that are considered engagements to other assurance engagements.
appropriate in NZ Similarly, the NZAuASB considers that there is no

reason why the assurance practitioner should react
differently if the engagement is an audit or some
other assurance engagement where the assurance
practitioner suspects or identifies NOCLAR.
Accordingly, the frameworks for considering NOCLAR
for audit and review and other assurance
engagements have been combined by the Board.

A. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard is not
consistent with New Zealand regulatory requirements.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed Consideration whether the modification meets the
Principles of Convergence criteria
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The standard can be modified so as to
result in a standard the application of
which results in effective and efficient
compliance with the legal framework in
NZ.

n/a

The modification does not result in a
standard that conflicts with, or results in
lesser requirements than the international
standard.

n/a

B. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard does not
reflect principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the proposed modification

Principles of Convergence

meets the criteria

1. The application of the proposed
modification will result in
compliance with principles and
practices considered appropriate
by the NZAuASB

Based on a more informed understanding of the
other assurance market, the Subcommittee is of the
view that the NZAuASB’s previously expressed view
that the same framework as audit and review
engagements is equally appropriate for other
assurance may no longer be conclusive.

The principles and practices considered appropriate
for financial statement assurance may not be the
most appropriate for other assurance over other
subject matters.

In the other assurance arena, the Subcommittee is of
the view that we do not have sufficient context to
say what practices will be appropriate. Rather, the
more principles based approach in the other
assurance framework permits a more flexible
approach to addressing NOCLAR.

2. The modification results in a
standard that is clear and
promotes consistent application
by all practitioners.

(For example, excluding options not
relevant in NZ and Australia )

The modification results in consistency between
audit and review and other financial assurance
engagements. It may not provide such clarity for
other types of assurance engagement due to
differing reporting structures.

3. The modification will promote
significant improvement in audit
quality in New Zealand

(With improvement in audit quality being
linked to one or more of the Applicable
elements in the IAASB’s Framework for
Audit Quality)

In order to determine/consider whether further
action is needed in the public interest, the assurance
practitioner would first need to assess the
appropriateness of the action taken. The assurance
practitioner is required by ISAE (NZ) 3000 to exercise
professional judgement. In addition, the conceptual
framework requires the assurance practitioner to
exercise professional judgement, remain alert for
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new information and use the reasonable and
informed third-party test?.

The subcommittee is of the view that two
frameworks achieve substantially the same result.
Adding the more prescriptive requirements
identified in the modification may not to lead to a
significant improvement in audit/assurance quality.

Streamlining the requirements is identified as nice to
have for assurance engagements over financial
information rather than a compelling reason to
change.

4. The relative benefits of No cost/benefit analysis has been performed.
modification outweigh the cost
(with cost being compliance cost
and the cost of differing from the
international standard, and
benefit relating to audit quality).
5. The modification does not conflict | IESBA notes (paragraph 81-83 of explanatory
with or result in lesser memorandum) that jurisdictions would not be
requirements than the precluded from extending the proposed framework
international standard. to cover specific types of assurance engagement
other than audits should they believe that doing so
would be appropriate for their national contexts.
6. The modification overall does not | The modifications simplify the framework for
result in the standard being overly | assurance practitioners who perform audit and
complex and confusing. review engagements as well as other assurance
engagements as the framework would be the same
for all engagement types. This is well suited to
engagements over financial information.
However, the Subcommittee notes that the
framework may be overly prescriptive and rules
based for other assurance engagements over non-
financial information. For such engagements, the
subcommittee prefers the principles based approach
of the International Code.
7. The modification does not The modification does place more onerous

inadvertently change the meaning
of the international wording by
placing more onerous
requirements on a practitioner in
NZ than necessary to meet the
intent of the international
standard.

requirements on a practitioner in New Zealand than
necessary to meet the intent of the International
Code.

2 paragraph R120.5
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Conclusion Based on the above, the Subcommittee is of the view
that the compelling reason test has not been met.
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Modification 2d: Align requirements for other assurance engagements with those for audit
engagements —Documentation

Modification to the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Requirements)

Modification

The IESBA Code requires certain matters to be documented for audit (and, as proposed per
modification 1, review) engagements. Documentation for other assurance engagements is
encouraged. The NZ proposal is to specify certain matters to be documented for other
assurance engagements consistent with other assurance standards.

Paragraph 360.40 Al is deleted and replaced with the following wording:

International Standards on Assurance Engagements (New Zealand) (ISAEs (NZ)) and
International Standard on Review Engagements (New Zealand) (ISRE (NZ)) require an
assurance practitioner performing an assurance engagement to:

e Prepare documentation sufficient to enable an understanding of significant matters arising
during the audit, the conclusions reached thereon, and significant professional judgements
made in reaching those conclusions;

e Document discussions of significant matters with management, those charged with
governance, and others, including the nature of the significant matters discussed and when
and with whom the discussions took place.

The modification has the effect of requiring rather than encouraging documentation in all
assurance engagements, which would be required by the other assurance standard in any event.

Rationale for the modification

The international standard is not n/a
consistent with NZ regulatory
arrangements.
OR

The international standard does not The ISAEs (NZ) require rather than encourage
reflect, or is not consistent with, principles | documentation, therefore expanding the audit
and practices that are considered documentation requirement to all assurance
appropriate in NZ engagements would be consistent with principles

and practices required by those standards.

A. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard is not
consistent with New Zealand regulatory requirements.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed Consideration whether the modification meets the
Principles of Convergence criteria

The standard can be modified so as to n/a
result in a standard the application of
which results in effective and efficient
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compliance with the legal framework in
NZ.

The modification does not result in a
standard that conflicts with, or results in
lesser requirements than the international
standard.

n/a

B. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard does not
reflect principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the modification meets the

Principles of Convergence

criteria

1. The application of the
modification will result in
compliance with principles and
practices considered appropriate
by the NZAuASB

The ISAEs (NZ) already require rather than encourage
documentation, therefore expanding the audit
documentation requirement to all assurance
engagements would be consistent with principles
and practices required by those standards.

2. The modification results in a
standard that is clear and
promotes consistent application
by all practitioners.

(For example, excluding options not
relevant in NZ and Australia )

The modifications would reduce inconsistencies
between the Code of Ethics and the requirements of
the other assurance standards.

3. The modification will promote
significant improvement in audit
quality in New Zealand

(With improvement in audit quality being
linked to one or more of the Applicable
elements in the IAASB’s Framework for
Audit Quality)

The Subcommittee is of the view that the matters
the assurance practitioner is “encouraged” to
document would ordinarily be required to be
documented in accordance with ISAE (NZ) 3000
(revised) and subject matter specific ISAEs (NZ) and
SAEs (see the analysis of the comparison of
audit/review provisions with those for other
assurance engagements).

As such, the Subcommittee does not agree that the
compelling reason test has been met with respect to
significant improvement in audit quality.

4. The relative benefits of
modification outweigh the cost
(with cost being compliance cost
and the cost of differing from the
international standard, and
benefit relating to audit quality).

No cost/benefit analysis has been performed. The
following explanation was provided in the compelling
reason test when the Board initially considered the
amendments to the IESBA NOCLAR provisions. The
Subcommittee has no evidence on which to support
this statement.

The benefits are expected to exceed the costs.
Documentation is required by the other assurance
standards and should already be done therefore the
cost of the requirement is expected to be minimal.
The benefit of good documentation is expected to
have benefits on the quality of the assurance
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engagement, to assist in the event that a reasonable
person needs to review the file at a later stage and
reflect on whether appropriate conclusions and
actions were taken. Good documentation will
protect the practitioner, and is therefore in their
interest to do this.

5. The modification does not conflict | IESBA notes (paragraph 81-83 of explanatory
with or result in lesser memorandum) that jurisdictions would not be
requirements than the precluded from extending the proposed framework
international standard. to cover specific types of assurance engagement

other than audits should they believe that doing so
would be appropriate for their national contexts.

6. The modification overall does not | The modifications simplify the framework for
result in the standard being overly | assurance practitioners who perform audit and
complex and confusing. review engagements as well as other assurance

engagements as the framework would be the same
for all engagement types. This is well suited to
engagements over financial information.

However, the Subcommittee notes that the
framework may be overly prescriptive and rules
based for other assurance engagements over non-
financial information. For such engagements, the
subcommittee prefers the principles based approach
of the International Code.

7. The modification does not The modification does place more onerous
inadvertently change the meaning | requirements on a practitioner in New Zealand than
of the international wording by necessary to meet the intent of the International
placing more onerous Code.
requirements on a practitioner in
NZ than necessary to meet the
intent of the international
standard.

Conclusion Compelling reason test not met. As noted above, the

Subcommittee is of the view that the additional
requirements are unlikely to achieve a significant
increase in assurance quality.
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Comparison of Restructured IESBA Code Provisions for responding to NOCLAR

This tables compares the provisions of the restructured International Code for responding to NOCLAR for audit and review engagements with the provisions
for responding to NOCLAR for other assurance engagements. The text of extant PES 1 (Revised) has been included for reference.

Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

New paragraph

360.1 Professionalaccountants
assurance practitioners are required
to comply with the fundamental
principles and apply the conceptual
framework set out in Section 120 to
identify, evaluate and address
threats.

360.1 Professional-accountants
assurance practitioners are required
to comply with the fundamental
principles and apply the conceptual
framework set out in Section 120 to
identify, evaluate and address
threats.

Applicable to all engagements

New paragraph

360.2 A self-interest or
intimidation threat to compliance
with the principles of integrity and
professional behaviour is created
when an assurance practitioner
professional-aceountant becomes
aware of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations.

360.2 A self-interest or
intimidation threat to compliance
with the principles of integrity and
professional behaviour is created
when an assurance practitioner
prefessional-aceountant becomes
aware of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations.

Applicable to all engagements

225.1 An assurance practitioner
may encounter or be made aware of
non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and

360.3 An assurance practitioner
professionalaccountant might
encounter or be made aware of
non-compliance or suspected non-

360.3 An assurance practitioner
professional-accountant might
encounter or be made aware of
non-compliance or suspected non-

Applicable to all engagements
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

regulations in the course of
providing a professional service to a
client. The purpose of this section is
to set out the assurance
practitioner’s responsibilities when
encountering such non-compliance
or suspected non-compliance, and
guide the assurance practitioner in
assessing the implications of the
matter and the possible courses of
action when responding to it. This
section applies regardless of the
nature of the client, including
whether or not it is a public interest
entity.

225.5 This section sets out the
approach to be taken by an
assurance practitioner who
encounters or is made aware of
non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with:

(a) Laws and regulations
generally recognised to have a
direct effect on the determination
of material amounts and disclosures

compliance in the course of
providing a professional service to a
client. This section guides the
aceeuntant-assurance practitioner
in assessing the implications of the
matter and the possible courses of
action when responding to non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance with:

(a) Laws and regulations
generally recognized to have a
direct effect on the determination
of material amounts and disclosures
in the underlying subject matter
information (for example, the
client’s financial statements_in an
audit engagement); and

(b) Other laws and regulations
that do not have a direct effect on
the determination of the amounts
and disclosures in the underlying
subject matter information elent's
financial-statements, but compliance
with which might be fundamental to
the operating aspects of the client’s
business, to its ability to continue its

compliance in the course of
providing a professional service to a
client. This section guides the
aceountant-assurance practitioner
in assessing the implications of the
matter and the possible courses of
action when responding to non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance with:

(a) Laws and regulations
generally recognized to have a
direct effect on the determination
of material amounts and disclosures
in the underlying subject matter
information (for example, the
client’s financial statements_in an
audit engagement); and

(b) Other laws and regulations
that do not have a direct effect on
the determination of the amounts
and disclosures in the underlying
subject matter information elient's
financial-statements, but compliance
with which might be fundamental to
the operating aspects of the client’s
business, to its ability to continue its
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

in the client’s financial statements;
and

(b) Other laws and regulations
that do not have a direct effect on
the determination of the amounts
and disclosures in the client’s
financial statements but compliance
with which may be fundamental to
the operating aspects of the client’s
business, to its ability to continue its
business, or to avoid material
penalties.

business, or to avoid material
penalties.

business, or to avoid material
penalties.

Objectives of the Professional
Aceountant Assurance Practitioner
in Relation to Non-compliance with
Laws and Regulations

Objectives of the Professional
Aceountant Assurance Practitioner
in Relation to Non-compliance with
Laws and Regulations

225.4 Adistinguishing mark of the
accountancy profession is its
acceptance of the responsibility to
act in the public interest. When
responding to non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance, the
objectives of the assurance
practitioner are:

360.4 A distinguishing mark of the
accountancy profession is its
acceptance of the responsibility to
act in the public interest. When
responding to non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance, the

objectives of the professional

360.4 A distinguishing mark of the
accountancy profession is its
acceptance of the responsibility to
act in the public interest. When
responding to non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance, the

objectives of the professional

Applicable to all engagements

199431.1




Agenda 3.2.4

Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

(a) To comply with the
fundamental principles of integrity
and professional behaviour;

(b) By alerting management or,
where appropriate, those charged
with governance of the client, to
seek to:

(i) Enable them to rectify,
remediate or mitigate the
consequences of the identified
or suspected non-compliance;
or

(ii) Deter the commission of the
non-compliance where it has
not yet occurred; and

(c) To take such further action

as appropriate in the public interest.

accountant assurance practitioner
are:

(a) To comply with the
principles of integrity and
professional behavior;

(b) By alerting management or,
where appropriate, those charged
with governance of the client, to
seek to:

(i) Enable them to rectify,
remediate or mitigate the
consequences of the identified
or suspected non-compliance;
or

(i) Deter the commission of the
non-compliance where it has
not yet occurred; and

(c) To take such further action

as appropriate in the public interest.

accouhtant assurance practitioner
are:

(a) To comply with the
principles of integrity and
professional behavior;

(b) By alerting management or,
where appropriate, those charged
with governance of the client, to
seek to:

(i) Enable them to rectify,
remediate or mitigate the
consequences of the identified
or suspected non-compliance;
or

(ii) Deter the commission of the
non-compliance where it has
not yet occurred; and

(c) To take such further action
as appropriate in the public interest.

Requirements and Application
Material

General

Requirements and Application
Material

General
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

225.2 Non-compliance with laws
and regulations (“non-compliance”)
comprises acts of omission or
commission, intentional or
unintentional, committed by a
client, or by those charged with
governance, by management or by
other individuals working for or
under the direction of a client which
are contrary to the prevailing laws
or regulations.

360.5 A1 Non-compliance
with laws and regulations (“non-
compliance”) comprises acts of
omission or commission, intentional
or unintentional, which are contrary
to the prevailing laws or regulations
committed by the following parties:

(a) A client;

(b) Those charged with
governance of a client;

(c) Management of a client; or

(d) Other individuals working

for or under the direction of a client.

360.5 A1 Non-compliance
with laws and regulations (“non-
compliance”) comprises acts of
omission or commission, intentional
or unintentional, which are contrary
to the prevailing laws or regulations
committed by the following parties:

(a) A client;

(b) Those charged with
governance of a client;

(c) Management of a client; or

(d) Other individuals working
for or under the direction of a client.

Applicable to all engagements

225.6 Examples of laws and
regulations which this section
addresses include those that deal
with:

e Fraud, corruption and bribery.

e Money laundering, terrorist
financing and proceeds of
crime.

e Securities markets and trading.

360.5 A2 Examples of laws
and regulations which this section
addresses include those that deal
with:

e Fraud, corruption and bribery.

e Money laundering, terrorist
financing and proceeds of
crime.

e Securities markets and trading.

360.5 A2 Examples of laws
and regulations which this section
addresses include those that deal
with:

e Fraud, corruption and bribery.

e Money laundering, terrorist
financing and proceeds of
crime.

e Securities markets and trading.

Applicable to all engagements
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

e Banking and other financial
products and services.

e Data protection.

e Tax and pension liabilities and
payments.

e Environmental protection.

e Public health and safety.

e Banking and other financial
products and services.

e Data protection.

e Tax and pension liabilities and
payments.

e Environmental protection.

e Public health and safety.

e Banking and other financial
products and services.

e Data protection.

e Tax and pension liabilities and
payments.

e Environmental protection.

e Public health and safety.

225.7 Non-compliance may result
in fines, litigation or other
consequences for the client that
may have a material effect on its
financial statements. Importantly,
such non-compliance may have
wider public interest implications in
terms of potentially substantial
harm to investors, creditors,
employees or the general public.
For the purposes of this section, an
act that causes substantial harm is
one that results in serious adverse
consequences to any of these
parties in financial or non-financial
terms. Examples include the
perpetration of a fraud resulting in

360.5 A3 Non-compliance
might result in fines, litigation or
other consequences for the client,
potentially materially affecting its
financial statements. Importantly,
such non-compliance might have
wider public interest implications in
terms of potentially substantial
harm to investors, creditors,
employees or the general public.
For the purposes of this section, an
act that causes substantial harm is
one that results in serious adverse
consequences to any of these
parties in financial or non-financial
terms. Examples include the
perpetration of a fraud resulting in

360.5 A3 Non-compliance
might result in fines, litigation or
other consequences for the client,
potentially materially affecting its
financial statements. Importantly,
such non-compliance might have
wider public interest implications in
terms of potentially substantial
harm to investors, creditors,
employees or the general public.
For the purposes of this section, an
act that causes substantial harm is
one that results in serious adverse
consequences to any of these
parties in financial or non-financial
terms. Examples include the
perpetration of a fraud resulting in

Applicable to all engagements
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

significant financial losses to
investors, and breaches of
environmental laws and regulations
endangering the health or safety of
employees or the public.

significant financial losses to
investors, and breaches of
environmental laws and regulations
endangering the health or safety of
employees or the public.

significant financial losses to
investors, and breaches of
environmental laws and regulations
endangering the health or safety of
employees or the public.

225.3 In some cases, there are
legal or regulatory provisions
governing how assurance
practitioners should address non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance which may differ from
or go beyond this section. When
encountering such non-compliance
or suspected non-compliance, the
assurance practitioner has a
responsibility to obtain an
understanding of those provisions
and comply with them, including
any requirement to report the
matter to an appropriate authority
and any prohibition on alerting the
client prior to making any
disclosure, for example, pursuant to
anti-money laundering legislation.

R360.6 In some ,
there are legal or regulatory
provisions governing how
professional-aceountants assurance
practitioners should address non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance. These legal or
regulatory provisions might differ
from or go beyond the provisions in
this section. When encountering
such non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance, the accountant
assurance practitioner shall obtain
an understanding of those legal or
regulatory provisions and comply
with them, including:

(a) Any requirement to report the
matter to an appropriate
authority; and

R360.6 In some ,
there are legal or regulatory
provisions governing how
professional-accountants assurance
practitioners should address non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance. These legal or
regulatory provisions might differ
from or go beyond the provisions in
this section. When encountering
such non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance, the aceountant
assurance practitioner shall obtain
an understanding of those legal or
regulatory provisions and comply
with them, including:

(a) Any requirement to report the
matter to an appropriate
authority; and

Applicable to all engagements
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

(b) Any prohibition on alerting the
client.

(b) Any prohibition on alerting the
client.

225.3 ... any prohibition on alerting
the client prior to making any
disclosure, for example, pursuant to
anti-money laundering legislation.

360.6 Al A prohibition on
alerting the client might arise, for
example, pursuant to anti-money
laundering legislation.

360.6 Al A prohibition on
alerting the client might arise, for
example, pursuant to anti-money
laundering legislation.

Applicable to all engagements

225.1 This section applies
regardless of the nature of the
client, including whether or not it is
a public interest entity.

360.7 Al This section applies
regardless of the nature of the
client, including whether or not it is
a public interest entity.

360.7 Al This section applies
regardless of the nature of the
client, including whether or not it is
a public interest entity.

Applicable to all engagements

225.8 An assurance practitioner
who encounters or is made aware of
matters that are clearly
inconsequential, judged by their
nature and their impact, financial or
otherwise, on the client, its
stakeholders and the general public,
is not required to comply with this
section with respect to such
matters.

360.7 A2 An assurance
practitioner prefessional-accountant
who encounters or is made aware of
matters that are clearly
inconsequential is not required to
comply with this section. Whether a
matter is clearly inconsequential is
to be judged with respect to its
nature and its impact, financial or
otherwise, on the client, its
stakeholders and the general public.

360.7 A2 An assurance
practitioner proefessional-accountant
who encounters or is made aware of
matters that are clearly
inconsequential is not required to
comply with this section. Whether a
matter is clearly inconsequential is
to be judged with respect to its
nature and its impact, financial or
otherwise, on the client, its
stakeholders and the general public.

Applicable to all engagements

225.9 This section does not
address:

360.7 A3 This section does

not address:

360.7 A3 This section does

not address:

Applicable to all engagements
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Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

(a) Personal misconduct unrelated
to the business activities of the
client; and

(b) Non-compliance other than by
the client or those charged with
governance, management or
other individuals working for or
under the direction of the client.
This includes, for example,
circumstances where an
assurance practitioner has been
engaged by a client to perform a
due diligence assignment on a
third party entity and the
identified or suspected non-
compliance has been committed
by that third party.

The assurance practitioner may
nevertheless find the guidance in
this section helpful in considering
how to respond in these situations.

(a) Personal misconduct unrelated
to the business activities of the
client; and

(b) Non-compliance by parties
other than those specified in
paragraph 360.5 Al. This
includes, for example,
circumstances where an
assurance practitioner
professional-accountant has
been engaged by a client to
perform a due diligence
assignment on a third party
entity and the identified or
suspected non-compliance has
been committed by that third-
party.

The aceeuntantassurance
practitioner might nevertheless find
the guidance in this section helpful
in considering how to respond in
these situations.

(a) Personal misconduct unrelated
to the business activities of the
client; and

(b) Non-compliance by parties
other than those specified in
paragraph 360.5 Al. This
includes, for example,
circumstances where an
assurance practitioner
professional-accountant has
been engaged by a client to
perform a due diligence
assignment on a third party
entity and the identified or
suspected non-compliance has
been committed by that third-
party.

The aceountantassurance
practitioner might nevertheless find
the guidance in this section helpful
in considering how to respond in
these situations.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

Responsibilities of the Client’s

Responsibilities of Management

Responsibilities of Management

Management and Those Charged and Those Charged with and Those Charged with
with Governance Governance Governance
225.10 Itis the responsibility of the | 360.8 Al Management, with | 360.8 Al Management, with Applicable to all engagements

client’s management, with the
oversight of those charged with
governance, to ensure that the
client’s business activities are
conducted in accordance with laws
and regulations. It is also the
responsibility of management and
those charged with governance to
identify and address any non-
compliance by the client, by an
individual charged with governance
of the entity, by a member of
management, or by other
individuals working for or under the
direction of the client.

the oversight of those charged with
governance, is responsible for
ensuring that the client’s business
activities are conducted in
accordance with laws and
regulations. Management and those
charged with governance are also
responsible for identifying and
addressing any non-compliance by:

(a) The client;

(b) An individual charged with
governance of the entity;

(c) A member of management; or

(d) Other individuals working for or

under the direction of the client.

the oversight of those charged with
governance, is responsible for
ensuring that the client’s business
activities are conducted in
accordance with laws and
regulations. Management and those
charged with governance are also
responsible for identifying and
addressing any non-compliance by:

(a) The client;

(b) Anindividual charged with
governance of the entity;

(c) A member of management; or

(d) Other individuals working for or

under the direction of the client.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

Responsibilities of Assurance
Practitioners”

Responsibilities of All RPrefessional
Accountants-Assurance
Practitioners

Responsibilities of All RPrefessional
Accountants-Assurance
Practitioners

225.11 Where an assurance
practitioner becomes aware of a
matter to which this section applies,
the steps that the assurance
practitioner takes to comply with
this section shall be taken on a
timely basis, having regard to the
assurance practitioner’s
understanding of the nature of the
matter and the potential harm to
the interests of the entity, investors,
creditors, employees or the general
public.

R360.9 Where an assurance
practitioner prefessionalaccountant
becomes aware of a matter to
which this section applies, the steps
that the assurance practitioner
accouhtant takes to comply with
this section shall be taken on a
timely basis. In taking timely steps,
the acceuntant assurance
practitioner shall have regard to the
nature of the matter and the
potential harm to the interests of
the entity, investors, creditors,
employees or the general public.

R360.9 Where an assurance
practitioner professional-accountant
becomes aware of a matter to
which this section applies, the steps
that the assurance practitioner
accouhtant takes to comply with
this section shall be taken on a
timely basis. In taking timely steps,
the aceeuntant assurance
practitioner shall have regard to the
nature of the matter and the
potential harm to the interests of
the entity, investors, creditors,
employees or the general public.

Applicable to all engagements

#  Paragraphs 225.12 — 225.38 have been expanded in PES 1 (Revised) to apply to all assurance engagements in New Zealand. Paragraphs 225.39- 56 of the IESBA Code
of Ethics that cover Professional Services Other than Audits of Financial Statements have therefore not been included.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

Obtaining an Understanding of the
Matter

Audits and Reviews of Financial
Statements

Obtaining an Understanding of the
Matter

Professional Services Other than
Audits of Financial Statements

Obtaining an Understanding of the
Matter and Addressing It with
Management and Those Charged
with Governance

225.12 If an assurance
practitioner engaged to perform an
assurance engagement becomes
aware of information concerning an
instance of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance, whether
in the course of performing the
engagement or through information
provided by other parties, the
assurance practitioner shall obtain
an understanding of the matter,
including the nature of the act and
the circumstances in which it has
occurred or may occur.

R360.10 If a

engaged to perform an audit or
review of financial statements
becomes aware of information
concerning non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance, the
accountant-assurance practitioner
shall obtain an understanding of the
matter. This understanding shall
include the nature of the non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance and the circumstances
in which it has occurred or might
occur.

R360.29 If a

engaged to provide an assurance
professienal service other than an
audit_or review of financial
statements becomes aware of
information concerning non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance, the aceeuntant
assurance practitioner shall seek to
obtain an understanding of the
matter. This understanding shall
include the nature of the non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance and the circumstances
in which it has occurred or might be
about to occur.

Substantially the same requirement.
If the assurance practitioner is
unable to obtain an understanding
of the matter, regardless of
engagement type, the practitioner
will need to consider the
implications for the engagement
and the assurance report.

The difference in wording
recognises the particular nature of
auditors’ remit and the higher
public expectations of them?.

1iesea Exposure Draft, Responding to Non-compliance with Laws and Requlations, paragraph 41, May 2015
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Agenda 3.2.4

Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

225.12 ... whether in the course of
performing the engagement or
through information provided by
other parties,

360.10 A1 The

might become aware of the non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance in the course of
performing the engagement or
through information provided by
other parties.

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Identified as “nice to have” for
purposes of the compelling reason
test.

225.13 The assurance practitioner
is expected to apply knowledge,
professional judgement and
expertise, but is not expected to
have a level of knowledge of laws
and regulations that is greater than
that which is required to undertake
the engagement. Whether an act
constitutes non-compliance is
ultimately a matter to be
determined by a court or other
appropriate adjudicative body.
Depending on the nature and
significance of the matter, the
assurance practitioner may consult
on a confidential basis with others
within the firm, a network firm or a

360.10 A2 The

is
expected to apply knowledge and
expertise, and exercise professional
judgment. However, the

is not

expected to have a level of
knowledge of laws and regulations
greater than that which is required
to undertake the engagement.
Whether an act constitutes non-
compliance is ultimately a matter to
be determined by a court or other
appropriate adjudicative body.

360.29 Al The

is
expected to apply knowledge and
expertise, and exercise professional
judgment. However, the

is not

expected to have a level of
understanding of laws and
regulations beyond that which is
required for the prefessional

assurance service for which the

was engaged. Whether an act
constitutes actual non-compliance is
ultimately a matter to be
determined by a court or other
appropriate adjudicative body.

Application material is the same for
both audit/review and other
assurance.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

professional body, or with legal
counsel.

225.13 ... Depending on the nature
and significance of the matter, the
assurance practitioner may consult
on a confidential basis with others
within the firm, a network firm or a
professional body, or with legal
counsel.

360.10 A3 Depending on the
nature and significance of the
matter, the

might consult on a confidential basis
with others within the firm, a
network firm or a professional body,
or with legal counsel.

360.29 A2 Depending on the
nature and significance of the
matter, the

might consult
on a confidential basis with others
within the firm, a network firm or a
professional body, or with legal
counsel.

Application material is the same for
both audit/review and other
assurance.

225.14 If the assurance practitioner
identifies or suspects that non-
compliance has occurred or may
occur, the assurance practitioner
shall discuss the matter with the
appropriate level of management
and, where appropriate, those
charged with governance.

R360.11 If the
identifies or suspects that non-
compliance has occurred or might
occur, the

shall discuss the matter
with the appropriate level of
management and, where
appropriate, those charged with
governance.

R360.30 If the
identifies or suspects that non-
compliance has occurred or might
occur, the

shall discuss the matter
with the appropriate level of
management. If the

has access to

those charged with governance, the

Substantially the same requirement,
although R360.30 recognises that in
some circumstances the assurance
practitioner may not have access to
those charged with governance.

This discussion enables assurance
practitioners to clarify their
understanding of the matter,
including its potential
consequences. In practice, it is
expected that the situation will
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

shall also discuss the matter with
them where appropriate.

often be resolved through such
discussion.

225.15 Such discussion serves to
clarify the assurance practitioner’s
understanding of the facts and
circumstances relevant to the
matter and its potential
consequences. The discussion also
may prompt management or those
charged with governance to
investigate the matter.

360.11 A1 The purpose of the
discussion is to clarify the

understanding of the facts and
circumstances relevant to the
matter and its potential
consequences. The discussion also
might prompt management or
those charged with governance to
investigate the matter.

360.30 A1 The purpose of the
discussion is to clarify the

understanding of the
facts and circumstances relevant to
the matter and its potential
consequences. The discussion also
might prompt management or
those charged with governance to
investigate the matter.

Application material is the same for
both audit/review and other
assurance.

225.16 The appropriate level of
management with whom to discuss
the matter is a question of
professional judgement. Relevant
factors to consider include:

e The nature and circumstances
of the matter.

360.11 A2 The appropriate
level of management with whom to
discuss the matter is a question of
professional judgment. Relevant
factors to consider include:

e The nature and circumstances
of the matter.

360.30 A2 The appropriate
level of management with whom to
discuss the matter is a question of
professional judgment. Relevant
factors to consider include:

e The nature and circumstances
of the matter.

Application material is the same for
both audit/review and other
assurance.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

e The individuals actually or
potentially involved.

e The likelihood of collusion.

e The potential consequences of
the matter.

e Whether that level of
management is able to
investigate the matter and take
appropriate action.

e The individuals actually or
potentially involved.

e The likelihood of collusion.

e The potential consequences of
the matter.

e Whether that level of
management is able to
investigate the matter and take
appropriate action.

e The individuals actually or
potentially involved.

e The likelihood of collusion.

e The potential consequences of
the matter.

e Whether that level of
management is able to
investigate the matter and take
appropriate action.

225.17 The appropriate level of
management is generally at least
one level above the person or
persons involved or potentially
involved in the matter. If the
assurance practitioner believes that
management is involved in the non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance, the assurance
practitioner shall discuss the matter
with those charged with
governance. The assurance
practitioner may also consider
discussing the matter with internal
auditors, where applicable. In the
context of a group, the appropriate

360.11 A3 The appropriate
level of management is usually at
least one level above the individual
or individuals involved or potentially
involved in the matter. In the
context of a group, the appropriate
level might be management at an
entity that controls the client.

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Identified as “nice to have” for
purposes of the compelling reason
test.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

level may be management at an
entity that controls the client.

225.17 ... The assurance
practitioner may also consider
discussing the matter with internal
auditors, where applicable.

360.11 A4 The

might also consider discussing the
matter with internal auditors, where
applicable.

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Identified as “nice to have” for
purposes of the compelling reason
test.

225.17 If the assurance practitioner
believes that management is
involved in the non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance, the
assurance practitioner shall discuss
the matter with those charged with
governance.

R360.12 If the

believes that management is
involved in the non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance, the

shall discuss the matter with those
charged with governance.

R360.30 If the
has access to

those charged with governance, the

shall also discuss the matter with
them where appropriate.

For other assurance engagements,
this is implied by R360.30 (second
sentence). It would always be
appropriate to discuss non-
compliance with those charged with
governance when management is
suspected of being involved.

In addition, paragraphs R360.30-
R360.33 require communication to
the firm/external auditor who can
then address the matter with those
charged with governance, as
appropriate.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Restructured IESBA Code

Restructured IESBA Code

COMMENTS

Section 225 Section 360 (Audit/Review) Section 360 (Other Assurance)
(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)
Addressing the Matter Addressing the Matter
225.18 In discussing the non- R360.13 In discussing the Requirement is to advise the client

compliance or suspected non-
compliance with management and,
where appropriate, those charged
with governance, the assurance
practitioner shall advise them to
take appropriate and timely actions,
if they have not already done so, to:

(a) Rectify, remediate or mitigate
the consequences of the non-
compliance;

(b) Deter the commission of the
non-compliance where it has
not yet occurred; or

(c) Disclose the matter to an
appropriate authority where
required by law or regulation or
where considered necessary in
the public interest.

non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with management and,
where appropriate, those charged
with governance, the

shall advise them to take
appropriate and timely actions, if
they have not already done so, to:

(a) Rectify, remediate or mitigate
the consequences of the non-
compliance;

(b) Deter the commission of the
non-compliance where it has not
yet occurred; or

(c) Disclose the matter to an
appropriate authority where
required by law or regulation or
where considered necessary in
the public interest.

to take appropriate and timely
actions if they have not already
done so. This adds specificity to the
requirement in R360.11 which
requires the assurance practitioner
to discuss the matter.

The other assurance framework is
less prescriptive, recognizing the
need for flexibility and professional
judgement.

The Subcommittee view is that
including such a requirement in the
framework for other assurance
engagements may be beyond the
assurance practitioner’s knowledge
and authority.
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Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

225.19 The assurance practitioner
shall consider whether the client’s
management and those charged
with governance understand their
legal or regulatory responsibilities
with respect to the non-compliance
or suspected non-compliance. If not,
the assurance practitioner may
suggest appropriate sources of
information or recommend that they
obtain legal advice.

R360.14 The

shall consider whether management
and those charged with governance
understand their legal or regulatory
responsibilities with respect to the
non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance.

Requirement is for the assurance
practitioner to consider whether
management and those charged
with governance understand their
responsibilities with respect to
NOCLAR. The Code does not specify
actions when management and
those charged with governance do
not understand their legal or
regulatory responsibilities with
respect to NOCLAR.

The Subcommittee view is that
including such a requirement in the
framework for other assurance
engagements is unlikely to lead to a
significant improvement in
assurance quality and in some cases
will be difficult to determine,
therefore does not meet the
compelling reason test.

225.19 ..If not, the assurance
practitioner may suggest
appropriate sources of information
or recommend that they obtain
legal advice.

360.14 A1 If management and
those charged with governance do
not understand their legal or
regulatory responsibilities with
respect to the matter, the

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.

This may be outside the expertise of
the assurance practitioner. A more
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Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

might suggest
appropriate sources of information
or recommend that they obtain
legal advice.

appropriate response is to bring this
to the auditor/reviewer’s attention
through complying with the
requirement in R360.31-35.

225.20 The assurance practitioner
shall comply with applicable:

(a) Laws and regulations, including
legal or regulatory provisions
governing the reporting of non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance to an appropriate
authority. In this regard, some
laws and regulations may
stipulate a period within which
reports are to be made; and

(b) Requirements under auditing
and assurance standards,
including those relating to:

e |dentifying and responding
to non-compliance,
including fraud.

e Communicating with those
charged with governance.

R360.15 The

shall comply with applicable:

(a) Laws and regulations, including
legal or regulatory provisions
governing the reporting of non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance to an appropriate
authority; and

(b) Requirements under auditing
and review standards, including
those relating to:

e Identifying and responding
to non-compliance,
including fraud.

e Communicating with those
charged with governance.

e Considering the implications
of the non-compliance or

The assurance practitioner has an
obligation to comply with laws and
regulations and auditing and
assurance standards regardless of
whether or not such requirements
are noted in the Code. This is noted
in the compelling reason test for the
extant changes: Requiring
compliance with laws and
regulations and the auditing and
assurance standards would already
be required by the legislation and
those standards, so whilst
expanding that provision in itself
may not have any impact on audit
quality, it would simplify and
streamline the Code.

This change is identified as “nice to
have” for purposes of the
compelling reason test.
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Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

e Considering the implications

suspected non-compliance

of the non-compliance or for the auditer’s report.
suspected non-compliance
for the assurance report.
225.20 ...In this regard, some laws 360.15 Al Some laws and Application material. When this is

and regulations may stipulate a
period within which reports are to
be made;

regulations might stipulate a period
within which reports of non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance are to be made to an
appropriate authority.

the case, the assurance practitioner
would be required by legislation to
comply.

Communication with Respect to
Groups

Communication with Respect to
Groups

Communicating the Matter to the
Entity’s External Auditor

NZ225.21.1 An assurance
practitioner may:

(a) For purposes of an audit of
group financial statements, be
requested by the group
engagement team to perform
work on financial information
related to a component of the
group; or

(b) Be engaged to perform an audit
or review of a component’s
financial statements for

R360.16 Where a

becomes aware of non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance in relation to a
component of a group in either of
the following two situations, the

shall communicate the matter to
the group engagement partner
unless prohibited from doing so by
law or regulation:

These are communication
requirements specific to audits of
group financial statements and are
therefore not applicable to other
assurance engagements.

R360.31 — R360.35 A1l detail the
other assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
auditor.

NB: NZ paragraph notation relates
to the addition of “or review”.
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Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

purposes other than the group
audit, for example, a statutory
audit.

Where the assurance practitioner
becomes aware of non-compliance
or suspected non-compliance in
relation to the component in either
situation, the assurance practitioner
shall, in addition to responding to
the matter in accordance with the
provisions of this section,
communicate it to the group
engagement partner unless
prohibited from doing so by law or
regulation.

(a) The

is, for purposes of
an audit of the group financial
statements, requested by the
group engagement team to
perform work on financial
information related to the
component; or

(b) The
is engaged to
perform an audit or review of
the component’s financial
statements for purposes other
than the group audit, for
example, a statutory audit.

The communication to the group
engagement partner shall be in
addition to responding to the
matter in accordance with the
provisions of this section.

NZ225.21.1 This is to enable the
group engagement partner to be
informed about the matter and to
determine, in the context of the
group audit, whether and, if so, how
it should be addressed in

360.16 Al The purpose of the
communication is to enable the
group engagement partner to be
informed about the matter and to
determine, in the context of the
group audit, whether and, if so, how

These are communication
requirements specific to audits of
group financial statements and are
therefore not applicable to other
assurance engagements.
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Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

accordance with the provisions in
this section.

to address it in accordance with the
provisions in this section. The
communication requirement in
paragraph R360.16 applies
regardless of whether the group
engagement partner’s firm or
network is the same as or different
from the

’s firm or
network.

R360.31 — R360.35 A1l detail the
assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
auditor.

NB: Paragraph does not require NZ
notation under restructure.

NZ225.22.1 Where the group
engagement partner becomes
aware of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance in the
course of an audit of group financial
statements, including as a result of
being informed of such a matter in
accordance with paragraph 225.21,
the group engagement partner
shall, in addition to responding to
the matter in the context of the
group audit in accordance with the
provisions of this section, consider
whether the matter may be relevant
to one or more components:

R360.17 Where the group
engagement partner becomes
aware of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance in the
course of an audit of group financial
statements, the group engagement
partner shall consider whether the
matter might be relevant to one or
more components:

(a) Whose financial information is
subject to work for purposes of
the audit of the group financial
statements; or

(b) Whose financial statements are
subject to audit or review for
purposes other than the group

These are communication
requirements specific to audits of
group financial statements and are
therefore not applicable to other
assurance engagements.

R360.31 — R360.35 A1l detail the
assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
auditor/reviewer.

NB: NZ paragraph notation relates
to the addition of “or review”.
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COMMENTS

(a) Whose financial information is
subject to work for purposes of
the audit of the group financial
statements; or

(b) Whose financial statements are
subject to audit or review for
purposes other than the group
audit, for example, a statutory
audit.

If so, the group engagement partner
shall take steps to have the non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance communicated to those
performing work at components
where the matter may be relevant,
unless prohibited from doing so by
law or regulation. If necessary in
relation to subparagraph (b),
appropriate enquiries shall be made
(either of management or from
publicly available information) as to
whether the relevant component(s)
is subject to audit or review and, if
so, to ascertain to the extent
practicable the identity of the
auditor. The communication is to
enable those responsible for work at

audit, for example, a statutory
audit.

This consideration shall be in
addition to responding to the
matter in the context of the group
audit in accordance with the
provisions of this section.
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such components to be informed
about the matter and to determine
whether and, if so, how it should be
addressed in accordance with the
provisions in this section.

NZ225.22.1 ..If so, the group
engagement partner shall take steps
to have the non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance
communicated to those performing
work at components where the
matter may be relevant, unless
prohibited from doing so by law or
regulation. If necessary in relation
to subparagraph (b), appropriate
enquiries shall be made (either of
management or from publicly
available information) as to whether
the relevant component(s) is subject
to audit or review and, if so, to
ascertain to the extent practicable
the identity of the auditor...

R360.18 If the non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance might be relevant to
one or more of the components
specified in paragraph R360.17(a)
and (b), the group engagement
partner shall take steps to have the
matter communicated to those
performing work at the
components, unless prohibited from
doing so by law or regulation. If
necessary, the group engagement
partner shall arrange for
appropriate inquiries to be made
(either of management or from
publicly available information) as to
whether the relevant component(s)
specified in paragraph R360.17(b) is
subject to audit or review and, if so,
to ascertain to the extent

These are communication
requirements specific to audits of
group financial statements and are
therefore not applicable to other
assurance engagements.

R360.31 — R360.35 A1l detail the
assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
auditor.

NB: NZ paragraph notation relates
to the addition of “or review”.
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practicable the identity of the
auditor.

NZ225.22.1 ...The
communication is to enable those
responsible for work at such
components to be informed about
the matter and to determine
whether and, if so, how it should be
addressed in accordance with the
provisions in this section.

360.18 Al The purpose of the
communication is to enable those
responsible for work at the
components to be informed about
the matter and to determine
whether and, if so, how to address it
in accordance with the provisions in
this section. The communication
requirement applies regardless of
whether the group engagement
partner’s firm or network is the
same as or different from the firms
or networks of those performing
work at the components.

These are communication
requirements specific to audits of
group financial statements and are
therefore not applicable to other
assurance engagements.

R360.31 — R360.35 A1l detail the
assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
auditor.

Paragraph does not require NZ
notation under restructure.

NZ225.17.1 If the assurance
practitioner is performing a non-
audit service for an audit client of
the firm, or a component of an audit
client the assurance practitioner
shall communicate non-compliance
or suspected non-compliance within

R360.31 If the

is
performing a non-audit service for:
(a) An audit client of the firm; or

(b) A component of an audit client
of the firm,

R360.31 — R360.35 Al address the
assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
auditor. Paragraphs R360.16 —
360.18 A1l are specific to audits of
group financial statements.
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the firm, unless prohibited from
doing so by law or regulation. The
communication shall be made in
accordance with the firm’s
protocols or procedures or, in the
absence of such protocols and
procedures, directly to the audit
engagement partner.

the

shall communicate the
non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance within the firm, unless
prohibited from doing so by law or
regulation. The communication shall
be made in accordance with the
firm’s protocols or procedures. In
the absence of such protocols and
procedures, it shall be made directly
to the audit engagement partner.

If the Board agrees with the
Subcommittee recommendation to
separate the audit/review and other
assurance provisions, NZ225.17.1 —
NZ225.17.5 would no longer require
to be marked as NZ paragraphs.

NZ225.17.2 If the assurance
practitioner is performing a non-
audit service for an audit client of a
network firm, or a component of an
audit client of a network firm, the
assurance practitioner shall consider
whether to communicate the non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance to the network firm.
Where the communication is made,
it shall be made in accordance with
the network’s protocols or
procedures or, in the absence of
such protocols and procedures,

R360.32 If the
is

performing a non-audit service for:

(a) An audit client of a network
firm; or

(b) A component of an audit client
of a network firm,

the

shall
consider whether to communicate
the non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance to the network
firm. Where the communication is
made, it shall be made in

R360.31 — R360.35 Al address the
assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
auditor. Paragraphs R360.16 —
360.18 A1 address communications
specific to a group audit situation.
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directly to the audit engagement
partner.

accordance with the network's
protocols or procedures. In the
absence of such protocols and
procedures, it shall be made directly
to the audit engagement partner.

NZ225.17.3 If the assurance
practitioner is performing a non-

audit service for a client that is not:

(a) An audit client of the firm or a
network firm; or

(b) A component of an audit client
of the firm or network firm,

the assurance practitioner shall
consider whether to communicate
the non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance to the firm that is
the client’s external auditor, if any.

R360.33 If the
is performing a non-audit service for
a client that is not:

(a) An audit client of the firm or a
network firm; or

(b) A component of an audit client
of the firm or a network firm,

the

shall
consider whether to communicate
the non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance to the firm that is
the client’s external auditor, if any.

R360.31 — R360.35 Al address the
assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
auditor. Paragraphs R360.16 —
360.18 Al address communications
specific to a group audit situation.

Relevant Factors to Consider

NZ225.17.4 Factors relevant to
considering the communication in

360.34 Al Factors relevant to
considering the communication in

R360.31 — R360.35 Al address the
assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
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accordance with paragraphs
NZ225.17.2 and NZ225.17.3 include:

e Whether doing so would be
contrary to law or regulation.

e Whether there are restrictions
about disclosure imposed by a
regulatory agency or prosecutor
in an ongoing investigation into
the non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance.

e Whether the purpose of the
engagement is to investigate
potential non-compliance within
the entity to enable it to take
appropriate action.

e  Whether management or those
charged with governance have
already informed the entity’s
external auditor about the
matter.

e The likely materiality of the
matter to the audit of the
client’s financial statements or,
where the matter relates to a
component of a group, its likely

accordance with paragraphs
R360.31 to R360.33 include:

e Whether doing so would be
contrary to law or regulation.

e Whether there are restrictions
about disclosure imposed by a
regulatory agency or prosecutor
in an ongoing investigation into
the non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance.

e Whether the purpose of the
engagement is to investigate
potential non-compliance within
the entity to enable it to take
appropriate action.

e Whether management or those
charged with governance have
already informed the entity’s
external auditor about the
matter.

e The likely materiality of the
matter to the audit of the
client’s financial statements or,
where the matter relates to a
component of a group, its likely

auditor. Paragraphs R360.16 —
360.18 A1 address communications
specific to a group audit situation.
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materiality to the audit of the
group financial statements.

materiality to the audit of the
group financial statements.

Purpose of Communication

NZ225.17.5 In all cases, the
communication is to enable the
audit engagement partner to be
informed about the non-compliance
or suspected non-compliance and to
determine whether and, if so, how it
should be addressed in accordance
with the provisions of this section.

360.35 Al In the
circumstances addressed in
paragraphs R360.31 to R360.33, the
purpose of the communication is to
enable the audit engagement
partner to be informed about the
non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance and to determine
whether and, if so, how to address it
in accordance with the provisions of
this section.

R360.31 — R360.35 Al address the
assurance practitioner’s
communications with the external
auditor. Paragraphs R360.16 —
360.18 Al address communications
specific to a group audit situation.

Determining Whether Further Action
is Needed

Determining Whether Further Action
Is Needed

Considering Whether Further Action
Is Needed

225.23 The assurance practitioner
shall assess the appropriateness of
the response of management and,
where applicable, those charged
with governance.

R360.19 The

shall assess the appropriateness of
the response of management and,
where applicable, those charged
with governance.

This is a necessary action to achieve
the requirement of R360.36 which is
to consider whether further action
is needed in the public interest. As
implicit in R360.36 this is identified
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as “nice to have” for purposes of
the compelling reason test.

225.24 Relevant factors to consider
in assessing the appropriateness of
the response of management and,
where applicable, those charged
with governance include whether:

e The response is timely.

e The non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance has
been adequately investigated.

e Action has been, or is being,
taken to rectify, remediate or
mitigate the consequences of
any non-compliance.

e Action has been, or is being,
taken to deter the commission
of any non-compliance where it
has not yet occurred.

e Appropriate steps have been, or
are being, taken to reduce the

360.19 Al Relevant factors to
consider in assessing the
appropriateness of the response of
management and, where applicable,
those charged with governance
include whether:

e The response is timely.

e The non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance has
been adequately investigated.

e Action has been, or is being,
taken to rectify, remediate or
mitigate the consequences of
any non-compliance.

e Action has been, or is being,
taken to deter the commission
of any non-compliance where it
has not yet occurred.

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Identified as “nice to have” for
purposes of the compelling reason
test.
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risk of re-occurrence, for
example, additional controls or
training.

e The non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance has
been disclosed to an
appropriate authority where
appropriate and, if so, whether
the disclosure appears

e Appropriate steps have been, or
are being, taken to reduce the
risk of re-occurrence, for
example, additional controls or
training.

e The non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance has
been disclosed to an
appropriate authority where

adequate. appropriate and, if so, whether
the disclosure appears
adequate.
225.25 In light of the response of R360.20 In light of the R360.36 The Such action cannot be determined

management and, where applicable,
those charged with governance, the
assurance practitioner shall
determine if further action is
needed in the public interest.

response of management and,
where applicable, those charged
with governance, the professional
accountant shall determine if
further action is needed in the
public interest.

shall also consider whether further
action is needed in the public
interest.

without (as per R360.19) first
assessing the appropriateness of the
action taken. The Subcommittee is
of the view that an assessment of
the appropriateness of the response
of management or those charged
with governance must be
performed in order to
determine/consider whether
further action is needed.

225.26 The determination of
whether further action is needed,

360.20 A1 The determination
of whether further action is needed,

360.36 Al Whether further
action is needed, and the nature

Similar guidance.
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and the nature and extent of it, will
depend on various factors,
including:

e The legal and regulatory
framework.

e The urgency of the matter.

e The pervasiveness of the matter
throughout the client.

e Whether the assurance
practitioner continues to have
confidence in the integrity of
management and, where
applicable, those charged with
governance.

e  Whether the non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance is
likely to recur.

e  Whether there is credible
evidence of actual or potential
substantial harm to the
interests of the entity, investors,
creditors, employees or the
general public.

and the nature and extent of it, will
depend on various factors,
including:

e The legal and regulatory
framework.

e The urgency of the situation.

e The pervasiveness of the matter
throughout the client.

e Whether the

continues to have
confidence in the integrity of
management and, where
applicable, those charged with
governance.

e  Whether the non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance is
likely to recur.

e Whether there is credible
evidence of actual or potential
substantial harm to the
interests of the entity, investors,
creditors, employees or the
general public.

and extent of it, will depend on
factors such as:

e The legal and regulatory
framework.

e The appropriateness and
timeliness of the response of
management and, where
applicable, those charged with
governance.

e The urgency of the situation.

e The involvement of
management or those charged

with governance in the matter.

e The likelihood of substantial
harm to the interests of the
client, investors, creditors,
employees or the general
public.
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225.27 Examples of circumstances
that may cause the assurance
practitioner no longer to have
confidence in the integrity of
management and, where applicable,
those charged with governance
include situations where:

e The assurance practitioner
suspects or has evidence of
their involvement or intended
involvement in any non-
compliance.

e The assurance practitioner is
aware that they have
knowledge of such non-
compliance and, contrary to
legal or regulatory
requirements, have not
reported, or authorised the
reporting of, the matter to an
appropriate authority within a
reasonable period.

360.20 A2 Examples of
circumstances that might cause the

no longer to have
confidence in the integrity of
management and, where applicable,
those charged with governance
include situations where:

e The
suspects or has
evidence of their involvement
or intended involvement in any
non-compliance.

e The

is aware that they
have knowledge of such non-
compliance and, contrary to
legal or regulatory
requirements, have not
reported, or authorized the
reporting of, the matter to an
appropriate authority within a
reasonable period.

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Identified as “nice to have” for
purposes of the compelling reason
test.
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225.28 In determining the need for,
and nature and extent of, further
action, the assurance practitioner
shall exercise professional
judgement and take into account
whether a reasonable and informed
third party, weighing all the specific
facts and circumstances available to
the assurance practitioner at the
time, would be likely to conclude
that the assurance practitioner has
acted appropriately in the public
interest.

R360.21 The

shall exercise professional judgment
in determining the need for, and
nature and extent of, further action.
In making this determination, the

shall take into account whether a
reasonable and informed third party
would be likely to conclude that the

has acted appropriately in the public
interest.

The assurance practitioner exercises
professional judgement throughout
the engagement. ISAE (NZ) requires
the assurance practitioner to
exercise professional judgement in
planning and performing an
assurance engagement, including
determining the nature, timing and
extent of the procedures (paragraph
38).

The conceptual framework requires
the assurance practitioner to
exercise professional judgement,
remain alert for new information
and to changes in facts and
circumstances and to use the
reasonable and informed third-party
test (R120.5). respon

R360.36 requires the assurance
practitioner to consider whether
further action is needed in the
public interest.

Accordingly, this requirement is
identified as “nice to have” for

199431.1




Agenda 3.2.4

Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

purposes of the compelling reason
test.

225.29 Further action by the
assurance practitioner may include:

e Disclosing the matter to an
appropriate authority even
when there is no legal or
regulatory requirement to do
so.

e Withdrawing from the
engagement and the
professional relationship where
permitted by law or regulation.

360.21 Al Further action that
the

might take
includes:

e Disclosing the matter to an
appropriate authority even
when there is no legal or
regulatory requirement to do
so.

e Withdrawing from the
engagement and the
professional relationship where
permitted by law or regulation.

360.36 A2 Further action by
the

might
include:

e Disclosing the matter to an
appropriate authority even
when there is no legal or
regulatory requirement to do
so.

e Withdrawing from the
engagement and the
professional relationship where
permitted by law or regulation.

Application material is the same for
both audit/review and other
assurance.

225.30 Where the assurance
practitioner determines that
withdrawing from the engagement and
the professional relationship would be
appropriate, doing so would not be a
substitute for taking other actions that
may be needed to achieve the
assurance practitioner’s objectives

360.21 A2 Withdrawing from
the engagement and the
professional relationship is not a
substitute for taking other actions
that might be needed to achieve the

objectives under this

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Withdrawal is always an option for
the practitioner. Accordingly, this is
implicit and “nice to have” for
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under this section. In some cases,
however, there may be limitations as to
the further actions available to the
assurance practitioner and withdrawal
may be the only available course of
action.

section. In some jurisdictions,
however, there might be limitations
as to the further actions available to
the

. In such circumstances,
withdrawal might be the only
available course of action.

purposes of the compelling reason
test.

225.31 Where the assurance
practitioner has withdrawn from the
professional relationship pursuant
to paragraphs 225.25 and 225.29,
the assurance practitioner shall, on
request by the proposed successor
assurance practitioner, provide all
such facts and other information
concerning the identified or
suspected non-compliance that, in
the predecessor assurance
practitioner’s opinion, the proposed
successor assurance practitioner
needs to be aware of before
deciding whether to accept the audit
appointment. The predecessor
assurance practitioner shall do so
despite paragraph 210.14, unless
prohibited by law or regulation. If
the proposed successor assurance

R360.22 Where the
has withdrawn from the
professional relationship pursuant
to paragraphs R360.20 and 360.21
Al, the

shall, on request by the
proposed

pursuant to paragraph
R320.8, provide all relevant facts
and other information concerning
the identified or suspected non-
compliance to the proposed

The predecessor

shall do so,
even in the circumstances
addressed in paragraph R320.8(b)
where the client fails or refuses to
grant the predecessor

R320.8 In the case of an audit or
review of financial statements, an
assurance practitioner shall request
the existing or predecessor
assurance practitioner to provide
known information regarding any
facts or other information of which,
in the existing or predecessor
assurance practitioner’s opinion,
the proposed assurance practitioner
needs to be aware before deciding
whether to accept the engagement.
Except for the circumstances
involving non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations set out in
paragraphs R360.21 and R360.22:

(a) If the client consents to the
existing or predecessor

Section 320 of the restructured
Code addresses communicating
with the existing or predecessor
assurance practitioner for all
assurance engagements. Refer
320.8

Identified as “nice to have” for
purposes of the compelling reason
test.
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practitioner is unable to
communicate with the predecessor
assurance practitioner, the proposed
successor assurance practitioner
shall take reasonable steps to obtain
information about the
circumstances of the change of
appointment by other means, such
as through enquiries of third parties
or background investigations of
management or those charged with
governance.

permission to
discuss the client’s affairs with the
proposed
, unless prohibited by
law or regulation.

assurance practitioner
disclosing any such facts or
other information, the existing
or predecessor assurance
practitioner shall provide the
information honestly and
unambiguously; and

(b) If the client fails or refuses to
grant the existing or
predecessor assurance
practitioner permission to
discuss the client’s affairs with
the proposed assurance
practitioner, the existing or
predecessor assurance
practitioner shall disclose this
fact to the proposed assurance
practitioner, who shall carefully
consider such failure or refusal
when determining whether to
accept the appointment.

225.31 ...that, in the predecessor
assurance practitioner’s opinion, the
proposed successor assurance
practitioner needs to be aware of

360.22 Al The facts and other
information to be provided are
those that, in the

opinion, the proposed

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Identified as “nice to have” for
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before deciding whether to accept
the audit appointment...

needs to be aware of before
deciding whether to accept the
audit or review appointment.
Section 320 addresses
communications from proposed

purposes of the compelling reason
test.

225.31 ..If the proposed successor
assurance practitioner is unable to
communicate with the predecessor
assurance practitioner, the proposed
successor assurance practitioner
shall take reasonable steps to obtain
information about the
circumstances of the change of
appointment by other means...

R360.23 If the proposed
unable to communicate with the
predecessor

, the proposed

shall take reasonable steps to
obtain information about the
circumstances of the change of
appointment by other means.

R320.6 If unable to communicate
with the existing or predecessor
assurance practitioner, the
proposed assurance practitioner
shall take other reasonable steps to
obtain information about any
possible threats.

Repetition of material in section
320. See R320.6

225.31 ... such as through enquiries
of third parties or background
investigations of management or
those charged with governance.

360.23 Al Other means to
obtain information about the
circumstances of the change of
appointment include inquiries of
third parties or background
investigations of management or
those charged with governance.

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Identified as “nice to have” for
purposes of the compelling reason
test.
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225.32 As consideration of the
matter may involve complex
analysis and judgements, the
assurance practitioner may consider
consulting internally, obtaining legal
advice to understand the assurance
practitioner’s options and the
professional or legal implications of
taking any particular course of
action, or consultingon a
confidential basis with a regulator
or professional body.

360.24 A1 As assessment of
the matter might involve complex
analysis and judgments, the

might consider:
e Consulting internally.

e Obtaining legal advice to
understand the
options
and the professional or legal
implications of taking any
particular course of action.

e Consulting on a confidential
basis with a regulatory or
professional body.

360.39 Al The

might consider:
e Consulting internally.

e Obtaining legal advice to
understand the professional or
legal implications of taking any
particular course of action.

e Consulting on a confidential
basis with a regulatory or
professional body.

Similar guidance

Determining Whether to Disclose
the Matter to an
Appropriate Authority

Determining Whether to Disclose
the Matter to an Appropriate
Authority

225.33 Disclosure of the matter to
an appropriate authority would be
precluded if doing so would be
contrary to law or regulation.
Otherwise, the purpose of making
disclosure is to enable an

360.25 Al Disclosure of the
matter to an appropriate authority
would be precluded if doing so
would be contrary to law or
regulation. Otherwise, the purpose
of making disclosure is to enable an

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Identified as “nice to have” for
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appropriate authority to cause the
matter to be investigated and action
to be taken in the public interest.

appropriate authority to cause the
matter to be investigated and action
to be taken in the public interest.

purposes of the compelling reason
test.

225.34 The determination of
whether to make such a disclosure
depends in particular on the nature
and extent of the actual or potential
harm that is or may be caused by
the matter to investors, creditors,
employees or the general public.
For example, the assurance
practitioner may determine that
disclosure of the matter to an
appropriate authority is an
appropriate course of action if:

e The entity is engaged in bribery
(for example, of local or foreign
government officials for
purposes of securing large
contracts).

e The entity is regulated and the
matter is of such significance as

360.25 A2 The determination
of whether to make such a
disclosure depends in particular on
the nature and extent of the actual
or potential harm that is or might be
caused by the matter to investors,
creditors, employees or the general
public. For example, the

might determine that
disclosure of the matter to an
appropriate authority is an
appropriate course of action if:

e The entity is engaged in bribery
(for example, of local or foreign
government officials for
purposes of securing large
contracts).

e The entity is regulated and the
matter is of such significance as

No equivalent application material
included under IESBA other
assurance engagement provisions.
Identified as “nice to have” for
purposes of the compelling reason
test.
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to threaten its license to
operate.

e Theentityis listedon a
securities exchange and the
matter could result in adverse
consequences to the fair and
orderly market in the entity’s
securities or pose a systemic risk
to the financial markets.

e Products that are harmful to
public health or safety would
likely be sold by the entity.

e The entity is promoting a
scheme to its clients to assist
them in evading taxes.

to threaten its license to
operate.

e The entity is listed on a
securities exchange and the
matter might result in adverse
consequences to the fair and
orderly market in the entity’s
securities or pose a systemic risk
to the financial markets.

e |tis likely that the entity would
sell products that are harmful to
public health or safety.

e The entity is promoting a
scheme to its clients to assist
them in evading taxes.

225.34 The determination of
whether to make such a disclosure
will also depend on external factors
such as:

e  Whether there is an appropriate
authority that is able to receive
the information, and cause the
matter to be investigated and
action to be taken. The
appropriate authority will

360.25 A3 The determination
of whether to make such a
disclosure will also depend on
external factors such as:

e Whether there is an appropriate
authority that is able to receive
the information, and cause the
matter to be investigated and
action to be taken. The
appropriate authority will

360.36 A3 In considering
whether to disclose to an
appropriate authority, relevant
factors to take into account include:

e Whether doing so would be
contrary to law or regulation.

e Whether there are restrictions
about disclosure imposed by a
regulatory agency or prosecutor

Similar guidance
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depend on the nature of the
matter, for example, a securities
regulator in the case of
fraudulent financial reporting or
an environmental protection
agency in the case of a breach
of environmental laws and
regulations.

Whether there exists robust and
credible protection from civil,
criminal or professional liability
or retaliation afforded by
legislation or regulation, such as
under whistle-blowing
legislation or regulation.

Whether there are actual or
potential threats to the physical
safety of the assurance
practitioner or other individuals.

Whether there are restrictions
about disclosure imposed by a
regulatory agency or prosecutor
in an on-going investigation into
the non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance.

depend on the nature of the
matter. For example, the
appropriate authority would be
a securities regulator in the case
of fraudulent financial reporting
or an environmental protection
agency in the case of a breach
of environmental laws and
regulations.

e  Whether there exists robust and
credible protection from civil,
criminal or professional liability
or retaliation afforded by
legislation or regulation, such as
under whistle-blowing
legislation or regulation.

e Whether there are actual or
potential threats to the physical
safety of the

or other individuals.

in an ongoing investigation into
the non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance.

e Whether the purpose of the
engagement is to investigate
potential non-compliance within
the entity to enable it to take
appropriate action.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Restructured IESBA Code

Restructured IESBA Code

COMMENTS

Section 225 Section 360 (Audit/Review) Section 360 (Other Assurance)
(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

. Whether the purpose of the

engagement is to investigate
potential non-compliance within the
entity to enable it to take
appropriate action.

225.35 If the assurance practitioner
determines that disclosure of the
non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance to an appropriate
authority is an appropriate course
of action in the circumstances, this
will not be considered a breach of
the duty of confidentiality under
Section 140 of this Code. When
making such disclosure, the
assurance practitioner shall act in
good faith and exercise caution
when making statements and
assertions. The assurance
practitioner shall also consider
whether it is appropriate to inform
the client of the assurance
practitioner’s intentions before
disclosing the matter.

R360.26 If the

determines that disclosure of the
non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance to an appropriate
authority is an appropriate course
of action in the circumstances, that
disclosure is permitted pursuant to
paragraph R114.1(d) of the Code.
When making such disclosure, the

shall act in good faith and exercise
caution when making statements
and assertions. The

shall also
consider whether it is appropriate
to inform the client of the

intentions before
disclosing the matter.

R360.37 If the

determines that disclosure of the
non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance to an appropriate
authority is an appropriate course
of action in the circumstances, that
disclosure is permitted pursuant to
paragraph R114.1(d) of the Code.
When making such disclosure, the

shall act in good faith and exercise
caution when making statements
and assertions. The

shall also
consider whether it is appropriate
to inform the client of the

intentions before
disclosing the matter.

Same requirement
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

Imminent Breach

Imminent Breach

225.36 In exceptional
circumstances, the assurance
practitioner may become aware of
actual or intended conduct that the
assurance practitioner has reason to
believe would constitute an
imminent breach of a law or
regulation that would cause
substantial harm to investors,
creditors, employees or the general
public. Having considered whether
it would be appropriate to discuss
the matter with management or
those charged with governance of
the entity, the assurance
practitioner shall exercise
professional judgement and may
immediately disclose the matter to
an appropriate authority in order to
prevent or mitigate the
consequences of such imminent
breach of law or regulation. Such
disclosure will not be considered a

R360.27 In exceptional
circumstances, the

might become aware of actual or
intended conduct that the

has reason to believe would
constitute an imminent breach of a
law or regulation that would cause
substantial harm to investors,
creditors, employees or the general
public. Having first considered
whether it would be appropriate to
discuss the matter with
management or those charged with
governance of the entity, the

shall exercise professional judgment
and determine whether to disclose
the matter immediately to an
appropriate authority in order to
prevent or mitigate the
consequences of such imminent
breach. If disclosure is made, that

R360.38 In exceptional
circumstances, the

might become aware of actual or
intended conduct that the

has reason to believe would
constitute an imminent breach of a
law or regulation that would cause
substantial harm to investors,
creditors, employees or the general
public. Having first considered
whether it would be appropriate to
discuss the matter with
management or those charged with
governance of the entity, the

shall exercise professional judgment
and determine whether to disclose
the matter immediately to an
appropriate authority in order to
prevent or mitigate the
consequences of such imminent
breach of law or regulation. If

Similar requirement
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

breach of the duty of confidentiality
under Section 140 of this Code.

disclosure is permitted pursuant to
paragraph R114.1(d) of the Code.

disclosure is made, that disclosure is
permitted pursuant to paragraph
R114.1(d) of the Code.

Documentation

Documentation

Documentation

225.37 In relation to an identified
or suspected act of non-compliance
that falls within the scope of this
section, the assurance practitioner
shall, in addition to complying with
the documentation requirements
under applicable auditing or
assurance standards, document:

e How management and, where
applicable, those charged with
governance have responded to
the matter.

e The courses of action the
assurance practitioner
considered, the judgements
made and the decisions that

R360.28 In relation to non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance that falls within the
scope of this section, the

shall document:

e How management and, where
applicable, those charged with
governance have responded to
the matter.

e The courses of action the
considered, the

judgments made and the
decisions that were taken,

360.40 Al In relation to non-
compliance or suspected non-
compliance that falls within the
scope of this section, the

is encouraged to
document:

e The matter.

e The results of discussion with
management and, where
applicable, those charged with
governance and other parties.

e How management and, where
applicable, those charged with

For other assurance engagements,
ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) and subject
matter specific ISAEs (NZ) and SAEs
establish the documentation
requirements.?

360.40 Al guides the assurance
practitioner in determining the
matters to document, supporting
the requirement in ISAE (NZ) 3000
(Revised), but in not prescribing
specific matters to be documented
recognises the differing nature of
other assurance engagements.

The IESBA has taken a proportionate
approach to documentation. The
encouragement for the assurance

2 |SAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised), paragraph 79, The assurance practitioner shall prepare on a timely basis documentation that provides a record of the basis for
the assurance report that is sufficient and appropriate to enable an experience practitioner, having no previous connection with the engagement to
understand,...(c) the significant matters arising during the engagement, the conclusions reached thereon, and significant professional judgements made in
reaching those conclusions. (paragraph 79).
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

were taken, having regard to
the reasonable and informed
third party perspective.

e How the assurance practitioner
is satisfied that the assurance
practitioner has fulfilled the
responsibility set out in
paragraph 225.25.

having regard to the reasonable
and informed third party test.

e How the
is satisfied that the

has fulfilled the
responsibility set out in
paragraph R360.20.

governance have responded to
the matter.

e The courses of action the

considered, the
judgments made and the
decisions that were taken.

e How the
is satisfied that the

has fulfilled the
responsibility set out in
paragraph R360.36.

practitioner to document recognises
that practitioners performing other
assurance engagements are not
subject to the same extent of
regulatory oversight as auditors.3

The Subcommittee is of the view
that the matters identified would
ordinarily be documented in
accordance with ISAE (NZ) 3000
(Revised). Accordingly, the
Subcommittee is of the view that
the compelling reason test has not
been met.

225.38 International Standards on
Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)),
for example, require an assurance
practitioner performing an audit of
financial statements to:

e Prepare documentation
sufficient to enable an
understanding of significant
matters arising during the audit,
the conclusions reached, and

360.28 Al This documentation
is in addition to complying with the
documentation requirements under
applicable auditing

standards. ISAs, for example,
require a

performing an audit of financial
statements to:

For other assurance engagements,
ISAE (NZ) 3000 (revised) and subject
matter specific ISAEs (NZ) and SAEs
establish the documentation
requirements.

360.28 A1l uses ISAs as an example.

3 |JESBA Basis for Conclusions, Responding to Non-Compliance with Laws and Regulations, paragraph 133
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)
Section 225

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Audit/Review)

(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)

Restructured IESBA Code
Section 360 (Other Assurance)

COMMENTS

significant professional
judgements made in reaching
those conclusions;

e Document discussions of
significant matters with
management, those charged
with governance, and others,
including the nature of the
significant matters discussed
and when and with whom the
discussions took place; and

e Document identified or

suspected non-compliance, and

the results of discussion with
management and, where
applicable, those charged with
governance and other parties
outside the entity.

Prepare documentation
sufficient to enable an
understanding of significant
matters arising during the audit,
the conclusions reached, and
significant professional
judgements made in reaching
those conclusions;

Document discussions of
significant matters with
management, those charged
with governance, and others,
including the nature of the
significant matters discussed
and when and with whom the
discussions took place; and

Document identified or
suspected non-compliance, and
the results of discussion with
management and, where
applicable, those charged with
governance and other parties
outside the entity.

199431.1
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Restructured IESBA Code

Restructured IESBA Code

COMMENTS

Section 225 Section 360 (Audit/Review) Section 360 (Other Assurance)
(Amended in NZ in include review
engagements)
NZ225.38.1 International For other assurance engagements,

Standards on Assurance
Engagements (New Zealand)
(ISAEs (NZ)) and International
Standard on Review
Engagements (New Zealand)
(ISRE (NZ)) require an assurance
practitioner performing an
assurance engagement to:

e Prepare documentation
sufficient to enable an
understanding of significant
matters arising during the audit,
the conclusions reached
thereon, and significant
professional judgements made
in reaching those conclusions;

e Document discussions of
significant matters with
management, those charged
with governance, and others,
including the nature of the
significant matters discussed
and when and with whom the
discussions took place.

ISAE (NZ) 3000 (revised) and subject
matter specific ISAEs (NZ) and SAEs
establish the documentation
requirements.
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Compelling Reason Test:

Compelling reason tests are included in this paper for the following modifications:

# Moadification Additional materials

1 PIE requirements included in section 290 Comparison of PIE requirements (refer
extended to section 291 (including long attachment 6)
association)

2. Temporary staff assignments N/A

3. Multiple threats to independence N/A

Moadification 1: PIE Requirements included in section 290 extended to section 291 (including long
association).

Modification to the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Requirements)

Modification

PES 1 (Revised) extends the more restrictive PIE requirements included in section 290 to section
291 relating to independence in other assurance engagements.

The following paragraphs are added:
NZ291.3.1-NZ 291.3.2 scoping paragraphs

NZ291.3.1 Section 291 contains additional provisions that reflect the extent of public interest in certain entities.
For the purpose of this section, public interest entities include entities that have public accountability, are deemed to
have public accountability or are of economic significance. In New Zealand, the following entities are deemed to be
Public Interest Entities:

Any entity that is required or opts to prepare financial statements to comply with Tier 1 For-profit Accounting
Requirements or Tier 1 PBE Accounting Requirements in accordance with XRB A1*-

NZ291.3.2 Firms are encouraged to determine whether to treat additional entities, or certain categories of
entities, as if they were public interest entities because they have a large number and wide range of stakeholders or
represent a higher level of risk. Factors to be considered include:

e The nature of the business, such as the holding of assets in a fiduciary capacity for a large number of
stakeholders. Examples may include financial institutions, such as banks and insurance companies, and
pension funds;

e Size;and
o  Number of employees
NZ291.27.1 certain exceptions permitted when restricting use and distribution

NZ291.27.1 When the conditions set out in paragraphs 291.21 and 291.22 are met, it is not necessary to apply the
additional public interest entity requirements in paragraphs 291.112 to 291.157 that apply to assurance engagements
for public interest entities.

Paragraphs NZ291.3.1-NZ291.3.2 and NZ291.27.1 are necessary only to the extent that any of the following NZ PIE
paragraphs are retained.

NZ291.147.1 prohibition on valuation services

1 XRB Al Application of the Accounting Standards Framework.
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NZ291.147.1 A firm shall not provide valuation services to an assurance client that is a public interest entity if the
valuations would have a material effect, separately or in the aggregate, on the subject matter information of an
assurance engagement.

NZ291.147.2 prohibition on certain IT services

NZ291.147.2 In the case of an assurance client that is a public interest entity, a firm shall not provide services involving
the design or implementation of IT systems that (a) form a significant part of the internal control over the subject matter
of the engagement or (b) generate information that is significant to the subject matter information on which the firm will
express an opinion.

NZ291.147.3 prohibition on certain recruiting services

NZ291.147.3  Afirm shall not provide the following recruiting services to an assurance client that is a public interest
entity with respect to a director or officer of the entity or senior management in a position to exert significant influence
over the subject matter or the preparation of the subject matter information on which the firm will express an opinion:

e Searching for or seeking out candidates for such positions; and
e Undertaking reference checks of prospective candidates for such positions.
NZ291.149.1 relative fees

NZ291.149.1 Where an assurance client is a public interest entity and for two consecutive years the total fees from
the client (subject to the considerations in paragraph 291.3) represent more than 15% of the total fees received by the
firm the firm shall disclose to those charged with governance of the assurance client the fact that the total of such fees
represents more than 15% of the total fees received by the firm and discuss which of the safeguards below it will apply
to reduce the threat to an acceptable level and apply the selected safeguard:

o Prior to the issuance of the second year’s opinion another assurance practitioner who is not a member of the
firm expressing the conclusion performs an engagement quality control review of that engagement (“a pre-
issuance review”); or

o After the second year’s opinion has been issued and before the issuance of the conclusion on the third year's
opinion another assurance practitioner who is not a member of the firm performs a review of the second year's
engagement that is equivalent to an engagement quality control review (“a post-issuance review”).

When the total fees significantly exceed 15%the firm shall determine whether the significance of the threat is such
that a post-issuance review would not reduce the threat to an acceptable level and therefore a pre-issuance review is
required. In such circumstances a pre-issuance review shall be performed.

Thereafter when the fees continue to exceed 15% each year the disclosure to and discussion with those charged with
governance shall occur and one of the above safeguards shall be applied. If the fees significantly exceed 15% the firm
shall determine whether the significance of the threat is such that a post-issuance review would not reduce the threat
to an acceptable level and therefore a pre-issuance review is required. In such circumstances a pre-issuance review
shall be performed.

NZ291.141.1-NZ291.141.15 (approved by the Board, February 2018)

NZ291.141.1 In respect of a recurring assurance engagement for a public interest entity, an individual shall not act
in any of the following roles, or a combination of such roles, for a period of more than seven cumulative years (the “time
on period”):

(@) The engagement partner;
(b) The individual appointed as responsible for the engagement quality control review; or
(c) Any other key assurance partner role.

After the time-on period, the individual shall serve a “cooling-off” period in accordance with the provisions in paragraphs
NZ291.141.3 - NZ291.141.10.
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NZ291.141.2 In calculating the time-on period, the count of years cannot be restarted unless the individual ceases
to act in any one of the above roles for a consecutive period equal to at least the cooling-off period determined in
accordance with paragraphs NZ291.141.3 to NZ291.141.5 as applicable to the role in which the individual served in
the year immediately before ceasing such involvement. For example, an individual who served as engagement partner
for four years followed by three years off can only act thereafter as a key audit partner on the same audit or review
engagement for three further years (making a total of seven cumulative years). Thereafter, that individual is required to
cool off in accordance with paragraph NZ291.141.6.

NZ291.141.3 If the individual acted as the engagement partner for seven cumulative years, the cooling-off period
shall be five consecutive years.

NZ291.1414  Where the individual has been appointed as responsible for the engagement quality control review
and has acted in that capacity for seven cumulative years, the cooling-off period shall be three consecutive years.

NZ291.141.5 If the individual has acted in any other capacity as a key assurance partner for seven cumulative
years, the cooling-off period shall be two consecutive years.

NZ291.141.6 If the individual acted in a combination of key assurance partner roles and served as the engagement
partner for four or more cumulative years, the cooling-off period shall be five consecutive years.

NZ291.141.7 If the individual acted in a combination of key assurance partner roles and served as the key
assurance partner responsible for the engagement quality control review for four or more cumulative years, the cooling-
off period shall, subject to paragraph NZ291.141.8(a), be three consecutive years.

NZ291.141.8 If an individual has acted in a combination of engagement partner and engagement quality control
review roles for four or more cumulative years during the time-on period, the cooling-off period shall be:

(@) Five consecutive years where the individual has been the engagement partner for three or more years; or
(b) Three consecutive years in the case of any other combination.

NZ291.141.9 If the individual acted in any other combination of key assurance partner roles, the cooling-off period
shall be two consecutive years.

NZ291.141.10  In determining the number of years that an individual has been a key assurance partner under
paragraphs NZ291.141.1 to NZ291.141.2, the length of the relationship shall, where relevant, include time while the
individual was a key assurance partner on that engagement at a prior firm.

NZ291.141.11  For the duration of the relevant cooling-off period, the individual shall not:
(a) Be a member of the engagement team or provide quality control for the assurance engagement;

(b) Consult with the engagement team or the client regarding technical or industry-specific issues, transactions
or events affecting the assurance engagement (other than discussions with the engagement team limited to
work undertaken or conclusions reached in the last year of the individual’s time-on period where this remains
relevant to the engagement);

(c) Beresponsible for leading or coordinating the firm’s professional services to the assurance client or overseeing
the firm’s relationship with the assurance client; or

(d) Undertake any other role or activity not referred to above with respect to the assurance client, including the
provision of non-assurance services, that would result in the individual:

i.  Having significant or frequent interaction with senior management or those charged with governance;
or

i.  Exerting directly influence on the outcome of the engagement.

The provisions of this paragraph are not intended to prevent the individual from assuming a leadership role in the firm,
such as that of the Senior or Managing Partner.
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NZ291.141.12  There may be situations where a firm, based on an evaluation of threats in accordance with the
general provisions above, concludes that it is not appropriate for an individual who is a key assurance partner to
continue in that role even though the length of time served as a key assurance partner is less than seven years. In
evaluating the threats, particular consideration shall be given to the roles undertaken and the length of the individual’s
association with the assurance engagement prior to an individual becoming a key assurance partner.

NZ291.141.13  Despite paragraphs NZ291.141.1-NZ291.141.9, key assurance partners whose continuity is
especially important to audit quality may, in rare cases due to unforeseen circumstances outside the firm’s control, and
with the concurrence of those charged with governance, be permitted to serve an additional year as a key assurance
partner as long as the threat to independence can be eliminated or reduced to an acceptable level by applying
safeguards. For example, a key assurance partner may remain in that role on the assurance team for up to one
additional year in circumstances where, due to unforeseen events, a required rotation was not possible, as might be
the case due to serious illness of the intended engagement partner. The firm shall discuss with those charged with
governance the reasons why the planned rotation cannot take place and the need for any safeguards to reduce any
threat created.

NZ291.141.14  When an assurance client becomes a public interest entity, the length of time the individual has
served the assurance client as a key assurance partner before the client becomes a public interest entity shall be taken
into account in determining the timing of the rotation. If the individual has served the assurance client as a key assurance
partner for a period of five cumulative years or less when the client becomes a public interest entity, the number of
years the individual may continue to serve the client in that capacity before rotating off the engagement is seven years
less the number of years already served. If the individual has served the assurance client as a key assurance partner
for a period of six or more cumulative years when the client becomes a public interest entity, the partner may continue
to serve in that capacity with the concurrence of those charged with governance for a maximum of two additional years
before rotating off the engagement.

NZ291.141.15  When a firm has only a few people with the necessary knowledge and experience to serve as a key
assurance partner on the assurance engagement of a public interest entity, rotation of key assurance partners may not
be an available safeguard. If an independent regulator in the relevant jurisdiction has provided an exemption from
partner rotation in such circumstances, an individual may remain a key assurance partner for more than seven years,
in accordance with such regulation, provided that the independent regulator has specified other requirements which
are to be applied, such as the length of time that the key assurance partner may be exempted from rotation or a regular
independent external review.

Rationale for the modification

The international standard is not n/a
consistent with NZ regulatory
arrangements.
OR
The international standard does not The NZAUASB is of the view that the threats to
reflect, or is not consistent with, principles | independence do not differ whether the subject matter of
and practices that are considered the engagement is financial statements or another subject
appropriate in NZ matter. The NZAuASB is of the view that these prohibitions

are appropriate for other assurance clients, if they are
public interest entities and that prohibiting such services in
these circumstances is appropriate to maintaining
independence, given the high level of interest in a public
interest entity.
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A. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard is not consistent
with New Zealand regulatory requirements.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the modification meets the

Principles of Convergence

criteria

The standard can be modified so as to
result in a standard the application of
which results in effective and efficient
compliance with the legal framework in
NZ.

n/a

The modification does not result in a
standard that conflicts with, or results in
lesser requirements than the international
standard.

n/a

B. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard does not reflect
principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the meets the criteria

Principles of Convergence

1. The application of the proposed
modification will result in
compliance with principles and
practices considered appropriate
by the NZAuASB

Based on a more informed understanding of the other
assurance market, the Subcommittee is of the view that
the NZAuASB'’s previously expressed view that threats to
independence do not differ whether the subject matter of
the engagement is financial statements or another subject
matter may no longer be conclusive.

The threats to independence in other assurance
engagements, will vary depending on not only the subject
matter but, for example, the purpose of the assurance;
what is important to the users. Accordingly, the principles
and practices considered appropriate for financial
statement assurance may not be the most appropriate for
other assurance engagements.

If a firm performs both an audit or review engagement and
an assurance engagement for the same client, the
requirements in Part 4A (previously section 290) continue

to apply?.

2. The proposed modification results
in a standard that is clear and
promotes consistent application
by all practitioners.

(For example, excluding options not
relevant in NZ and Australia )

Applying the same requirements across all assurance
services is clear and promotes consistent application across
all services. For those firms that perform only other
assurance engagements

However, establishing rules may distract the assurance
practitioner from complying with the principles of the
standard. In this regard the Subcommittee prefers the
principles based approach of the conceptual framework
that applies to all types of assurance engagement.

2 Restructured International Code, paragraph 900.13
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3. The proposed modification will
promote significant improvement
in audit quality in New Zealand

(With improvement in audit quality being
linked to one or more of the Applicable
elements in the IAASB’s Framework for
Audit Quality)

The mandate of the NZAuASB is to set auditing, assurance
and ethical standards for assurance practitioners
undertaking statutory assurance engagements. ISAE (NZ)
3000 (Revised) applies to assurance engagements other
than audits or reviews of historical financial information
and includes assurance over non-financial information

In revising the IESBA Code and establishing the PIE
requirements, the IESBA was responding to specific failings
in the audit market. There is no evidence to support that
there were the same failings in the other assurance
market.

The IESBA also noted that the requirements for other
assurance engagements are not as specific because of the
wide range of possible subject matters and subject matter
information.

The specific prohibitions identified are applicable to
financial statement audits. There is no evidence to support
that these same prohibitions are important to other types
of assurance engagement, for example, assurance over a
greenhouse gas statement which could be provided for a
range of reasons not associated with financial statements,
e.g., a marketing claim or as a basis for an internal
management process, e.g., a business case.

To understand what is important and what will affect
independence in other assurance engagements, we first
have to understand the purpose of the other assurance
engagement. Therefore, the Subcommittee is of the view
that for purposes of Part 4B the identified prohibitions do
not necessarily promote significant improvement in audit
quality. Rather, in accordance with the conceptual
framework, the assurance practitioner needs to identify,
evaluate and address threats to independence.

Reference is often made to the stricter requirements of
section 290. The Subcommittee notes that under both
section 290 and 291, the assurance practitioner is required
to be independent. Under both sections 290 and 291, the
assurance practitioner applies the threats and safeguards
approach in considering their independence. The stricter
requirements refer to the prohibitions (including rotation
requirements) that address the threats to independence
(self-review, familiarity) and, in particular, the appearance
of a lack of independence. With regard to other assurance
engagements, these same threats are addressed by the
conceptual framework — identifying, evaluating and
addressing threats.

The Subcommittee is concerned that the prohibitions do
not reflect the matters that are necessarily of importance
to the assurance practitioner and users of the assurance
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report in the other assurance space, and therefore has
concluded that the compelling reason test has not been
met with regard to promoting significant improvement in
assurance quality.

The relative benefits of
modification outweigh the cost
(with cost being compliance cost
and the cost of differing from the
international standard, and
benefit relating to audit quality).

No cost/benefit analysis has been performed, however, the
additional requirements in relation to prohibitions are not
expected to significantly increase costs.

There could be significant additional costs to both client
and assurance practitioner in applying the long association
provisions.

The assurance practitioner is required to be independent
and to apply the conceptual framework to identify,
evaluate and address the threats to independence.

The modification does not conflict
with or result in lesser
requirements than the
international standard.

The prohibitions are consistent with section 290 of the
standard.

The modification overall does not
result in the standard being overly
complex and confusing.

The modification does not result in the standard being
overly complex and confusing.

The assurance practitioner is required to comply with the
conceptual framework to identify, evaluate and address
threats to the independence.

Rather the Subcommittee is concerned that the
modifications may not be relevant to the subject matter
and consequently believes that the threats and safeguards
approach is more appropriate.

The modification does not
inadvertently change the meaning
of the international wording by
placing more onerous
requirements on a practitioner in
NZ than necessary to meet the
intent of the international
standard.

The modifications place more onerous requirements on a
practitioner in New Zealand than necessary to meet the
intent of the International Code. The specific prohibitions
may not be the matters that are of most importance in the
specific assurance engagement and may distract the
assurance practitioner from consideration of more relevant
matters.

Conclusion

For the reasons noted above, the Subcommittee is of the
view that the compelling reason test has not been met.




Moadification 2: Temporary Staff Assignments

Modification to the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Requirements)

Modification

Lending staff may create a self- review threat if that staff member is later involved in providing assurance over that
subject matter or that subject matter information. This guidance emphasizes that a self-review threat may arise,
regardless of whether the subject matter of the engagement is financial statements or not. It is not intended to be a
prohibition and will not apply where the role is not related to the subject matter of the assurance engagement.

The following paragraph included in extant PES 1 (Revised) will be included in the restructured Code.

NZ291.129.1 The lending of staff by a firm to an assurance client may create a self-review threat. This would be
the case when, for example, a member of the assurance team has to evaluate elements of the subject matter
information the member of the assurance team had prepared while with the client. Such assistance may be given, but
the firm’s personnel shall not be involved in:

e Providing non-assurance services that would not be permitted under this section; or

e Assuming management responsibilities in a position which would give the loaned staff significant influence
over the subject matter on which the firm will express an opinion.

In all circumstances, the assurance client shall be responsible for directing and supervising the activities of the loaned
staff.

The significance of any threat shall be evaluated and safeguards applied when necessary to eliminate the threat or
reduce it to an acceptable level. Examples of such safeguards include:

. Conducting an additional review of the work performed by the loaned staff;

. Not giving the loaned staff responsibility for any function or activity that the staff performed during the
temporary staff assignment; or

. Not including the loaned staff as a member of the assurance team.

Rationale for the modification

The international standard is not n/a
consistent with NZ regulatory
arrangements.
OR
The international standard does not This guidance, which is expanded guidance on the threats
reflect, or is not consistent with, principles | and safeguards approach, is as relevant to other assurance
and practices that are considered engagements as it is to audits and reviews and therefore
appropriate in NZ the addition promotes audit quality. The threats to
independence do not differ when the subject matter of the
engagements are financial statements or another subject
matter.

A. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard is not consistent
with New Zealand regulatory requirements.
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Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the modification meets the

Principles of Convergence

criteria

The standard can be modified so as to
result in a standard the application of
which results in effective and efficient
compliance with the legal framework in
NZ.

n/a

The modification does not result in a
standard that conflicts with, or results in
lesser requirements than the international
standard.

n/a

B. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard does not reflect
principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the modification meets the

Principles of Convergence

criteria

1. The application of the proposed
modification will result in
compliance with principles and
practices considered appropriate
by the NZAuASB

The view of the Board previously was that the additional
guidance is equally applicable to other assurance
engagements as it is to audits and reviews.

The threats to independence in other assurance
engagements, will vary depending on not only the subject
matter but, for example, the purpose of the assurance;
what is important to the users. Accordingly, the principles
and practices considered appropriate for financial
statement assurance may not be the most appropriate for
other assurance engagements.

The Subcommittee is of the view that application of the
conceptual framework to identify, evaluated and address
threats is appropriate and principles based.

2. The proposed modification results
in a standard that is clear and
promotes consistent application
by all practitioners.

(For example, excluding options not
relevant in NZ and Australia )

The modification provides additional guidance and
promotes consistency.

3. The proposed modification will
promote significant improvement
in audit/assurance quality in New
Zealand

(With improvement in audit quality being
linked to one or more of the Applicable
elements in the IAASB’s Framework for
Audit Quality)

This guidance emphasizes that a self-review threat may
arise, regardless of whether the subject matter of the
engagement is financial statements or not.

It is not intended to be a prohibition and will not apply
where the role is not related to the subject matter of the
assurance engagement. Under the conceptual framework,
when a threat to the fundamental principles is identified,
the assurance practitioner is required to evaluate the
threat and address the threat either by eliminating it or
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reducing it to an acceptable level. Accordingly, including
this requirement in the Code will have little effect on
audit/assurance quality as it is intended as guidance and is
consistent with the conceptual framework.

Accordingly, the Subcommittee is of the view that the
modification does not promote significant improvement in
audit quality.

4. The relative benefits of No cost/benefit analysis has been performed.
modification outweigh the cost
(with cost being compliance cost
and the cost of differing from the
international standard, and
benefit relating to audit quality).

5. The proposed modification does No
not conflict with or result in lesser
requirements than the
international standard.

6. The proposed modification The proposed modification reiterates requirements that
overall does not result in the are included in the Code.
standard being overly complex
and confusing.

7. The proposed modification does The modification does not place more onerous
not inadvertently change the requirements on the practitioner in New Zealand than is
meaning of the international necessary to meet the intent of the International Code.
wording by placing more onerous | Rather the modification reiterates requirements that are
requirements on a practitioner in | already included in the Code. The Subcommittee is of the
NZ than necessary to meet the view that applying the conceptual framework to identify,
intent of the international evaluate and address threats will achieve the same result.
standard.

Conclusion Compelling reason test not met. Under the conceptual

framework, there is unlikely to be any significant difference
in the identification, evaluation or addressing of threats.
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Moadification 3: Multiple threats to independence

Modification to the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Requirements)

The following two paragraphs are added to the Code to clarify the need for the assurance practitioner to
evaluate multiple threats to independence, which individually may not be significant, in aggregate.

NZ290.11.1 Where an assurance practitioner identifies multiple threats to independence, which
individually may not be significant, the assurance practitioner shall evaluate the significance of those
threats in aggregate and apply safeguards to eliminate or reduce them to an acceptable level in aggregate.

NZ291.10.1 Where an assurance practitioner identifies multiple threats to independence, which
individually may not be significant, the assurance practitioner shall evaluate the significance of those
threats in aggregate and apply safeguards to eliminate or reduce them to an acceptable level in aggregate.

This change in proposed in line with the NZAuASB’s harmonisation policy with the Australian Code.

Rationale for the modification

The international standard is not n/a
consistent with NZ regulatory
arrangements.
OR
The international standard does not The discussion on the conceptual framework at the start of
reflect, or is not consistent with, principles | section 290 has been relocated in the restructured
and practices that are considered International Code to Section 120 on the overall
appropriate in NZ conceptual framework elements. The restructured section

includes a reference to multiple threats® but it is not as
detailed as in the extant NZ paragraphs and is in a different
section to the Independence Standards. Therefore, we
propose to include the extant NZ paragraphs also in Part
4A and Part 4B (previously sections 290 and 291).

This paragraph is based on a similar addition proposed in
the Australian Code

A. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard is not consistent
with New Zealand regulatory requirements.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed Consideration whether the proposed modification meets
Principles of Convergence the criteria

The standard can be modified so as to n/a
result in a standard the application of
which results in effective and efficient

3 Paragraph 120.8 Al of the International Code states, “The consideration of qualitative as well as quantitative factors is
relevant in the assurance practitioner’s evaluation of threats, as is the combined effect of multiple threats, if applicable.”
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compliance with the legal framework in
NZ.

The modification does not result in a
standard that conflicts with, or results in
lesser requirements than the international
standard.

n/a

B. Consideration of Compelling reason criteria where the international standard does not reflect
principles and practices that are considered appropriate in New Zealand.

Compelling reason criteria as per agreed

Consideration whether the modification meets the

Principles of Convergence

criteria

1. The application of the proposed
modification will result in
compliance with principles and
practices considered appropriate
by the NZAuASB

The modification clarifies the intent of the International
Code.

2. The proposed modification results
in a standard that is clear and
promotes consistent application
by all practitioners.

(For example, excluding options not
relevant in NZ and Australia )

The restructured International Code, paragraph 120.8 Al
clarifies that the combined effect of multiple threats is
relevant. However, this discussion is included in the
conceptual framework and not the independence
standards, Part 4A and Part 4B (previously sections 290
and 291), and is less detailed than the extant NZ
paragraph.

3. The proposed modification will
promote significant improvement
in audit quality in New Zealand

(With improvement in audit quality being
linked to one or more of the Applicable
elements in the IAASB’s Framework for
Audit Quality)

The restructured International Code, paragraph 120.8 Al
clarifies that the combined effect of multiple threats is
relevant. However, its placement in the conceptual
framework is geographically disjointed from its application
which is in the independence standards, Part 4A and Part
4B (previously sections 290 and 291).

4. The relative benefits of
modification outweigh the cost
(with cost being compliance cost
and the cost of differing from the
international standard, and
benefit relating to audit quality).

No cost/benefit. Clarification of the intent of the Code.

5. The proposed modification does
not conflict with or result in lesser
requirements than the
international standard.

No. Clarification of the intent of the Code.

6. The proposed modification
overall does not result in the

No. Adds clarity to the Code.
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standard being overly complex
and confusing.

7. The proposed modification does No. Modification is consistent with the NZAuASB
not inadvertently change the harmonisation policy with the Australian Code.
meaning of the international
wording by placing more onerous
requirements on a practitioner in
NZ than necessary to meet the
intent of the international
standard.

Conclusion Compelling reason test met. The intent of the Code is
enhanced by the additional paragraphs.
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NZ AUDITING Agenda 3.2.6
AND ASSURANCE
STANDARDS BOARD

EXTERNAL REPORTING BOARD

Te Kawai Arahi Piirongo Méwaho

Assessment of the NZ PIE requirements in extant PES 1 (Revised), section 291

1.

The following analysis looks at each of the PIE compelling reason changes made to extant PES 1 (Revised). The table below provides the
initial assessment for the NZ specific paragraph and the Subcommittee’s reassessment.

The Subcommittee notes that the IESBA separated the independence provisions for audit and review engagements and other assurance
engagements in its revised Code issued in July 2009, in response to the loss in credibility in aspects of the financial reporting framework as
a result of several high profile corporate failures. At the same time, the IESBA extended the application of certain independence provisions
that previously applied only to the audits of listed entities to apply more broadly to audit or review engagements of public interest entities.

For purposes of this analysis:
e section 290 of PES 1 (Revised) = Part 4A of the restructured IESBA Code
e section 291 of PES 1 (Revised) = Part 4B of the restructured IESBA Code.

The Subcommittee has analysed these key differences to determine whether the compelling reasons to amend section 291 of extant PES 1
(Revised) to include the additional PIE requirements continues to be met.

Examples of engagements that are covered by Part 4B (previously section 291) include:

. Audit of specific elements, accounts or items of a financial statement

o Any direct reporting engagement: audit of effectiveness of internal controls, audit of controls at a service organisation
J Sustainability reports and EER

. Assurance over environmental performance for example, Greenhouse gas statements, GHG emissions, assurance on an emission
calculation or emission profile, environmental performance of a product

For an assurance engagement where the subject matter is any type of financial information included in an offer document, the
independence requirements of Part 4A (previously section 290) apply. Similarly, the assurance practitioner will need to consider the
provisions of Part 4A if a non-audit assurance engagement is performed for an audit or review client.
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Overview and assessment of NZ PIE requirements in extant PES 1 (Revised) for other assurance engagements

Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

Public interest
entity requirements

NZ291.3.1 Section 291 contains additional provisions that
reflect the extent of public interest in certain entities. For the
purpose of this section, public interest entities include entities
that have public accountability, are deemed to have public
accountability or are of economic significance. In New Zealand,
the following entities are deemed to be Public Interest Entities:

o Any entity that is required or opts to prepare financial
statements to comply with Tier 1 For-profit Accounting
Requirements or Tier 1 PBE Accounting Requirements
in accordance with XRB A1

This paragraph has been added to
section 291 as the NZAuASB has
replicated certain of the public interest
entity requirements in section 291 as
outlined below.

Whether this paragraph is retained will
depend on the Board’s decision whether
the compelling reason test has been met
and therefore whether to retain the
additional PIE requirements in Part 4B.

Wording to be updated to reflect the
revised definition of PIE, if retained.

NZ291.3.2 Firms are encouraged to determine whether to
treat additional entities, or certain categories of entities, as if they
were public interest entities because they have a large number
and wide range of stakeholders or represent a higher level of
risk. Factors to be considered include:

e The nature of the business, such as the holding of
assets in a fiduciary capacity for a large number of
stakeholders. Examples may include financial
institutions, such as banks and insurance companies,
and pension funds;

e Size;and

o  Number of employees

This paragraph has been added to
section 291 as the NZAuASB has
replicated certain of the public interest
entity requirements in section 291 as
outlined below.

Whether this paragraph is retained will
depend on the Board’s decision whether
the compelling reason test has been met
and therefore whether to retain the
additional PIE requirements in Part 4B.

NZ291.27.1 When the conditions set out in paragraphs 291.21

This exception has been added to

1 XRB Al Application of the Accounting Standards Framework.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

and 291.22 are met, it is not necessary to apply the additional
public interest entity requirements in paragraphs 291.112 to
291.157 that apply to assurance engagements for public interest
entities.

section 291 as the NZAuASB has
replicated certain of the public interest
entity requirements in section 291 as
outlined below.

Whether this paragraph is retained will
depend on the Board’s decision whether
the compelling reason test has been met
and therefore whether to retain the
additional PIE requirements in Part 4B.

Valuation services

NZ291.147.1 A firm shall not provide valuation services to an
assurance client that is a public interest entity if the valuations
would have a material effect, separately or in the aggregate, on
the subject matter information of an assurance engagement.

Staff have proposed to extend these
requirements to all entities in s290.
The self-review threat would be the
same for all assurance engagements
and staff believe that this gap should
be addressed in s291.

Staff do not see onerous costs
involved by adding this prohibition to
s291.

Recommendation: Add to s291.

[IESBA restructured Code R603.5]

This prohibition may be more likely to be
applicable in a financial statement
audit/review and therefore is appropriate
to include in section 290. Inclusion of this
specific prohibition in section 291 (new
Part 4B) does not reflect the wide range
of possible subject matters and subject
matter information likely in an other
assurance engagement.

The market for other assurance is still
developing. As the market matures it
may become appropriate for more
detailed guidance to be established.

The Subcommittee is of the view that
applying the conceptual framework to
identify, evaluate and address the
threats is an appropriate response.

Specifying certain prohibitions that may
not be significant to the assurance
practitioner’s consideration for a
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

particular engagement may detract the
assurance practitioner from considering
other situations that may be more
relevant.

IT systems services

NZ291.147.2 In the case of an assurance client that is a public
interest entity, a firm shall not provide services involving the
design or implementation of IT systems that (a) form a significant
part of the internal control over the subject matter of the
engagement or (b) generate information that is significant to the
subject matter information on which the firm will express an
opinion.

The risks would be the same for all
assurance engagements and staff
believe that the gap should be
addressed in s291.

Recommendation: Add to s291.

[IESBA restructured Code R606.5]

This prohibition is more likely to be
applicable in a financial statement
audit/review and therefore is appropriate
to include in section 290. Inclusion of this
specific prohibition in section 291 (new
Part 4B) does not reflect the wide range
of possible subject matters and subject
matter information likely in an other
assurance engagement.

The market for other assurance is still
developing. As the market matures it
may become appropriate for more
detailed guidance to be established.

The Subcommittee is of the view that
applying the conceptual framework to
identify, evaluate and address the
threats is an appropriate response.

Specifying certain prohibitions that may
not be significant to the assurance
practitioner’s consideration for a
particular engagement may detract the
assurance practitioner from considering
other situations that may be more
relevant.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

Recruiting services

NZ291.147.3 A firm shall not provide the following recruiting
services to an assurance client that is a public interest entity with
respect to a director or officer of the entity or senior management
in a position to exert significant influence over the subject matter
or the preparation of the subject matter information on which the
firm will express an opinion:

e Searching for or seeking out candidates for such
positions; and

o Undertaking reference checks of
candidates for such positions.

prospective

If the firm has played a significant role
in recruiting the client's employee in a
position to exert influence over the
preparation of the subject matter on
which the firm is to provide an opinion,
the same risk exists for other
assurance engagements. There is a
gap in 291 and staff recommend that
this should be filled.

Recommendation: Add to s291

[IESBA restructured Code R609.7]

This prohibition is more likely to be
applicable in a financial statement
audit/review and therefore is appropriate
to include in section 290. Inclusion of this
specific prohibition does not reflect the
wide range of possible subject matters
and subject matter information likely in
an other assurance engagement.

The market for other assurance is still
developing. As the market matures it
may become appropriate for more
detailed guidance to be established.

The Subcommittee is of the view that
applying the conceptual framework to
identify, evaluate and address the
threats is an appropriate response.

Specifying certain prohibitions that may
not be significant to the assurance
practitioner’s consideration for a
particular engagement may detract the
assurance practitioner from considering
other situations that may be more
relevant.

[Note to the Board: this particular
provision is no longer applicable only to
PIEs in the IESBA restructured Code. As
such, does the Board still believe that it
is a compelling reason change?]

199434.1




Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

Fees - relative size

NZ291.149.1 Where an assurance client is a public interest
entity and for two consecutive years the total fees from the client
(subject to the considerations in paragraph 291.3) represent
more than 15% of the total fees received by the firm the firm
shall disclose to those charged with governance of the
assurance client the fact that the total of such fees represents
more than 15% of the total fees received by the firm and discuss
which of the safeguards below it will apply to reduce the threat to
an acceptable level and apply the selected safeguard:

e Prior to the issuance of the second year's opinion
another assurance practitioner who is not a member of
the firm expressing the conclusion performs an
engagement quality control review of that engagement
(“a pre-issuance review”); or

o After the second year's opinion has been issued and
before the issuance of the conclusion on the third year's
opinion another assurance practitioner who is not a
member of the firm performs a review of the second
year's engagement that is equivalent to an engagement
quality control review (“a post-issuance review”).

When the total fees significantly exceed 15%the firm shall
determine whether the significance of the threat is such that a
post-issuance review would not reduce the threat to an
acceptable level and therefore a pre-issuance review is required.
In such circumstances a pre-issuance review shall be performed.

Thereafter when the fees continue to exceed 15% each year the
disclosure to and discussion with those charged with governance
shall occur and one of the above safeguards shall be applied. If
the fees significantly exceed 15% the firm shall determine
whether the significance of the threat is such that a post-
issuance review would not reduce the threat to an acceptable

There is a gap in s291. This is a risk
that applies equally to all types of
assurance engagements. In practical
terms however, staff believe that all
such clients will be audit clients of the
firm too, but consider that the risk
should be covered in s291.

Recommendation: Add to s291

[IESBA restructured Code R410.4]

The initial assessment notes there is
likely to be little impact from including
this provision as clients are likely to be
audit clients of the firm, in which case
Part 4A will apply.

In compliance with the Code, the
practitioner would apply the conceptual
framework. To the extent that fees from
one client is identified as a threat, the
assurance practitioner is required to
evaluate that threat and address the
threat by eliminating or reducing it to an
acceptable level.

The Subcommittee is of the view that
such a requirement is unlikely to lead to
a significant improvement in audit quality
(as the conceptual framework applies)
and therefore the compelling reason test
has not been met.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

level and therefore a pre-issuance review is required. In such
circumstances a pre-issuance review shall be performed.

Long association
(PIE)

NZ291.141.1 In respect of a recurring assurance
engagement for a public interest entity, an individual shall not act
in any of the following roles, or a combination of such roles, for a
period of more than seven cumulative years (the ‘time on
period”):

(@) The engagement partner;

(b) The individual appointed as responsible for the
engagement quality control review; or

(c) Any other key assurance partner role.

After the time-on period, the individual shall serve a “cooling-off”
period in accordance with the provisions in paragraphs
NZ291.141.3 - NZ291.141.10.

NZ291.141.2  In calculating the time-on period, the count of
years cannot be restarted unless the individual ceases to act in
any one of the above roles for a consecutive period equal to at
least the cooling-off period determined in accordance with
paragraphs NZ291.141.3 to NZ291.141.5 as applicable to the
role in which the individual served in the year immediately before
ceasing such involvement. For example, an individual who
served as engagement partner for four years followed by three
years off can only act thereafter as a key audit partner on the
same audit or review engagement for three further years
(making a total of seven cumulative years). Thereafter, that
individual is required to cool off in accordance with paragraph
NZ291.141.6.

NZ291.141.3 If the individual acted as the engagement

If the firm has been providing this
service for 7 consecutive years, the
familiarity threat would be equally
relevant in other assurance
engagements.

Recommendation: Add to s291

IESBA restructured Code section 540]

In line with its previous view that the
threats to independence do not differ
whether the subject matter of the
engagement is financial statements or
another subject matter, the Board
determined that the revised PIE long
association provisions for audit and
review engagements should also be
applicable to other assurance
engagements. The final approved long
association provisions are reflected in
the column “extant PES 1 (Revised)”.

At the time of approving these
amendments, the Board did not
reconsider whether those compelling
reasons are still met.

The basis for conclusions notes that
while stakeholders agreed that
conceptually the independence
requirements should be the same for all
assurance engagements, some
questioned whether the compelling
reason test is still met, given the impact
of the long association changes, and the
majority were opposed to applying those
changes across the board.

As noted in the introductory section, the

199434.1




Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

partner for seven cumulative years, the cooling-off period shall
be five consecutive years.

NZ291.1414  Where the individual has been appointed as
responsible for the engagement quality control review and has
acted in that capacity for seven cumulative years, the cooling-off
period shall be three consecutive years.

NZ291.141.5 If the individual has acted in any other capacity
as a key assurance partner for seven cumulative years, the
cooling-off period shall be two consecutive years.

NZ291.141.6 If the individual acted in a combination of key
assurance partner roles and served as the engagement partner
for four or more cumulative years, the cooling-off period shall be
five consecutive years.

NZ291.141.7 If the individual acted in a combination of key
assurance partner roles and served as the key assurance
partner responsible for the engagement quality control review for
four or more cumulative years, the cooling-off period shall,
subject to paragraph NZ291.141.8(a), be three consecutive
years.

NZ291.141.8  If an individual has acted in a combination of
engagement partner and engagement quality control review
roles for four or more cumulative years during the time-on
period, the cooling-off period shall be:

(@) Five consecutive years where the individual has been
the engagement partner for three or more years; or

(b) Three consecutive years in the case of any other
combination.

stricter independence requirements were
introduced to the International Code by
the IESBA in response to the loss in
credibility of financial statements due to
several high profile corporate/audit
failures. The subcommittee notes that
such failures related to audits of public
entities. There is no evidence to suggest
that the same failings existed in other
assurance engagements.

The familiarity threat or self-interest
threat that is created by long service with
a client is addressed by the conceptual
framework. The assurance practitioner is
required to identity, evaluate and
address the threat. To the extent that
threat can only be addressed by rotating
the assurance practitioner off the
engagement team, the firm is required to
determine the appropriate time off
period, which is required to be of
sufficient duration to address the
familiarity or self-interest threat.

Given the following:

o The developing nature of the
other assurance market;

e The wide range of possible
subject matters and subject
matter information; and

e The possibility that the PIE will
also be an audit/review client,
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

NZ291.141.9 If the individual acted in any other combination
of key assurance partner roles, the cooling-off period shall be
two consecutive years.

NZ291.141.10  In determining the number of years that an
individual has been a key assurance partner under paragraphs
NZ291.141.1 to NZ291.141.2, the length of the relationship shall,
where relevant, include time while the individual was a key
assurance partner on that engagement at a prior firm.

NZ291.141.11  For the duration of the relevant cooling-off
period, the individual shall not:

(@) Be a member of the engagement team or provide
quality control for the assurance engagement;

(b) Consult with the engagement team or the client
regarding technical or industry-specific issues,
transactions or events affecting the assurance
engagement (other than discussions with the
engagement team limited to work undertaken or
conclusions reached in the last year of the individual's
time-on period where this remains relevant to the
engagement);

(c) Be responsible for leading or coordinating the firm’s
professional services to the assurance client or
overseeing the firm’s relationship with the assurance
client; or

(d) Undertake any other role or activity not referred to
above with respect to the assurance client, including
the provision of non-assurance services, that would
result in the individual:

and that the assurance
practitioner/firm will therefore
be subject to Part 4A of the
Code

the Subcommittee is of the view that the
imposing the stricter PIE provisions on
other assurance engagements is unlikely
to significantly improve audit quality
beyond what would be achieved by
applying the conceptual framework.

The threat of familiarity due to long
association tends to be stronger when
the subject matter is the same from year
to year, such as is the case in an
audit/review engagement. The nature of
other assurance engagements is that
they may be infrequent, involve different
subject matter from engagement to
engagement.

The Subcommittee also notes, that
consideration of the provisions of Part
4A (previously section 290) is necessary
if the assurance practitioner is engaged
to perform a non-audit/review assurance
engagement for an audit or review client.

Accordingly, the Subcommittee is of the
view that the compelling reason test has
not been and that the PIE requirements
should not be applied to Part 4B
(previously section 291). Rather the
Subcommittee is of the view that the

199434.1




Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

i.  Having significant or frequent interaction with
senior management or those charged with
governance; or

ii.  Exerting directly influence on the outcome of
the engagement.

The provisions of this paragraph are not intended to prevent the
individual from assuming a leadership role in the firm, such as
that of the Senior or Managing Partner.

NZ291.141.12  There may be situations where a firm, based
on an evaluation of threats in accordance with the general
provisions above, concludes that it is not appropriate for an
individual who is a key assurance partner to continue in that role
even though the length of time served as a key assurance
partner is less than seven years. In evaluating the threats,
particular consideration shall be given to the roles undertaken
and the length of the individual’s association with the assurance
engagement prior to an individual becoming a key assurance
partner.

NZ291.141.13  Despite paragraphs NZ291.141.1-
NZ291.141.9, key assurance partners whose continuity is
especially important to audit quality may, in rare cases due to
unforeseen circumstances outside the firm's control, and with the
concurrence of those charged with governance, be permitted to
serve an additional year as a key assurance partner as long as
the threat to independence can be eliminated or reduced to an
acceptable level by applying safeguards. For example, a key
assurance partner may remain in that role on the assurance
team for up to one additional year in circumstances where, due
to unforeseen events, a required rotation was not possible, as
might be the case due to serious illness of the intended

conceptual framework is sufficient to
address the threats to independence.
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

engagement partner. The firm shall discuss with those charged
with governance the reasons why the planned rotation cannot
take place and the need for any safeguards to reduce any threat
created.

NZ291.141.14  When an assurance client becomes a public
interest entity, the length of time the individual has served the
assurance client as a key assurance partner before the client
becomes a public interest entity shall be taken into account in
determining the timing of the rotation. If the individual has served
the assurance client as a key assurance partner for a period of
five cumulative years or less when the client becomes a public
interest entity, the number of years the individual may continue
to serve the client in that capacity before rotating off the
engagement is seven years less the number of years already
served. If the individual has served the assurance client as a key
assurance partner for a period of six or more cumulative years
when the client becomes a public interest entity, the partner may
continue to serve in that capacity with the concurrence of those
charged with governance for a maximum of two additional years
before rotating off the engagement.

NZ291.141.15  When a firm has only a few people with the
necessary knowledge and experience to serve as a key
assurance partner on the assurance engagement of a public
interest entity, rotation of key assurance partners may not be an
available safeguard. If an independent regulator in the relevant
jurisdiction has provided an exemption from partner rotation in
such circumstances, an individual may remain a key assurance
partner for more than seven years, in accordance with such
regulation, provided that the independent regulator has specified
other requirements which are to be applied, such as the length of
time that the key assurance partner may be exempted from

199434.1
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Extant PES 1 (Revised)

Initial Assessment

Sub-Committee Re-assessment

rotation or a regular independent external review.
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Te Kawai Arahi Piirongo Mawaho

NZAUASB Board Meeting Summary Paper

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1

Meeting date: 6 June 2018

Subject: NZAUASB Strategic Action Plan 2017/2018 Update

Prepared by: Sylvia van Dyk

Date: 24 May 2018

I:I Action Required X | For Information Purposes Only

Agenda Item Objectives

For the Board to:

o NOTE the update on specific actions undertaken on the NZAuASB Strategic Action Plan,
as noted in the 2017/18 Implementation Plan for the period 1 July 2017 to 31 May 2018.

Background

1. Atits September 2017 meeting the NZAuASB approved the NZAUuASB Strategic Action Plan
for the 2017-22 period, and the 2017/18 Implementation Plan.

2. At the February 2018 meeting the Board noted the update on specific actions undertaken for
the period 1 July 2017 to 31 January 2018. The Board also requested changes to some of the
text in the 2017/18 Implementation Plan.

3. We have now included the actual actions against the planned actions for the year to date at
agenda item 4.2. We have marked up the amendments, since the previous update we
presented to the Board, as underlined or deleted text.

Recommendations

4. We recommend that the Board:

¢ NOTE the progress against the NZAuASB Strategic Action Plan for the period 1 July
2017 to 31 May 2018.

Material Presented

Agenda item 4.1 Board Meeting Summary Paper
Agenda item 4.2 NZAUASB Strategic Action Plan 2017/18 Update




Key:
Green - ongoing activity and on track
- action is work in progress and on track

Red - no action taken

NZAuASB Action 1A.1:

Contributing to International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Due Process

Timing

2017/18 Planned Actions

2017 /18 Actual Actions

The NZAuASB will actively contribute to the “due process” activities of the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) and the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA). These activities relate to the development or amendment of international standards.

The Action will comprise:

a. Ensuring assurance practitioners and relevant
users of assurance reports are aware of IAASB
and IESBA due process documents and
encouraging them to make submissions directly
to the international boards and to the NZAuASB;

b. Responding, as appropriate, to IAASB and IESBA
due process documents (consultation documents,
discussion papers and exposure drafts) and doing
so in conjunction with the Australian Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board (AUASB) and

Ongoing

e Issue communiques
when international
documents issued

e Organise consultation
events as appropriate

Communiques issued to highlight consultation
documents:

e Prepare comment
letters

e Liaise with AUASB in
accordance with

Submissions provided to the following
international Boards on the following topics:

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
199531.1




Australian Accounting and Professional Ethical
Standards Board (APESB) where appropriate;

established protocol
before letters finalised

Liaise with APESB to the
extent considered
appropriate in each case

c. Participating, as appropriate, in roundtables and
other face-to-face due process related meetings
organised by the international boards.

Participate in events in
NZ or Australia (or
elsewhere on an
exceptional basis)

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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NZAuASB Action 1A.2:

Maintaining New Zealand Auditing and
Assurance Standards

Timing

2017 /18 Planned Actions

2017 /18 Actual Actions

The Action will comprise:

The NZAuASB will amend the auditing and assurance standards (auditing standards, review engagement standards, other assurance standards) to
ensure that the existing suites of standards are maintained on an on-going basis.

a. Incorporating any auditing and assurance
standards, or amendments to those standards,
issued by the IAASB, to achieve convergence,
and including working with the AUASB to ensure
any changes are appropriately harmonised; and

b. Incorporating any professional and ethical
standards for assurance practitioners, or
amendments to those standards, issued by
IESBA, including liaising with the APESB to
ensure any changes are appropriately
harmonised.

Ongoing

Amend standards
following due process as
documents issued by
IAASB

Liaise with AUASB in
accordance with
harmonisation process
protocol

The following standards/guidance were
approved and issued to NZ constituents
following due process:

Amend standards
following due process as
documents issued by
IESBA

Interact with APESB staff
and Chair as appropriate

e  Observe some APESB

meetings to build
relationships with staff
and the Board

Agree a communications
protocol with the APESB

Develop harmonisation
process protocol with
APESB

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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e Apply APESB
harmonisation protocol

c. Respond as appropriate to any gaps /issues e Develop an appropriate .
identified with the current suite of standards response where such
identified matters are identified.
NZAuASB Action 1A.3: Timing | 2017/18 Planned Actions 2017 /18 Actual Actions

Monitoring the Assurance Environment

The NZAuASB will monitor the wider assurance environment and consider the implications of any developing issues for New Zealand auditing and
assurance standards.

The Action will comprise:

a. Monitoring issues arising from the Ongoing | ¢ Passive monitoring via
implementation of the current suite of standards media, public sources,
and responding as appropriate; and relationship contacts

e Monitor modified auditor
reports and report half
yearly to Board

b. Monitoring issues or gaps with the current suite Ongoing | 4 Take action as
of standards and responding as appropriate. appropriate as matters

arise during the year

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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c. Tracking local and international research projects | Ongoing Monitor projects
and considering the implications for the New
Zealand auditing and assurance standards;

d. Monitoring results from QA reviews conducted Ongoing Director continue to attendanee-participation
locally and internationally and considering the ebserve-participate at , and reporting
implications for New Zealand auditing and FMA Audit Oversight to the Board as necessary
assurance standards; Committee meetings_and

report as necessary to
the Board

Analyse results of QA
reviews for standards
issues.

Liaise with FMA on
reviews conducted.
Report summary of QA
findings to Board on
quarterly basis

e. Contributing to government policy work relating Ongoing Interact with MBIE and

to auditing and assurance and other related
services standards

other agencies as
requested by them, or as
identified as necessary

f.  Building relationships and liaising with other
relevant NSSs on matters of mutual interests

Consider matters raised
at NSS meetings and take
appropriate actions if any
implications for NZ
standards

Interact with APESB at
NSS meetings and at
least annually through

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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Chair-Chair and senior
staff level contact

Have 6-monthly phone
catch up with Canadian
ethics NSS chair.

Follow up NSS meeting
contacts as appropriate

NZAuASB Action 1B.2:

Developing an Assurance Standard on the
Examination of Prospective financial
information

Timing

2017/18 Planned Actions

2017 /18 Actual Actions

This action will comprise:

The NZAuASB will develop an assurance standard for other assurance engagements involving the examination of prospective financial information.

Standard on Auditing Service Performance
Information

Developing the standard in accordance with the due Commence | ¢ Approve project plan and
process for domestic standards, ensuring 2017/18 Commence development
harmonisation with the AUASB standard as of standard in
appropriate. Complete accordance with the
2018/19 agreed project plan
NZAuASB Action 1B.3: Developing an Auditing Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017/18 Actual Actions

The Action will comprise:

The NZAuASB will develop an auditing standard on auditing service performance for Public Benefit Entities (PBEs).

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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Developing the standard in accordance with the due Whole e Develop SSP audit
process for domestic standards and in collaboration year standard for exposure
with the AUASB as appropriate. September 2017
« Issue standard Consideration of all comments and review
of marked draft June 2017 (refer agenda 5)
NZAuASB Action 1B.5: Developing guidance on Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017/18 Actual Actions

the use of the XRB auditing and assurance
standards and relative assurance products

The NZAuASB will develop guidance that explain the difference between reasonable and limited assurance, as well as various assurance products that
are available, and relevant standards to use, how to deal with unclear assurance requirements, and the correct terminology to use when setting

assurance requirements in legislation and/or policies.

The action will comprise:

Developing appropriate guidance. Whole e Complete guidance for
year. policy makers and
legislators by 30 Dec
2017
e Develop further guidance
in accordance with the
approved project plan.
e Include guidance on
website
e Promote the guidance
NZAuASB Action 1B.6: Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions 2017 /18 Actual Actions

Developing a review standard on reviewing
service performance information

The NZAuASB will develop a review standard on reviewing service performance information for Public Benefit Entities (PBEs)

The action will comprise:

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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Developing the standard in accordance with the due Commence | ¢ Approve project plan and Yet to commence.
process for domestic standards and in collaboration 2 half commence development
with the AUASB as appropriate. 2037'18 of the engagement
28m lete standard in accordance
2015_19 with the agreed project
plan.
NZAuASB Action 1B.7: Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017/18 Actual Actions

Developing an engagement standard/guidance
for smaller NFPs

The NZAuASB will develop an engagement standard/qguidance for smaller NFPs not required to have an audit or a review to better meet the needs of

users, as informed by research completed in 2016-17.

The action will comprise:

Developing the standard/guidance in accordance Commence | ¢ Approve project plan and Yet to commence.
with the due process for domestic standards and in 2" half of commence development
collaboration with the AUASB as appropriate. 2017-2018 of the engagement
and standard/guidance in
complete accordance with the
in 2018- agreed project plan
2019
NZAuASB Action 1B.9: Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017/18 Actual Actions

Developing guidance or amending NZ SRE 2410
Review of Financial Statements Performed by
the Independent Auditor of the Entity

The NZAuASB will consider developing guidance or amending NZ SRE 2410 for the new auditor reporting requirements.

This action will comprise:

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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Deciding whether to amend the standard or to only Whole e Consider issues paper Yet to commence.
develop guidance, similar to guidance developed by year. and decide whether to
the AUASB. amend the standard, or

to develop guidance.
Amending the standard in accordance with the due

process for domestic standards or developing
guidance similar to the AUASB guidance.

e Approve the project plan
and amend the standard
and/or develop the
guidance in accordance
with the approved
project plan

NZAuASB Action 1B.10: Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions 2017 /18 Actual Actions

Consider developing guidance for Audit
Committees, similar to the audit committee
practice guide recently issued in Australia.

The NZAuASB will consider whether to develop guidance for Audit Committees, similar to the guidance recently issued in Australia.

This action will comprise:

Consider the guidance for Audit Committees recently | Commence | ¢ Consider issues paper To consider issues paper (refer agenda item 6,
published in Australia, and decide whether to 2nd half of and decide whether to June 2018)
develop similar guidance in New Zealand, in 2017-2018 develop similar guidance
collaboration with other parties. and for New Zealand.
complete .
2019 !

approve the project plan.

e Develop the guidance in
accordance with the
approved project plan.

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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NZAuASB Action 2.1 Researching Assurance Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017/18 Actual Actions
Needs of Users of Non-Public Interest Entities
Reports

The NZAuASB will research the assurance needs of users of assurance reports for entities that are not public interest entities (non-PIEs). The result of
the research will be used as input into a future review of whether users’ needs are appropriately met by the less stringent requirements for assurance for
non-PIEs.

This Action is an outsourced XRB Combined project and comprises:

a. Identifying the types of entities that make up the | Completed
non-PIE population

b. A literature review on user assurance needs for Completed
those types of entities

c. An empirically-based analysis of the users of to e To consider research
assurance reports of those types of entities and complete findings and
their assurance needs 1st half recommendations
2017/18
NZAuASB Action 2.2: Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017 /18 Actual Actions

Obtaining a better understanding about the
integrity of the application of ISAE (NZ)
3000(Revised)

The NZAUASB will complete its research to seek information about to what extent and how the XRB standards on assurance engagements are applied by
assurance practitioners (including non-accountants) performing other assurance engagements in New Zealand. The results of the research will be used
as a basis for considering enhancements to the NZAuASB’s standards in the future, and to help inform efforts to influence the work of the international
setting boards.

The action comprises:

a. Identifying the types of assurance engagements Completed
other than audits and reviews, assurance 2016/17.
practitioners conduct in New Zealand in

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18 10
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accordance with or with reference to the XRB
assurance standards

b. Analysing to what extent and how the XRB To e To consider research o
assurance standards are applied, and whether complete findings and
they adequately address the assurance 1st half of recommendations
requirements. 2017/18.
NZAuASB Action 3.1: Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017/18 Actual Actions

Building Relationships with the IAASB

The NZAuASB will seek to build and maintain relationships with IAASB members and staff.

The Action will comprise:

a.

Attending relevant meetings and events (including
National Standard Setters meetings);

Ongoing

e Director to attend IAASB
meetings as Technical
Advisor (TA) to Lyn
Provost

e Chair to observe IAASB
meetings in conjunction
with NSS meeting or
otherwise as appropriate

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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b. Taking opportunities to meet with IAASB members e Interact with key staff .

and staff; and Chair as appropriate
c. Fostering relationships with Australasian e Support Lyn Provost as .
representatives on the IAASB and those who are IAASB member (see
involved in relevant working groups; 3,3) and interact
regularly with Fiona
Campbell at IAASB .

meetings and on specific
topics as required

e Work with AUASB at
chair and staff level to
influence international
agenda.

e Explore possibility of
Regional NSS meetings

d. Hosting IAASB members and staff in visits to New e Host IAASB members
Zealand as appropriate. and staff as appropriate
NZAuASB Action 3.2: Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017/18 Actual Actions

Increasing the International Visibility of the
NZAuASB

The NZAuASB will take advantage of opportunities to increase its visibility in the international arena so as to illustrate its ability to contribute to the work
of the IAASB in a constructive and high quality way.

The Action will comprise:

a. Volunteering to present at the NSS meetings on Ongoing e Identify possible topicto | e
New Zealand projects or with the AUASB on joint present on at NSS in
projects; and Nev May 2018
NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18 12
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b.

Identifying an appropriate, mutually beneficial
IAASB project and contributing technical resources
in support of that project.

Ongoing

Follow up discussions
initiated with IAASB to
support EER project.

Contribute resources to
other mutual beneficial
projects as opportunities
arise, for example AUPs
and scalability of ISAs
for SMEs

NZAuASB Action 3.3:

Supporting Lyn Provost in her role as IAASB
member

Timing

2017/18 Planned Actions

2017 /18 Actual Actions

The NZAuASB will provide support to Lyn Provost in her role as IAASB member.

The Action will comprise:

Providing support to Lyn Provost

Ongoing

Director to attend IAASB
meetings as Technical
Advisor (TA) to Lyn
Provost

Invite Lyn Provost to
Board meetings

Establish Technical

Advisory Group and
arrange meetings to
receive input before
each IAASB meeting

Arrange high-level
discussions between Lyn
Provost and NZAuASB
when appropriate (for
example, at the outset

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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of the response process
on ISA 315 review).

NZAuASB Action 3.4:

Building Relationships with the IESBA

Timing

2017/18 Planned Actions

2017 /18 Actual Actions

The NZAuASB will seek to build relationships with IESBA members and staff.

The Action will comprise:

a. Attending relevant meetings and events (including
NSS meetings);

Ongoing

b. Taking opportunities to meet with IESBA members
and staff; and

c. Fostering relationships with Australian
representatives on the IESBA.

Senior Project Manager
to attend IESBA meeting
in Dec 2017

Chair to observe IESBA
meetings in conjunction
with NSS meeting or
otherwise as appropriate

Interact with key staff
and Chair as appropriate

Secondment of Senior
Project Manager to
IESBA during Dec and
January.

Build relationship with
Australian IESBA
member - Invite to a
NZAuASB meeting.

NZAuASB Action 4.1:

Enhancing Auditing and Assurance Standards
Due Process Consultation

Timing

2017/18 Planned Actions

2017 /18 Actual Actions

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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The NZAuASB will seek to enhance consultation with major assurance practitioners and user constituent groups on specific issues relating to the

auditing and assurance standards, especially consultation relating to due process documents.

The Action will comprise:

a. Identifying and implementing innovative,
targeted consultation methods that are high
value-added but relatively low-effort from the
constituents’ point of view; and

b. Proactively engaging with relevant constituent
groups about specific technical issues or matters
being considered domestically or internationally.

Ongoing

Continue current due
process engagement
methods

Develop new
communications &
engagement approach
that reflects different
target groups

Implement the XRB’s
communication strategy
for social media when
developed.

Present updates on
Auditing and Assurance
standards to accounting,
auditing, legal, and
director community
audiences

Promote other Topics as
arise

Identify and engage
with relevant groups
about major new
exposure drafts and
standards.

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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NZAuASB Action 4.2: Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017 /18 Actual Actions

Undertaking On-Going Dialogue with Auditing
and Assurance Standards Constituent Groups

The NZAuASB will undertake an on-going dialogue with relevant constituent groups across all sectors on general matters relating to auditing &
assurance standards, including changes resulting from the evolving nature of the audit market.

The Action will comprise:

a. Meeting with major constituent groups on a Ongoing e Organise regular .
rolling basis as part of the NZAuASB’s regular meetings
meetings; e To target: .
- practitioners from
firms

- IoD representatives
- NZX representatives
- FMA representatives

b. Taking opportunities to meet with major Ongoing ¢ Organise seminars &
constituent groups in other fora, including at round tables
events hosted by those groups; and «  Attend other fora

e Attend mid-tier forum

c. Maintaining strong working relationships at the Ongoing e Built relationships with o
operational level with key constituent groups. key groups identified.
NZAuASB Action 4.3: Timing 2017 /18 Planned Actions | 2017 /18 Actual Actions

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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Improving Engagement Relating to Other
Assurance Reports

The NZAuASB will seek to improve its engagement with assurance practitioners and (particularly) users of Other Assurance Reports (i.e. assurance
engagements other than audits and reviews of historical financial statements).

The Action will comprise:

a. Developing and maintaining a constituency Ongoing e Maintain database o
database identifying these users and assurance
practitioners;

b. Specifically targeting this group when consulting Whole of e Run targeted
about relevant standards using customised year communications where
communication approaches. relevant
NZAuASB Action 4.4: Timing 2017/18 Planned Actions | 2017 /18 Actual Actions

Improving Engagement with Small Assurance
Practitioners

The NZAuASB will seek to improve its engagement with assurance practitioners that are small firms and sole practitioners.

The Action will comprise:

a. Developing and maintaining a constituency Ongoing e Maintain database .
database identifying these assurance
practitioners;

b. Specifically targeting this group when consulting Ongoing e Run targeted .
about relevant standards using customised communications where
communication approaches. relevant, for example

webinars, speaking o

opportunities at SMP’s
in-house training,
surveys.

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
199531.1



e Liaise with professional .
bodies and raise
awareness at special
interest group meetings. | o

e Run targeted
communications on the
proposed changes to
ISQC1.

NZAuASB Action 4.5: Timing 2017 /18 Planned Actions | 2017 /18 Actual Actions

Promoting Understanding of Other Assurance
Engagements

The NZAuASB will undertake activities to promote an increased understanding of the requirements of Other Assurance Standards and the
engagements they apply to.

The Action will comprise:

Conducting seminars, presentations, speaking e Promote guidance
engagements and other awareness raising activities developed on the

as appropriate that inform assurance practitioners Compliance

and users about what comprises Other Assurance Engagement Standard
engagements and the standards that apply to those

e Prepare “Fact
Sheet”/Guidance on
other assurance
engagements

engagements.

e Speaking engagements
as opportunities arise

e Targeted meetings with
users

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
199531.1

18



NZAuASB Action 4.6: Promoting Greater Timing 2017 /18 Planned Actions | 2017 /18 Actual Actions
Understanding of the Purpose of Audits and
Reviews

The NZAuASB will undertake activities to promote an increased understanding by assurance users of the purpose of audit and review engagements

This Action will comprise:

a. Actively encourage, facilitate and support other Ongoing e Liaise with Charity .
relevant organisations to help them educate their Services, CAANZ, CPA,
members on the purpose of audit and review; and IoD, RBNZ, Law Society.

b. Conducting seminars, presentations, speaking Ongoing e Speaking engagements
engagements and other awareness raising as opportunities arise .

activities as appropriate to help raise awareness of
assurance users and those charged with
governance in the general constituency about the
purpose of audit and review engagements, with a e XRBrief article
particular emphasis on the NFP sector.

e Second journal Article
for LawTalk

e Publish and Promote
guidance developed

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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NZAuASB Action 4.7:

Promoting Understanding of the New Auditor
Reporting Requirements

Timing

2017/18 Planned Actions

2017 /18 Actual Actions

The NZAuASB will undertake activities to promote an understanding of the IAASB’s new auditor reporting requirements as they apply to New Zealand

reporting entities.

The Action will comprise:

a. Actively encourage, facilitate and support other Whole of e Liaise with FMA, IoD, .
relevant organisations where appropriate to help year INFINZ, CAANZ (N2Z),
them ensure their members understand the new CPA, RBNZ and others.
auditor reporting requirements; and
b. Conducting seminars, presentations, speaking e Speaking engagements
engagements and other awareness raising as opportunities arise
activities as appropriate to help raise _awareness of . Complete joint project .
assurance users and those charged with .
. . with the FMA on the
governance about the new auditor reporting . .
requiremnents reporting of KAM, in
au ' accordance with the
agreed project plan.
e Promote results of joint )
FMA project
NZAuASB Action 4.8: Timing 2017 /18 Planned Actions | 2017 /18 Actual Actions

Promoting Understanding of the new NOCLAR
Requirements

The NZAuASB will undertake activities to promote an understanding of the new NOCLAR requirements that apply to assurance practitioners.

The action will comprise:

a. Actively encourage, facilitate and support other
relevant organisations where appropriate to help

Whole of
year

Liaise with IOD about
doing an awareness

-No specific action to date

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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them ensure their members understand the new
NOCLAR reporting requirements; and

raising session as part of
the director education
series.

b. Conducting seminars, presentations, speaking
engagements and other awareness raising
activities as appropriate that inform assurance
users and those charged with governance about
the new NOCLAR reporting requirements.

Include topic in annual
update presentations

Speaking engagements
as opportunities arise

NZAuASB Action 4.9:

Promoting Understanding of the factors that
Affect Audit Quality

Timing

2017/18 Planned Actions

2017 /18 Actual Actions

The focus of the NZAuASB'’s specific actions will be to work with other key organisations to enhance audit quality

This action will comprise:

a. Actively encourage, facilitate and support other
relevant organisations where appropriate to help
them ensure their members understand the
factors that affect audit quality, including the role
of all participants in the external reporting supply
chain;

b. Conducting seminars, presentations, speaking
engagements and other awareness raising
activities as appropriate that inform assurance
users and those charged with governance about
the factors that affect audit quality

Ongoing

Promote the audit
quality framework as
opportunities arise

Liaise with IOD to do an
awareness raising
session as part of the
director education series

No specific action to date

Speaking engagements
as opportunities arise

XRBrief article

Promote guidance
developed.

No specific action to date

NZAUASB Strategic Actions 2017/18
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NZAUASB Board Meeting Summary Paper

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.1
Meeting date: 6 June 2018
Subject: Standard on Service Performance Information
Date: 29 May 2018
Prepared by: Misha Pieters
X | Action Required I:I For Information Purposes Only

Agenda Item Objectives

To:

o RESOLVE remaining key matters identified;

o CONSIDER the amended draft standard,;

¢ NOTE an analysis of all feedback raised in response to ED NZAuASB 2017-2 to fulfil due
process considerations; and

o AGREE next steps in progressing the amended draft.

Background

1.

At the April meeting, the NZAUuASB discussed a way forward in response to mixed feedback
received on ED NZAUuASB 2017-2. Since the April meeting, the service performance sub-
committee has held 2 teleconferences and met with the NZASB sub-committee to report back
on the discussions so far. Staff have met with the technical staff of the OAG to discuss
materiality concerns in more detail. A follow up meeting with the OAG staff has been

arranged for the end of May and a verbal update will be provided at the June meeting.

The amended draft at agenda item 5.3 (marked from the April meeting papers) reflects
recommended changes as a result of feedback from all stakeholders.

Key matters for discussion by the NZAuASB are considered in the issues paper at agenda
5.2.

Action

4. We request that the NZAuASB:

a. Note the analysis of comments prepared (as part of due process considerations);

b. Provide feedback on the remaining matters identified in the key issues paper;




c. Provide feedback on the amended standard and next steps.

Material Presented

Agenda item 5.1 Board Meeting Summary Paper
Agenda item 5.2 Issues paper

Agenda item 5.3 Amended standard (mark up from April)
Agenda item 5.4 Amended standard (clean)

Agenda item 5.5 Complete analysis of feedback received
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Agenda item 5.2

Remaining issues

1.

The Board made a number of decisions relating to the development of an amended standard
on the audit of service performance information (SPI) at its meeting in April 2018.
Subsequent to the April meeting an amended draft was shared with the NZASB SPI sub-
committee members. While the NZAuASB sub-committee was largely supportive of those
amendments, the NZASB sub-committee continued to raise concerns that there is a
disconnect between PBE FRS 48 and the auditing standard. Subsequently, we have made
further amendments which have not yet been considered by the NZAuASB sub-committee.
These changes are discussed in more detail below.

In addition, the mark up reflects additional recommendations or comments raised by other
stakeholders in response to the invitation to comment. This memo also explores remaining
key issues not yet discussed by the Board but that have been discussed by the sub-
committee during teleconferences held in May.

This memo explores the following key remaining issues:

a. Framework neutral versus consistency with PBE FRS 48 (changes highlighted in blue
in agenda item 5.3)

i. “Reporting process” and compilation methods
ii. Characteristics versus qualitative characteristics
b. Guidance on use of a service organisation
c. Assertions
d. Reference to both the ISAs (NZ) and the domestic standard

e. Materiality (changes highlighted in green in agenda item 5.3).

Framework neutral versus consistency with PBE FRS 48

4.

The NZASB sub-committee members remain concerned at the disconnect between the draft
auditing standard and PBE FRS 48. They recommend that PBE FRS 48 should be the starting
point for developing the auditing standard.

We consider that there are opposing views as to what language the auditing standard should
use. While the NZASB members are strongly of the view that PBE FRS 48 language should be
used, this has never been the objective of the NZAuASB. While there is disagreement over
this point, the auditing standard is likely to continue to cause concern for the NZASB
members.

The NZAuASB has been mindful that the auditing standard will form part of the ISAs (NZ).
The ISAs are written in a framework neutral manner, reflecting the audit approach to a
subject matter, rather than developed as a reaction to a specific accounting standard. The
ISAs do not map to IFRS or the IPSAS. However, the NZASB sub-committee members are
expecting the auditing standard to map to PBE FRS 48.

1
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7. The advantages of mapping to PBE FRS 48 would be that:

a. thelanguage would match, and the NZASB sub-committee consider that this would
result in easier conversations between preparer and auditor; and

b. the auditor would not run the risk of looking for things that are not covered by the
accounting standard.

8. However, we consider that there are many disadvantages to matching the words to PBE FRS
48:

a. This would require the NZAuASB to amend the auditing standard every time the
NZASB amends the accounting standards. The NZAuASB will already need to amend
the auditing standard when the IAASB revises the ISAs. Mapping to PBE FRS 48 as
well, would open up the need for further changes in wording if the IPSASB or the
NZASB make changes to the accounting standards. This would mean constant
tweaks to the words used in the standard, which is likely to confuse rather than to
assist the auditor.

b. The ISAs (NZ) do not map to IFRS and there is no intent to do so. For example,
ISA 2107 refers to the characteristics of suitable criteria. These do not map to the
qualitative characteristics (QCs) referred to in IFRS or IPSAS, noting that there are
differences between the QCs in these frameworks (i.e. the difference in the
qualitative characteristics already exists between the auditing standards and the
accounting standards.) This is not a new problem and auditors are not having
trouble applying the ISAs to audits of financial statements as a result. The IAASB
cannot map to one or the other of these suites of standards as the QCs differ
between the international accounting boards.

c. PBE FRS 48 is not the only standard that requires entities in New Zealand to report
service performance information. PBE FRS 48 will only apply to approximately 4% of
registered charities. The tier 3 standard will apply to approximately 21% and the tier
4 standard to 75%. Even though tier 4 entities are not required by law to have their
performance report audited, this practice remains common and the auditing
standard will be referred to when auditors undertake this work. A framework
neutral approach recognises that the auditor must apply the same requirements
when performing an audit of SPI regardless of the size of the entity (as an audit is an
audit). The qualitative characteristics underpinning PBE FRS 48 do not apply to tier 4
entities. (i.e. there are no applicable QCs in the accounting requirements for tier 4).

d. The auditing standard is not written for the preparer and the preparer is unlikely to
ever read the auditing standard. It is developed for the auditor. The auditor is (or
should be) familiar with the language and approach adopted in the ISAs, which is a
framework neutral approach. The auditing standard will be a part of the ISAs (NZ)
and therefore should match the language and approach of that suite of standards.

9. We continue to recommend that a framework neutral approach is adopted, consistent with
the language and approach used in the ISAs as far as possible. Where possible, wording to
bridge the gap between the auditing standards and the accounting standards can be used.

2 IsA (NZ) 210 Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements, Appendix 2
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10. The submission from BDO, Staples Rodway and CAANZ were explicitly supportive of such an
approach. For example:

“We consider that such a standard should be consistent with the format and tone of ISAs to
the greatest extent possible. Further, we consider that the overarching approach to the
development of such a standard should be to provide guidance on how ISAs should be applied
to the audit of service performance information, rather than creating new requirements. We
note that this is the approach that the NZAuASB has taken to the development of the
Exposure Draft.”

11. What is the view of the NZAuASB with respect to the need to align the wording with PBE
FRS 48 as opposed to using a framework neutral approach?

Reporting process and compilation methods

12. The NZAuASB acknowledged that the term “criteria” was likely to cause confusion. Feedback
in response to the exposure draft indicated that there was wide misunderstanding as to
what “criteria” meant. Even though “criteria” is consistent with assurance framework
terminology, and is also referred to in the conceptual framework (as the recognition and
measurement “criteria”) and in AG 4 (although in a minimal way), the NZAuASB agreed to
change the terminology to enhance understanding and promote consistent application.

13. In April, the board considered the term “reporting policies and procedures” as an
alternative. NZASB members continue to disapprove of this language as there is no
requirement in PBE FRS 48 for the entity to have or to report the “reporting policies and
procedures” with respect to the service performance information. As an example, the
requirement for those charged with governance to acknowledge their responsibilities with
reference to the reporting policies and procedures is considered problematic as there is no
such requirement in the accounting standards. We note that there is no requirement for the
entity to have internal controls in the accounting standards, yet this is also agreed to in the
engagement terms.

14. The suggestion, from the NZASB, to bridge the gap between the standards is to reflect that
PBE FRS 48 sets out a “process” that the preparer must follow to select and present its
service performance information. Although the term “process” is not used in PBE FRS 48,
the NZASB sub-committee members consider that this alighs more with the thinking.

15. Another term that is used in PBE FRS 48 is “compilation methods”.

16. We have amended the draft to make use of this terminology rather than “reporting policies
and procedures” as previously discussed. “Reporting process” could be defined as proposed
in paragraph 7(f):

“Reporting process — The process used by the entity in deciding how to meet the
principles of the applicable financial reporting framework in reporting its service
performance (including the selection, measurement, descriptions, aggregation and
presentation of its service performance information). The reporting process will
identify compilation methods that the entity will use in preparing its service
performance information.”

17. Key wording to get feedback on is how to describe the responsibilities of those charged with
governance and how to describe the auditor’s responsibilities (in essence the words used to
describe step 1 in the audit process) as these words will be reflected in the engagement
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letter (refer to para 11(a) and (b) of amended draft) and are repeated in the written
representation letter and auditor reporting requirements. This could be articulated as
follows:

“The terms of the audit engagement shall include:

a. The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to the general purpose financial
report:

i. To understand the reporting process applied by the entity to select
what service performance to report on and the compilation methods
adopted to report its service performance;

ii. To evaluate whether the entity’s compilation methods will result in
service performance information that is suitable in accordance with
the applicable financial reporting framework;

b. The responsibilities of those charged with governance, including that they
acknowledge and understand their responsibility to follow a reporting process
and adopt compilation methods that are suitable in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework;”

18. What is the board’s views on use of (and definition for) “reporting process” and
“compilation methods” and the way in which step one has been articulated?

19. Another key concern of the NZASB sub-committee is that the characteristics referred to in
paragraph 22 of the amended draft are similar to but differ from the qualitative
characteristics in PBE FRS 48. The concern is that the auditor will be looking for something
different to what the preparer is required to do in accordance with PBE FRS 48. There is a
concern that the characteristics under the assurance framework refer to 5 matters and the
qualitative characteristics in PBE FRS 48 refers to 6. As illustrated in Appendix 2, we consider
that these differences can be mapped and explained, and in substance do not require a
different work effort by the auditor. If, for example, the auditor, challenges the preparer
regarding the “completeness” of the information, we do not foresee that this will be
problematic. PBE FRS 48 does not include completeness as a QC but makes use of this word
as a subset of faithful representation.

20. As a follow up exercise to the joint sub-committee meeting, we tried to draft the standard to
reflect the language in PBE FRS 48 — this generated further questions about the use of the
term “suitable” and linking to “appropriate and meaningful” in PBE FRS 48. We consider
that the work effort of the auditor will be the same, regardless of whether the assurance
language or PBE FRS 48 language is used, but recommend maintaining a link to the
assurance framework and remaining as framework neutral as possible.

21. This matter was discussed in April and the Board requested us to separate references to the
characteristics and QCs into two separate requirements:

a. To evaluate the qualitative characteristics; and

b. To evaluate the suitability with reference to the characteristics articulated in the
assurance framework.

then add application material and a flowchart in the appendix. A draft including these
amendments was considered by the sub-committee and is available on request.
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22.

23.

24.

25.

On further reflection, and due to the strong concerns raised by the NZASB members, we
have re-evaluated the need for two requirements. As highlighted above, we consider that
this problem already exists, in that the characteristics in ISA (NZ) 210 do not map to IFRS or
IPSAS, and there is no evidence to suggest that these words have created any difficulties for
auditors. There are not currently two requirements in the ISAs.

We continue to recommend that the auditing standard remain framework neutral and
aligned with the assurance framework (for the reasons articulated above).

We do not consider that there is a different work effort that will be required (i.e. there are
not two steps in evaluating the judgements made by the preparer in evaluating what to
report on and how to depict that information). The auditor will not arrive at a different
conclusion and will do no additional work to evaluate the QCs under PBE FRS 48 or the
characteristics under the assurance framework. This is because in substance they are
requiring the same things but have used different words to describe the characteristics.

We recommend retaining the approach in the ED, referring to the characteristics in the
assurance framework (but elevating the words into the requirements as discussed in April).
We further suggest that the application material developed after the April meeting is
included in the application material to explain that the words may be different, but the work
effort is the same, rather than include two separate requirements for the auditor to follow.
(refer to paragraph A24-A26 in the amended draft). Appendix 2 has been amended to
illustrate how the words are similar.

26.

What is the Board’s view on the requirement to evaluate whether the compilation
methods adopted will result in suitable service performance information (para 22), the
application material and appendix 2?

Guidance on the use of a service organisation

27.

28.

29.
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The OAG’s submission noted that use of service organisations is a practical challenge in the
public sector. “Entities that report service performance information often contract with
other entities to deliver services. Alternatively, entities may use a service organisation to
deliver services on their behalf. It would be helpful if the ED included “Application and
Other Explanatory Material” that assists auditors when they need to obtain evidence about
services delivered by contractors, service organisations or other third parties, in particular
where those third parties are directly responsible for collecting the service performance
information that is reported. For example, where local authorities report road smoothness
information provided by third party contractors or entities that provide grants report on
what that grant has been used for, based on information from the recipient.”

ISA (NZ) 402 Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation deals
with the auditor’s responsibility to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence when a user
entity use the services of one or more service organisations. A service organisation is defined
as a third party organisation that provides services to user entities that are part of those
entities information systems relevant to financial reporting.

In developing the exposure draft, the NZAuASB included a requirement to apply ISA (NZ) 402
to the service performance information. No additional or specific guidance unique to SPI was
developed.




30.

31.

While the SSPWG agrees that use of a service organisation may be a significant matter to
work through with respect to the audit of SPI, the SSPWG discussed that there is not a
significant difference between service performance information and the financial statement
issues when it relates to use of a service organisation. For this reason, no additional
application material has been identified for development.

Amendments have been made to the draft standard to:

a. emphasise that ISA (NZ) 402 must be applied to the SPI (as ISA (NZ) 402 is explicitly
dealing with where the work of a service organisation relates to the audit of the
financial statements);

b. highlight that even where an entity is reporting on its own (and not in conjunction
with other entities) the auditor may also consider the implications of a service
organisation.

32.

Does the Board agree that no further application material dealing with a service
organisation should be included in the amended draft standard?

Assertions

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.
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The ITC sought feedback on the assertions identified in the exposure draft, including an
additional assertion related to “attribution”.

The feedback received (Q12) was mixed:
Supportive of proposed assertions Not supportive/some concern
KPMG, BDO, Staples Rodway, AUASB OAG, Treasury, CAANZ, Wellington
technical group, PwC, Auckland roundtables
roundtables

Feedback from the Auckland roundtable was supportive of including “attribution”, noting
however that this is a challenging area. Feedback from the Wellington roundtable was less
supportive of including “attribution” as an assertion, as further described in the OAG
response.

Treasury commented that “the assertion about attribution may be problematic in the public
sector where multiple organisations contribute to influencing particular outcomes without
necessarily being able to quantify or evidence their impact. It is unclear whether this is
supportive of including attribution as an assertion but highlighting the challenge of doing so,
or whether this is not supportive because of the challenge it presents. This could be
something we explore with them when we meet to discuss the submission.

CAANZ considers that it is better to align with the assertions in the ISAs (NZ) and that whilst
they “agree that “attribution” is important, it could be combined into “occurrence”. For
example, “service performance that has been reported has occurred and the entity has
evidence to support its involvement”. Also “consistency” should not be a ‘new’ assertion
given that the entity’s service performance criteria can change year on year. Instead
“classification” should be reinstated and could mean “service performance information has
been recorded in the proper performance measure and/or description.”

The OAG also commented on attribution and consistency:



39.

40.

41.

42.

“While we agree that these are important concepts to be considered by auditors, in our
view, these are not assertions. Instead, we think they are more accurately described as
being part of the qualitative characteristics of information.”

The OAG commented that “there is a significant overlap between the “occurrence” and
“Attributable to the entity” assertions. This overlap introduces a level of confusion. Similarly,

” n

the “consistency” assertion is embodied in the qualitative characteristic of “comparability”.

The example raised at the Auckland roundtable discussion may be useful to distinguish
“attribution” from “occurrence”. Many charities may be working together to plant trees. If
5 charities join together and have a tree planting day the planting of 5000 trees may be
reported by each of the five charities. The tree planting occurred (i.e. 5000 trees have been
planted on a particular day) however 5000 trees are not attributable to each of the 5
charities (i.e. 25000 were not planted), rather each charity contributed to the planting of
5000 trees.

A Wellington round table participant considered that the term contribution rather than
attribution may be more appropriate —i.e. each of the five charities contributed to planting
5000 trees.

The AUASB commented that attribution “is a new assertion in addition to those traditionally
applied and is specific to SPI. The ATG agree that the inclusion of the assertion of attribution
is appropriate for the subject matter of SPI. However, the NZAuASB may need to consider
that there is a lack of clarity between the assertions listed in the ITC Ql2 and paragraph 58
(ii) i-v — qualitative and pervasive constraints of information, including completeness,
neutrality, reliability, relevance and understandability. The differences between the PBE
Conceptual Framework assertions and those in paragraph 58 may need to be explained
further. Do balance, transparency and clarity also play a part in reporting SPI?

We highlight the following references to attribution and assertions in the amended draft
standard:

a. Para 25 (in amended draft) - the auditor is required to evaluate whether the SPI
inappropriately attributes service performance to the entity.

This requirement considers attribution in evaluating suitability (step 1)- is this
sufficient or is there also a need to evaluate attribution as part of step 2?

b. Para A53 - new application paragraph from ISA 315, added based on feedback from
Staples Rodway— reminds the auditor that they may use the assertions described in
the application material or may describe these differently — this addition provides
the option for the auditor to include attribution separately or as part of occurrence

c. Para A55 - describes the assertion “attributable to the entity” as proposed in the
exposure draft.

43,

The sub-committee recommends retaining attribution noting that this is a “may” not a
“shall” and that the ISAs themselves allow flexibility in the way in which the assertions are
described. Does the Board agree?

44,
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The NZAuUASB discussed the need for “classification” as an assertion at the June 2017
meeting. “Classification” was included in prior drafts of the ED to cover the three




dimensions of service performance: outputs, outcomes and impacts. When the accounting
standard was lifted higher, the board agreed that “classification” was no longer considered
necessary as there is no need to distinguish between the dimensions of service performance
information under the revised accounting standard. The idea that the entity’s service
performance criteria may in themselves classify information in a certain way is another way
that classification could be understood, e.g. as a “high”, “medium” or “low” ranking as
examples of the way in which information may be “classified”. We consider that accuracy
may address this as it looks at the “measures and descriptions have been recorded,
measured or described appropriately”.

45. The sub-committee recommends leaving out “classification” which may confuse the
auditor with respect to classification as output, outcome or impact, terms which have
been dropped in PBE FRS 48. Does the Board agree to leave out “classification”?

46. “Consistency” of reporting is referred to in paragraph 36 of PBE FRS 48:

“Service performance information should provide users with a basis and context
to compare an entity’s service performance over time, and where appropriate,
against planned performance or the performance of other entities. Consistency
of reporting aids comparability and this Standard establishes requirements for
consistent reporting. However, an entity’s service performance activities and
performance measures and/or descriptions may change over time. This
Standard requires that an entity provide information about those changes.”

47. The auditing standard requires the auditor to consider changes made to the SPI in paragraph
24. As the standard has a specific requirement dealing with changes, the sub-committee
recommend deleting the assertion of consistency.

48. Does the Board agree to delete “consistency” as an assertion?

49. The AUASB commented that there seems “to be a difference in the definition of
completeness as set out in [assertion paragraph in the auditing standard]: “all significant
service performance that should have been reported has been included in the service
performance information”, to that set out in para 9b of [PBE FRS 48] being: “Completeness
implies that the service performance information presents an overall impression of the
entity’s service performance with appropriate links to financial information.” We consider
the exposure drafts definition implies a more thorough analysis.

50. Completeness as a characteristic of suitable criteria relates to the following - “criteria are
complete when subject matter information prepared in accordance with them does not omit
relevant factors that could reasonably be expected to affect decisions of the intended users
made on the basis of that subject matter information.” We consider that this is similar to
qualitative characteristic of completeness referred to in PBE FRS 48.

51. Completeness as an assertion, as described in ISA 315 relates to whether “all transactions
and events that should have been recorded, and all related disclosures that should have
been included in the financial statements have been included.

52. The sub-committee considers that there is a difference between the characteristic of
completeness and the assertion of completeness and that this is appropriately addressed
in the draft amended standard. Does the Board agree?
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Reference to ISAs (NZ) and the domestic standard

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

During roundtable discussions and as raised in the more formal responses received?, concern
has been raised at requiring references to both the ISAs (NZ) and the domestic auditing
standard in the engagement letter and auditor’s report.

KPMG commented, “One other concern we have regarding this ED are the practical issues
that come with this standard not being included in the ISA (NZ) suite of auditing standards.
We acknowledge that this is the first New Zealand specific auditing standard, however,
having two sets of auditing standards is going to create practical annoyances. For example,
in engagement letters and auditor’s reports, we would be required to call out both the ISA
(NZ) standards and this NZ AS standard. It would be our preference to avoid this if possible.”

Through feedback received at the roundtables, practitioners identified that this is a key area
where there is already and is likely to remain confusion and inadvertent non-compliance
with the standard.

When developing the ED, the NZAuASB was mindful of the prescriptive requirements in the
ISAs, and was mindful to ensure that the requirements of the domestic standards adhere to
the ISAs.

In particular, ISA 700, paragraph 42-43 states:

42. If the auditor addresses other reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the financial statements that are in addition to the auditor’s
responsibilities under the ISAs, these other reporting responsibilities shall be
addressed in a separate section in the auditor’s report with a heading titled
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” or otherwise as
appropriate to the content of the section, unless these other reporting
responsibilities address the same topics as those presented under the reporting
responsibilities required by the I1SAs in which case the other reporting
responsibilities may be presented in the same section as the related report
elements required by the ISAs. (Ref: Para. A53—A55)

43. If other reporting responsibilities are presented in the same section as the
related report elements required by the ISAs, the auditor’s report shall clearly
differentiate the other reporting responsibilities from the reporting that is
required by the ISAs. (Ref: Para. A55)

The NZAuASB has previously considered feedback from a technical advisor to the IAASB
related to whether the opinion on the service performance information can be included in
the same section as the financial statements (as contemplated in para 42 of ISA 700). The
Board concluded that this is appropriate in the New Zealand context given that the SPI is
part of the “financial statements” as defined in domestic legislation.

In order to overcome the requirement in paragraph 43 to clearly differentiate the other
reporting responsibilities from the reporting required by the ISAs, the ED separated the
responsibilities with reference to the SPI by referencing to the domestic auditing standard.

3 KPMG submission, Wellington roundtable
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60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

We note that the domestic auditing standard will be brought into the ISA (NZ) suite by
conforming amendments to XRB Al. Compliance with the ISAs (NZ) will therefore implicitly
mean that the auditor has complied with the domestic auditing standard on service
performance information, where applicable. These paragraphs quoted above, refer to the
ISAs (NZ) in ISA (NZ) 700.

One option is to consider whether it may be better for auditor’s reports that include SPI in
the scope of the audit to be in compliance with the ISAs (NZ) but technically not in
compliance with paragraph 42 of ISA 700. (since the ISAs (NZ) will deal with SPI but the ISAs
do not). The benefit of such an approach is to streamline the report further and avoid
cumbersome cross references to the ISAs (NZ) and the domestic auditing standard.

The sub-committee recommends complying with the ISAs (NZ) but not technically complying
with the ISAs is a pragmatic solution to avert inadvertent non-compliance with the auditing
standards in New Zealand.

For this reason, there has been some substantive changes to the illustrative auditor reports
and the reporting requirements in the amended draft standard. These changes reflect that if
a more pragmatic approach is adopted, then there is no need to distinguish between the
financial statement and service performance information in as much detail, which was
proposed so as to remain compliant with the ISAs.

Additional application material has been added in draft paragraph A68 as follows:

The auditor may assert compliance with the International Standards on Auditing
(New Zealand) but may not assert compliance with the International Standards on
Auditing where the auditor’s report refers to service performance information.

65.

Does the Board agree to streamline the references to the ISAs (NZ) and reduce the
complications of referring to the ISAs (NZ) and the domestic auditing standard, noting that
technically this may be non-compliant with the ISAs?

Materiality

66.

67.
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Given prior feedback on the importance and challenge around materiality, we held a
teleconference with the technical staff of the OAG to obtain further insight into how the
requirements and application material in the auditing standard could be enhanced.

These discussions highlighted some useful suggestions which are explored in more detail
below and highlighted in green in the amended draft. We thank the technical staff of the OAG
for their time and suggestions. These suggestions have resulted in changes, supported by the
NZAUASB sub-committee, to:

a. Highlight the link between the evaluation of the suitability of what the preparer has
selected to report on and the way to depict the information and the materiality
considerations — this has been elevated from the application material into the
requirements and may be emphasised more in line with the two-step materiality
process that is current practice in the public sector. (refer paragraph 31)

b. Remove the arbitrary distinction between the materiality levels and materiality
factors, as these considerations impact on both quantitative and qualitative
information. This has resulted in some re-ordering of the application material. (Para
A48-A49)




68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.
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c. Remove references to performance materiality. Given that the auditor is dealing with
multiple units of account, performance materiality is not relevant.

d. Add additional words and examples of things to think about in establishing materiality
(to add more practical guidance to the standard in paragraph A49 mostly).

e. Add an additional application paragraph (A52) to clarify the reference to the
assessment of the risk of material misstatement at the general purpose financial
report level.

The OAG may be seeking even further practical application guidance. However, the sub-
committee recommends that this may be best positioned outside of the standard in separate
guidance.

Current practice in the public sector is that there is likely to be a large number of performance
measures reported by an entity. This drives a two-stage materiality process as it is not
practical to perform extensive audit procedures on every performance measure reported (for
example where there are 200+ measures). Step 1 is to determine the most important
measures — described in AG 4 as material matters - i.e. identify the measures on which to
focus the audit effort. Step 2 is to determine a materiality level for those measures.

Where an entity is reporting 200+ measures, we consider that the first step for the auditor is
to evaluate whether all of those measures are in fact suitable? The ED eluded to a two step
materiality process in application material:

a. Consideration of how the preparer has applied the qualitative characteristics in the
accounting standard to determine what to report on and its suitability

b. Evaluate whether what is reported is free from material misstatement.

As noted, we suggest that this two-step process should be emphasized more in the standard
and elevated to a requirement.

We continue to recommend that this is where further guidance for the preparer is needed.
Relevance is closely linked to judgements about materiality. By definition, if a performance
measure is relevant, it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions of users.
Information that is not material will not, by definition, influence decision making and
therefore should not be included in the report as it is not relevant. Therefore, we consider
that if the entity is reporting 200+ measures, then all 200+ measures are by definition
relevant/material. We consider that the first step is to possibly push back against the
reporting of 200+ measures, but that this is better addressed in guidance to the preparer. The
focus should be on getting this right with the preparer. The NZASB has already commenced
work on their guidance.

We consider that the approach in the ED was consistent with current practice in the public
sector, but may be expressed differently. The ED requires the auditor to establish materiality
for the purposes of identifying the risks of material misstatement. The audit takes a risk
approach — focussing audit effort on the areas where there is the highest risk of material
misstatement. An additional requirement has been added in the amended draft to remind
the auditor that nominal work effort is required for all material information — e.g. analytical
review type work. (refer to paragraph 36).

Para 34 of the amended draft requires the auditor to identify and assess the risk of material
misstatement at the assertion level for material service performance information. We
consider that the proposed approach is sufficiently flexible to allow for the current practice of
the OAG to continue. We requested the OAG to reflect on whether this is workable for the



public sector, and if not to highlight where or why they do not believe this to be true.

74. Does the Board agree with the amendments and additions made to the requirements and
application material with respect to materiality?
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Conforming Amendments to Other Pronouncements

Ci d [MP2]: Consider rearranging to include these

Accompanying Attachment: Conformity to International Standards on Auditing

examples in this standard rather than including in the back of the
1SAs (NZ)

199523.11996+++



NZAS1

New Zealand Auditing Standard (NZ AS) 1XX, The Audit of Service Performance Information, should be read in conjunction
with ISA (NZ) 200, Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (New Zealand).
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History of Amendments
Table of pronouncements — NZ AS 1XX The Audit of Service Performance Information

This table lists the pronouncements establishing and amending NZ AS 1X.

Pronouncements Date Effective date
approved
New Zealand Auditing This NZ AS is effective for audits of service performance
Standard 1% information included in the general purpose financial
report for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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Introduction
Scope of this NZ AS

1. This New Zealand Auditing Standard (NZ AS) deals with the auditor’s responsibilities with
respect to service performance information when an auditor is engaged to audit the general
purpose financial report. Such an engagement would only be undertaken by the independent
auditor of the financial statements of the entity. The auditor performs the audit of the service
performance information concurrently with the audit of the financial statements. (Ref:
Para. Al)

2. This NZ AS establishes requirements and provides guidance not addressed by the—)other]

International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)) with respect to service
performance information. (Ref: Para. A2)

3. This NZ AS applies when the auditor is required by law or regulation or is otherwise
engaged to audit the general purpose financial report, that is, engaged to audit both the
financial statements and the service performance information. For purposes of this
NZ AS, the financial statements and the service performance information are
collectively referred to as the general purpose financial report. (Ref: Para. A3-A5,
Appendix 1)

4.  This NZ AS is not applicable when a review engagement is to be performed on the general
purpose financial report.

Effective Date

5. This NZ AS is effective for audits of service performance information included in the
general purpose financial report for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. Early
adoption is permitted.

Objectives

6.  The objectives of the auditor are:
(@) To understand the reporting process applied by the entity to select what and how

C d [MP3]: The domestic standard will form a part of
the ISAs (NZ)

Commented [MP4]: Treasury suggests the standard lacks a clear
objective statement (e.g. to support the effective auditing of service
performance reporting). The objective is structured in a manner
that is similar to the objective of the auditing standards. No change
is recommended.

to report its service performance;

{a)(b) To evaluate whether the service performance selected and the entity’s—service
performance-informationcompilation methods used are suitable so as to result in

servrce performance mformatron —and—related—repermg—pelwres—and—preeedwes

thepnnerplesrn accordance wrth@f the applicable financial reportrng framework;

{b)(c) To obtain reasonable assurance about whether the service performance
information included in the general purpose financial report is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, thereby enabling the auditor to express
an opinion on the service performance information;

{e}(d) To report, in accordance with the auditor’s findings, about whether the service
performance information included in the general purpose financial report is
prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework; and
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{e3(e) To communicate further as required by the ISAs (NZ) and this NZ AS, in
accordance with the auditor’s findings.

Definitions

7.

For purposes of this NZ AS, the following terms have the meanings attributed below:

(@) General purpose financial report — Comprise the financial statements and service
performance information and, where applicable, entity information, prepared in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The general purpose
financial report may be referred to as a Performance Report. (Ref: Appendix 1)

(b) |Long-form report — Auditor’s report including other information and explanations

that are intended to meet the information needs of intended users but not to affect the
auditor’s opinion. (Ref: Para. A68—A69)

{b}(c) Misstatement — A difference between the reported-service-performance-tnformation
and-the-appropriate-Selection measurement, description, aggreqation,-or evaluation

presentation, or disclosure of service performance information and the selection,
measurement, description, aggregation, presentation or disclosure that is required for
the information to be in accordance by-the-entity’s-reporting-policies-and-procedures
developed—in—aceordance—with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Misstatements can be intentional or unintentional, qualitative or quantitative, and
include omissions. Misstatements can arise from error or fraud.

{e}(d) Other information — Financial or non-financial information (other than the financial
statements, service performance information, entity information, if applicable and
the auditor’s report thereon) included in an entity’s annual report. (Ref: Para. A5)

{e)(e) Risk of material misstatement — The risk that the service performance information is
materially misstated.

{e)(f)Reporting pelicies-and- i i i
process applied-used by the entity in deciding how to meet the Drlncmles of the
applicable financial reporting framework in reporting its service performance
(including the selectionte-, measurement, descriptions, aggregation and presentation
of its service performance information)implement-the-apphcable-financial-reporting
framework. The reporting process will identify compilation methods that the entity

WI|| use. in preparing lts service performance |nformat|on Ihese—melade—the—basesr

Requirements
Conduct of the Engagement in Accordance with ISAs (NZ)

8.

The auditor shall apply the ISAs (NZ) and this NZ AS when auditing service performance
information, as appropriate. Where an entity is required to include bntity information]
within the general purpose financial report, and the auditor is engaged to audit the general
purpose financial report, the auditor shall also apply the ISAs (NZ) to the entity
information, as appropriate. (Ref: Para. A8—A11, Appendix 1)

199523.11996+++

Commented [MP5]: AUASB recommended including definition
of long form report if retain option for flexibility. Tailored definition
from ASAE 3100

Commented [MP6]: Align with definition of misstatement in the
ISAs but reflect the wording in PBE FRS 48 — also covers the selection
of what matters to report on.

Commented [MP7]: Include reference to reporting process to
replace the term criteria — lifting the terminology up as suggested by
the OAG and based on feedback from the NZASB.

Commented [MP8]: OAG concern re reference to entity info. It
is our view that this type of information does not generally affect
the reported performance of an entity (either financial or non-
financial) and therefore, it should not be subject to audit. Instead, it
should be regarded as “Other Information”, and considered in
accordance with ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised):

We note that this is a direct consequence of the accounting
standards for Tiers 3 and 4 requiring entity information to be
reported as part of the general purpose financial report. It is our
view that this is the part of the service performance information
that is set aside for management commentary and, as such, has not
been prepared for audit. In our view, the scope of the underlying
accounting standards should be reviewed.

Staff view: Legally the information is subject to audit therefore
needs to be covered by the standard.
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The auditor shall not represent compliance with this NZ AS unless the auditor has complied
with the requirements of both this NZ AS and the ISAs (NZ).

General Principles of an Audit of the General Purpose Financial Report

10.

The auditor shall plan and perform the audit by exercising professional judgement and with
an attitude of professional scepticism, recognising that circumstances may exist that cause
the service performance information to require a material adjustment for it to be prepared
in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Agreement on Audit Engagement Terms

11

The terms of the audit engagement shall include: ! (Ref: Para. LAlZD

(2) _[The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to the general purpose financial report:

i. To understand the reporting process applied by the entity to select what service

Commented [MP9]: The illustrative engagement letter does not
specify SPI for each of these points — but refers to GPFR — consider
deleting the bullet points in yellow

Commented [MP10]: Consider retaining — this highlights that
the responsibilities cover the SPI - and the bullet point that refers to
the “suitability of the criteria” meet this requirement specifically

performance to report on and the compilation methods adopted to report its
service performance;

k. To evaluate whether the selected service performance and the related service
performanee-informationcompilation methods used are suitable so as to result in
service performance information in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework;

{b)y—The responsibilities of those charged with governance, including that they

bcknowledge\ and understand their responsibility

{d)(b) Fersuchrepertingto follow a reporting process and adopt compilation methods that

Commented [MP11]: Part c has moved and merged
requirement from ED para 13. CAANZ recommended a cross
reference to the requirements in the reporting section — however in
merging and rearranging these are now listed in detail and checked
for consistency therefore do not recommend adding a cross
reference.

. : [Commenbed [MP12]: Consider deleting

are sunable— in_order to prepare service performance information pelicies—and

{e}(c) The content of the auditor’s report, including whether it will be a long--form report,
including additional information about the service—performance—eritertareporting

1 ISA (NZ) 210, paragraph 9-10
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‘| Commented [MP13]: No need to highlight this — relevance is

one of the QCs required by the applicable financial reporting
framework
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| process, compilation methods, detailed findings or recommendations to meet the
needs of the intended users.

Documentation

12.  The auditor shall document the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures performed
to comply with this NZ AS. 2 (Ref: Para. A13)

13. The audit documentation shall, as far as possible, provide evidence of the correlation
between the audit evidence obtained related to the financial statements and the service
performance information.

Laws and Regulations

14. The auditor shall obtain an understanding of:

(a) The legal and regulatory framework applicable to the entity and the industry or sector
in which the entity operates and, in particular, laws and regulations that specify the
form, content, preparation and audit of service performance information; and

(b) How the entity is complying with that framework. 2

15. The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the entity has complied
with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the reporting of service performance
information.

Communication with Those Charged with Governance
16. The auditor shall communicate the following matters with those charged with governance:®

(@) The auditor’s views about judgements made in reporting the entity’s service
performance information, including any deficiencies or areas for improvement. For
example, why the auditor considers the entity’s—selected service performance

information—or repertingpelicies—and procedures—compilation methods are-are not

suitable to the circumstances; (Ref: Para. A14)

(b) Matters involving non-compliance with laws and regulations with respect to service
performance reporting obligations; and

(c) Deficiencies in internal control with respect to the service performance information
that, in the auditor’s professional judgement, are of sufficient importance to merit
attention.

Planning

17. The auditor shall develop the audit plan to concurrently cover the financial statement
| information tegether—withand the service performance information so that the audit is

2 ISA (NZ) 230, Audit Documentation, paragraphs 7-16

3 ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised), Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement through Understanding
the Entity and Its Environment, paragraph 11

4 ISA (NZ) 250 (Revised), Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements
5 ISA (NZ) 260 (Revised), Communication with Those Charged with Governance, paragraph 14-17
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performed in the most effective manner and reflects any-the correlation with-the-auditofthe
finanetal—statementsbetween the service performance information and the financial

statement information. &

Ci d [MP14]: Staples Rodway suggested edit: “and the

18. In establishing the overall audit strategy, the auditor shall:

(@) Obtain an understanding of the applicable financial reporting framework relevant to
service performance information;

(b) Obtain an understanding of who the intended users are [and the entity’s reporting
process for understanding whattheir information needs—afé;

service performance information so that the audit is performed in
the most effective manner and reflects the correlation between this
information and information obtained as part of the audit of the
financial statements.

Consider amendments however consider that suggestion may imply
that there is a distinction between the audit of SPI and FS so have
tried to avoid that.

(c) Consider the factors that, in the auditor’s professional judgement, are significant in
directing the engagement team’s efforts in respect of the audit of service performance
information.

19. The auditor shall discuss with those charged with governance where and how the entity
intends to report its service performance information. (Ref: Para. A15)

20. If the entity intends to report service performance information about service performance
provided by other entities, the auditor shall:

(@ Obtain an understanding of the nature and significance of the services provided by a
service organisation and their effect on the user entity’s internal control relevant to the
audit bﬂ\ the service performance information, sufficient to identify and assess the risks

Ci d [MP15]: Feedback from roundtable — that this is
overly onerous. Is this not the preparers job and then the auditor to
consider the preparers process and understanding? Consider
deleting or clarifying that the auditor is to understand preparers
process rather than implying the auditor needs to assess users’
needs.

[ Ci d [MP16]: To emphasise that 402 applies to SPI

)

of material misstatement and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks in accordance with ISA (NZ) 402.7 (Ref: Para. A16)

(b) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the service performance
information of the components and the consolidation process to express an opinion on
whether the group’s service performance information is prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.8 (Ref: Para.
A16)

(¢) Communicate clearly with the other practitioner about the scope and timing of the
work and findings of the other practitioner and evaluate the sufficiency and
appropriateness of evidence obtained and the process for including related information
in the service performance information when the auditor intends to use the work of
another practitioner,- (Ref: Para. A17)

when planning the audit of the service performance information.

6 ISA (NZ) 300, Planning an Audit of Financial Statements, paragraph 7
7 ISA (NZ) 402, Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation

8 ISA (NZ) 600, Special Considerations—Audits of Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of
Component Auditors)
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Understanding the Entity and Its Environment, Including the Entity’s Internal Control, and
Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement

Obtaining an Understanding of the Entity and Its Environment
21. The auditor shall obtain an understanding of:
(@) The service performance of the entity and the context in which the entity operates;

(b) The entity’s reporting process for identifying what service performance to report on
and developing-the compilation methods adopted includingrelated_how to reperting
policies—and—proeceduresmeasure, describe, disclosure and present its service
performance information, as well as what other options were considered; (Ref: Para.
A1827—A230)

(c) Whether the reporting pelicies—and—procedures—process will generate service
performance information that is consistent with and clearly linked to the entity’s
overall purpose and strategies; (Ref: Para. A231-A2332)

(d) |How [much discretion the entity has in selecting what service performance to report ( commented [MP171: Links to PBE FRS 48 9(c) )

on and the compilation methods used developing-isreperting policies-and-procedures
to apply the applicable financial reporting framework;

(e) The extent to which consultation with intended users influenced the reporting process
and the compilation methods adopted the-to develop ment-ef-the service performance

information-and-the-reperting-peliciesand-procedures; and

() The judgements made in deciding when to provide [comparativé narrative and c d [MP18]: This may tie to OAG's concern re scope
e H H and narrative contextual information - may need to develop further
descriptive information. R lition maserial

Commented [MP19]: April meeting — board requested the
requirement to be split into two but to cover both the QCs and

22. The auditor shall evaluate whether the selected service performance and related characteristics. Per issues paper recommend including in application
compilation methods are suitable so as to result in service performance information in material.
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework, in that they exhibit the
following characteristics: (Ref: Para. A24-A29)°

(@) _Relevancel(Ref: Para. A30) Commented [MP20]: Board agreed to move the characteristics
(b) Completeness (Ref: Para. A31) —

(c) _Reliability (Ref: Para. A32)

(d) _Neutrality (Ref: Para. A33)

{&—Understandability (Ref: Para. A34).

9 The applicable financial reporting framework may describe different qualitative characteristics to these
characteristics which align with the characteristics referred to in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 210. The application
material in paragraphs A39-A43 may need to be tailored to the applicable financial reporting framework. This
is illustrated in Appendix 2.

10
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23.  The auditor shall evaluate whether the entity’s reporting pelicies-anelproceduresprocess-are [Commented [MP21]: April board meeting requested to break }
is transparent so as to enable availableto-intended users_to understand the assumptions thelsentencelup)

underlying the information and the compilation methods adopted, for example, —erare

disclosed in the judgements reported as part of the service performance |nformat|on or by

Cross reference

happens if not? Or is this sufficiently covered by the option of a
long-form report?

Commented [MP22]: Does the standard need to address what ‘

(Ref Para A3548 A3644)

24. If the entity - ,
has changed what service Derformance it reDorts on or the compllatron methods used to

report its service performance from the prior [perrod\, the auditor shall evaluate whether the Commented [MP23]: CAANZ suggested clarification here and
H H H A recommends adding the words “or during the reporting period”’—

chang_es are sdrtable in fhe crrcumstances, have 'been approved appropriately, and are e . e -l - ptes e =

explalned within the service performance information. sufficient clarification that the evaluation is an iterative process?

SSPWG member recommends leaving out here — A38 sufficient.

25. The auditor shall evaluate:

(a) If significant aspects of service performance have been excluded, that have been, or
could readily be, measured and/or described, whether such exclusions are reasonable
in the circumstances; or (Ref: Para A37—-A39)

(b) Whether the reperting—pelicies—andprocedures—wit-generate-service performance

information that-inappropriately bttributes service performance to the entity. Commented [MP24]: Consider this here and at assertion stage?

Yes, part of step 1 and step 2.
26. If the auditor considers; in—aeceordanee—with—parasraphs3+—33—that all or some of the
entity’s service performance informationfrem-applying-the-entity’sreporting policiesand

(a) Fails to comply with the applicable financial reporting framework;

(b) Will-netbels prepared using compilation methods that are not suitable; or

(c) Otherwise fails to provide a reasonable basis for fairly reporting the service
performance of the entity;

the auditor shall discuss the matter with those charged with governance as soon as possible.

(Ref: Para. A40)
27. The auditor shall determine:

(&) Whether the matter can be resolved to the auditor’s satisfaction;

(b) Whether further audit procedures can be performed with respect to the service
performance information; or (Ref: Para. A4149)

(c) Whether, and if so, how to communicate the matter in the auditor’s report where the
matter is not resolved to the auditor’s satisfaction.

11
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unsuitableln the circumstances described in paragraph 26, the auditor shall consider the

implications for the audit, the auditor’s report and the opinion and shall express a qualified,

adverse, or a disclaimer of opinion, as appropriate in the circumstances, with respect to the
’ service performance information. (Ref: Para. A671-A7769)

‘ 28. eaudi or-allo 56 and-proced

29. In the circumstances described in paragraph 2836, the auditor is not required to withdraw
from the audit of the general purpose financial report but shall consider the impact of the
modified opinion with respect to the service performance information on the financial
statements.

Obtaining an Understanding of the Entity’s Internal Control
34:30. The auditor shall: 1

(@) Obtain an understanding of internal control over the preparation of the service
performance information; and

(b) Evaluate the design of those controls and determine whether they have been
| implemented as designed. (Ref: Para. A4250)

fMateriality\ in Planning and Performing the Engagement

_—C d [MP25]: Repeats para 34 under the heading of
identifying and assessing risks below — consider merging

3L The auditor’s consideration of materiality shall include both an evaluation of:

| C d [MP26]: The materiality section has been moved
from above the “understanding the entity” section — consider if logic
flows?

Ref: Para. A43—-A46, A30, A31)

Ref: Para. A47-A51)
32— The auditor shall determine and document materiality levels and/or materiality factors to be

material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit

procedures. 12 The-auditor-shall-determine-the-materiality-level-or-levelsforguantitative

1 ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised), paragraph 12
12 |SA (NZ) 320, Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit, paragraph 10 and 14

12
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applied to the service performance information_for the purpose of assessing the risks of

Commented [MP27]: Consider elevating the idea that
materiality covers both what the entity selects to report about and
the level of misstatement in the requirements — from application

| material.

| Commented [MP28]: Higher level would be depicted but these
words tie to PBE FRS 48 46(g)

try to condense requirements — combined the first two
requirements from materiality section of ED into one

Commented [MP29]: OAG concern too many shall statements — ‘

qualitative and levels for quantitative — many of the factors are

| commented [MP30]: Not as clear a distinction as factors for
relevant to determine the level too.
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staterments-where-appropriate—(Ref: Para. A4718-A5126)
33.32. he-auditor-shall-determineperformance-materiali

C d [MP31]: OAG considers that as you are setting a

34:33. The auditor shall revise_the judgements made in determining materiality for the
service performance information if matters come to the auditor’s attention during the audit
that would have caused the auditor to have determined different levels or factors initially.

Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement

35:34. The auditor shall identify and assess the risks of material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error:

(a) |Af the general purpose financial report level;'?

unique performance measure for each performance measure, you

don’t need to refer to performance materiality. Consider whether
to merge para 21 and 22 as illustrated above — or is it necessary to

separate? OAG suggests fewer requirements and more application
material — less is more.

C d [MP32]: OAG staff query why need (a)— covered

(b) At the service performance information level; and
(c) At the assertion level for material service performance information

through understanding the entity and its environment, including the entity’s internal control

thereby providing a basis for designing and implementing responses to the assessed risks of
material misstatement in accordance with ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised).!4. (Ref: Para.
A521-A55)

The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks
36:35. The auditor shall design and perform procedures whose nature, timing and extent1®:

(a) Are responsive to assessed risks of material misstatement of the service performance
information; and

(b) Allow the auditor to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material misstatement. The auditor’s procedures shall include
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to the operating effectiveness of
the relevant controls over the service performance information when:

() The auditor’s assessment of the risk of material misstatement includes the
expectation that controls are operating effectively, or

(i)  Where procedures other than tests of controls cannot provide sufficient
appropriate audit evidence. (Ref: Para. A562 — A584)

37-36. Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design
and perform substantive procedures for all material service performance information.

Audit Evidence

38.37. The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support material

13 ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised), paragraph 25
14 ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised), paragraph 5
15 ISA (NZ) 330, The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks

13
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materially misstated (bearing in mind the interaction between the
financial statement information and the SPI. See recommended
additional application material to clarify.
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service performance information, correlating, as far as possible, with the audit evidence
obtained in the audit of the financial statements. 16 (Ref: Para. A595—A6056)

39:38. The auditor shall consider the relevance and reliability of the information to be used
as audit evidence. If:

(@) Evidence obtained from one source is inconsistent with that obtained from another;
or

(b) The auditor has doubts about the reliability of information to be used as evidence,

the auditor shall determine whether additional procedures are necessary to resolve the
matter, and shall consider the effect of the matter, if any, on other aspects of the audit.

40:39. [Thel auditor’s procedures shall include:

(&) Agreeing or reconciling amounts reported in the service performance information to
any underlying financial records;

(b) Agreeing cross references between the service performance information and the
financial statements;

(c) Understanding any allocation methods adopted and assumptions made, and
determining whether the methods adopted are appropriatesuitable, have been applied
consistently and are consistent with the applicable financial reporting framework; and

(d) Reconciling the aggregate amounts reported in the service performance information
to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

41:.40. [The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether any

disclosures of judgements related to service performance information are reasonable in the
context of the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework.

Analytical Procedures

4241 When designing analytical procedures,*” the auditor shall evaluate the service
performance information through analysis of plausible relationships among both financial
and non-financial data.18

Written Representations

43—The auditor shall request written representations from those charged with governance, with
appropriate responsibilities for and knowledge of the service performance information, that
they have fulfilled their responsibility:-19

financial-reporting-framework;
45— For-sueh-to follow a reporting process and adopt compilation methods that are suitable so as

16 1SA (NZ) 500, Audit Evidence, paragraph 6

o ISA(NZ) 520, Analytical Procedures, paragraph 6
18 1SA (NZ) 520, Analytical Procedures, paragraph 6

—ISA(NZ)-580, Written-Representations, paragraph-9

14
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Commented [MP33]: Comment from roundtable discussions —
too focussed on measurement and reconciliation to financials. Need
to know how to audit a description. This is specific recon between
SPI and FS — ideas for additional procedures?

Eg. How to audit a case study?

How to audit a survey response?

Does the standard need to go to this level of detail?

Alternatively should this para be in application material?

Commented [MP34]: OAG comment — auditor should evaluate
whether disclosures are appropriately focussed on the critical
judgements that have been, or should be, disclosed.

No change proposed — does this requirement address this concern?

Commented [MP35]: Consider deleting yellow highlighting as
related to GPFR — same as in the ISAs

[Commented [MP36]: To match the terms of agreement above ]
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to result in service performance mformatlon in accordance with the appllcable financial
repomnq frameworki

48-42. as-setout-in-the terms-of the-auditengagement.2® (Ref: Para. A6157)

Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert

49.43. The auditor shall determine whether specialised skills or knowledge are required
regarding the service performance information and whether to use the work of an auditor’s
expert. 2! (Ref: Para. A6258)

Forming an Opinion and Reporting

50.44. The auditor shall form an opinion on whether the service performance information
is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting

framework. 22 (Ref: Para. A5963)

omitted — not included here as not appropriate for a compliance
framework — consistent with ISAs

C d [MP37]: CAANZ comment - “present fairly” ‘

reordered — moved not deleted to para 46 to reflect the

Ci d [MP38]: Staples Rodway suggested this should be
chronological nature of

[ Commented [MP39]: Consider deleting this as already covered ]

52.45. The auditor shall conclude whether, in view of the applicable financial reporting
framework:

(@ The service performance information will assist users in forming assessments about an
entity’s accountability for service performance and in making decisions that rely on
service performance information.

2 1SA (NZ) 580, Written Representations, paragraph 9
2L ISA (NZ) 620, Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert
22 ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised), Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements, paragraph 10
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[Commented [MP40]: Not needed as is in the lead in

nee h—the

framewotrk-The entity has followed a reporting process and adopted co
methods that are suitable so as to result in service performance information in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

(e)—PEh%repemﬂg—peheres—aﬂd—pfeeedmes—af%smtablé— { C d [MP41]: Related to QC discussion above — if

combine consider if needed?

{eh(c)[The assumptions underlying the information are explicit, the repertingpelicies—and [, ted [MPA2]: Maps to 9(7) of PBE FRS 48

methodelegies adopted in preparing-compiling the information and the factors and
circumstances that support any opinions expressed or disclosures made are transparent
to intended users. (Ref: Para. A6459—A650)

{e}(d) When the general purpose financial report is prepared in accordance with a fair
presentation framework, the service performance information achieves fair presentation,
including whether:

(i) The overall presentation of the service performance information has been
undermined by including information that is not relevant or that obscures a
proper understanding of the matters disclosed;

(i) The overall presentation, structure and content of the service performance
information represents the service performance of the entity in a manner that
achieves fair presentation; and

(iii) The disclosure of the judgements made in reporting the service performance
information, if applicable, is reasonable.

46. In order to form that opinion, the auditor shall conclude as to whether the auditor has
obtained reasonable assurance and shall take into account:

(a) The auditor’s conclusion whether sufficient, appropriate audit evidence has been

obtained;

(b)  The auditor’s conclusion whether uncorrected misstatements are material,
indiVidUa”V or [CO"ECtiVel\A; Commented [MP43]: Removed evaluation of misstatement

. . . . . . requirements in ED 40 and 41 — delete here? or make the point that

(c) The auditor’s evaluation of whether the service performance information is prepared. there is no common denominator for collection of misstatements?
H H B H H - B H Recommend retain given OAG comment that this is the challenge,
in_all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting B e s ey e et
framework. on evaluating misstatements.

53:47. The auditor shall consider:

(@) Any matters arising during the course of the audit of the financial statements that may
affect the auditor’s evaluation of the service performance information.

(b) The impacts of any matters arising during the audit of the service performance
information that may affect the auditor’s evaluation of the financial statements.
Report Content

54-48. The auditor’s report on the service performance information shall be included in a
single report on the general purpose financial report and shall include the elements required
by ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised). (Ref: Para. A662—-A673)

55-49. The opinion section of the auditor’s report shall:

16
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(@) Identify the service performance information;
(b) State that the service performance information has been audited; and

(c) Include the auditor’s opinion on the service performance information prepared in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

56.50. When expressing an unmodified opinion on the service performance information
prepared in accordance with a fair presentation framework, the auditor’s opinion shall,
unless otherwise required by law or regulation, use one of the following phrases, which are
regarded as being equivalent:

(&) In our opinion ﬁhe{ accompanying [general purpose ffinancial report presents fairly, in

all material respects, the [financial position of the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1,
and its financial performance -andts-cash ﬂowsjZ and servzce performance] -for the year
then ended; an
accordance with [the appllcable flnanC|aI reportlng framework]; br\

{ Ci d [MP44]: Consider simplifying further and removing

sub-bullet points? Suggested at roundtable discussions

|

Commented [MP45]: Inconsistent with above — recommend
adding general purpose throughout illustrations — this is the defined
term.

(b) Inour opinion_:tFhe accompanying general purpose financial report gives a true and
fair view of the [financial position of the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1, and of its
fi nancml pe}formance—aﬁd—m cash ﬂowv and service performance] for the year then

_in accordance

with [the appllcable financial reportlng framework] 23

5%51. In addition to the requirements addressing financial statements in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised), the auditor’s report shall:

entity information?(or include in illustration?

{ C d [MP46]: Add footnote to remind auditors including

|

C d [MP47]: Discussed in issues paper — SSPWG

(b)—{Describd, in the responsibilities for the general purpose financial report section, the

responsibilities of those charged with governance:

{e)— to follow a reporting process and adopt compilation methods that are suitable so as

to_result in serv1ce performance 1nf0rmat10n Fer—the—pfepafa&eﬂ—ef—the—geﬂer—al

recommend an pragmatic approach. If remove the split— consider
removing this bullet point as is no different from ISA (NZ) (700).
Suggest adding application material to clarify that the auditor may
not assert compliance with ISAs — on the basis that ISA 700 requires
that the auditor’s report separate out what is not covered by the
ISAs (i.e. the SPI).

Suggest deleting words highlighted in yellow

Commented [MP48]: CAANZ comment — this should match the
terms in the engagement — an abridged version will create
confusion. Illustrations have been reworded and we consider is now
consistent.

gevemanee—detemne—wweessapy—te—mp\lement—the [appllcable flnanmal reportmg
framework]—tha%aresw{abl&m#}eueen{e;@ef—th&enmy

23 If the applicable financial reporting framework includes requirements for entity information, the opinion may be
required by law, regulation or otherwise to cover the entity information.
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{e}(b)In the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the General Purpose Financial
Report” section:

e |Describe the audit by stating that, in accordance with this New Zealand

Auditing Standard, the auditor’s responsibilities are to evaluate:

i.  -Whether the selected service performance and the relatedentity’s
compilation methods adopted are suitable so as to result in service
performance information that is service—performance—information—and

reporting-policies—and-procedures-are-in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework-and-are-suitable;

ii.  The overall presentation, structure and content of the service-perfermance
informationgeneral purpose financial feport, and whether the general

Commented [MP50]: Staples Rodway comment was that the
report may benefit from a high-level overview of the audit
procedures performed separately described under the basis for
opinion section in accordance with ISAE 3000 reporting
requirements. Does this cover this or is there a need to expand
further? SSPWG member considers is sufficient as is - no change.

[Commented [MP51]: As reflected in the illustrations

purpose financial reportservice-performance-information represents the

underlying_transactions, events and service performance in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework, including where
relevant its fair presentation; and

iii. The consistency of the information reported in the financial statements
and the service performance information. (Ref: Para. A68—A70)

Key Audit Matters

58.52. The auditor may be required, or may voluntarily report key audit matters in the
auditor’s report.?* If reported, key audit matters shall include matters related to the audit of
the service performance information where, in the auditor’s judgement, such matters were
of most significance to the audit of the general purpose financial report.

Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report

59.53. The auditor shall modify the opinion, with respect to the service performance
information, when: 25

(&) The auditor concludes that the selected entitys-service performance infermatien-and

related compilation methods usedreperting-pelicies-and-procedures| are not suitable

resulting in service performance information that is not in accordance with the

2 ISA (NZ) 701, Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report
% ISA (NZ) 705 (Revised), Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditors Report
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applicable financial reporting framework—and/er—are—not—suitable; (Ref: Para
A2933-A3441)

(b) The auditor concludes, based on the audit evidence obtained, that the service
performance information as-a—whele-is not findividually pr collectively free from

C d [MP53]: OAG sought more guidance where there

material misstatement; or (Ref: Para. A7167—A762)

(c) The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude that
the service performance information as a whole is free from material misstatement.

60-54. When the auditor modifies the opinion with respect to the service performance
information, the auditor shall consider the effects of the modification on the opinion on the
financial statements. If the reason for the modified opinion impacts on the general purpose
financial report as a whole, the auditor shall modify the opinion on the general purpose
financial report.

61.55. When the auditor modifies the audit opinion with respect to the service performance
information only, the audit opinion shall clearly indicate that the opinion on the financial
statements is not modified. The auditor shall use the headings “Qualified Opinion on the
Service Performance Information”, “Adverse Opinion on the Service Performance
Information” or “Disclaimer of Opinion on the Service Performance Information” as
appropriate. The opinion with respect to the financial statements shall use the heading
“Opinion on the Financial Statements”.28

62.56. If the auditor modifies the opinion on the financial statements, the auditor shall
consider the effect of the modification on the opinion on the service performance
information. (Ref: Para. A773)

Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs

63.57. If the auditor considers it necessary to draw users’ attention to a matter presented or
disclosed in the service performance information, that in the auditor’s judgement, is of such
importance that it is fundamental to users’ understanding of the service performance
information, the auditor shall include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the auditor’s
report. 27

64-58. If the auditor considers it necessary to communicate a matter other than those that
are presented or disclosed in the service performance information, that in the auditor’s
judgement, is relevant to user’s understanding of the audit of the service performance
information, the auditor shall include an Other Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report.?

Comparative Information

may be a material misstatement of one peformance measure (if that
measure is the most important piece of information) or may relate
to the collective SPI - is this similar to the pervasiveness of the
matter.

[ Commented [MP54]: Repeats para 28 above — delete?

2 Where appropriate, the heading may refer to the entity information.
27 ISA (NZ) 706 (Revised)
2 |ISA (NZ) 706 (Revised)
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59. Where the entity presents a comparison of published prospective service performance
information with the service performance information, the auditor shall evaluate whether
the prospective service performance information presented in the general purpose financial
report agrees with the information presented in the published prospective service
performance information.

66—

Other Information

6460. Laadditiontetheeonsidemtionsraaimnd by O A LMZY 700 (Devisedi T he auditor

shall read the other information and consider whether there is a material inconsistency
between: 3! {(Ref:-Para—A73—-A74)

(@) The other information and the service performance information; and

(b) The other information and the auditor’s knowledge obtained in the audit of the general
purpose financial report. (Ref: Para. A78—A79)

*kk

Application and Other Explanatory Material
Scope of this NZ AS (Ref: Para. 1-33, 7(de))

Al. Serviceperformance a—harrowe 3 on-financia ormance:
performance information is information about what the entity has done during the reporting
period in working towards its broader aims and objectives, together with supporting
contextual information.

A2. Work performed in the audit of the financial infermation-statements can often be used for
the purpose of the audit of the service performance information. By highlighting matters
that are common to both the financial and service performance information, this NZ AS
assists the auditor to accept, plan, perform and report in an effective manner, as well as
highlighting areas where there are differences. This is to enable the auditor to perform the
work concurrently, effectively and in an all-encompassing manner.

A3. Some public benefit entities are required by the applicable financial reporting
framework to prepare service performance information as part of the general purpose
financial report. Appendix 1 illustrates what constitutes the general purpose financial
report.

A4. Principles and requirements for the reporting of service performance information are
specified within the applicable financial reporting framework as follows:

81 ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised), The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Other Information
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Commented [MP55]: Consider whether necessary to add
procedures related to how to audit any descriptions of variations?
This may assist the OAG’s concern related to contextual information
that is commonly included in the Public sector.
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(@) For Tier 1 and Tier 2 public benefit entities, PBE FRS 48 Service Performance
Reporting.

(b) For Tier 3 public benefit entities, PBE Simple Format Reporting — Accrual.
(c) For Tier 4 public benefit entities, PBE Simple Format Reporting — Cash.

The Tier 3 and Tier 4 requirements also require entity information to be reported as part of
the general purpose financial report. These requirements refer to the general purpose
financial report as a performance report. For the purposes of this NZ AS, references to
service performance information shall be taken to include service performance
information and entity information, for Tier 3 or Tier 4 entities.

A5. Some entities that are required by the applicable financial reporting framework to include
service performance information in the general purpose financial report, may not be
required by law or regulation to have the general purpose financial report audited or
reviewed. For example, tier 3 registered charities with operating expenditure under
$500,000, and all tier 4 registered charities may have no statutory assurance requirements.
Where the service performance information is not within the scope of the audit engagement,
the auditor’s responsibility for the service performance information is limited to following
the requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised).

Definitions (Ref: Para. 7(fe))

Ab6.1n-the-context-ofservice-performance-information,—tThe applicable financial reporting
framework includes principles to guide an entity to developapply a apprepriate-reporting
pohicies—and—proecedures—process and adopt compilation methods to implement the
applicable financial reporting framework. The entity will adept-apply its own reporting
policies-and-procedures-process to determine which-what service performance to report on,
and what performance measures and compilation methodetegies to use to measure and/or
describe that service performance, how to structure the information, as appropriate in the
entity’s circumstances and how the information is related to each other and the entity’s
overall purpose and strategies. Even for the same underlying service performance there can
be different eritertacompilation methods, which will yield a different measurement or
description.

A7. For example, a preparer might select, as one of the entity’s performance measures, the levels
of satisfaction using a rating scale on a survey; another preparer might select to report the
number of complaints received. These are both examples of how the entity assesses
whetherevaluates its service performance-activitieschange-the- weH-being-and-circumstance
of a stakeholder group. e

Conduct of the Engagement in Accordance with ISAs (NZ) (Ref: Para. 8)

A8. The ISAs (NZ), which are based on the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), are
written in the context of an audit of financial statements by an auditor. They are to be
adapted as necessary in the circumstances when applied to audits of other historical
financial information. Although the service performance information is considered to be
an integral part of an entity’s general purpose financial report, the nature of the underlying
subject matter included in the service performance information includes non-financial
information which is not part of the financial statements s defined in the ISAs (NZ)-and
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Commented [MP56]: This is not part of the financial statements
as defined by PBE IPSAS 1 either so this is still consistent with the
tier 1 and 2 standards.
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A10.

All.

NZAS1

. However, the requirements of the
ISAs (NZ) apply equally to an audit of the entire general purpose financial report,
prepared in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework, where that
financial reporting framework also incorporates requirements to prepare service
performance information.

his-NZ-AS-tegether-with-the ISAs (NZ),_including this NZ AS, covers all aspects of the
audit of the general purpose financial report and therefore there is no requirement for the

auditor to apply ll SAE -(NZ) -3000 (Revised) to the service performance information.

This NZ AS supplements-but-does-rotreplace- the other ISAs -(NZ). It expands on how
the_ other ISAs (NZ) are to be applied to the service performance information. This NZ AS
includes specific requirements for the service performance information that are not dealt
with by the other ISAs (NZ) or where the application of the other ISAs (NZ) differs as a
result of the nature of the service performance information.

The relevance of each of the ISAs (NZ) to the service performance information requires
careful consideration. For example, ISA (NZ) 240,32 ISA (NZ) 540,33 ISA (NZ) 550%* and
ISA (NZ) 570 (Revised)® are, in principle, relevant. This is because the service
performance information could be misstated as a result of fraud, misstated estimates, the
effect of related party transactions, or the incorrect application of the going concern basis
of accounting under the applicable financial reporting framework.

Agreement on Audit Engagement Terms (Ref: Para. 11)

Al12. The terms of the audit engagement for the audit of the general purpose financial report

include references to the service performance information. An example of an audit
engagement letter for an audit of the general purpose financial report including service
performance information is set out in the-Appendix ef-FSA(NZ)-2104)

Commented [MP57]: In April Board requested references to

ISAE 3000 be

removed — done above — consider whether need to

retain this statement to clarify when EG Au9 is withdrawn as that

explains how

to apply ISAE 3000 to SPI.

C

d [MP58]: Consider moving all SPI illustrations within

Documentation (Ref: Para. 12)

A13. The following are examples of matters that the auditor may consider to be appropriate to

include in the audit documentation:

e Planning: The overall engagement strategy, the engagement plan, capturing the
nature of the plan, reflecting plans to make connections between the financial
information-statements and service performance information, and any significant
changes made during the engagement, and the reasons for such changes;

32

33

34

35

ISA (NZ) 240, The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements

ISA (NZ) 540, Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, and Related
Disclosures

ISA (NZ) 550, Related Parties
ISA (NZ) 570 (Revised), Going Concern
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. Materiality: The materiality level or levels and/or factor or factors for the service
performance information and matters considered in their determination;

. Risks of material misstatement: Key elements of the understanding obtained
regarding the entity and its environment specified in paragraphs 241, and the risks of
material misstatement for which in the auditor’s professional judgement further
procedures were required;

. Procedures: The nature, timing and extent of the further audit procedures performed,
the linkage of those further audit procedures with the risks of material misstatement,
and the results of audit procedures;

. Evaluation of misstatements: Misstatements accumulated during the engagement and
whether they have been corrected, the auditor’s conclusion as to whether uncorrected
misstatements are material, and the basis for that conclusion.

Communication with Those Charged with Governance (Ref: Para. 16)

Al4.

The preparation of service performance information is highly judgemental. As a result, the
auditor’s views on the judgemental areas of the entity’s reporting peliciesprocess,
proeedures—compilation methods or service performance reporting may be particularly
relevant to those charged with governance in discharging their responsibilities for the
preparation of the service performance information. Open and constructive communication
including feedback on the suitabitityand-maturity of the entity’s reporting peticies—and
proceduresprocess, and-hew-the suitability of its compilation methodsprecesses or how the
reperting-information compares to other entities may drive improvements in reporting over
time. This may include comments about, for example, judgemental aspects of the
entity’swhat service performance repertingto report on—ane—pelicies—aned—procedures,

concerns regarding bias or the quality of the presentation of the information.

Planning (Ref: Para. 197—-2018)

Al5.

Al6.

Information required to be included in the financial statements by the applicable financial
reporting framework may be incorporated therein by cross-reference. 3¢ Such information
will form part of the financial statements. Service performance information that is
incorporated into the general purpose financial report by cross-reference will form part of
the general purpose financial report and will be subject to the audit in accordance with this
NZ AS.

The applicable financial reporting framework may allow flexibility in where and how an
entity reports its service performance information. It may be appropriate for an entity to
report service performance information about service performance provided by other
entities. 1SA (NZ) 40237 may be relevant to the audit of the service performance
information, if the user entity makes use of a service organisation for the preparation of
service performance reporting with another entity or where the entity outsources aspects of
their business to organisations that provide services ranging from performing a specific task

36

37

ISA (NZ) 200, Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand), paragraph A2

ISA (NZ) 402, Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation
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under the direction of the entitv to replacing an entity’ s entire business units or functions

may be relevant, adapted as necessary to the mrcumstances When the audltor involves other
auditors in the audit of the service performance information where the service performance
information includes information about goods and services provided by other entities.

The service performance information may include information upon which another
practitioner may have expressed an opinion. The auditor, in concluding on the general
purpose financial report, may decide to use the evidence on which that other practitioner’s
opinion is based to provide evidence regarding the service performance information
included in the general purpose financial report. The work of another practitioner may be
used in relation to service performance information that falls outside the boundary of the
reporting entity.— Such practitioners are not part of the engagement team. Relevant
considerations when the engagement team plans to use the work of another auditor may
include:

(@ Whether the auditor understands and complies with the requirements of Professional
and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised).

(b) The other practitioner’s professional competence.

(c) The extent of the engagement teams’ involvement in the work of the other
practitioner.

Understanding the Entity and Its Environment, Including the Entity’s Internal Control, and
Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement (Ref: Para. 214—29)

Al8.

Al9.

Without-The entity will follow its the—development—of-suitable-reporting pelicies—and
procedures-process to identify what and how to report its service performance by-the-entity
to implement the applicable financial reporting framework applicable to its the
circumstances. Without suitable compilation methods, the entity does not have an
approprrate basrs on whrch to prepare the serwce performance mformatron and the auditor

3 3 T v matienwill be
unable to meet the oblectlves of the audlt Wlthout the frame of reference provided by
transparent assumptions and compilation methodssuitablereperting-policiesand-procedures,
any conclusion is open to individual interpretation and misunderstanding. The suitability is
context-sensitive, that is, it is determined in the context of the enrgagement—entity’s
circumstances.

The selection of what service performance to report on and the—+eperting—pelicies
developedhow to measure or evaluate-describe that service performance, and then aggregate
and present the information is more judgemental than reporting on financial information.
Preparers of service performance information may have a wide variety of performance
frameworks, fguidance, or /codes (or a combination thereof) to choose from in the
preparation of this information. The entity will need to interpret the applicable financial
reporting framework and either identify or select a pre-existing external reporting
polieiesprocess, including pre-established performance measures_and/or descriptions from

38

ISA (NZ) 600, Special Considerations — Audits of Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of
Component Auditors)
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Commented [MP59]: OAG requested additional guidance on
use of a service organisation, e.g. when those parties are directly
responsible for collecting the service performance information.
Refer to issues paper. See suggested additional instance when 402
may be necessary. No additional guidance identified by SSPWG —
similar issues to financial statements. Considered to a methodology
issue for the OAG/firms.
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guidance, /standards, or /laws or regulation or it may need to apply judgement to develop its
own internally developed reporting peliciesprocess, inckuding-identifying methodelegies for

measuring or describing its service performance. The need for such judgement makes the

preparation of the service performance information adeption-of-suitablereporting-policies
and-precedures-inherently more susceptible to the risk of bias.

A20. In the example where an entity identifies stakeholder satisfaction as the underlying service
performance to report on, the entity identifies the most suitable reporting-petieymethod to

measure or evaleafeeudescnbe this performance in the context of the entity. P«n#example {r d [MP60]: Recommend including in separate

guidance.

A21. The application of professional scepticism by the auditor is particularly important when

assessing the [neutrallty and ethercharacteristicscompleteness |of the service performance Commented [MP61]: Both included in the QC of relevance

selected and theentity-developed service-performanceinformationcompilation methods used therefore stll consistent with FRS 45.

includingreporting-policies-and-procedures-due to the level of judgement to be exercised by
the entity. This is particularly important if the entity’s reporting-pelicies—and-procedures
compilation methods are not substantially based on established reperting—compilation
policies-and procedures-methods generally used in the entity’s sector, or are inconsistent
with such pelicies-and-proceduresmethods and assumptions. The auditor will need to apply
significant professional judgement in the assessment of the suitability of the selected
information and the entity’s reperting—policies—and-—procedures—compilation methods in
situations where a well-designed due process is not followed or where the intended users
were not involved in the selection of what service performance to report on and/or the
development of the reperting-peliciescompilation methods to be used.

A22. The reporting process used-applied by the entity to determine what to report on and the
reperting-pehieieshow to report its service performance -are-proeedures-may affect the work
that the auditor carries out-te-assess-whether-the-pelicies-and-procedures-are-suitable. The
level of potential preparer bias in selecting reperting-policies-and-procedures-what and how

to report its service performance will directly correlate with the amount of work that the
auditor will need to perform when considering the design of the entity’s reperting-policies
and-procedurescompilation methods. For example, use of performance measures specified

by external benchmarks or industry guidance may require less work fthan internally Commented [MP62]: Staples Rodway suggestion was to
generated performance measures as external guidance reduces the risk of bias. Transparency incorporate a rebuttable presumption of the risk of material

. A o . . . s N X misstatement relation to the selection of suitable criteria. These
about hew-the entlty’_s +denHﬂeeth€rrep0rtlng PG“GH?&QI’OCESS and the entity’s consideration application paragraphs have been amended to highlight that the
of materiality may also affect the work that the auditor carries out. MEIRE EiSE T s 5 s (s s et b [y =i

sufficient or does the board wish to include the notion of a
A23. Factors that the auditor may consider in obtaining an understanding of the entity’s reporting reputtable presumption? And around the frst time and the ongoing

policies-and-procedures-process include: -

e  Whether there are factors that are outside the control of the entity or there are long
time frames that are required to make assessments of the entity’s service performance.

. Examples of the impact of the source of the reperting-peticiescompilation methods:
o  The scope of what service performance to report on or the reperting
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poetietescompilation methods adopted may be embodied in law or regulation
specific to the entity, industry or sector in which the entity operates and, in
particular, with laws and regulations that specify the form and content of service
performance information or which describe the entity’s accountability. In the

absence of indications to the contrary, such repertingpehiciescompilation
methods are -are-presumed to be suitable.

o  Theentity may use a well-established performance framework, theory of change
or intervention logic model to explain how its service performance during the
reporting period relates to its broader aims and objectives, for example, a local
authority’s Long-Term Plan. RepertingpeliciesCompilation methods and/or
performance measures that have been pre-agreed with key stakeholders may
have a lower risk of preparer bias.

o  Theentity may have described predetermined objectives or specific performance
goals or targets in agreements with key stakeholders (e.g., in an entity’s Long-
Term Plan or in funding contracts or agreements with key funders) or in the
entity’s statement of intent or charter and recent plans and strategies. Reperting
policies—or—pPerformance measures that have been pre-agreed with key
stakeholders may have a lower risk of preparer bias.

o  Guidelines developed and issued collectively by a group or published in journals
or results of benchmarking studies, for example, central agencies may provide
guidance or establish requirements for the preparation of service performance
information. The auditor may need to evaluate the suitability of these guidelines
to the entity’s circumstances and to how these align to intended users’ needs. A
more detailed set of reperting—pehiciescompilation methods or performance
measures may be more appropriate.

. Results of surveys, e.q., satisfaction surveys, or other evidence of stakeholder Commented [MP63]: AUASB recommendation:
consultation, e.g., feedback, complaints, targeted interviews or stakeholder Bl e ISR — Gl G i
- . A A N include customer satisfaction surveys, Employee engagement
workshops, providing information about who the intended users are and what surveys; and
information they may find helpful to assess the performance of the entity. A well- Oiticlieltilar coimsuliiziiion = @kl e il e (TdEe
R R . . A feedback, complaints, targeted interviews, multi-stakeholder
designed process in developing what service performance to report on and a+eperting -y

pehieythe related compilation methods with involvement of intended users lowers the
risk of preparer bias.

e  Other external requirements or agreements with external parties that influence the
entity’s service performance accountability.

. Other contextual information, including strategic and operational objectives. For
example, an entity’s constitution, trust deed, mission statement, recent plans and
strategies.

. How the entity assesses its service performance for the purposes of internal decision
making.
e Whether the entity’s reperting-pelicies—and-procedures-compilation methods have

been validated through research conducted to be well correlated with what they are
intended to measure or describe.

e Changes from the prior period in the nature or extent of operations.
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e Whether it is appropriate to report on information that falls outside of the boundary of
the reporting entity.

unlikely to result in a different answer — so is not really doing
something separate — it is the same work effort? Refer issues paper.

////‘ Commented [MP64]: Suggest removing reference to dual role —

Commented [MP65]: New application material to highlight the
similarities yet differences between the QCs and characteristics

//[

Commented [MP66]: OK to keep this reference? ]

his evaluation will be based on a consideration of the process adopted, and
choices and trade-offs made by the preparer in determining the most appropriate manner in
which to tell the entity’s service performance story.| //1 C d [MP67]: To capture treasury comment that this is

not an audit judgement about the quality of the performance
framework but a review of the choices made by the entity.

enable users to make an informed assessment of the entity’s service
performance, and include reasonable quantitative or qualitative measures or descriptions of
service performance against which the entity’s service performance may be assessed and
are of particular value or importance for accountability and decision-making purposes.

[ commented [MP68]: Moved )
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When evaluating the suitability of the service—performance-informationselected

service performance and related compilation methods ard-repertingpohicies-andprocedures
as required by paragraph 2225, the auditor may consider:

(@) The intended users of general purpose financial reports and their information needs,
whether users were involved in the selection of what to report on or development of

the compilation methods adoptedt e-the-reperting-policies-and-procedures-and if not,

reasons why not;

(b) How the qualitative characteristics applied by the preparer have influenced the
reporting pelicies-aneprocedures-process (e.g., service performance information must
be relevant, but the overall volume of information must also be accessible in order for
it to be understandable);

(c) The various components of the entity’s service performance and check for credible
links, internal logic and consistency with the financial information

{e)(d) How the entity plans to is-present and disclose financial and service performance
information that is material;

{ey(e) The complexity of the underlying service performance;
{e)(f) Other potentially more suitable reperting—policies—and—procedures—compilation

methods that could have been used and reasons why those were not considered;

{H)(0) Potential misunderstanding of the resultant service performance information

generated after application of the reporting pelicies—and—procedures—process by
intended users; and

(h) Knowledge of other similar entities reporting format.

(4)(1) Web and social media searches.

A29. [The| evaluation required by paragraph 22 may be iterative and may require re-evaluation as

A28-A30.

the auditor’s understanding of the entity or the needs of intended users grows, if the entity
makes changes to its service performance information, performance measures or

Commented [MP69]: New guidance to clarify that this is
iterative — not only at the start of the engagement. CAANZ comment
was that this is not clear in the ED.

descriptions or as the auditor gathers audit evidence.
Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating whether-the repertingpolicies
and-procedures-are-relevancet include:-(Ref—Para-29)

. The rationale for the selection of what service performance to report on, for example,
whether the service performance relates to a Lsignificant risk )to the public (e.g., the

purity of water supply) or that could have a positive or negative effect on social,
economic, or environmental wellbeing.

. Whether the reporting-pohicies-and-procedures-areservice performance information is

likely to meet the needs of intended users so as to be useful for decision making, for
example, is of significant community interest or interest to the public.

° The extent to which consultation with users has influenced the selection of what
service performance to report and the compilation methods usedrepertingpoliciesand
Srmeneies,

o Information that could significantly affect the reputation of the entity.
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entity makes changes during the period to clarify that this is not

Ci ted [MP70]: Staples Rodway suggested clarifying if the
always established at the start of the year.

Commented [MP71]: OAG consider this is both applicable in
evaluating what matters are material as well as the level of
misstatement that will be tolerated. We agree — do we need to
repeat or cross refer —what will be clearer?

Commented [MP72]: Additional factor identified by the OAG.

These relevance factors are identified by the OAG as needing
additional emphasis in the materiality consideration — OAG also
requested that materiality be separate from suitability. The ED sees
a link between the two. The ED covers these factors in the
suitability context — is there a need to repeat in the context of
materiality?
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. Whether the service performance information reperting—pelicies—and—procedures

shows clear and logical links between the service performance to be measured or
evaluated and the entity’s overall purpose and strategies so that the rationale for their
selection is evident.

e  Whether the reperting—pehiciescompilation methods used will generate service
performance information that will be consistent and clearly linked with the financial
information for example, relates to service performance that is financially material; or
relates to a performance measure that may have a significant effect on management
performance rewards.

A29.A31.  Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating whether-thereporting-pelicies
and-precedures-are-completeness include whether:

. All significant aspects of service performance that would enable the user to make an
informed assessment are included;

. The service performance includes negative aspects of performance or areas where
there is a significant risk of performance failure by the entity.

Completeness relates more to a balanced reflection of service performance rather than an
overly comprehensive and extensive set of performance measures which can result in too
much information, reducing the relevance of the report.

A30.A32.  Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating whether-thereporting-pelicies
and-procedures-are-reliabileity include whether:

. The service performance is capable of measurement or description in a consistent
manner from period to period;

. The reporting peticies-ane-procedures-process areis well defined and there is likely to
be evidence to support the information that will be generated,;

. The service performance information is reperting-pohiciesand-proceduresare-capable

of validation by the auditor and will not result in unsubstantiated claims, including
whether there is a robust and reliable collection process;

. The reperting-policiesand-procedures-arecompilation methods are likely to result in

service performance information that is free from material misstatements, including
omission of fact, or misrepresentation of trend;

. The reperting—policies—and-—procedures—compilation methods are consistent with
industry benchmarks, where these are available.

A31-A33.  Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating whetherthereporting-pehicies

are-neutrality include whether the reperting—policies—and-proceduresservice performance

information:

. Axe-1s balanced, and are-is likely to result in information that is aggregated, where
appropriate, and covers all important aspects, with suitable emphasis, to fairly reflect
the significance to the entity’s service performance;

. Covers both favourable and unfavourable aspects of the entity’s service performance
in an unbiased manner;
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Commented [MP73]: The OAG’s submission also highlights
omissions that could significantly affect the reputation of the entity.
Consider whether to add this as a separate bullet point.
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. Axe-Is not changed arbitrarily to remove negative aspects of performance year on year.

Special care may be necessary to evaluatee whether-the-reperting-policies-and-procedures
are-neutrality where, for example, where-there are no repertingpehiciescompilation methods
established externally, no predetermined performance measures established with key

stakeholders as-performance-objeetives-or-targets-or no guidelines developed by an external
industry group.

A32.A34.  Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating whether-thereporting-pelicies
are-understandabilitye include whether:

. The format adopted is clearly laid out and presented in a way that will enable the user
to identify the main points of the entity’s service performance in that year;

. The assessment of service performance is coherent, easy to follow, and will result in
service performance information that is clear and logical;

. The service performance efiterta—information areis concise and aggregated where
appropriate;

. The information is explained and presented in a way that makes its significance clear

A34.A35.  In determining whether the reporting pehicies-ane-precedures-process is transparent
and the compilation methods are available to users, the auditor may consider whether there
will be enough context for the service performance information, including whether the
rationale for determining:

(@ What service performance to report on; and

(b) Whether to include information about the role of other entities, collaborative
relationships and the provision of resources to others

is transparent to users so that users can understand the judgements made in preparing the
service performance information.

A35.A36.  Disclosure of the judgements made by the entity is important in making the reporting
policies-and-procedures-process and compilation methods available to intended users, where,
for example, the entity has more discretion in selecting what service performance to report
on and the compilation methods to use reperting-pehicies-and-procedures-(i.e., the reporting
poheies—process isare internally generated). Alternatively, the reporting pelicies—and

procedures—process may eemprise—originate from an external performance framework
supplemented by disclosures, in the explanatory notes to the general purpose financial

report.

A36:A37.  Inthe early stages of reporting service performance information, the entity may not
have developed an appropriate reporting pelicies—and—procedures—process supported by
internal controls and may therefore be unable to include certain aspects of its service
performance in its service performance information. The auditor exercises professional
judgement to conclude on the impact of any such omissions (including those for which the
entity has provided reasons or explanations). This is particularly relevant since entities may
be at varying stages of maturity in respect of preparing service performance information.
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A37-A38.  For example, in the early stages of an entity generating service performance

information, it may focus its reporting on a particular area of service performance because
reporting systems have not yet been established and implemented for other areas. The
auditor may still be able to conclude that the entity?s-selection of reperting-pelicies—and
procedures-areservice performance and the related compilation methods are- suitable if there
are:

(@) Clear disclosures in the service performance information of the facts and reasons
surrounding the exclusion of some service performance-information. However, if the
entity makes no progress in developing reporting systems over time or continues to
exclude service performance information-once reporting systems are established and
implemented, the auditor may no longer be satisfied that the reperting-pelicies-and
procedures-areselection and compilation methods are suitable; and

(b) The auditor concludes that the disclosures provided will meet the information needs
of the intended users.

A38:A39.  Service performance information reported because it is readily quantifiable may not

be suitable and may not meet the principles of the applicable financial reporting framework.
For example, the entity may select service performance to report on the basis that the
selected performance is readily measurable. However, it may not be the most relevant
information to enable the user to understand or assess the service performance of the entity
during the year.

A39.A40.  Communication with those charged with governance in a timely manner may enable

improvements to be made to the service performance information.

A4B:A41.  Factors the auditor may consider in determining whether to perform further audit

procedures include:
(@) The pervasiveness of the matter;
(b) The materiality of the matter;

(c) Whether the auditor’s concern is with respect to the presentation of the information
only;

(d) Whether further audit procedures will enable the auditor to express an opinion on
some of the service performance information.

Obtaining an Understanding of the Entity’s Internal Control (Ref: Para. 303)

A4LA42.  Control activities that may be relevant to the audit of the financial statements

include policies and procedures that pertain to internal management performance reviews,3°
including reviews and analyses of actual performance versus budgets and relating different
sets of data — operating or financial — to one another. An understanding of the control
activities that pertain to performance reviews will be especially relevant to the audit of the
general purpose financial report and may assist the auditor to audit the service performance
information concurrently with the financial information.

39

ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised), Appendix 1, paragraph 9

31

199523.11996+++



NZAS1

Materiality in Planning and Performing the Engagement (Ref: Para. 321-32)

_— /[ Commented [MP74]: PBE FRS 48 (c) }

e /[ Commented [MP75]: Elevate to requirement — refer para 21 }

Consideration of what service performance is included in the report
[ commented [MP76]: OAG consider adding A para to emphasise
that assessing a performance measure to be suitable does not
automatically mean that the performance measure is material.
However relevance is interlinked to material information. If the

information is relevant when would it not be considered material?
This however is separate from the assessment related to risk of
material misstatement?

Commented [MP77]: From PBE FRS 48 para 9(a) — feedback
from OAG discussion indicated a need for clarity as to how the
suitability evaluation ties into the materiality consideration.

A44. The applicable financial reporting framework discusses the concept of materiality in the

make—decisions—Such a discussion provides a frame of reference to the auditor in
determinin iah itmateriality-—. The auditor’s consideration of the

alse-provides context in determining materiality

| Commented [MP78]: Does this clarify that the standard is not
requiring the auditor to perform extensive procedures on all
performance measures, rather on those where there is a risk of
material misstatement.

A43:A46.  When determining materiality, the auditor may:

e Discuss the entity’s Process for determiningation-ef material service performance

information with management and those charged with governance (and, if necessary
and appropriate, external stakeholders). It may be appropriate to discuss matters with
external stakeholders when the determination of the entity’s material service
performance information includes, for example, clearly contentious issues or
performance measures for which there is no evidence to support the entity’s role in
the improvements reported.

e  Consider whether the entity’s determination of material service performance
information is consistent with the auditor’s knowledge of the entity and the
environment, including reporting by similar entities and previous reporting by the

40 PBE IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, paragraphs 46A.1—2 and Explanatory Guide A7:
Materiality for Public Benefit Entities
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entity and information obtained from sources such as minutes of meetings, media
reports and any stakeholder outreach activities, fincluding satisfaction surveys,

feedback and complaints received, web and social media searches, targeted interviews
or stakeholder workshops.

Materiality levels and factors

ion-are expressed

A45.A48.  There are [multiple factors that may lead to a material misstatement:

(@) Omissions of fact — could omissions result in misleading the user?
(b) Misstatements of fact — could a misstatement result in misleading the user?

(c) Misrepresentation of trend — does the service performance information make claims
that do not represent the facts available?

(d) Bias — does the service performance information focus unduly on positive aspects of
performance, or omit negative aspects?

(e) Unsubstantiated claims.

A46:A49. The following factors may assist the auditor when exercising professional
judgement in determining whether there are material misstatements| in either the qualitative ;

or _quantitative service performan

ce information

Commented [MP79]: «AUASB recommended extending
sources of information and adding additional examples: explain
that these can include customer satisfaction surveys, Employee
engagement surveys; and

eStakeholder consultation — explain that this can include
feedback, complaints, targeted interviews, multi-stakeholder
workshops.

Make wording more generic as customers may not apply to NFP and
PS.

Also added references to web and social media searches and
reporting by similar entities and prior reporting by the entity.

Commented [MP80]: To remove focus on measurement? Is this
a more appropriate word?

)

[

Commented [MP81]: Moved from requirement para as there is
no shall statement.

)

[

Commented [MP82]: Re-ordered - moved up Not sure that
these only relate to qualitative information - relevant for both?

J

Commented [MP83]: AUASB recommend extending qualitative
statements to incorporate balance transparency, clarity, credibility
and trust.

Sub-committee recommend possibly weaving in these words in
separate guidance — not in the standard where there is already
opposing views on the QCs and characteristics — adding further
words will add to the problem.

[ commented [MP84]: Consider merging - relate both to

determining the level for quantitative information and whether
there is a misstatement in descriptions, rather than one or the
other?

(

Commented [MP85]: Covered above.

Commented [MP86]: Covered in previous para — remove
unnecessary repetition.

Ci d [MP87]: Consider removing — not adding anything?

|

R

Commented [MP88]: Consider merging with type of
performance measure or description below?

opernd
How the information is presented. FEOREXaMpleNdoes thelpresentation drawiatiention
The auditor may be less tolerant of misstatement in

information that is given the most prominence.

(b) The relative volatility of reported service performance information. For example, if
service performance information varies significantly from period to period.

(c) The number of persons or entities affected.
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|

Commented [MP89]: Not sure this example adds to the
previous sentence?

)
J
)
J
J
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The importance of the activity to achieving the entity’s service performance
objectives. [For example, whether the performance measures related to the primar

| Commented [MP90]: Consider this captures OAG's point on
"the primary function or purpose - consider making explicit)

The extent of interest shown in particular aspects of service performance by, for
example, the legislature, funders, the media or the public

(e)

The type of performance measures and/or descriptions adopted, includin

In some cases, there are particular types of disclosures for which misstatements of

lesser or greater amounts are acceptable.

(g) The interaction between, and relative importance of, various components of the
service performance information when it is made up of multiple components, such as
information that includes numerous performance measures or relates to an activity that
is financially significant. The auditor may be less tolerant of misstatement for

information that is given the most prominence

| Commented [MP91]: Consider making explicit link to OAG's
recommendations re signficant community interets or significant risk
to the public

- [Commented [MP92]: Example raised by OAG staff

hether a misstatement is the result of an intentional act or is unintentional

(k) Whether a misstatement is significant having regard to the auditor’s understanding of

known previous communications to users.

{e)(1) Whether a particular aspect of the service performance information is significant with
regard to the nature, visibility and sensitivity of the information. For example

Commented [MP93]: The requirements distinguish levels for
/ quantitative info and factors for qualitative info — this is less clear in
/ the application material — and may in fact not be as clear cut as one
ya or the other?

| Commented [MP94]: The OAG reads this as quantitative factors
for determining a quantitative level? Oris it both? Consider

A48.A50.  |Qualitative-factors-may-includeThel auditor is unlikely to be able to set an overall

materiality level because there is unlikely to be a common unit of account. It is also unlikely merging with the above and clarifying that it could be both.

that the auditor w_iII be able to aggregate _misstatements. However, this does_, not remove the c d [MP95]: Acknowledge need for separate guidance

need for the auditor to form a conclusion as to whether uncorrected misstatements are vnbeach quantitative and q:ali_tatiye :\atehr_ia'_it\; colnsid_e;ations— |

material individually or collectively as required by paragraph 46.: puD-committe recommendation s that this s dealt with separately
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A49-A51.  For historical financial information extracted from the audited financial statements,
the engagement team may determine that the materiality level or levels used in the audit of
the financial statements are acceptable for the purposes of the service performance
information.

Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement (Ref: Para. 34)

Ab2. [The = Commented [MP96]: Feedback from OAG staff was that it is
- unclear why this standard is reflecting the GPFR level. Does this
help?

Commented [MP97]: Staples Rodway suggested reference to

/| A128 may be useful — substance over form

Assertions about service performance and related disclosures gl | i ST (6 et (A S (fRevisesl) =il [Ty Fea wey i
address concerns related to separating it out attribution as a

/ separate assertion or combining it with occurrence?

Ab53. The auditor may use the assertions as described in paragraph A55 below or may express

theam differently provided all aspects described below have been covered. For example, the SSPWG recommend that this emphasis on the may respond to
auditor may choose to combine the assertions about occurrence and attribution. concirns raised by some submissions related to attribution as an
assertion
A54. In the public sector, the entity may assert compliance with law or regulation, in addition to [c d [MP98]: Staples Rodway recommend including
the assertions set out in paragraph A55 below. /| assertions in the requirements rather than in the application
/ material. The need for the may was agreed by the SSPWG — allows
AB0.A55.  |Assertions used by the auditor in considering the different types of potential <~ | flexibility by the auditor to determine what assertions apply to the

circumstances
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misstatements of service performance information that may occur may fall into the
following categories:

(&) Occurrence — service performance that has been reported has bccurred].

(b) Attributable to the entity — the service performance reported by the entity includes
only service performance that the entity has evidence to support its involvement with.

(c) Completeness — all significant service performance that should have been reported
has been included in the service performance information.

(d) Accuracy — service performance has been reported, measured and kjescribed]
appropriately and is consistent with financial statement information.

(e) Cut-off —the service performance has been reported in the correct period.

(f)  Presentation — service performance is appropriately aggregated or disaggregated and
clearly described, and related disclosures are relevant and understandable.

The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks (Ref: Para. 35-36)
A5LA56.  Procedures that may be performed include:

(@) Testing and evaluating the systems, processes and controls that capture, record,
analyse and monitor the service performance information;

(b) Performing analytical review procedures;
(c) Performing other substantive or re-performance tests.

A52.A57.  The quality of the systems used to record and control results, and the nature and
quality of evidence available, may have an effect on the mix of procedures used. For
instance, a weak recording or control system may force the auditor to use primarily
substantive procedures. In rare cases, the absence of controls may make it impossible to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

A53:A58.  Insome instances, there may not be control activities that could be identified by the
auditor, or the extent to which their existence or operation have been documented by the
entity may be limited. In such cases, it may be more efficient for the auditor to perform
audit procedures that are primarily substantive procedures. In rare cases, the absence of
controls may make it impossible to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

Audit Evidence (Ref: Para. 37)

A54.A59.  Making correlations with audit evidence obtained in the audit of the financial
statements, as far as possible, maximises the effectiveness of the audit of the general purpose
financial report.

A55.A60.  The mix of procedures to be performed may vary compared with the mix used in
regard to the financial information but does not alter the need to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence.
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Commented [MP99]: OAG recommendation is to combine
occurrence and attribution. Refer to issues paper. SSPWG
recommend retaining — given that the auditor has flexibility as
added in A52.

Commented [MP100]: SSPWG recommend that this
incorporates CAANZ’s comment requesting the assertion of
classification to be added. SSPWG do not recommend bringing that
back as it could be misinterpreted as relating to classification
between outputs/impacts and outcomes which have been dropped
from the accounting standard.

Commented [MP101]: Based on feedback received, SSPWG
recommend removing as an assertion — covered in the requirements
of PBE FRS 48 and in para 28 of the amended standard.
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Written Representations (Ref: Para. 42)

A56.A61.  The representation letter for the audit of the general purpose financial report
includes references to the service performance information. An example of an illustrative
representation letter for the audit of the general purpose financial report that includes service
performance information is set out in the-Appendix ef{SA{NZ)-5805.

Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert (Ref: Para. 43)

AS57.A62.  Expertise in a field other than accounting or auditing may be necessary as a result
of information included in the service performance information. Expertise in a field other

than accounting or auditing may include expertise in relation to such matters as:
° The measurement of complex performance measures t[or example:

o Climate change calculations;

o Specific scientific measurements;

o Social impact measurement

o) Human rights performance

o  People and diversity disclosure

. Assertions made about the entity’s performance, for example, when reporting on the
difference that the entity has made;

. Conformity assessments, ecolabelling and certification programmes.

Forming an Opinion and Reporting (Ref: Para. 44—47)
A58.A63.  [Thd auditor’s conclusion on the service performance information covers both:

Commented [MP102]: AUASB suggested some additional
examples?

Ci d [MP103]: Consider deleting — repeats two step

(@) Whether the entity’s-selectedion—of service performance to—+repert-and the related
related-reporting-pelicies-and-precedures-compilation methods used are suitable so
as to result in service performance information in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework-and-are-suitable; and

(b) Whether the service performance information represents the underlying service
performance in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
including where relevant its fair presentation.

A59.A64.  Those charged with governance will make a number of judgements about the
selection, measurement, description, aggregation and presentation of information reported.
In considering the qualitative characteristics described in the applicable financial reporting
framework, the auditor may become aware of bias. The auditor may conclude that the
cumulative effect of the lack of neutrality, together with the effect of uncorrected
misstatements causes the service performance information to be materially misstated.

ABO.AB5.  The disclosure of the judgements made in selecting and aggregating service
performance information is particularly important so that users can understand how
particular matters are reportedmay-be-treated in the service performance information.

Report Content (Ref: Para. 48-51)
ABLA66.  The auditor’s report on the general purpose financial report includes references to
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the service performance information. An illustrative report that includes references to the
service performance information is set out in the-Appendix -6f+SA-(NZ)-700-(Revised)6.

A67. [The| auditor may assert compliance with the International Standards on Auditing (New

[ Commented [MP104]: Do we need to expand on this?

Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)) but may not assert compliance with the International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) where the auditor’s report refers to service performance information.

{Revised)-are-these-elementsto-be-includedinashort-formreport—This NZ AS requires the
auditor’s report to include at least all elements required by ISA -(NZ) 700 (Revised)-and-this
PEZAE, Inelusiopethececlomenicn restliinashor—ormediorrenosi—However,
this NZ AS allows for flexibility and an auditor may include additional information, as

C d [MP105]: Propose to include a definition of a long-

described in paragraphs A684--A695, resulting in a |Iong;-form report.

form report — suggest deleting references to short form as otherwise
will need a definition too?

AB4.A69.  The auditor’s report may describe additional details relevant to the audit of the
service performance information that are intended to meet the information needs of users
but not to affect the auditor’s conclusion. This information may be required by legislation
or agreed in the terms of the engagement to meet the needs of users. If the report includes
other information it is a long--form report as the information is additional to the basic
elements required in paragraph 5149. OtherinformationA long-form report should not be
worded in a manner that it may be regarded as a modification of the auditor’s opinion. The
auditor’s report may describe, for example:

. The underlying facts and information about the entity’s reporting pelicies—and
proeeduresprocess (e.g., the maturity of the entity’s reporting pelicies-and-procedures
process compared to others in the industry).

. The source of the reperting-pelicies-and-procedurescompilation methods, and whether
they are externally established (e.g., established in_section xxx of applicable

Ieglslatlon or externally establlshed performance frameworks)—and—rf—ﬂet—a

Commented [MP106]: There is a requirement for the auditor to
evaluate whether the entity has described its basis of prep so that
the users can understand the basis of prep. If this is done then there
is no need for the auditor’s report to make the criteria available but
the report may still cross refer to those reporting policies. Consider
deleting first sentence and retaining the rest —illustrate? Or is this
adequately covered in para below — second bullet point? Consider
combining.

Ci d [MP107]: Staples Rodway opposed to including

. Any significant interpretations made in selecting what service performance to report

on or applying the entity’s compilation methods er—apphying-the—entity’s—reperting
pelicies-and-procedures-in the circumstances.

. Whether there have been any changes in the entity’s reperting—pehicies—or

precedurescompilation  methods (e.g, changes in the measurement
rethedsperformance measures used).

. Findings or recommendations related-te-the-evaluation-ef the suitability-of the-entity’s
reperting—peticies—and—preeceduresfor improvements to the service performance

information.
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° Any other matters the auditor considers necessary to meet the needs of users.

> «—

AB5.A70.  The auditor is encouraged to report their findings or recommendations where the
auditor considers the information would enhance transparency and assist the user to
understand the level of maturity that the entity has achieved in its reporting. -Reporting of
findings and recommendations may promote and also highlight to the user improvements in
reporting over time.

Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report (Ref: Para. ., 53)
AB6-A71. A misstatement of the service performance information may arise in relation to:

(@ The suitability of the selected entitys—reperting—policies—and—proceduresservice

performance and related compilation methods;

(b) The application of the reperting-policies-orprocedurescompilation methods; er

(c) Inadequate disclosure of judgements made, where applicable; or

(d) Incomplete disclosures that do not include all disclosures required by the applicable
financial reporting framework or do not achieve fair presentation of the service
performance information.

A67AT72.  Inrelation to the suitability of the selected reperting-pelicies-and-preceduresservice

performance and related compilation methods, material misstatements of the service
performance information may arise, for example, when:

(@) The entity’s reperting-peticiesand-procedures-compilation methods are not consistent
with the principles in the applicable financial reporting framework.

(b) The entity has not appropriately applied the qualitative characteristics, in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework and therefore the service
performance information does not enable a meaningful assessment of performance
to be made by intended users.

AB8.A73.  The auditor may determine that a material misstatement exists in relation-to-the
suitabiity-of the reporting-policies-and-proceduresservice performance information:
(&) When, in the auditor’s professional judgement, the reperting-pelicies-and-procedures

compilation methods used are likely to mislead the intended users. A qualified
opinion or adverse opinion would be appropriate in the circumstances depending on
how material and pervasive the matter is.

(b) In other cases, a qualified opinion or a disclaimer of opinion would be appropriate
depending on, in the auditor’s professional judgement, how material and pervasive
the matter is.

AB9-AT4.  In relation to the application of the reperting-pelicies-and-procedurescompilation
methods, material misstatements of the service performance information may arise:

@™ Due to a misapplication of the
(e.g., an unintentional error in application).

compilation methods
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depending on how material the matter s,

Ci d [MP109]: Do we need to add more about the

(b) When the reporting pelicies—and-procedures-compilation methods are not applied
consistently to the service performance, or not applied consistently between periods.

A76:AT75.  Inrelation to the appropriateness or adequacy of disclosures in the general purpose
financial report, material misstatements may arise when:

(@) The general purpose financial report does not provide all disclosures required by the
applicable financial reporting framework.

(b) The general purpose financial report does not provide all disclosures necessary to
achieve fair presentation of the service performance information.

AFLAT6.  Appendix 4 includes illustrative auditor’s reports with a qualified, adverse or
disclaimer of opinion with respect to the service performance information.

AZ2AT7.  In many instances, a modification with respect to the service performance
information will have no impact on the opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information (Ref: Para. 560)

A73.A78.  Appendix 1 illustrates what constitutes other information for the purposes of this
NZ AS.

A74.AT9.  Other information, whether financial or non-financial information (other than the
financial statement information and service performance information) may be included in
an annual report. -The auditor’s opinion does not cover the other information. The auditor’s
responsibilities regarding other information within the annual report, but located outside of
the general purpose financial report as defined in this NZ AS, is determined by
ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) and by this NZ AS.
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What Constitutes the General Purpose Financial Report

NZAS1

Appendix 1
8, A35, A773)

Annual Report

General purpose financial report (subject to audit")

Information*

Other

matter

Financial performance | Statement of financial position

and position )
Statement of comprehensive
revenue and expenses
Cash flow statement

Service performance Service performance information*

Entity information#

Some entities are required by law or regulation to have the general

purpose financial report audited or reviewed. Other entities may elect to
include service performance information within the scope of the audit.
Where the service performance information is not included within the

scope of the audit, this NZ AS does not apply.

*  Service performance information may be included in the general
purpose financial report by cross-reference where the applicable
financial reporting framework permits disclosures to be cross
referenced.

# Where entity information is required to be included in the general
purpose financial report by the applicable financial reporting
framework.

*  Other information may include forward looking information, other
historical information and management discussion and analysis.
ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) addresses the auditor’s responsibilities with
respect to other information. ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) applies to the

service performance information when service performance information

is not included within the scope of the audit.
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Appendix 2
(Ref: Para. #{&)22)

Understanding the entity’s reporting process and evaluating the suitability of

the compilation methods used

Applicable financial

Preparer

reporting framework

Auditor

characteristics and
pervasive constraints

Financial Detailed recognition Apply the recognition | The recognition and
statements and measurement and measurement measurement
requirements requirements and requirements from PBE
established in PBE disclose the Standards are suitable
Standards accounting policies
applied
Service Principles require the | Develop a reporting Auditor evaluates
performance preparer to apply the process and related whether the selected
information qualitative compilation methods service performance

and related compilation
methods used are
suitable

Commented [MP110]: April meeting — requested flowchart of
the evaluation of the QCs and characteristics

Suggest replace this appendix — could be illustrated in examples
developed in separate guidance? Feedback from OAG Staff suggests
that this appendix has not provided the clarification it was
developed to provide.

Is the selected service performance and the
compilation methods used suitable? (Ref:

Para 22) 4!

These may be articulated
differently in the applicable
financial reporting framework

(Ref: Para. A29)*

Relevance Relevance.
Includes timeliness.
Reliability Includes verifiability

Completeness
Neutrality

Faithful representation including:

Completeness
Neutrality

Understandability

Understandability and
comparability

41 Paragraph 44, EG AulA, Framework for Assurance Engagements

42 The qualitative characteristics are described in PBE FRS 48 paragraph 9.
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Appendix 3

| Flowchart of the Audit of Service Performance Information (SP1) included in
the General Purpose Financial Report (GPFR)

Acceptance

The auditor shall obtain agreement from those charged with governance (TCWG) for: (Ref: Para. 11)
e For preparing SPHthe GPFR in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework

I

Commented [MP111]: Changes not marked so you can view the
flowchart

I Planning

(AFRF).
1

The auditor shall develop the audit plan to concurrently cover financial statement information together

with the SPI (Ref: Para. 21).

The auditor shall obtain an understanding of:

the AFRF and the legal framework applicable to the entity (Ref: Para. 18)
the entity’s service performance, the context in which the-entityit operates and its reporting process for
devalepingreperting-peliciesand-procedures-(Ref: Para.—8; 24)

hHow much discretion the entity has over what and how to report and/or the extent of consultation with

intended users to influence the nature of the SPI and the reporting-pelicies-and-procedures-compilation
methods used (Ref: Para. 24)

the mternal controls operatmg over preparatlon of the SPI (Ref Para. 303)

nel

erforming

[The auditor shall evaluate whether the entity’s reporting pehicies-and-procedures-process is 2
transparent and the compilation methods used are available to intended users as part of the SPI or in

the current year?

Has the entity appropriately ice performance and the compilation NO Discuss with TCWG.
W@W _ plicies-and-procedures-used suitable? Can meaningful

S . _‘ changes be made for
constraints in accordance with

the disclosure of judgements reported to enable the users to understand the process and

fnethodgelegy used for preparing the SPI. (Ref: Para. 236) es Y

¥

The auditor shall:

‘ o determine materiality levels and/or materiality factors fer-guantitative-SPHand-materiality

factors-for-qualitativeto be applied to the SPI. (Ref: Para. 3221)

e design and perform audit procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence in
relation to all material SPI. (Ref: Para. 35)

e request a written representation covering responsibilities for the SPI. (Ref: Para. 42)

|Reporting

1

The auditor shall form an opinion on whether the SPI presents fairly, in all material respects,
the service performance for the period in accordance with the AFRF.
Consider whether to prepare a long--form report (Ref: Para. A686).

Are there serious concerns about the suitability of the reperting-peticiescompilation methods,
the content of the SPI. and/or. the fair oresentation of the SPI. if aoplicable?

No ‘ 1 Yes 3

Issue an unmodified opinion Issue a modified opinion on Issue a moQified opinion
on the SPI in the GPFR. the SPI in the GPFR. on the SPI in the GPFR.
44
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Appendix E

(Ref: Para. A12)

Report—Including—Service—Performance —Information IIIustratlve Enqaqement Letter

Including Service Performance Information 4

The following is an example of an audit engagement letter for an audit of the general purpose
financial report, including service performance information prepared in accordance with Public
Benefit—Standardsthe applicable financial reporting framework issued by the New Zealand
Accounting Standards Board. This letter is not authoritative but is intended only to be a guide that
may be used in conjunction with the considerations outlined in the ISAs (NZ) ard-including NZ-AS
XXthis NZ AS 1. 1t will need to be varied according to individual requirements and circumstances.

*Kk*k

To the Chairperson:44
[The objective and scope of the audit]

You have requested that we audit the [general purpose financial report/performance report] of

Commented [MP112]: Moved - previously proposed to amend
ISA (NZ) 220 - recommend including in this standard based on
feedback received.

ABC [Entity], which comprise the:

the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and
the [entity mformatlon] [statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue
and expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity],; statement of cash flows_and [-service
performance information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. ;-and

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by
means of this letter.

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial report/performance report] as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)) and-NewZealand-Auditing
StandardNZ-AS) XX Fhe-Audit-of ServicePerfermance Information-will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

4 The addressees and references in the letter would be those appropriate in the circumstances of the engagement.
It is important to refer to the appropriate persons — refer to ISA (NZ) 210 paragraph A22.
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decisions of users taken on the basis of this [general purpose financial report/performance report].

[IThe responsibilities of the auditor]

Ci d [MP115]: How much emphasis to place on SPI?

We will conduct our audit of the [firancial—statementsgeneral purpose financial
report/performance report] in accordance with ISAs (NZ)-and-the-auditof the-service-performance

information-in-accordance-with-NZ-AS->XX-and-the SAs(NZ). Those standards require that we

comply with ethical requirements. As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (NZ), we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the [general purpose financial
report/performance report], whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. However, we will
communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies in internal control
relevant to the audit of the [general purpose financial report/performance report] that we
have identified during the audit.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Understand the reporting process applied by the entity to select what service performance

to report on and the compilation methods adopted to report its service performance;

Evaluate whether the selected service performance and the related compilation methods
used are suitable so as to result in service performance information that is in accordance
with the [Public Benefit Entity Standards];

Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by
those charged with governance and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the [entity]’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the general purpose financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the [entity] to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the [general purpose financial

report/performance report], including the disclosures, and whether the [general purpose
financial report/performance report] represent the underlying transactions, and-events_and
service performance in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

The consistency of the information reported in the financial statements and the service
performance information.
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Commented [MP116]: Consider combining with the above?
This is not reflected in the requirements

[Commented [MP117]: Moved above ]

[Commented [MP118]: Covered in last bullet point above ]

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal
control, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with ISAs (NZ)-are-NZ-AS>OX.

[The responsibilities of those charged with governance and identification of the applicable
financial reporting framework]

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that [those charged with governance] acknowledge and
understand that they have responsibility on behalf of the entity:

(a) For the preparation [and fair presentation] of the [general purpose financial
report/performance report] in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/}_Public
Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)]

(b) To follow a reporting process and adopt compilation methods that are suitable in order to
prepare service performance mformatlon in accordance wnhFer—sueh—Fepemﬁg—peheres

[Publlc Benefit Entlty Standards/Publzc Benef t Entity Szmple Fo: mat Reportmg Accrual

(Not-for-profit)|-thatate-suitable-in-the-contextef the fentity];

(c) For such internal control as [they] determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
[general purpose financial report/performance report]financial-report-that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

(d) To provide us with:

(i) Access to all information of which [management and those charged with governance]
are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the [general purpose financial
report/performance report]firancial-repert-such as records, documentation and other
matters;

(ii) Additional information that we may request from [management or the directors] for
the purpose of the audit; and

(iii) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary

47
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to obtain audit evidence.

As part of our audit process, we will request from [those charged with governance], written
confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit.

We look forward to full cooperation from your staff during our audit.
[Other relevant information]

[Insert other information, such as fee arrangements, billings and other specific terms, as
appropriate.]

[Reporting]
[Insert appropriate reference to the expected form and content of the auditor’s report.]

The form and content of our report may need to be amended in the light of our audit findings [and
may be in long--form, including findings or recommendations related to why-we-consider-that-the
entity’s service performance eriteria—information and compilation methods usedare-suitable;

findings-orrecommendations].

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgement of, and
agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the general purpose financial report including
our respective responsibilities.

[Governing body]

Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of the [Governing body] by

(signed)
Name and Title
Date

48
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Appendix 5

[Commenbed [MP119]: Moved into the domestic standard

)

(Ref: Para. A60)
Illustrative Representation Letter (including service performance
information)
m iveR ionl

The following illustrative letter includes written representations that are required by this standard

and other ISAs (NZ)-and NewZealand Auditing Standard 22X, It is assumed in this illustration that

the apphcable financial reporting framework is P&bl-t&Beﬂeﬁt—EﬁﬂFy—S&aﬂd—afdsa fair presentation
framework i i , and that there are no

C d [MP120]: Consider making more generic to apply

exceptions to the requested written representations. If there were exceptions, the representations
would need to be modified to reflect the exceptions.

(Entity Letterhead)
(To Auditor) (Date)

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the [general purpose
financial report/performance report]-finaneiatrepert of ABC Entity for the year ended December
31, 20XX which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the
[entity information], [statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue and
expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity], statement of cash flows and [service
performance information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policiesfinaneiat
statements—and-servieeperformance-information® for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the [general purpose financial report/performance report]finaneial-repert-complies with
[Public Benefit Entity (PBE) Standards/ Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual
(Not-for-profit)] and gives a true and fair view of the financial position of ABC [entity] as at
December 31, 20XX and of the [entity information], results of its operations,-and- its cash flows
and its service performance for the year then ended-and-the-servieeperformance-informationfor
Cremsens o saded

We confirm that (to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such enquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves):

[General Purposed Financial Report/Performance Report]

We have fulfilled our responsibilities on behalf of [the entity], as set out in the terms of the audit
engagement dated [insert date], for:

. -Tthe preparation, and fair presentation of the finaneial statements-and-service-performanee
information|general purpose financial report/Performance Report] in accordance with [ PBE

Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued
by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

4 Where the auditor reports on more than one period, the auditor adjusts the date so that the letter pertains to all
periods covered by the auditor’s report.
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The reporting process and compilation methods used that are suitable in order to prepare

service performance information Fhe—reporting—policies—and procedures—adopted—or
developed-bythe-entityto—implementin accordance with [PBE Standards/Public Benefit
Entzty Simple Format Reportmg Accrual (Not for prof t)]—tbr—repeftmg—th&enﬁw—s%ewwe

{eﬂ&t—y—} (NZ AS 199&)

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable. (ISA (NZ) 540)

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with PBE Standards. (ISA (NZ) 550)

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. (ISA (NZ) 560)

The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate _or collectively, to the [general purpose financial report performance report] as a
whole. A list of the uncorrected misstatements is attached to the representation letter.
(ISA (NZ) 450)

[Any other matters that the auditor may consider appropriate—{see-paragraph-At0-ofthis
BANS).]

Information Provided

We have provided you with?6:
o Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the [general purpose financial report/performance report] such as records,
documentation and other matters;

o Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
and

° Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the

financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the [general purpose

financial report/performance report] may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

(ISA (NZ) 240)

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are

aware of and that affects the entity and involves:

° Management;

o Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

46

If the auditor has included other matters relating to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in the
audit engagement letter in accordance with ISA (NZ) 210, Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements,
consideration may be given to including these matters in the written representations from those charged with
governance.
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o Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the [general purpose financial
report/performance report]. (ISA (NZ) 240)

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected
fraud, affecting the entity’s [general purpose financial report/performance report]
communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.
(ISA (NZ) 240)

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing a
general purpose financial report/performance report]. (ISA (NZ) 250)

We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. (ISA (NZ) 550)

We will provide the final version of the documents determined to comprise the annual report
to the auditor when available, and prior to its issuance by the entity.” (ISA (NZ) 720
(Revised))

[Any other matters that the auditor may consider necessary—{see—paragraph-AH—ofthis
FSA-NAN.]

Governing body member Governing body member

47

This is only required when the other information is not available until after the date of the auditor’s report.
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Appendix f)

( commented [MP121]: Moved

(Ref: Para. A65)

Illustration of Independent Auditor’s Report on the general purpose financial report,

including service performance information

audit (i.e., ISA (NZ) 600 does not apply).

framework).

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed:
. Audit of a general purpose financial report/performance report BEERE S RE e

en-of a public
beneflt entlty that is not a FMC reportlng entlty con5|dered to have a higher level of
public accountability using a fair presentation framework*®. The audit is not a group

e  The general purpose financial report/performance report is prepared by management

of the entity in accordance with Public-Benefit-Entity-Standards—{a general purpose

. The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of the responsibilities of those
charged with governance for the general purpose financial report/performance report

in ISA (NZ) 210.
the audit evidence obtained.

comprises all of the relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit.

(Revised).
matters in accordance with ISA (NZ) 701.

report and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information.
. The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law.

. The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on
. Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners

e Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material
uncertainty does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA (NZ) 570

e  The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit

. The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To Appropriate Addressee

4 The general purpose financial report may be referred to as a performance report and include entity information,

accordlng to the regulrements of the agphcable financial regortmg framewor what financial reporting
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Opinion

We have audited the [ general gurgose fnanczal report/ger[ormance regort] of ABC [enhty] which
comprise :

the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 20X1, and the [entity information). [statement of financial performance/statement of

comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity], and-statement of cash
flows and [service performance information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies [on pages

X to xx].

lIn] our opinion_Fthe accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance report] presents

fairly, in all material respects, (or gives a true and fair view of) ithe financial position of the [entity] as
at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its [entity information], financial performance,-ane-its cash flows and

service performance for the year then ended: andthe-service-performaneefor-the-year-then-ended-in
accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting —
Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

[For a long--form report, include a separate section, under an appropriate heading, for example:

° Underlying facts and information about the entity’s reporting process (e.g., the maturity of the
entity’s reporting process compared to others in the industry).

Hig tet i ing—+tThe source of the reperting
poheres—&nd—pfoeedufescompllatlon methods and whether thev are externally established.

° Any significant interpretations made in selecting what service performance to report on or
applying the entity’s compilation methods in the circumstances.

° Whether there have been any changes in the entity’s compilation methods (e.g., changes in the
performance measures used).

. Findings or recommendations for improvements to the reperting—policies—and procedures—or

service performance information-.

. Any other matters the auditor considers necessary to meet the needs of users.]

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial statements-report/performance report] in
accordance with Internat1ona1 Standards on Aud1t1ng (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ))—aﬂd—t-he—aﬁd-H—eﬁt-he

ef&#%e#e#em&nee#ﬁe#m&&eﬂﬂ%&h&l%%@%} Our respon51b111t1es under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial

Report/Performance Report] section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in accordance

with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued
by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
general purpose financial report/performance report and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in _accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Hlustration 1 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised).]

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report

Those charged with governance are responsible on behalf of the [entity] for:

(a) the preparation and fair presentation of the finaneial-statementsand-service-performanee

information[general purpose financial report/performance report] in accordance with
[Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual
(Not-, ZOr-gro[zjzzz issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board, and

(b) the: see A
are—neeessapy—te—lmplemem reportlnq process foIIowed and the compllatlon methods
adopted that are suitable in order to prepare service performance information in
accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format

Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit]-that-are-suitable-in-the-context-of the fentity];
(c) for such internal control as those charged with governance determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the [general purpose financial report/performance report]

finaneial-statements—and—service—performanee—information—that is free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the [general purpose financial report/performance report]finaneial-repert, those
charged with governance are responsible for assessing the [entity’s] ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless those charged with governance either intend to liquidate the [entity] or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s _Responsibilities for the Audit of the General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the [general purpose financial
report/performance report] as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate or collectively, they could
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reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this [general
purpose financial report/performance report].

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the [general purpose
financial report/performance report] is located at the XRB’s website at
https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/.
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the [general purpose financial report/performance report] or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]
[Date]
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Appendix 74
(Ref: Para. A75%)

Ilustrations of Auditor’s Reports with Modifications to the Opinion with Respect to the
Service Performance Information

Illustration 1: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements and a qualified opinion due to a material misstatement of the service
performance information.

Illustration 2: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements and an adverse opinion due to a material misstatement of the service
performance information.

Illustration 3: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements and a qualified opinion due to the auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence about a single element of the service performance
information.

Illustration 4: An auditor’s report containing a qualified opinion on both the financial
statements and the service performance information due to the auditor’s inability to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about a single element of the financial
statements.

Ilustration 5: An auditor’s report containing a disclaimer of opinion due to the loss of
records about multiple elements of the general purpose financial report.
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Illustration 1: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial statements
and a qualified opinion due to a material misstatement of the service performance information

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To [Appropriate Addressee]
Opinions

We have audlted the [ general gu}‘gose fmanczal report/ger[ormance regort] of ABC [entity], Whlch
comprise ! : 1 Worn
ﬁnaﬂe}al—statemems—eemﬁﬂsethe statement of ﬁnanc1al posmon as at December 31, 20X1 and the
[entity information], [statement of financial performance/statement of comprehenszve revenue and
expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity]—and, statement of cash flows and [service
performance information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Opinion on the [Entity Information and] Financial Statements

In our opinion, the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance report] on pages x
to xx presents fairly, in all material respects, (or gives a true and fair view of) the financial position of
the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its [entity information], financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with [ Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit
Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting
Standards Board.

Qualified Opinion on the Service Performance anormation‘

[ C d [MP126]: Can the auditors of tier 3 still say this? ]

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion on the
Service Performance Information section of our report the accompanying [general purpose financial
report/performance report] presents fairly, in all material respects (or gives a true and fair view of) the
service performance of the [entity] [on pages x to xx] for the year ended December 31, 20X1 in
accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting —
Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Service Performance Information

[As reported in the service performance information on page xx, the entity has identified its service
performance as [describe improvements reported or description of the difference that the entity has
made] and measured this performance by [list performance measures and/or descriptions reported] to
report its service performance. The entity has not been able to provide evidence of its role in those
particular improvements that—is%eﬂ-ﬂable—ﬁnd therefore should not have reported this improvement. |

‘We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial statements-report/performance report] in
accordance with Intematlonal Standards on Audltmg (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ))-and-theanditotthe

Ww&#&#@%&%e#gfwm&&w&%d&h%%@%} Our respon51b111t1es under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial

Report/Performance Report] section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in accordance
with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued
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by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report] and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Lllustration 6 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illustration 6 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information].

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the |General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report]

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the |[General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report|

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]
[Date]
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Illustration 2: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial statements
and an adverse opinion due to a material misstatement of the service performance information

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To [Appropriate Addressee]
Opinions

We have audlted the [ general gu} pose fmanczal report/ger[o; ‘mance regort] of ABC [entlty], whlch
comprise th ! : 1 Worn
ﬁnaﬂe}al—statemems—eemﬁﬂsethe statement of ﬁnanc1al posmon as at December 31, 20X1 and the
[entity information], [statement of financial performance/statement of comprehenszve revenue and
expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity] and—statement of cash flows_and [service
performance information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Opinion on the [Entity Information and] Financial Statements

In our opinion, the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance report|finaneiat
statements-on pages x to xx presents fairly, in all material respects, (or gives a true and fair view of) the
financial position of the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its [entity information], financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity
Standards_Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the
New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

Adverse Opinion on the Service Performance Information

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion on
the Service Performance Information section of our report the accompanying [general purpose
financial report/ performance report] does not present fairly (or does not give a true and fair view of)
the service performance of the [entity] [on pages x to xx] for the year ended December 31, 20X1 in
accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting —
Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Adverse Opinion on the Service Performance Information

[As reported in the service performance information on pages ..., the entity has identified its service
performance to include [list appropriate goods and services] and measured and evaluated this
performance with reference to [describe performance measures and/or descriptions reported] to report
its service performance.— -We do not consider that these performance measures will enable a
meaningful assessment of the service performance of the entity for the year ended December 31, 20X1
to be made. Had the entity identified more meaningful performance measures, the service performance
information would have been materially affected, reporting performance measures including xxx and
linking to its responsibility for yyyy.]

We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial statements-report/ performance report/ in

accordance with Internatlonal Standards on Audltmg (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)}aﬁdrtheaaditeﬁthe

ef—Sew;ee—Peaﬁa#maﬁee—hﬁ%Wfaﬁd—theISAﬁN-Z—) Our responsrblhtles under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial
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Report/Performance Report] section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in accordance
with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued
by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report] and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Lllustration 7 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illustration 7 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information].

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the |General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report|

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the |[General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report|

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]
[Date]
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Illustration 3: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial statements
and a qualified opinion due to the auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit

evidence about a single element of the service performance information

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To [Appropriate Addressee]

Opinions
We have audited the [general pur, gose fnzmczal report/gertoz marce repor f] of ABC [entity], which
comprise

finaneial statements—comprise-the statement of financial posmon as at December 31, 20X1, and the
[entity information], [statement of financial performance/statement of comprehenszve revenue and
expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity],—and—statement of cash flows and [service
performance information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Opinion on the [Entity Information and] Financial Statements

In our opinion, the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance report|finaneiat
statements-on pages x to xx presents fairly, in all material respects, (or gives a true and fair view of) the
financial position of the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its [entity information], financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity
Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the
New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

Qualified Opinion on the Service Performance Information

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion on the
Service Performance Information section of our report the accompanying [general purpose financial
report/performance report] presents fairly, in all material respects (or gives a true and fair view of) the
service performance of the [entity] [on pages x to xx] for the year ended December 31, 20X1 in
accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting —
Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Service Performance Information

[Some significant performance measures of the entity, rely on information from third parties, such as
(give examples). The entity’s control over much of this information is limited, and there are no
practical audit procedures to determine the effect of this limited control. For example, [describe
performance measure and explain where information comes from that we are unable to independently
test.]]

We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial statements-report/performance report] in
accordance with Internatlonal Standards on Audltrng (NeW Zealand) (ISAs (NZ))—aﬂd—t-h%aﬂd—rt—ef—t-he

efSe;%ee—Peﬁmmwzeeﬁfemeaﬁeﬁ—aﬁd—the—LSAséN% Our respons1b111t1es under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the General Purpose Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in accordance with Professional and
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Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report/ and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Lllustration 6 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illustration 6 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information]

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report/

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the_ |General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report]

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]
[Date]
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Ilustration 4: Qualified opinion on both the financial statements and the service performance
information due to the auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about a
single element of the financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To [Appropriate Addressee]

Qualified Opinion on the [General Purpose Financial Report/Performance Report/

We have aud1ted the [ general purpose fi z‘nanczal report ger{ormance regor ] of ABC [ent1ty], which

comprise th . : sery
éeﬁed#h%eeﬂﬁet%set—e#ﬁrmﬂe}al—s&a&emen&s—eem}pﬂs&the statement of ﬁnancral posmon as at
December 31, 20X1, and the [entity information], [statement of financial performance/statement of
comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity].-and statement of cash
flows and [service performance information/statement of service performance] for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

lIn] our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section

of our report the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance report] presents fairly,
in all material respects (or gives a true and fair view of)the financial position of the [entity] as at
December 31, 20X1, and (of) its financial performance, and-its-cash flows and service performance
information for the year then ended:-andthe serviee performanecefor the-year thenended in accordance
with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual
(Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

[As outlined on page xx of the [general purpose financial report/ performance report], [entity] has
not applied the requirements of the [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple
Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] to its grant expenditure. We have been unable to obtain
sufficient audit evidence to quantify the effects of this limitation. As a result of this matter, we were
unable to quantify the adjustments that are necessary in respect of grant expenditure in the [statement
of comprehensive revenue and expenses]; assets, liabilities and equity in the statement of financial
position, [total comprehensive revenue and expense] and opening and closing equity in the [statement
of changes in equity and grants expense] reported in the service performance information. ]

We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial statements-report/performance report] in
accordance with Intematronal Standards on Audrtmg (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ))and-theauditofthe

efSeree—Peﬁ{emwzee%nfe#ma%WkandrtheISAséN—Z) Our respon51b1ht1es under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial

Report/Performance Report] section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in accordance

with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued
by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].
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Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report/ and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Lllustration 6 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illustration 6 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information].

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report]

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the |[General Purpose Financial Report
[Performance Report]

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]
[Date]
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Ilustration 5: Disclaimer of opinion due to the loss of records about multiple elements of the
general purpose financial report/performance report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To [Appropriate Addressee]

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the [general purpose financial report/ performance report] of ABC [entity],
which comprise the Hinwicialstatementonpacesto-o-nd-serviceperformeanceinformeidon-on
pages-x-to-xx]—The-completeset-of finaneial statements-comprise-the-statement of financial position

as at December 31, 20XI1, and the [entity information], [statement of financial
performance/statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of changes in net
assets/equity] —and statement of cash flows and [service performance information/statement of
service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance
report] of the [entity]. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer

of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on this [general purpose financial report/performance report].

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

As stated in note ....on page..... of the [general purpose financial report/performance
reportlfinanecial-repert, a fire at the [entity]’s office destroyed many of the accounting records. The
general purpose financial report/performance report] consequently includes a number of material
amounts based on estimates. For this reason, we have been unable to confirm or verify [describe the
balances affected, for example, accounts receivable, accounts payable and within the service
performance information describe the service performance reported]. As a result of this matter, we
were unable to determine whether any adjustments might have been found to be necessary in respect
of recorded or unrecorded amounts, and the elements making up the statement of comprehensive
revenue and expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity, statement of cash flows and the serviee
performanee-information[service performance information/statement of service performance].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report/ and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Lllustration 6 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illustration 6 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information]

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the |General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report]

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see [llustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report]

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the [general purpose financial report/performance
report]finaneial-statements-in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand)
(ISAs (NZ))-and-the-audit-of the service manee-information, inaccordance with- New-Zealand

5 ora v a

£ o Standa / o-Sery Hel 2 . However,
because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on this

[general purpose financial report/performance reportlfinaneciatreport.

We are independent of the [entity] in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interest in, the [entity].
[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]

[Date]
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Conforming Amendments to Other Standards

New text is underlined.

Ci d [MP129]: Consider including in NZ AS rather than
ISA (NZ) 210
[" d [MP130]: Consider including in NZ AS ]

Commented [MP131]: Add an additional example for Tier 3 —
including entity information.

“‘[Commented [MP132]: Consider including in NZ AS. ]
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Conforming amendments to XRB Aul Application of Auditing and Assurance
Standards

Appendix 2 lists the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) to be applied in
conducting audits of historical financial information.

Appendix 2A will be added as follows:

Appendix 2A
Auditing Standards (New Zealand)

This appendix is an integral part of the Standard

This appendix lists the Auditing Standards (New Zealand) to be applied in conjunction with the
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) in conducting an audit of general purpose
financial reports which comprise the financial statements and service performance information.

NZ AS 15X The Audit of Service Performance Information

Appendix 6 Overview of Auditing and Assurance Standards of the XRB is to be amended as
follows:

Explanatory
Guides (EG) |—| XRB Au1: Application of Auditing and Assurance Standards
Audits and Reviews of Other Assurance
Historical Financial Engagements
Information
I
| |
ISAs (NZ) ISRE (NZ) 2400
lnter‘n‘atlonal Standards on International Standard ISAEs (NZ)
Auditing (New Zealand) on Review Engagement International
NZ AS (New Zealand) f\‘tandar ds on
New Zealand Auditing Ssurance
Standard X1X NZ SRE 2410 Engagements (New
—— New Zealand Standard Zealand)
| on Review
AGS Engagements SAEs
Audit Guidance Standards on
Statements Assurance
Engagements
IAPN (N2)
International
Auditing Practice
Notes (New
Zealand)
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ACCOMPANYING ATTACHMENT: CONFORMITY TO INTERNATIONAL AND
AUSTRALIAN STANDARDS ON AUDITING

This conformity statement accompanies but is not part of NZ AS 1>AX.
Conformity to International Standards on Auditing

There is no equivalent International Standard on Auditing (ISA), issued by the International
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB), an independent standard-setting board of the
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC).

Comparison with Australian Auditing Standards

There is no equivalent Australian Auditing Standard, issued by the Australian Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board (AUASB).
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NEW ZEALAND AUDITING STANDARD 1
THE AUDIT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
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History of Amendments
Table of pronouncements — NZ AS 1 The Audit of Service Performance Information

This table lists the pronouncements establishing and amending NZ AS 1.

Pronouncements Date Effective date
approved
New Zealand This NZ AS is effective for audits of service performance
Auditing Standard 1 information included in the general purpose financial
report for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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Introduction
Scope of this NZ AS

1. This New Zealand Auditing Standard (NZ AS) deals with the auditor’s responsibilities with
respect to service performance information when an auditor is engaged to audit the general
purpose financial report. Such an engagement would only be undertaken by the independent
auditor of the financial statements of the entity. The auditor performs the audit of the service
performance information concurrently with the audit of the financial statements. (Ref:
Para. Al)

2. This NZ AS establishes requirements and provides guidance not addressed by other
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)) with respect to service
performance information. (Ref: Para. A2)

3. This NZ AS applies when the auditor is required by law or regulation or is otherwise
engaged to audit the general purpose financial report, that is, engaged to audit both the
financial statements and the service performance information. For purposes of this
NZ AS, the financial statements and the service performance information are
collectively referred to as the general purpose financial report. (Ref: Para. A3-A5,
Appendix 1)

4.  This NZ AS is not applicable when a review engagement is to be performed on the general
purpose financial report.

Effective Date

5. This NZ AS is effective for audits of service performance information included in the
general purpose financial report for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. Early
adoption is permitted.

Objectives
6.  The objectives of the auditor are:

@ To understand the reporting process applied by the entity to select what and how
to report its service performance;

(b) To evaluate whether the service performance selected and the compilation
methods used are suitable so as to result in service performance information in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework;

(c) To obtain reasonable assurance about whether the service performance
information included in the general purpose financial report is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, thereby enabling the auditor to express
an opinion on the service performance information;

(@) To report, in accordance with the auditor’s findings, about whether the service
performance information included in the general purpose financial report is
prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework; and

(e) To communicate further as required by the ISAs (NZ) and this NZ AS, in
accordance with the auditor’s findings.

199525.1



NZ AS 1

Definitions
7. For purposes of this NZ AS, the following terms have the meanings attributed below:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

General purpose financial report — Comprise the financial statements and service
performance information and, where applicable, entity information, prepared in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The general purpose
financial report may be referred to as a Performance Report. (Ref: Appendix 1)

Long-form report — Auditor’s report including other information and explanations
that are intended to meet the information needs of intended users but not to affect the
auditor’s opinion. (Ref: Para. A68—A69)

Misstatement — A difference between the selection, measurement, description,
aggregation, presentation, or disclosure of service performance information and the
selection, measurement, description, aggregation, presentation or disclosure that is
required for the information to be in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework. Misstatements can be intentional or unintentional, qualitative
or quantitative, and include omissions. Misstatements can arise from error or fraud.

Other information — Financial or non-financial information (other than the financial
statements, service performance information, entity information, if applicable and
the auditor’s report thereon) included in an entity’s annual report. (Ref: Para. A5)

Risk of material misstatement — The risk that the service performance information is
materially misstated.

Reporting process — The process used by the entity in deciding how to meet the
principles of the applicable financial reporting framework in reporting its service
performance (including the selection, measurement, descriptions, aggregation and
presentation of its service performance information). The reporting process will
identify compilation methods that the entity will use in preparing its service
performance information. (Ref.: Para. A6—A7)

Requirements
Conduct of the Engagement in Accordance with ISAs (NZ)

8. The auditor shall apply the ISAs (NZ) and this NZ AS when auditing service performance
information, as appropriate. Where an entity is required to include entity information
within the general purpose financial report, and the auditor is engaged to audit the general
purpose financial report, the auditor shall also apply the ISAs (NZ) to the entity
information, as appropriate. (Ref: Para. A8—A11, Appendix 1)

9.  The auditor shall not represent compliance with this NZ AS unless the auditor has complied
with the requirements of both this NZ AS and the ISAs (NZ).

General Principles of an Audit of the General Purpose Financial Report

10. The auditor shall plan and perform the audit by exercising professional judgement and with
an attitude of professional scepticism, recognising that circumstances may exist that cause
the service performance information to require a material adjustment for it to be prepared
in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.
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Agreement on Audit Engagement Terms

11.

The terms of the audit engagement shall include: ! (Ref: Para. A12)
(@) The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to the general purpose financial report:

i. To understand the reporting process applied by the entity to select what service
performance to report on and the compilation methods adopted to report its
service performance;

ii. To evaluate whether the selected service performance and the related compilation
methods used are suitable so as to result in service performance information in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework;

(b) The responsibilities of those charged with governance, including that they
acknowledge and understand their responsibility to follow a reporting process and
adopt compilation methods that are suitable in order to prepare service performance
information in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework;

() The content of the auditor’s report, including whether it will be a long-form report,
including additional information about the reporting process, compilation methods,
detailed findings or recommendations to meet the needs of the intended users.

Documentation

12.

13.

The auditor shall document the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures performed
to comply with this NZ AS.? (Ref: Para. A13)

The audit documentation shall, as far as possible, provide evidence of the correlation
between the audit evidence obtained related to the financial statements and the service
performance information.

Laws and Regulations

14.

15.

The auditor shall obtain an understanding of:

(@) The legal and regulatory framework applicable to the entity and the industry or sector
in which the entity operates and, in particular, laws and regulations that specify the
form, content, preparation and audit of service performance information; and

(b) How the entity is complying with that framework. 3

The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the entity has complied
with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the reporting of service performance
information. *

1 ISA (NZ) 210, paragraph 9-10
2 ISA (NZ) 230, Audit Documentation, paragraphs 7-16

3 ISA(NZ) 315 (Revised), Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement through Understanding
the Entity and Its Environment, paragraph 11

ISA (NZ) 250 (Revised), Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements
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Communication with Those Charged with Governance

16. The auditor shall communicate the following matters with those charged with governance:®
() The auditor’s views about judgements made in reporting the entity’s service
performance information, including any deficiencies or areas for improvement. For
example, why the auditor considers the selected service performance or compilation

methods are not suitable to the circumstances; (Ref: Para. A14)

(b) Matters involving non-compliance with laws and regulations with respect to service
performance reporting obligations; and

(c) Deficiencies in internal control with respect to the service performance information
that, in the auditor’s professional judgement, are of sufficient importance to merit
attention.

Planning
17. The auditor shall develop the audit plan to concurrently cover the financial statement
information and the service performance information so that the audit is performed in the
most effective manner and reflects the correlation between the service performance
information and the financial statement information. ®
18. In establishing the overall audit strategy, the auditor shall:

(@) Obtain an understanding of the applicable financial reporting framework relevant to
service performance information;

(b) Obtain an understanding of who the intended users are and the entity’s reporting
process for understanding their information needs;

(c) Consider the factors that, in the auditor’s professional judgement, are significant in
directing the engagement team’s efforts in respect of the audit of service performance
information.

19. The auditor shall discuss with those charged with governance where and how the entity
intends to report its service performance information. (Ref: Para. A15)
20. If the entity intends to report service performance information about service performance

provided by other entities, the auditor shall:

(@) Obtain an understanding of the nature and significance of the services provided by a
service organisation and their effect on the user entity’s internal control relevant to the
audit of the service performance information, sufficient to identify and assess the risks
of material misstatement and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks in accordance with ISA (NZ) 402.” (Ref: Para. A16)

(b) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the service performance
information of the components and the consolidation process to express an opinion on

5

6

7

ISA (NZ) 260 (Revised), Communication with Those Charged with Governance, paragraph 14-17

ISA (NZ) 300, Planning an Audit of Financial Statements, paragraph 7

ISA (NZ) 402, Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation
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whether the group’s service performance information is prepared, in all material

respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.® (Ref: Para.
Al6)

Communicate clearly with the other practitioner about the scope and timing of the
work and findings of the other practitioner and evaluate the sufficiency and
appropriateness of evidence obtained and the process for including related information
in the service performance information when the auditor intends to use the work of
another practitioner, (Ref: Para. A17)

when planning the audit of the service performance information.

Understanding the Entity and Its Environment, Including the Entity’s Internal Control, and
Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement

Obtaining an Understanding of the Entity and Its Environment

21. The auditor shall obtain an understanding of:

(@)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()

The service performance of the entity and the context in which the entity operates;

The entity’s reporting process for identifying what service performance to report on
and the compilation methods adopted including how to measure, describe, disclosure
and present its service performance information, as well as what other options were
considered; (Ref: Para. A18—A20)

Whether the reporting process will generate service performance information that is

consistent with and clearly linked to the entity’s overall purpose and strategies; (Ref:
Para. A21-A23)

How much discretion the entity has in selecting what service performance to report
on and the compilation methods used to apply the applicable financial reporting
framework;

The extent to which consultation with intended users influenced the reporting process
and the compilation methods adopted to develop the service performance
information; and

The judgements made in deciding when to provide comparative narrative and
descriptive information.

22. The auditor shall evaluate whether the selected service performance and related
compilation methods are suitable so as to result in service performance information in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework, in that they exhibit the
following characteristics: (Ref: Para. A24-A29)°

ISA (NZ) 600, Special Considerations—Audits of Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of

Component Auditors)

The applicable financial reporting framework may describe different qualitative characteristics to these

characteristics which align with the characteristics referred to in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 210. The application
material in paragraphs A39-A43 may need to be tailored to the applicable financial reporting framework. This
is illustrated in Appendix 2.
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(@) Relevance (Ref: Para. A30)

(b) Completeness (Ref: Para. A31)

(c) Reliability (Ref: Para. A32)

(d) Neutrality (Ref: Para. A33)

(e) Understandability (Ref: Para. A34).

The auditor shall evaluate whether the entity’s reporting process is transparent so as to
enable intended users to understand the assumptions underlying the information and the
compilation methods adopted, for example, disclosed in the judgements reported as part of
the service performance information or by cross reference. (Ref: Para. A35-A36)

If the entity has changed what service performance it reports on or the compilation methods
used to report its service performance from the prior period, the auditor shall evaluate
whether the changes are suitable in the circumstances, have been approved appropriately,
and are explained within the service performance information.

The auditor shall evaluate:

(@) If significant aspects of service performance have been excluded, that have been, or
could readily be, measured and/or described, whether such exclusions are reasonable
in the circumstances; or (Ref: Para A37-A39)

(b) Whether the service performance information inappropriately attributes service
performance to the entity.

If the auditor considers that all or some of the entity’s service performance information:
(@) Fails to comply with the applicable financial reporting framework;
(b) Is prepared using compilation methods that are not suitable; or

(c) Otherwise fails to provide a reasonable basis for fairly reporting the service
performance of the entity;

the auditor shall discuss the matter with those charged with governance as soon as possible.
(Ref: Para. A40)

The auditor shall determine:
(@) Whether the matter can be resolved to the auditor’s satisfaction;

(b) Whether further audit procedures can be performed with respect to the service
performance information; or (Ref: Para. A41)

() Whether, and if so, how to communicate the matter in the auditor’s report where the
matter is not resolved to the auditor’s satisfaction.

In the circumstances described in paragraph 26, the auditor shall consider the implications
for the audit, the auditor’s report and the opinion and shall express a qualified, adverse, or
a disclaimer of opinion, as appropriate in the circumstances, with respect to the service
performance information. (Ref: Para. A71-A77)

In the circumstances described in paragraph 28, the auditor is not required to withdraw
from the audit of the general purpose financial report but shall consider the impact of the
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modified opinion with respect to the service performance information on the financial
statements.

Obtaining an Understanding of the Entity’s Internal Control

30.

The auditor shall: 1°

(@) Obtain an understanding of internal control over the preparation of the service
performance information; and

(b) Evaluate the design of those controls and determine whether they have been
implemented as designed. (Ref: Para. A42)

Materiality in Planning and Performing the Engagement

32.

33.

(Ref: Para. A43—A46, A30, A31)

(Ref: Para. A47—-A51)

The auditor shall determine and document materiality levels and/or materiality factors to be
applied to the service performance information for the purpose of assessing the risks of
material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit
procedures.!! (Ref: Para. A47-A51)

The auditor shall revise the judgements made in determining materiality for the service
performance information if matters come to the auditor’s attention during the audit that
would have caused the auditor to have determined different levels or factors initially.

Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement

34.

The auditor shall identify and assess the risks of material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error:

(a) At the general purpose financial report level;*
(b) At the service performance information level; and
(c) Atthe assertion level for material service performance information

through understanding the entity and its environment, including the entity’s internal control,
thereby providing a basis for designing and implementing responses to the assessed risks of
material misstatement in accordance with ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised).™® (Ref: Para. A52—A55)

10

11

12

13

ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised), paragraph 12

ISA (NZ) 320, Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit, paragraph 10 and 14
ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised), paragraph 25

ISA (NZ) 315 (Revised), paragraph 5

10
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The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks

35.

36.

The auditor shall design and perform procedures whose nature, timing and extent*:

(@) Are responsive to assessed risks of material misstatement of the service performance
information; and

(b) Allow the auditor to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material misstatement. The auditor’s procedures shall include
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to the operating effectiveness of
the relevant controls over the service performance information when:

0] The auditor’s assessment of the risk of material misstatement includes the
expectation that controls are operating effectively, or

(i) Where procedures other than tests of controls cannot provide sufficient
appropriate audit evidence. (Ref: Para. A56 — A58)

Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and
perform substantive procedures for all material service performance information.

Audit Evidence

37.

38.

39.

The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support material service
performance information, correlating, as far as possible, with the audit evidence obtained in
the audit of the financial statements. ** (Ref: Para. A59—-A60)

The auditor shall consider the relevance and reliability of the information to be used as audit
evidence. If:

(@) Evidence obtained from one source is inconsistent with that obtained from another;
or

(b) The auditor has doubts about the reliability of information to be used as evidence,

the auditor shall determine whether additional procedures are necessary to resolve the
matter, and shall consider the effect of the matter, if any, on other aspects of the audit.

The auditor’s procedures shall include:

(@) Agreeing or reconciling amounts reported in the service performance information to
any underlying financial records;

(b) Agreeing cross references between the service performance information and the
financial statements;

(¢) Understanding any allocation methods adopted and assumptions made, and
determining whether the methods adopted are suitable, have been applied
consistently and are consistent with the applicable financial reporting framework; and

(d) Reconciling the aggregate amounts reported in the service performance information
to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

14

15

ISA (NZ) 330, The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks
ISA (NZ) 500, Audit Evidence, paragraph 6

11
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40. The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether any disclosures
of judgements related to service performance information are reasonable in the context of
the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework.

Analytical Procedures

41. When designing analytical procedures, the auditor shall evaluate the service performance
information through analysis of plausible relationships among both financial and non-
financial data. 1°

Written Representations

42. The auditor shall request written representations from those charged with governance, with
appropriate responsibilities for and knowledge of the service performance information, that
they have fulfilled their responsibility to follow a reporting process and adopt compilation
methods that are suitable so as to result in service performance information in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework.!’ (Ref: Para. A61)

Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert

43. The auditor shall determine whether specialised skills or knowledge are required regarding
the service performance information and whether to use the work of an auditor’s expert. 18
(Ref: Para. A62)

Forming an Opinion and Reporting

44. The auditor shall form an opinion on whether the service performance information is
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework. 1° (Ref: Para. A63)

45. The auditor shall conclude whether, in view of the applicable financial reporting
framework:

(@ The service performance information will assist users in forming assessments about an
entity’s accountability for service performance and in making decisions that rely on
service performance information.

(b) The entity has followed a reporting process and adopted compilation methods that
are suitable so as to result in service performance information in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

(c) The assumptions underlying the information are explicit, the methods adopted in
compiling the information and the factors and circumstances that support any opinions
expressed or disclosures made are transparent to intended users. (Ref: Para. A64—A65)

16 ISA (NZ) 520, Analytical Procedures, paragraph 6

17 ISA (NZ) 580, Written Representations, paragraph 9

18 ISA (NZ) 620, Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert

1% ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised), Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements, paragraph 10

12
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When the general purpose financial report is prepared in accordance with a fair
presentation framework, the service performance information achieves fair presentation,
including whether:

(1) The overall presentation of the service performance information has been
undermined by including information that is not relevant or that obscures a
proper understanding of the matters disclosed;

(i) The overall presentation, structure and content of the service performance
information represents the service performance of the entity in a manner that
achieves fair presentation; and

(i) The disclosure of the judgements made in reporting the service performance
information, if applicable, is reasonable.

46. In order to form that opinion, the auditor shall conclude as to whether the auditor has
obtained reasonable assurance and shall take into account:

(@)
(b)

(©)

The auditor’s conclusion whether sufficient, appropriate audit evidence has been
obtained;

The auditor’s conclusion whether uncorrected misstatements are material,
individually or collectively;

The auditor’s evaluation of whether the service performance information is prepared,
in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework.

47. The auditor shall consider:

(a)

Any matters arising during the course of the audit of the financial statements that may
affect the auditor’s evaluation of the service performance information.

(b) The impacts of any matters arising during the audit of the service performance
information that may affect the auditor’s evaluation of the financial statements.
Report Content

48. The auditor’s report on the service performance information shall be included in a single
report on the general purpose financial report and shall include the elements required by
ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised). (Ref: Para. A66—A67)

49. The opinion section of the auditor’s report shall:

@)
(b)
(©)

Identify the service performance information;
State that the service performance information has been audited; and

Include the auditor’s opinion on the service performance information prepared in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

50. When expressing an unmodified opinion on the service performance information prepared
in accordance with a fair presentation framework, the auditor’s opinion shall, unless
otherwise required by law or regulation, use one of the following phrases, which are
regarded as being equivalent:

199525.1
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(@ In our opinion the accompanying general purpose financial report presents fairly, in
all material respects, the [financial position of the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1,
and its financial performance, cash flows and service performance] for the year then
ended in accordance with [the applicable financial reporting framework]; or

(b) In our opinion the accompanying general purpose financial report gives a true and
fair view of the [financial position of the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1, and of its
financial performance, cash flows and service performance] for the year then ended in
accordance with [the applicable financial reporting framework]. %

51. Inaddition to the requirements addressing financial statements in ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised),
the auditor’s report shall:

(@) Describe, in the responsibilities for the general purpose financial report section, the
responsibilities of those charged with governance to follow a reporting process and
adopt compilation methods that are suitable so as to result in service performance
information in accordance with [applicable financial reporting framework];

(b) In the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the General Purpose Financial
Report” section:

o Describe the audit by stating that, in accordance with this New Zealand
Auditing Standard, the auditor’s responsibilities are to evaluate:

i.  Whether the selected service performance and the related compilation
methods adopted are suitable so as to result in service performance
information that is in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework;

ii.  The overall presentation, structure and content of the general purpose
financial report, and whether the general purpose financial report
represents the underlying transactions, events and service performance in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework, including
where relevant its fair presentation; and

iii.  The consistency of the information reported in the financial statements
and the service performance information. (Ref: Para. A68—A70)
Key Audit Matters

52. The auditor may be required, or may voluntarily report key audit matters in the auditor’s
report.?! If reported, key audit matters shall include matters related to the audit of the service
performance information where, in the auditor’s judgement, such matters were of most
significance to the audit of the general purpose financial report.

Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report
53. The auditor shall modify the opinion, with respect to the service performance information,

20 |f the applicable financial reporting framework includes requirements for entity information, the opinion may be
required by law, regulation or otherwise to cover the entity information.

2L ISA (NZ) 701, Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report

14
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when: 22

(&) The auditor concludes that the selected service performance and related compilation
methods used are not suitable resulting in service performance information that is not
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework; (Ref: Para
A29-A34)

(b) The auditor concludes, based on the audit evidence obtained, that the service
performance information is not individually or collectively free from material
misstatement; or (Ref: Para. A71-A76)

(c) The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude that
the service performance information as a whole is free from material misstatement.

When the auditor modifies the opinion with respect to the service performance information,
the auditor shall consider the effects of the modification on the opinion on the financial
statements. If the reason for the modified opinion impacts on the general purpose financial
report as a whole, the auditor shall modify the opinion on the general purpose financial
report.

When the auditor modifies the audit opinion with respect to the service performance
information only, the audit opinion shall clearly indicate that the opinion on the financial
statements is not modified. The auditor shall use the headings “Qualified Opinion on the
Service Performance Information”, “Adverse Opinion on the Service Performance
Information” or “Disclaimer of Opinion on the Service Performance Information” as
appropriate. The opinion with respect to the financial statements shall use the heading

“Opinion on the Financial Statements”.>

If the auditor modifies the opinion on the financial statements, the auditor shall consider the
effect of the modification on the opinion on the service performance information. (Ref: Para.
AT7)

Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs

S7.

58.

If the auditor considers it necessary to draw users’ attention to a matter presented or
disclosed in the service performance information, that in the auditor’s judgement, is of such
importance that it is fundamental to users’ understanding of the service performance
information, the auditor shall include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the auditor’s
report. 24

If the auditor considers it necessary to communicate a matter other than those that are
presented or disclosed in the service performance information, that in the auditor’s
judgement, is relevant to user’s understanding of the audit of the service performance
information, the auditor shall include an Other Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report.

22

23

24

25

ISA (NZ) 705 (Revised), Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditors Report
Where appropriate, the heading may refer to the entity information.

ISA (NZ) 706 (Revised)

ISA (NZ) 706 (Revised)

15
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Comparative Information

59. Where the entity presents a comparison of published prospective service performance
information with the service performance information, the auditor shall evaluate whether
the prospective service performance information presented in the general purpose financial
report agrees with the information presented in the published prospective service
performance information.

Other Information

60. The auditor shall read the other information and consider whether there is a material
inconsistency between: 26

(@) The other information and the service performance information; and

(b) The other information and the auditor’s knowledge obtained in the audit of the general
purpose financial report. (Ref: Para. A78—-A79)

**k*

Application and Other Explanatory Material
Scope of this NZ AS (Ref: Para. 1-3, 7(d))

Al. Service performance information is information about what the entity has done during the
reporting period in working towards its broader aims and objectives, together with
supporting contextual information.

A2. Work performed in the audit of the financial statements can often be used for the purpose
of the audit of the service performance information. By highlighting matters that are
common to both the financial and service performance information, this NZ AS assists the
auditor to accept, plan, perform and report in an effective manner, as well as highlighting
areas where there are differences. This is to enable the auditor to perform the work
concurrently, effectively and in an all-encompassing manner.

A3. Some public benefit entities are required by the applicable financial reporting
framework to prepare service performance information as part of the general purpose
financial report. Appendix 1 illustrates what constitutes the general purpose financial
report.

A4. Principles and requirements for the reporting of service performance information are
specified within the applicable financial reporting framework as follows:

(@ For Tier 1 and Tier 2 public benefit entities, PBE FRS 48 Service Performance
Reporting.

(b) For Tier 3 public benefit entities, PBE Simple Format Reporting — Accrual.
(c) For Tier 4 public benefit entities, PBE Simple Format Reporting — Cash.

% 1SA (NZ) 720 (Revised), The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Other Information

16
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The Tier 3 and Tier 4 requirements also require entity information to be reported as part of
the general purpose financial report. These requirements refer to the general purpose
financial report as a performance report. For the purposes of this NZ AS, references to
service performance information shall be taken to include service performance
information and entity information, for Tier 3 or Tier 4 entities.

Some entities that are required by the applicable financial reporting framework to include
service performance information in the general purpose financial report, may not be
required by law or regulation to have the general purpose financial report audited or
reviewed. For example, tier 3 registered charities with operating expenditure under
$500,000, and all tier 4 registered charities may have no statutory assurance requirements.
Where the service performance information is not within the scope of the audit engagement,
the auditor’s responsibility for the service performance information is limited to following
the requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised).

Definitions (Ref: Para. 7(f))

A6.The applicable financial reporting framework includes principles to guide an entity to apply

AT.

a reporting process and adopt compilation methods to implement the applicable financial
reporting framework. The entity will apply its own reporting process to determine what
service performance to report on, and what performance measures and compilation
methods to use to measure and/or describe that service performance, how to structure the
information, as appropriate in the entity’s circumstances and how the information is related
to each other and the entity’s overall purpose and strategies. Even for the same underlying
service performance there can be different compilation methods, which will yield a different
measurement or description.

For example, a preparer might select, as one of the entity’s performance measures, the levels
of satisfaction using a rating scale on a survey; another preparer might select to report the
number of complaints received. These are both examples of how the entity evaluates its
service performance.

Conduct of the Engagement in Accordance with ISAs (NZ) (Ref: Para. 8)

A8.

A9.

The ISAs (NZ), which are based on the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), are
written in the context of an audit of financial statements by an auditor. They are to be
adapted as necessary in the circumstances when applied to audits of other historical
financial information. Although the service performance information is considered to be
an integral part of an entity’s general purpose financial report, the nature of the underlying
subject matter included in the service performance information includes non-financial
information which is not part of the financial statements as defined in the ISAs (NZ).
However, the requirements of the ISAs (NZ) apply equally to an audit of the entire
general purpose financial report, prepared in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework, where that financial reporting framework also incorporates
requirements to prepare service performance information.

The ISAs (NZ), including this NZ AS, covers all aspects of the audit of the general purpose
financial report and therefore there is no requirement for the auditor to apply
ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) to the service performance information.

17
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This NZ AS supplements the other ISAs (NZ). It expands on how the other ISAs (NZ) are
to be applied to the service performance information. This NZ AS includes specific
requirements for the service performance information that are not dealt with by the other
ISAs (NZ) or where the application of the other ISAs (NZ) differs as a result of the nature
of the service performance information.

The relevance of each of the ISAs (NZ) to the service performance information requires
careful consideration. For example, ISA (NZ) 240,%” ISA (NZ) 540,28 ISA (NZ) 550?° and
ISA (NZ) 570 (Revised)®® are, in principle, relevant. This is because the service
performance information could be misstated as a result of fraud, misstated estimates, the
effect of related party transactions, or the incorrect application of the going concern basis
of accounting under the applicable financial reporting framework.

Agreement on Audit Engagement Terms (Ref: Para. 11)

Al2. The terms of the audit engagement for the audit of the general purpose financial report

include references to the service performance information. An example of an audit
engagement letter for an audit of the general purpose financial report including service
performance information is set out in Appendix 4.

Documentation (Ref: Para. 12)

A13. The following are examples of matters that the auditor may consider to be appropriate to

include in the audit documentation:

o Planning: The overall engagement strategy, the engagement plan, capturing the
nature of the plan, reflecting plans to make connections between the financial
statements and service performance information, and any significant changes made
during the engagement, and the reasons for such changes;

o Materiality: The materiality level or levels and/or factor or factors for the service
performance information and matters considered in their determination;

o Risks of material misstatement: Key elements of the understanding obtained
regarding the entity and its environment specified in paragraphs 21, and the risks of
material misstatement for which in the auditor’s professional judgement further
procedures were required;

o Procedures: The nature, timing and extent of the further audit procedures performed,
the linkage of those further audit procedures with the risks of material misstatement,
and the results of audit procedures;

o Evaluation of misstatements: Misstatements accumulated during the engagement and
whether they have been corrected, the auditor’s conclusion as to whether uncorrected

27

28

29

30

ISA (NZ) 240, The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements

ISA (NZ) 540, Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, and Related
Disclosures

ISA (NZ) 550, Related Parties
ISA (NZ) 570 (Revised), Going Concern
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misstatements are material, and the basis for that conclusion.

Communication with Those Charged with Governance (Ref: Para. 16)

Al4.

The preparation of service performance information is highly judgemental. As a result, the
auditor’s views on the judgemental areas of the entity’s reporting process, compilation
methods or service performance reporting may be particularly relevant to those charged with
governance in discharging their responsibilities for the preparation of the service
performance information. Open and constructive communication including feedback on the
maturity of the entity’s reporting process, the suitability of its compilation methods or how
the information compares to other entities may drive improvements in reporting over time.
This may include comments about, for example, judgemental aspects of what service
performance to report on, concerns regarding bias or the quality of the presentation of the
information.

Planning (Ref: Para. 19-20)

Al5.

AlG6.

Al7.

Information required to be included in the financial statements by the applicable financial
reporting framework may be incorporated therein by cross-reference. 3 Such information
will form part of the financial statements. Service performance information that is
incorporated into the general purpose financial report by cross-reference will form part of
the general purpose financial report and will be subject to the audit in accordance with this
NZ AS.

The applicable financial reporting framework may allow flexibility in where and how an
entity reports its service performance information. It may be appropriate for an entity to
report service performance information about service performance provided by other
entities.  ISA (NZ) 402%2 may be relevant to the audit of the service performance
information, if the user entity makes use of a service organisation for the preparation of
service performance reporting with another entity or where the entity outsources aspects of
their business to organisations that provide services ranging from performing a specific task
under the direction of the entity to replacing an entity’s entire business units or functions
that are significant to the service performance information. Alternatively, ISA (NZ) 600%
may be relevant, adapted as necessary to the circumstances, when the auditor involves other
auditors in the audit of the service performance information where the service performance
information includes information about goods and services provided by other entities.

The service performance information may include information upon which another
practitioner may have expressed an opinion. The auditor, in concluding on the general
purpose financial report, may decide to use the evidence on which that other practitioner’s
opinion is based to provide evidence regarding the service performance information
included in the general purpose financial report. The work of another practitioner may be

31

32

33

ISA (NZ) 200, Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand), paragraph A2

ISA (NZ) 402, Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation

ISA (NZ) 600, Special Considerations — Audits of Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of
Component Auditors)

19

199525.1



NZ AS 1

used in relation to service performance information that falls outside the boundary of the
reporting entity. Such practitioners are not part of the engagement team. Relevant
considerations when the engagement team plans to use the work of another auditor may
include:

(@) Whether the auditor understands and complies with the requirements of Professional
and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised).

(b) The other practitioner’s professional competence.

(c) The extent of the engagement teams’ involvement in the work of the other
practitioner.

Understanding the Entity and Its Environment, Including the Entity’s Internal Control, and
Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement (Ref: Para. 21-29)

AlS8.

Al9.

A20.

A21.

The entity will follow its reporting process to identify what and how to report its service
performance to implement the applicable financial reporting framework applicable to its
circumstances. Without suitable compilation methods, the entity does not have an
appropriate basis on which to prepare the service performance information and the auditor
will be unable to meet the objectives of the audit. Without the frame of reference provided
by transparent assumptions and compilation methods, any conclusion is open to individual
interpretation and misunderstanding. The suitability is context-sensitive, that is, it is
determined in the context of the entity’s circumstances.

The selection of what service performance to report on and how to measure or describe that
service performance, and then aggregate and present the information is more judgemental
than reporting on financial information. Preparers of service performance information may
have a wide variety of performance frameworks, guidance, or codes (or a combination
thereof) to choose from in the preparation of this information. The entity will need to
interpret the applicable financial reporting framework and either identify or select a pre-
existing external reporting process, including pre-established performance measures and/or
descriptions from guidance, standards, or laws or regulation or it may need to apply
judgement to develop its own internally developed reporting process, identifying methods
for measuring or describing its service performance. The need for such judgement makes
the preparation of the service performance information inherently more susceptible to the
risk of bias.

In the example where an entity identifies stakeholder satisfaction as the underlying service
performance to report on, the entity identifies the most suitable method to measure or
describe this performance in the context of the entity.

The application of professional scepticism by the auditor is particularly important when
assessing the neutrality and completeness of the service performance selected and the
compilation methods used due to the level of judgement to be exercised by the entity. This
is particularly important if the entity’s compilation methods are not substantially based on
established compilation methods generally used in the entity’s sector, or are inconsistent
with such methods and assumptions. The auditor will need to apply significant professional
judgement in the assessment of the suitability of the selected information and the entity’s
compilation methods in situations where a well-designed due process is not followed or

20
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where the intended users were not involved in the selection of what service performance to
report on and/or the development of the compilation methods to be used.

A22. The reporting process applied by the entity to determine what to report on and how to report
its service performance may affect the work that the auditor carries out. The level of
potential preparer bias in selecting what and how to report its service performance will
directly correlate with the amount of work that the auditor will need to perform when
considering the design of the entity’s compilation methods. For example, use of performance
measures specified by external benchmarks or industry guidance may require less work than
internally generated performance measures as external guidance reduces the risk of bias.
Transparency about the entity’s reporting process and the entity’s consideration of
materiality may also affect the work that the auditor carries out.

A23. Factors that the auditor may consider in obtaining an understanding of the entity’s reporting
process include:

e  Whether there are factors that are outside the control of the entity or there are long
time frames that are required to make assessments of the entity’s service performance.

o Examples of the impact of the source of the compilation methods:

o  The scope of what service performance to report on or the compilation methods
adopted may be embodied in law or regulation specific to the entity, industry or
sector in which the entity operates and, in particular, with laws and regulations
that specify the form and content of service performance information or which
describe the entity’s accountability. In the absence of indications to the contrary,
such compilation methods are presumed to be suitable.

o  The entity may use a well-established performance framework, theory of change
or intervention logic model to explain how its service performance during the
reporting period relates to its broader aims and objectives, for example, a local
authority’s Long-Term Plan. Compilation methods and/or performance
measures that have been pre-agreed with key stakeholders may have a lower risk
of preparer bias.

o  Theentity may have described predetermined objectives or specific performance
goals or targets in agreements with key stakeholders (e.g., in an entity’s Long-
Term Plan or in funding contracts or agreements with key funders) or in the
entity’s statement of intent or charter and recent plans and strategies.
Performance measures that have been pre-agreed with key stakeholders may
have a lower risk of preparer bias.

o  Guidelines developed and issued collectively by a group or published in journals
or results of benchmarking studies, for example, central agencies may provide
guidance or establish requirements for the preparation of service performance
information. The auditor may need to evaluate the suitability of these guidelines
to the entity’s circumstances and to how these align to intended users’ needs. A
more detailed set of compilation methods or performance measures may be more
appropriate.

o Results of surveys, e.g., satisfaction surveys, or other evidence of stakeholder
consultation, e.g., feedback, complaints, targeted interviews or stakeholder

21
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workshops, providing information about who the intended users are and what
information they may find helpful to assess the performance of the entity. A well-
designed process in developing what service performance to report on and the related
compilation methods with involvement of intended users lowers the risk of preparer
bias.

e  Other external requirements or agreements with external parties that influence the
entity’s service performance accountability.

e  Other contextual information, including strategic and operational objectives. For
example, an entity’s constitution, trust deed, mission statement, recent plans and
strategies.

e  How the entity assesses its service performance for the purposes of internal decision
making.

e  Whether the entity’s compilation methods have been validated through research
conducted to be well correlated with what they are intended to measure or describe.

e  Changes from the prior period in the nature or extent of operations.

e  Whether it is appropriate to report on information that falls outside of the boundary of
the reporting entity.

A24. When evaluating whether the selected service performance and related compilation
methods are suitable, the auditor is evaluating the preparers judgements made in applying
the qualitative characteristics referred to in the applicable financial reporting framework.
The qualitative characteristics described in the applicable financial reporting framework
are similar to the characteristics of suitable criteria described in paragraph 22 but may differ
in the words used. The characteristics in paragraph 22 are framework neutral. Appendix 2
illustrates the similarities.

A25. The characteristics are not mutually exclusive, and the relative importance of each
characteristic will vary according to the circumstances. The preparer will exercise
significant judgement to develop its reporting process and compilation methods to report
the entity’s service performance that meet the qualitative characteristics.

A26. The auditor’s role is to evaluate whether the entity has appropriately applied the qualitative
characteristics and pervasive constraints as required by the applicable financial reporting
framework in preparing the service performance information. In doing so, the auditor
evaluates whether the selected service performance and related compilation methods are
suitable. This evaluation will be based on a consideration of the process adopted, and
choices and trade-offs made by the preparer in determining the most appropriate manner in
which to tell the entity’s service performance story.

A27. The selected service performance and compilation methods used are suitable when the
entity has appropriately applied the qualitative characteristics and pervasive constraints to
enable users to make an informed assessment of the entity’s service performance, and
include reasonable quantitative or qualitative measures or descriptions of service
performance against which the entity’s service performance may be assessed and are of
particular value or importance for accountability and decision-making purposes.
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A28. When evaluating the suitability of the selected service performance and related compilation
methods as required by paragraph 22, the auditor may consider:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)
(f)

(@)

(h)
(i)

The intended users of general purpose financial reports and their information needs,
whether users were involved in the selection of what to report on or development of
the compilation methods adopted and if not, reasons why not;

How the qualitative characteristics applied by the preparer have influenced the
reporting process (e.g., service performance information must be relevant, but the
overall volume of information must also be accessible in order for it to be
understandable);

The various components of the entity’s service performance and check for credible
links, internal logic and consistency with the financial information

How the entity plans to present and disclose financial and service performance
information that is material;

The complexity of the underlying service performance;

Other potentially more suitable compilation methods that could have been used and
reasons why those were not considered;

Potential misunderstanding of the resultant service performance information
generated after application of the reporting process by intended users; and

Knowledge of other similar entities reporting format.
Web and social media searches.

A29. The evaluation required by paragraph 22 may be iterative and may require re-evaluation as
the auditor’s understanding of the entity or the needs of intended users grows, if the entity
makes changes to its service performance information, performance measures or
descriptions or as the auditor gathers audit evidence.

A30. Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating relevance include:

199525.1

The rationale for the selection of what service performance to report on, for example,
whether the service performance relates to a significant risk to the public (e.g., the
purity of water supply) or that could have a positive or negative effect on social,
economic, or environmental wellbeing.

Whether the service performance information is likely to meet the needs of intended
users so as to be useful for decision making, for example, is of significant community
interest or interest to the public.

The extent to which consultation with users has influenced the selection of what
service performance to report and the compilation methods used.

Information that could significantly affect the reputation of the entity.

Whether the service performance information shows clear and logical links between
the service performance to be measured or evaluated and the entity’s overall purpose
and strategies so that the rationale for their selection is evident.

Whether the compilation methods used will generate service performance information
that will be consistent and clearly linked with the financial information for example,
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relates to service performance that is financially material; or relates to a performance
measure that may have a significant effect on management performance rewards.

A31. Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating completeness include whether:

All significant aspects of service performance that would enable the user to make an
informed assessment are included,

The service performance includes negative aspects of performance or areas where
there is a significant risk of performance failure by the entity.

Completeness relates more to a balanced reflection of service performance rather than an
overly comprehensive and extensive set of performance measures which can result in too
much information, reducing the relevance of the report.

A32. Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating reliability include whether:

The service performance Is capable of measurement or description in a consistent
manner from period to period;

The reporting process is well defined and there is likely to be evidence to support the
information that will be generated;

The service performance information is capable of validation by the auditor and will
not result in unsubstantiated claims, including whether there is a robust and reliable
collection process;

The compilation methods are likely to result in service performance information that
is free from material misstatements, including omission of fact, or misrepresentation
of trend;

The compilation methods are consistent with industry benchmarks, where these are
available.

A33. Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating neutrality include whether the service
performance information:

Is balanced, and is likely to result in information that is aggregated, where appropriate,
and covers all important aspects, with suitable emphasis, to fairly reflect the
significance to the entity’s service performance;

Covers both favourable and unfavourable aspects of the entity’s service performance
in an unbiased manner;

Is not changed arbitrarily to remove negative aspects of performance year on year.

Special care may be necessary to evaluate neutrality where, for example, there are no
compilation methods established externally, no predetermined performance measures
established with key stakeholders or no guidelines developed by an external industry group.

A34. Factors that the auditor may consider when evaluating understandability include whether:

199525.1

The format adopted is clearly laid out and presented in a way that will enable the user
to identify the main points of the entity’s service performance in that year;

The assessment of service performance is coherent, easy to follow, and will result in
service performance information that is clear and logical,

24



NZ AS 1

o The service performance information is concise and aggregated where appropriate;
o The information is explained and presented in a way that makes its significance clear.

A35. In determining whether the reporting process is transparent and the compilation methods are
available to users, the auditor may consider whether there will be enough context for the
service performance information, including whether the rationale for determining:

(@ What service performance to report on; and

(b) Whether to include information about the role of other entities, collaborative
relationships and the provision of resources to others

is transparent to users so that users can understand the judgements made in preparing the
service performance information.

A36. Disclosure of the judgements made by the entity is important in making the reporting process
and compilation methods available to intended users, where, for example, the entity has
more discretion in selecting what service performance to report on and the compilation
methods to use (i.e., the reporting process is internally generated). Alternatively, the
reporting process may originate from an external performance framework supplemented by
disclosures, in the explanatory notes to the general purpose financial report.

A37. In the early stages of reporting service performance information, the entity may not have
developed an appropriate reporting process supported by internal controls and may therefore
be unable to include certain aspects of its service performance in its service performance
information. The auditor exercises professional judgement to conclude on the impact of any
such omissions (including those for which the entity has provided reasons or explanations).
This is particularly relevant since entities may be at varying stages of maturity in respect of
preparing service performance information.

A38. For example, in the early stages of an entity generating service performance information, it
may focus its reporting on a particular area of service performance because reporting
systems have not yet been established and implemented for other areas. The auditor may
still be able to conclude that the selection of service performance and the related compilation
methods are suitable if there are:

(@) Clear disclosures in the service performance information of the facts and reasons
surrounding the exclusion of some service performance. However, if the entity makes
no progress in developing reporting systems over time or continues to exclude service
performance once reporting systems are established and implemented, the auditor may
no longer be satisfied that the selection and compilation methods are suitable; and

(b) The auditor concludes that the disclosures provided will meet the information needs
of the intended users.

A39. Service performance information reported because it is readily quantifiable may not be
suitable and may not meet the principles of the applicable financial reporting framework.
For example, the entity may select service performance to report on the basis that the
selected performance is readily measurable. However, it may not be the most relevant
information to enable the user to understand or assess the service performance of the entity
during the year.

A40. Communication with those charged with governance in a timely manner may enable
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improvements to be made to the service performance information.

A41. Factors the auditor may consider in determining whether to perform further audit procedures
include:

(@) The pervasiveness of the matter;
(b) The materiality of the matter;

() Whether the auditor’s concern is with respect to the presentation of the information
only;

(d) Whether further audit procedures will enable the auditor to express an opinion on
some of the service performance information.

Obtaining an Understanding of the Entity’s Internal Control (Ref: Para. 30)

A42. Control activities that may be relevant to the audit of the financial statements include
policies and procedures that pertain to internal management performance reviews,**
including reviews and analyses of actual performance versus budgets and relating different
sets of data — operating or financial — to one another. An understanding of the control
activities that pertain to performance reviews will be especially relevant to the audit of the
general purpose financial report and may assist the auditor to audit the service performance
information concurrently with the financial information.

Materiality in Planning and Performing the Engagement (Ref: Para. 31-32)

A44. The applicable financial reporting framework discusses the concept of materiality in the
context of preparation and presentation of service performance information.®® Such a
discussion provides a frame of reference to the auditor in determining materiality. The
auditor’s consideration of the entity’s reporting process provides context in determining
materiality.

A46. When determining materiality, the auditor may:

34 ISA (N2Z) 315 (Revised), Appendix 1, paragraph 9

%5 PBE IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, paragraphs 46A.1—2 and Explanatory Guide A7:
Materiality for Public Benefit Entities
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e  Discuss the entity’s process for determining material service performance information
with management and those charged with governance (and, if necessary and
appropriate, external stakeholders). It may be appropriate to discuss matters with
external stakeholders when the determination of the entity’s material service
performance information includes, for example, clearly contentious issues or
performance measures for which there is no evidence to support the entity’s role in
the improvements reported.

e  Consider whether the entity’s determination of material service performance
information is consistent with the auditor’s knowledge of the entity and the
environment, including reporting by similar entities and previous reporting by the
entity and information obtained from sources such as minutes of meetings, media
reports and any stakeholder outreach activities, including satisfaction surveys,
feedback and complaints received, web and social media searches, targeted interviews
or stakeholder workshops.

Materiality levels and factors

The materiality level or levels are expressed in terms of the appropriate unit of

A48. There are multiple factors that may lead to a material misstatement:
(@ Omissions of fact — could omissions result in misleading the user?
(b) Misstatements of fact — could a misstatement result in misleading the user?

(c) Misrepresentation of trend — does the service performance information make claims
that do not represent the facts available?

(d) Bias — does the service performance information focus unduly on positive aspects of
performance, or omit negative aspects?

(e) Unsubstantiated claims.

A49. The following factors may assist the auditor when exercising professional judgement in
determining whether there are material misstatements in either the qualitative or quantitative
service performance information:

How the information is presented. FoFexample; does the presentation draw:attention
The auditor may be less tolerant of misstatement in

information that is given the most prominence.

(b) The relative volatility of reported service performance information. For example, if
service performance information varies significantly from period to period.

(¢) The number of persons or entities affected.

(@) |The importance of the activity to achieving the entity’s service performance
ohjectives. TN o e e Ao e ey
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—

(e) The extent of interest shown in particular aspects of service performance by, for
example, the legislature, funders, the media or the public

-The type of performance measures and/or descriptions adopted, including I

In some cases, there are particular types of disclosures for which misstatements of
lesser or greater amounts are acceptable.

(g) The interaction between, and relative importance of, various components of the
service performance information when it is made up of multiple components, such as
information that includes numerous performance measures or relates to an activity that
is financially significant. The auditor may be less tolerant of misstatement for
information that is given the most prominence

-The economic, social,

olitical and environmental effect of a project or an entity’s

hether a misstatement is the result of an intentional act or is unintentional

(K) Whether a misstatement is significant having regard to the auditor’s understanding of
known previous communications to users.

() Whether a particular aspect of the service performance information is significant with
regard to the nature, visibility and sensitivity of the information. For example,

A50. The auditor is unlikely to be able to set an overall materiality level because there is unlikely
to be a common unit of account. It is also unlikely that the auditor will be able to aggregate
misstatements. However, this does not remove the need for the auditor to form a conclusion
as to whether uncorrected misstatements are material individually or collectively as required
by paragraph 46.

A51. For historical financial information extracted from the audited financial statements, the
engagement team may determine that the materiality level or levels used in the audit of the
financial statements are acceptable for the purposes of the service performance information.
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Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement (Ref: Para. 34)

A52.

The auditor assesses the risk of material misstatement at the general purpose financial report
level considering the links between the financial statement information and the service
performance information in order to form an overall opinion as to whether the general
purpose financial report is materially misstated.

Assertions about service performance and related disclosures

AS53.

The auditor may use the assertions as described in paragraph A55 below or may express
them differently provided all aspects described below have been covered. For example, the
auditor may choose to combine the assertions about occurrence and attribution.

A54. In the public sector, the entity may assert compliance with law or regulation, in addition to

AS55.

the assertions set out in paragraph A55 below.

Assertions used by the auditor in considering the different types of potential misstatements
of service performance information that may occur may fall into the following categories:

(@) Occurrence — service performance that has been reported has occurred.

(b) Attributable to the entity — the service performance reported by the entity includes
only service performance that the entity has evidence to support its involvement with.

(c) Completeness — all significant service performance that should have been reported
has been included in the service performance information.

(d) Accuracy — service performance has been reported, measured and described
appropriately and is consistent with financial statement information.

(e) Cut-off — the service performance has been reported in the correct period.

(f)  Presentation — service performance is appropriately aggregated or disaggregated and
clearly described, and related disclosures are relevant and understandable.

The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks (Ref: Para. 35-36)

AS56.

AS57.

AS58.

Procedures that may be performed include:

(@) Testing and evaluating the systems, processes and controls that capture, record,
analyse and monitor the service performance information;

(b) Performing analytical review procedures;
(c) Performing other substantive or re-performance tests.

The quality of the systems used to record and control results, and the nature and quality of
evidence available, may have an effect on the mix of procedures used. For instance, a weak
recording or control system may force the auditor to use primarily substantive procedures.
In rare cases, the absence of controls may make it impossible to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence.

In some instances, there may not be control activities that could be identified by the auditor,
or the extent to which their existence or operation have been documented by the entity may
be limited. Insuch cases, it may be more efficient for the auditor to perform audit procedures
that are primarily substantive procedures. In rare cases, the absence of controls may make
it impossible to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.
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Audit Evidence (Ref: Para. 37)

A59. Making correlations with audit evidence obtained in the audit of the financial statements, as
far as possible, maximises the effectiveness of the audit of the general purpose financial
report.

A60. The mix of procedures to be performed may vary compared with the mix used in regard to
the financial information but does not alter the need to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence.

Written Representations (Ref: Para. 42)

A61. The representation letter for the audit of the general purpose financial report includes
references to the service performance information. An example of an illustrative
representation letter for the audit of the general purpose financial report that includes service
performance information is set out in Appendix 5.

Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert (Ref: Para. 43)

A62. Expertise in a field other than accounting or auditing may be necessary as a result of
information included in the service performance information. Expertise in a field other than
accounting or auditing may include expertise in relation to such matters as:

o The measurement of complex performance measures, for example:
o  Climate change calculations;
o  Specific scientific measurements;
o  Social impact measurement
o  Human rights performance
o  People and diversity disclosure

o Assertions made about the entity’s performance, for example, when reporting on the
difference that the entity has made;

. Conformity assessments, ecolabelling and certification programmes.

Forming an Opinion and Reporting (Ref: Para. 44—-47)
AB63. The auditor’s conclusion on the service performance information covers both:

(@) Whether the selected service performance and the related compilation methods used
are suitable so as to result in service performance information in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework; and

(b) Whether the service performance information represents the underlying service
performance in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
including where relevant its fair presentation.

A64. Those charged with governance will make a number of judgements about the selection,
measurement, description, aggregation and presentation of information reported. In
considering the qualitative characteristics described in the applicable financial reporting
framework, the auditor may become aware of bias. The auditor may conclude that the
cumulative effect of the lack of neutrality, together with the effect of uncorrected
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misstatements causes the service performance information to be materially misstated.

The disclosure of the judgements made in selecting and aggregating service performance
information is particularly important so that users can understand how particular matters are
reported in the service performance information.

Report Content (Ref: Para. 48-51)

AGG6.

AG67.

AGS.

AB9.

AT70.

The auditor’s report on the general purpose financial report includes references to the service
performance information. An illustrative report that includes references to the service
performance information is set out in Appendix 6.

The auditor may assert compliance with the International Standards on Auditing (New
Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)) but may not assert compliance with the International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) where the auditor’s report refers to service performance information.

This NZ AS requires the auditor’s report to include at least all elements required by
ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised). However, this NZ AS allows for flexibility and an auditor may
include additional information, as described in paragraphs A68-A69, resulting in a long-
form report.

The auditor’s report may describe additional details relevant to the audit of the service
performance information that are intended to meet the information needs of users but not to
affect the auditor’s conclusion. This information may be required by legislation or agreed
in the terms of the engagement to meet the needs of users. If the report includes other
information it is a long-form report as the information is additional to the basic elements
required in paragraph 51. A long-form report should not be worded in a manner that it may
be regarded as a modification of the auditor’s opinion. The auditor’s report may describe,
for example:

. The underlying facts and information about the entity’s reporting process (e.g., the
maturity of the entity’s reporting process compared to others in the industry).

o The source of the compilation methods, and whether they are externally established
(e.g., established in section xxx of applicable legislation or externally established
performance frameworks).

o Any significant interpretations made in selecting what service performance to report
on or applying the entity’s compilation methods in the circumstances.

J Whether there have been any changes in the entity’s compilation methods (e.g.,
changes in the performance measures used).

. Findings or recommendations for improvements to the service performance
information.

o Any other matters the auditor considers necessary to meet the needs of users.

The auditor is encouraged to report their findings or recommendations where the auditor
considers the information would enhance transparency and assist the user to understand the
level of maturity that the entity has achieved in its reporting. Reporting of findings and
recommendations may promote and also highlight to the user improvements in reporting
over time.
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Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report (Ref: Para. 31, 53)

AT1. A misstatement of the service performance information may arise in relation to:

(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)

The suitability of the selected service performance and related compilation methods;
The application of the compilation methods;
Inadequate disclosure of judgements made, where applicable; or

Incomplete disclosures that do not include all disclosures required by the applicable
financial reporting framework or do not achieve fair presentation of the service
performance information.

AT72. In relation to the suitability of the selected service performance and related compilation
methods, material misstatements of the service performance information may arise, for
example, when:

(@)

(b)

The entity’s compilation methods are not consistent with the principles in the
applicable financial reporting framework.

The entity has not appropriately applied the qualitative characteristics, in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework and therefore the service
performance information does not enable a meaningful assessment of performance
to be made by intended users.

AT73. The auditor may determine that a material misstatement exists in the service performance
information:

(@)

(b)

When, in the auditor’s professional judgement, the compilation methods used are
likely to mislead the intended users. A qualified opinion or adverse opinion would be
appropriate in the circumstances depending on how material and pervasive the matter
is.

In other cases, a qualified opinion or a disclaimer of opinion would be appropriate
depending on, in the auditor’s professional judgement, how material and pervasive
the matter is.

AT74. In relation to the application of the compilation methods, material misstatements of the
service performance information may arise:

(@)

(b)

Due to a misapplication of the compilation methods (e.g., an unintentional error in
application). A qualified opinion may be appropriate in the circumstances where
there is a material misstatement that is not pervasive, depending on how material the
matter is.

When the reporting compilation methods are not applied consistently to the service
performance, or not applied consistently between periods.

AT5. Inrelation to the appropriateness or adequacy of disclosures in the general purpose financial
report, material misstatements may arise when:

(@)

(b)

199525.1

The general purpose financial report does not provide all disclosures required by the
applicable financial reporting framework.

The general purpose financial report does not provide all disclosures necessary to
achieve fair presentation of the service performance information.
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AT76. Appendix 4 includes illustrative auditor’s reports with a qualified, adverse or disclaimer of
opinion with respect to the service performance information.

AT7. In many instances, a modification with respect to the service performance information will
have no impact on the opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information (Ref: Para. 60)
AT78. Appendix 1 illustrates what constitutes other information for the purposes of this NZ AS.

AT79. Other information, whether financial or non-financial information (other than the financial
statement information and service performance information) may be included in an annual
report. The auditor’s opinion does not cover the other information. The auditor’s
responsibilities regarding other information within the annual report, but located outside of
the general purpose financial report as defined in this NZ AS, is determined by
ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) and by this NZ AS.
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Appendix 1
(Ref: Para. 7(a), 8, A3, A77)

What Constitutes the General Purpose Financial Report

199525.1

Annual Report

General purpose financial report (subject to audit”) Other

Information*

Financial performance | Statement of financial position

and position _
Statement of comprehensive
revenue and expenses
Cash flow statement

Service performance Service performance information*

Entity information#

Some entities are required by law or regulation to have the general
purpose financial report audited or reviewed. Other entities may elect to
include service performance information within the scope of the audit.
Where the service performance information is not included within the
scope of the audit, this NZ AS does not apply.

*  Service performance information may be included in the general

purpose financial report by cross-reference where the applicable
financial reporting framework permits disclosures to be cross
referenced.

#  Where entity information is required to be included in the general

purpose financial report by the applicable financial reporting
framework.

* Other information may include forward looking information, other

historical information and management discussion and analysis.

ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) addresses the auditor’s responsibilities with
respect to other information. ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) applies to the
service performance information when service performance information
is not included within the scope of the audit.
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Appendix 2
(Ref: Para. 22)

Understanding the entity’s reporting process and evaluating the suitability of

the compilation methods used

Applicable financial
reporting framework

Preparer

Auditor

characteristics and
pervasive constraints

Financial Detailed recognition Apply the recognition | The recognition and
statements and measurement and measurement measurement
requirements requirements and requirements from PBE
established in PBE disclose the Standards are suitable
Standards accounting policies
applied
Service Principles require the | Develop a reporting Auditor evaluates
performance preparer to apply the process and related whether the selected
information qualitative compilation methods | service performance

and related compilation
methods used are
suitable

Para 22) 3¢

Is the selected service performance and the
compilation methods used suitable? (Ref:

Relevance

Reliability

Neutrality

Completeness

Understandability

36

Paragraph 44, EG AulA, Framework for Assurance Engagements

These may be articulated
differently in the applicable
financial reporting framework
(Ref: Para. A29)%

Relevance.
Includes timeliness.

Includes verifiability

Faithful representation including:
Completeness
Neutrality

Understandability and
comparability

37 The qualitative characteristics are described in PBE FRS 48 paragraph 9.

199525.1
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Appendix 3
Flowchart of the Audit of Service Performance Information (SPI) included in

the General Purpose Financial Report (GPFR)

Acceptance The auditor shall obtain agreement from those charged with governance (TCWG) for: (Ref: Para. 11)

e For preparing the GPFR in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework (AFRF).
o To follow a reporting process and adopt compilation methods that are suitable to implement the AFRF

1

with the SPI (Ref: Para. 21).

Planning The auditor shall develop the audit plan to concurrently cover financial statement information together

|

The auditor shall obtain an understanding of:
o the AFRF and the legal framework applicable to the entity (Ref: Para. 18)

¢ the internal controls operating over preparation of the SPI. (Ref: Para. 30)

(Ref: Para. 34)

e the entity’s service performance, the context in which it operates and its reporting process (Ref: Para. 24)

e how much discretion the entity has over what and how to report and/or the extent of consultation with
intended users to influence the nature of the SPI and the compilation methods used (Ref: Para. 24)

The auditor shall identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the GPFR, the SPI and the assertions.

Performing Is the selected service performance and the compilation NO Discuss with TCWG.
methods used suitable? (Ref: Para. 22) Can meaningful
‘ changes be made for
the current year?
The auditor shall evaluate whether the entity’s reporting process is transparent and the compilation

methods used are available to intended users as part of the SP1 or in the disclosure of judgements
reported to enable the users to understand the process and methods used for preparing the SPI. (Ref:

Para. 23) NO
The auditor shall:
o determine materiality levels and/or materiality factors to be applied to the SPI. (Ref: Para.
32)
e design and perform audit procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence in
relation to all material SPI. (Ref: Para. 35)
e request a written representation covering responsibilities for the SPI. (Ref: Para. 42)
The auditor shall form an opinion on whether the SPI presents fairly, in all material respects,
Reporti the service performance for the period in accordance with the AFRF.
eporting Consider whether to prepare a long-form report (Ref: Para. A68).
Are there serious concerns about the suitability of the compilation methods, the content of the
SPI. and/or. the fair oresentation of the SPI. if anolicable?
No ‘ l Yes
Issue an unmodified opinion Issue a modified opinion on Issue a modified opinion
on the SPI in the GPFR. the SP1 in the GPFR. = on the SPI in the GPFR.

199525.1
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Appendix 4
(Ref: Para. A12)

llustrative Engagement L etter Including Service Performance Information

The following is an example of an audit engagement letter for an audit of the general purpose
financial report, including service performance information prepared in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.
This letter is not authoritative but is intended only to be a guide that may be used in conjunction
with the considerations outlined in the ISAs (NZ) including this NZ AS 1. It will need to be varied
according to individual requirements and circumstances.

*k*x

To the Chairperson:*8
[The objective and scope of the audit]

You have requested that we audit the [general purpose financial report/performance report] of
ABC [Entity], which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and
the [entity information], [statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue
and expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity], statement of cash flows and [service
performance information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. We are pleased
to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter.

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the [general purpose
financial report/performance report] as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
decisions of users taken on the basis of this [general purpose financial report/performance report].

[The responsibilities of the auditor]

We will conduct our audit of the [general purpose financial report/performance report] in
accordance with ISAs (NZ). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (NZ), we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the [general purpose financial
report/performance report], whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and

38 The addressees and references in the letter would be those appropriate in the circumstances of the engagement.
It is important to refer to the appropriate persons — refer to ISA (NZ) 210 paragraph A22.
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appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. However, we will
communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies in internal control
relevant to the audit of the [general purpose financial report/performance report] that we
have identified during the audit.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Understand the reporting process applied by the entity to select what service performance
to report on and the compilation methods adopted to report its service performance;

e Evaluate whether the selected service performance and the related compilation methods
used are suitable so as to result in service performance information that is in accordance
with the [Public Benefit Entity Standards];

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by
those charged with governance and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the [entity]’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the general purpose financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the [entity] to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the [general purpose financial
report/performance report], including the disclosures, and whether the [general purpose
financial report/performance report] represent the underlying transactions, events and
service performance in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e The consistency of the information reported in the financial statements and the service
performance information.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal
control, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with ISAs (NZ).

[The responsibilities of those charged with governance and identification of the applicable
financial reporting framework]

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that [those charged with governance] acknowledge and
understand that they have responsibility on behalf of the entity:

(@) For the preparation [and fair presentation] of the [general purpose financial
report/performance report] in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/ Public
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Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)];

(b) To follow a reporting process and adopt compilation methods that are suitable in order to
prepare service performance information in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity
Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)];

(c) For such internal control as [they] determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
[general purpose financial report/performance report]that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

(d) To provide us with:

(i) Access to all information of which [management and those charged with governance]
are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the [general purpose financial
report/performance report]such as records, documentation and other matters;

(if) Additional information that we may request from [management or the directors] for
the purpose of the audit; and

(iii) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.

As part of our audit process, we will request from [those charged with governance], written
confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit.

We look forward to full cooperation from your staff during our audit.
[Other relevant information]

[Insert other information, such as fee arrangements, billings and other specific terms, as
appropriate.]

[Reporting]
[Insert appropriate reference to the expected form and content of the auditor’s report.]

The form and content of our report may need to be amended in the light of our audit findings [and
may be in long-form, including findings or recommendations related to the entity’s service
performance information and compilation methods used.

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgement of, and
agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the general purpose financial report including
our respective responsibilities.

[Governing body]
Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of the [Governing body] by

Name and Title
Date
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Appendix 5
(Ref: Para. A60)

Illustrative Representation Letter (including service performance
information)

The following illustrative letter includes written representations that are required by this standard
and other ISAs (NZ). It is assumed in this illustration that the applicable financial reporting
framework is a fair presentation framework , and that there are no exceptions to the requested
written representations. If there were exceptions, the representations would need to be modified to
reflect the exceptions.

(Entity Letterhead)
(To Auditor) (Date)

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the [general purpose
financial report/performance report] of ABC Entity for the year ended December 31, 20XX which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the [entity information],
[statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, statement
of changes in net assets/equity], statement of cash flows and [service performance
information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies* for the purpose of expressing
an opinion as to whether the [general purpose financial report/performance report]jcomplies with
[Public Benefit Entity (PBE) Standards/ Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual
(Not-for-profit)] and gives a true and fair view of the financial position of ABC [entity] as at
December 31, 20XX and of the [entity information], results of its operations, its cash flows and its
service performance for the year then ended.

We confirm that (fo the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such enquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves):
[General Purposed Financial Report/Performance Report]

We have fulfilled our responsibilities on behalf of [the entity], as set out in the terms of the audit
engagement dated [insert date], for:

. The preparation, and fair presentation of the [general purpose financial report/Performance
Report] in accordance with [PBE Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting
— Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

. The reporting process and compilation methods used that are suitable in order to prepare
service performance information in accordance with [PBE Standards/Public Benefit Entity
Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)]. (NZ AS 1)

. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those

39 Where the auditor reports on more than one period, the auditor adjusts the date so that the letter pertains to all
periods covered by the auditor’s report.
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measured at fair value, are reasonable. (ISA (NZ) 540)

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with PBE Standards. (ISA (NZ) 550)

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require adjustment or
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. (ISA (NZ) 560)

The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate or collectively, to the [general purpose financial report performance report] as a
whole. A list of the uncorrected misstatements is attached to the representation letter.
(ISA (NZ) 450)

[ Any other matters that the auditor may consider appropriate. ]

Information Provided

We have provided you with*:

o Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the [gemeral purpose financial report/performance report] such as records,
documentation and other matters;

o Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
and

o Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the [general purpose
financial report/performance report] may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
(ISA (NZ) 240)

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the entity and involves:

o Management;
o Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

o Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the [general purpose financial
report/performance report]. (ISA (NZ) 240)

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected
fraud, affecting the entity’s [general purpose financial report/performance report]
communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.
(ISA (NZ) 240)

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing a

40

If the auditor has included other matters relating to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in the
audit engagement letter in accordance with ISA (NZ) 210, Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements,
consideration may be given to including these matters in the written representations from those charged with
governance.
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[general purpose financial report/performance report]. (ISA (NZ) 250)

. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. (ISA (NZ) 550)

. We will provide the final version of the documents determined to comprise the annual report
to the auditor when available, and prior to its issuance by the entity.** (ISA (NZ) 720

(Revised))
. [Any other matters that the auditor may consider necessary. |
Governing body member Governing body member
4 This is only required when the other information is not available until after the date of the auditor’s report.
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Appendix 6
(Ref: Para. A65)

Illustration of Independent Auditor’s Report on the general purpose financial report,

including service performance information

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed:

Audit of a general purpose financial report/performance report of a public benefit
entity that is not a FMC reporting entity considered to have a higher level of public
accountability using a fair presentation framework?*?, The audit is not a group audit
(i.e., ISA (NZ) 600 does not apply).

The general purpose financial report/performance report is prepared by management
of the entity in accordance with a general purpose framework.

The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of the responsibilities of those
charged with governance for the general purpose financial report/performance report
in 1ISA (NZ) 210.

The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on
the audit evidence obtained.

Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners
comprises all of the relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit.

Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material
uncertainty does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA (NZ) 570
(Revised).

The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit
matters in accordance with ISA (NZ) 701.

The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s
report and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information.

The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To Appropriate Addressee

Opinion

We have audited the /general purpose financial report/performance report] of ABC [entity], which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the [entity information],
[statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of
changes in net assets/equity], statement of cash flows and [service performance information/statement

42

The general purpose financial report may be referred to as a performance report and include entity information,
according to the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework.
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of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies [on pages x to xx].

In our opinion the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance report] presents
fairly, in all material respects, (or gives a true and fair view of) the financial position of the [entity] as
at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its [entity information], financial performance, cash flows and service
performance for the year then ended in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public
Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand
Accounting Standards Board.

[For a long-form report, include a separate section, under an appropriate heading, for example:

. Underlying facts and information about the entity’s reporting process (e.g., the maturity of the
entity’s reporting process compared to others in the industry).

. The source of the compilation methods, and whether they are externally established.

o Any significant interpretations made in selecting what service performance to report on or
applying the entity’s compilation methods in the circumstances.

o Whether there have been any changes in the entity’s compilation methods (e.g., changes in the
performance measures used).

o Findings or recommendations for improvements to the service performance information.

o Any other matters the auditor considers necessary to meet the needs of users. |

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial report/performance report] in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose
Financial Report/Performance Report] section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in
accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance
Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
oeneral purpose financial report/performance report and auditor’s report thereon]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Hlustration 1 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised).]

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report

Those charged with governance are responsible on behalf of the [entity] for:

(a) the preparation and fair presentation of the [general purpose financial report/performance
report] in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple
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Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting
Standards Board, and

(b) the reporting process followed and the compilation methods adopted that are suitable in
order to prepare service performance information in accordance with [Public Benefit
Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-

profit];

(c) for such internal control as those charged with governance determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the [general purpose financial report/performance report] that
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the [general purpose financial report/performance report], those charged with
governance are responsible for assessing the [entity’s] ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless those charged with governance either intend to liquidate the [entity] or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the [general purpose financial
report/performance report] as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate or collectively, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this [general
purpose financial report/performance report].

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the [general purpose
financial report/performance report] is located at the XRB’s website at
https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/.

Paragraph 41(b) of ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) explains that the shaded material below can be located in an
Appendix to the auditor’s report.

Paragraph 41(c) explains that when law, regulation or ISAs (NZ) expressly permit, reference can be made
to a website of an appropriate authority that contains the description of the auditor’s responsibilities, rather
than including this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the description on the website addresses,
and is not inconsistent with, the description of the auditor’s responsibilities below. Paragraph NZ A57.1
states that when the auditor refers to a description of the auditor’s responsibilities on a website, the
appropriate  authority is the External Reporting Board and the website address is
https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (NZ), we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the [general purpose financial
report/performance report], whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
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appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the [Entity’s] internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Evaluate whether the selected service performance and the related compilation methods
adopted are suitable so as to result in service performance information that is in accordance
with the [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting —
Accrual (Not-for-profit)];

. The overall presentation, structure and content of the general purpose financial report and
whether the general purpose financial report represents the underlying transactions, events
and service performance in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards in a manner that
achieves fair presentation;

. The consistency of the information reported in the financial statements and the service
performance information.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by those
charged with governance and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
[entity]’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the [general purpose financial report/performance report] or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
[entity] to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]
[Date]
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Appendix 7
(Ref: Para. A75)

Ilustrations of Auditor’s Reports with Modifications to the Opinion with Respect to the
Service Performance Information

[llustration 1: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements and a qualified opinion due to a material misstatement of the service
performance information.

[llustration 2: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements and an adverse opinion due to a material misstatement of the service
performance information.

[llustration 3: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements and a qualified opinion due to the auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence about a single element of the service performance
information.

[lustration 4: An auditor’s report containing a qualified opinion on both the financial
statements and the service performance information due to the auditor’s inability to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about a single element of the financial
statements.

lllustration 5: An auditor’s report containing a disclaimer of opinion due to the loss of
records about multiple elements of the general purpose financial report.
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Illustration 1: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial statements
and a qualified opinion due to a material misstatement of the service performance information

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To [Appropriate Addressee]
Opinions

We have audited the [general purpose financial report/performance report] of ABC [entity], which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the [entity information],
[statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of
changes in net assets/equity], statement of cash flows and [service performance
information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Opinion on the [Entity Information and] Financial Statements

In our opinion, the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance report| on pages x
fo xx presents fairly, in all material respects, (or gives a true and fair view of) the financial position of
the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its [entity information], financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit
Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting
Standards Board.

Qualified Opinion on the Service Performance Information

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion on the
Service Performance Information section of our report the accompanying [general purpose financial
report/performance report] presents fairly, in all material respects (or gives a true and fair view of) the
service performance of the [entity] [on pages x to xx] for the year ended December 31, 20X1 in
accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting —
Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Service Performance Information

[As reported in the service performance information on page xx, the entity has identified its service
performance as [describe improvements reported or description of the difference that the entity has
made] and measured this performance by [list performance measures and/or descriptions reported] to
report its service performance. The entity has not been able to provide evidence of its role in those
particular improvements and therefore should not have reported this improvement. |

We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial report/performance report] in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose
Financial Report/Performance Report] section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in
accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance
Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report] and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Hllustration 6 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illustration 6 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information].

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report|

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report|

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illlustration 3A in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]
[Date]
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Illustration 2: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial statements
and an adverse opinion due to a material misstatement of the service performance information

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To [Appropriate Addressee]
Opinions

We have audited the [general purpose financial report/performance report] of ABC [entity], which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the [entity information],
[statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of
changes in net assets/equity] statement of cash flows and [service performance
information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Opinion on the [Entity Information and] Financial Statements

In our opinion, the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance reportlon pages x
fo xx presents fairly, in all material respects, (or gives a true and fair view of) the financial position of
the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its [entity information], financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with [ Public Benefit Entity Standards Public Benefit
Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting
Standards Board.

Adverse Opinion on the Service Performance Information

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion on
the Service Performance Information section of our report the accompanying [general purpose
financial report/ performance report] does not present fairly (or does not give a true and fair view of)
the service performance of the [entity] [on pages x to xx] for the year ended December 31, 20X1 in
accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting —
Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Adverse Opinion on the Service Performance Information

[As reported in the service performance information on pages ..., the entity has identified its service
performance to include [list appropriate goods and services] and measured and evaluated this
performance with reference to [describe performance measures and/or descriptions reported] to report
its service performance. We do not consider that these performance measures will enable a meaningful
assessment of the service performance of the entity for the year ended December 31, 20X1 to be made.
Had the entity identified more meaningful performance measures, the service performance
information would have been materially affected, reporting performance measures including xxx and
linking to its responsibility for yyyy.]

We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial report/ performance report] in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose
Financial Report/Performance Report] section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in
accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance
Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have
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fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report] and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Hllustration 7 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illustration 7 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information].

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report|

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report|

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]
[Date]
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Illustration 3: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion on the financial statements
and a qualified opinion due to the auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about a single element of the service performance information

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To [Appropriate Addressee]
Opinions

We have audited the /general purpose financial report/performance report] of ABC [entity], which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the [entity information],
[statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of’
changes in net assets/equity],statement of cash flows and [service performance
information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Opinion on the [Entity Information and] Financial Statements

In our opinion, the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance reportlon pages x
fo xx presents fairly, in all material respects, (or gives a true and fair view of) the financial position of
the [entity] as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its [entity information], financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit
Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting
Standards Board.

Qualified Opinion on the Service Performance Information

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion on the
Service Performance Information section of our report the accompanying [general purpose financial
report/performance report] presents fairly, in all material respects (or gives a true and fair view of) the
service performance of the [entity] [on pages x to xx] for the year ended December 31, 20X1 in
accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting —
Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Service Performance Information

[Some significant performance measures of the entity, rely on information from third parties, such as
(give examples). The entity’s control over much of this information is limited, and there are no
practical audit procedures to determine the effect of this limited control. For example, [describe
performance measure and explain where information comes from that we are unable to independently
test.]]

We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial report/performance report] in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the General Purpose
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in accordance with
Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by
the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
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obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report/ and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Hllustration 6 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illustration 6 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information]

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report/

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 3A in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report]

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 3A in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]

[Date]
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Illustration 4: Qualified opinion on both the financial statements and the service performance
information due to the auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about a
single element of the financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To [Appropriate Addressee]

Qualified Opinion on the [General Purpose Financial Report/Performance Report/

We have audited the [general purpose financial report/performance report] of ABC [entity], which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the [entity information],
[statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of
changes in net assets/equity], statement of cash flows and [service performance
information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
of our report the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance report] presents fairly,
in all material respects (or gives a true and fair view of)the financial position of the [entity] as at
December 31, 20X1, and (of) its financial performance, cash flows and service performance
information for the year then ended in accordance with [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit
Entity Simple Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] issued by the New Zealand Accounting
Standards Board.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

[As outlined on page xx of the [general purpose financial report/ performance report], [entity] has
not applied the requirements of the [Public Benefit Entity Standards/Public Benefit Entity Simple
Format Reporting — Accrual (Not-for-profit)] to its grant expenditure. We have been unable to obtain
sufficient audit evidence to quantify the effects of this limitation. As a result of this matter, we were
unable to quantify the adjustments that are necessary in respect of grant expenditure in the [statement
of comprehensive revenue and expenses]; assets, liabilities and equity in the statement of financial
position, [total comprehensive revenue and expense] and opening and closing equity in the [statement
of changes in equity and grants expense] reported in the service performance information. ]

We conducted our audit of the [general purpose financial report/performance report] in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose
Financial Report/Performance Report] section of our report. We are independent of the [entity] in
accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance
Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the [entity].
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Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report] and auditor’s report thereon”]

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Hllustration 6 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illlustration 6 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information].

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report]

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 3A in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial Report
/Performance Report]

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]
[Date]

55
199525.1



NZ AS 1

Illustration 5: Disclaimer of opinion due to the loss of records about multiple elements of the
general purpose financial report/performance report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To [Appropriate Addressee]

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the [general purpose financial report/ performance report] of ABC [entity],
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the [entity
information], [statement of financial performance/statement of comprehensive revenue and expense,
statement of changes in net assets/equity], statement of cash flows and [service performance
information/statement of service performance] for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying [general purpose financial report/performance
report] of the [entity]. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on this [general purpose financial report/performance report].

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

As stated in note .....on page..... of the [general purpose financial report/performance report], a fire
at the [entity]’s office destroyed many of the accounting records. The [general purpose financial
report/performance report] consequently includes a number of material amounts based on estimates.
For this reason, we have been unable to confirm or verify [describe the balances affected, for example,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and within the service performance information describe the
service performance reported]. As a result of this matter, we were unable to determine whether any
adjustments might have been found to be necessary in respect of recorded or unrecorded amounts, and
the elements making up the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of changes
in net assets/equity, statement of cash flows and the [service performance information/statement of
service performance].

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information other than the
|general purpose financial report/performance report] and auditor’s report thereon”|

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised) — see
Hllustration 6 in Appendix 2 of ISA (NZ) 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other
information section in Illustration 6 would be customised to describe the specific matter giving
rise to the qualified opinion that also affects the other information]

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the [General Purpose Financial
Report/Performance Report]

[Reporting in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised) — see Illustration 34 in ISA (NZ) 700
(Revised)].

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the [General Purpose Financial
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Report/Performance Report]

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the [general purpose financial report/performance
report]in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)). However,
because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on this
[general purpose financial report/performance report].

We are independent of the [entity] in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interest in, the [entity].
[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate]
[Auditor Address]

[Date]
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Conforming Amendments to Other Standards

New text is underlined.

Conforming amendments to XRB Aul Application of Auditing and Assurance
Standards

Appendix 2 lists the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) to be applied in
conducting audits of historical financial information.

Appendix 2A will be added as follows:

Appendix 2A
Auditing Standards (New Zealand)

This appendix is an integral part of the Standard

This appendix lists the Auditing Standards (New Zealand) to be applied in conjunction with the
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) in conducting an audit of general purpose
financial reports which comprise the financial statements and service performance information.

NZ AS1 The Audit of Service Performance Information

Appendix 6 Overview of Auditing and Assurance Standards of the XRB is to be amended as
follows:

Explanatory
Guides (EG) | XRB Au1: Application of Auditing and Assurance Standards
Audits and Reviews of Other Assurance
Historical Financial Engagements
Information
|
|
ISAs (NZ) ISRE (NZ) 2400
Inter'n'at/onal Standards on International Standard ISAEs (NZ)
Auditing (New Zealand) on Review Engagement International
NZAS (New Zealand) itandards on
» ssurance
Igl;v,:ierzlind Audliing NZ SRE 2410 Engagements (New
S New Zealand Standard Zealand)
| on Review
AGS Engagements SAEs
Audit Guidance Standards on
Statements Assurance
Engagements
IAPN (N2)
International
Auditing Practice
Notes (New 58
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ACCOMPANYING ATTACHMENT: CONFORMITY TO INTERNATIONAL AND
AUSTRALIAN STANDARDS ON AUDITING

This conformity statement accompanies but is not part of NZ AS 1.
Conformity to International Standards on Auditing

There is no equivalent International Standard on Auditing (ISA), issued by the International
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB), an independent standard-setting board of the
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC).

Comparison with Australian Auditing Standards

There is no equivalent Australian Auditing Standard, issued by the Australian Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board (AUASB).
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Analysis of all feedback received in response to NZAuASB ED 2017-2 Audit of service performance information

Formal submissions received are available on the XRB website. (and were included in the February meeting papers)

Notes from the Auckland and Wellington roundtable meetings, and the joint sub-committee meeting with NZASB members are available on request — these
comments have been included under the appropriate sections of this analysis.

Auckland roundtable participants: Wayne Tuakiri, Ann Tod, Darren Wright (William Buck), Liam Sheridan (Foundation North), Vida Botes (Uni of Waikato),
Craig Fisher and John Kensington in attendance.

Wellington roundtable — list of participants available separately — included a strong public sector contingent including a number of Audit NZ and OAG staff.
lan Marshall in attendance.

Key — green highlighting indicates support

Red highlighting flags a concern

Overarching comments:

Respondent

Comment

Staff Response to the comment

BDO

We note that the New Zealand financial reporting frameworks applicable to
public benefit entities are unusual in that they require (or soon will require)
the preparation of service performance information where a general purpose
financial report is prepared, which results in a requirement for such
information to be audited where there is a requirement for the audit of a
general purpose financial report.

We further note that ISAs only contemplate the audit of historical financial
information and do not contemplate the audit of other information, such as
service performance information.

Given those factors, BDO considers it appropriate for the NZAuASB to develop
a New Zealand auditing standard on the audit of service performance
information.

Support for approach taken noted.
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We consider that such a standard should be consistent with the format and
tone of ISAs to the greatest extent possible. Further, we consider that the
overarching approach to the development of such a standard should be to
provide guidance on how ISAs should be applied to the audit of service
performance information, rather than creating new requirements. We note
that this is the approach that the NZAuASB has taken to the development of
the Exposure Draft.

BDO

We further consider that a New Zealand standard on the audit of service
performance information should strike a balance between being sufficiently
directive to enable consistent application, while still adopting the principles-
based approach of ISAs, so as not to limit the exercise of auditor judgement.
We consider that the Exposure Draft may not have entirely achieved this
balance, but may instead be, in part, more prescriptive than is appropriate.

Note concern that the ED is more
prescriptive than appropriate. Revisions
reduce the number of requirements.

BDO

Conclusion
We support:
a) The development of a New Zealand auditing standard on the audit of
service performance information
b) The overall approach taken in the Exposure Draft of aligning the
format of the proposed New Zealand auditing standard with the
format of ISAs to the extent possible
c) Structuring the proposed standard so that it provides guidance on
how ISAs should be applied to the audit of service performance
information, rather than creating new requirements.
However we consider that the proposed standard may in places be more
prescriptive than is necessary to achieve a balance between being
sufficiently directive to enable consistent application, while still adopting
the principles-based approach of ISAs, so as not to limit the exercise of
auditor judgement.

Noted.

Staples
Rodway

We support the development of a domestic auditing standard dedicated to
service performance information, with separate development of a review

Support for approach taken
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engagement standard at a later stage. We consider that a dedicated auditing
standard will help reinforce the need to undertake the audit of the service
performance information and the audit of the financial statementsin a
concurrent manner.

Overall, we consider that the high-level, principles based approach taken in
the ED is appropriate. We commend the NZAuASB for the quality and depth
of the application guidance and illustrative examples included within the ED§
These will be instrumental in assisting auditors to apply the new standard.
We are particularly supportive of the two-step approach to the audit of
service performance information and consider that the audit report should
include explicit opinions on each of these steps. In our view this will help
reduce the expectation gap and may rebalance the roles pf preparer
(responsible for adopting suitable criteria) and the auditor (responsible for
assessing the suitability of this criteria).

Support for level of guidance and examples

Support for two step approach noted.
Prefers an explicit opinion on the
suitability of criteria (considered at the
April meeting).

PwC

We support the inclusion of the service performance information, which
constitutes part of an entities general purpose financial reporting under
Public Benefit Entities (PBE) standards, in the scope of an audit. The nature of
the entities reporting in accordance with the standard are managing funds
received from public sources and service performance information facilitates
greater transparency for the resource provider. However, we do have some
comments relating to the impacts of the exposure draft driven by the current
requirements set out in the financial reporting framework, principally:

Cost/Benefit — The PBE conceptual framework contemplates the cost/benefit
balance as an important consideration for governing bodies and management
when reporting financial information. The range of entities captured by the
requirements set out in the exposure draft is very extensive, given the
threshold of $S1 million of operating expenses set out in XRB A2. In our
experience, many smaller PBE entities have limited financial resource and
capability and they are likely to find the preparation of service performance

Concern noted. To be shared with the XRB
Board and NZASB.

Establishing the preparation requirements
and/or who is required to have an audit is
beyond the mandate of the NZAuASB.

The NZAuASB is concerned with
establishing requirements when an audit is
performed.

The NZAuASB was mindful that where an
audit is performed, the quality of the work
should not undermine the quality of the
audit of the financial statements.
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reports challenging, given the level of judgement involved and customised
nature of the information. The cost of designing and implementing relevant
performance measures, including relevant controls around those
performance measures, and capturing and monitoring the relevant data may
be prohibitive.

For smaller organisations, this may result in the cost of an audit of General
Purpose Financial Reporting (GPFR) that includes service performance
information being disproportionately high in comparison with, for example,
the cost of an audit of the historical financial information.

Sophistication — In our experience the level of sophistication of financial
reporting systems, segregation of duties and other relevant controls that exist
in smaller entities are often lacking.

In order that an auditor might opine on whether the information in the
statement of service performance is presented fairly, the extent of audit work
necessary is significant and may be inhibited by the lack of verifiable
information, lack of controls around the information gathered, and degree of
sophistication that exists within the entity for monitoring information. This
may result in a significant number of qualified audit reports, in contrast to the
intention of the standard.

Further, the measures of performance for some entities may not be verifiable
from an audit perspective due to an inability to confirm completeness of that
data or the data inputs. For some entities, they may not have relevant
verifiable performance measures and may report on matters that are not
relevant to users simply to meet the reporting requirements.

Stakeholders — PBE and NFP entities often rely heavily of donations and grant
funding. The increased cost of auditing the statement of service performance

Concern noted
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may further restrict the funds available to these entities. The level of
additional audit costs may result in an unintentional redirection of funds
away from the primary objectives of the entity.

Additional guidance should be developed in order to facilitate comparability
across sectors. This will be important to help reduce both the cost of
preparing and auditing service performance information and to allow
resource providers to maximise the benefit of comparability.

To support smaller PBE and NFP entities and create flexibility for smaller
organisations in relation to the standard we believe some additional
consideration of the impact of this standard due to the size criteria as set out
in XRB A2 is required. Some possible alternative considerations by the XRB
might include:

e Raising the minimum threshold for entities requiring an audit of
service performance information;

e Enabling the governing body / members to opt out of an audit of
service performance information;

e Treating service performance information as ‘other information’
where no assurance conclusion is given, but that the information is
read by the auditor and a statement is made that the information is
not considered to be materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or information obtained in the conduct of our audit.

Noted - The NZAuASB has on many
occasions flagged the need for additional
guidance. The NZASB has an active project
to develop guidance and the NZAuASB will
continue to discuss how best to produce
additional guidance for practitioners. (Add
project for guidance to NZAuASB
workplan).

Concern noted. While legal requirements
mandate the audit of “financial
statements”, there remains a legislative
requirement for the SPI to be audited.
These alternatives are beyond the
mandate of the NZAuASB but have been
shared with the XRB board.

Auckland
roundtable

Vera expressed concern at a broader level —i.e. whether service performance
information should be subject to audit?

Wayne Tukiri concerned re over reliance on audit report - whether this
further opens up the deep pocket syndrome. This is a judgemental area —
raises litigation risk (however discussion raised that litigation risk is possibly
lower in the NFP sector).

Concern noted — similar to PwC comment
above.
Concern noted.

199462.1




Agenda item 5.5

The ongoing existence of entities depends on funding —i.e. whether you are
meeting funding agreement targets.

OAG

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed auditing standard on
the audit of service performance information? (the ED). We acknowledge that
preparing an auditing standard on this topic is difficult. We also acknowledge the
work the NZAuASB has carried out in preparing the ED for comment.

We are very interested in the audit of service performance information. We have
consulted widely within the Office to prepare our submission.

As an Office, we have been auditing service performance information reported by
public sector entities for more than 25 years. In the absence of any published
accounting or auditing standards on this topic for much of that time; we have had to
develop our own auditing standard and accompanying guidance for auditors.

Currently, audits of performance reports carried out by or on behalf of the Auditor-
General must comply with the requirements of AG-4: The audit of performance
reports (AG-4).

In my view, AG-4 is fit-for-purpose for the audit of service performance information
in the public sector. | am keen to ensure that a new auditing standard issued by the
NZAuASB will not undermine the quality of audit work in the area of service
performance information. For the Auditor-General to be comfortable with
withdrawing AG-4 in the future, they would need to be satisfied that any new
standard issued by the NZAuASB is also fit-for-purpose in the public sector.

Noted.

Staff prepared a mapping document to
compare the ED to AG-4. Staff conclusion
was that the matters addressed in the ED
were substantively the same as AG-4,
albeit thatAG-4 is public sector specific
with a focus on forecast performance. In
addition, AG- 4 has no reference to ISAE
3000. Direct references to ISAE 3000 have
been removed in the amended draft.

OAG

In our submission, we have identified several significant matters that we believe
need to be addressed in the ED (see Attachment 1). We also identified some minor
matters as part of our review of the ED. The minor matters have not been included

! Throughout this submission, we have used the term service performance information, as this is consistent with PBE FRS 48. It is our view, however, that service
performance information is only one subset of non-financial performance reporting.
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in our submission; partly because many of them should be resolved by responding to
the significant matters outlined in Attachment 1.

Given the significance of the matters identified in this submission, it is our view that
a lot of redrafting will be required, and the ED may need to be re-exposed for further
comment before publication.

As noted above, a workable standard for the audit of service performance
information is important to us, particularly as this may influence the way in which we
audit many significant and complex entities in the public sector. | am happy to
support the continued development of the ED by making Office staff available to
further elaborate on the matters raised in this submission, if that would be helpful.

NZAUASB have discussed the need for a
fatal flaw review.

Mapping document was shared with OAG
staff.

OAG

1.

Consistent use of terminology in External Reporting Board standards
and guidance

The development of this submission is based on our view that there needs to be
consistent concepts and terminology used for the preparation of performance
information. Currently, there isn’t the level of consistency that we would like to
see between the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board (NZASB) standard,
PBE FRS 48: Service Performance Reporting (PBE FRS 48) PBE FRS 48, the Tier 3
and Tier 4 standards, and the ED.

Consistency across financial reporting standards would make it easier to have an
auditing standard that works across the tiers.

For the purposes of our submission, we have considered and referred to the
concepts and terminology in PBE FRS 48, rather than the Tier 3 and Tier 4
standards.

International Standards on Auditing which have been given effect in New
Zealand must be drafted in such a way that they can be compatible with all
relevant international standards, which may use differing terminology. In
contrast, the auditing standard in relation to auditing service performance

Concern noted.

The NZAuUASB discussed the dual role of the
auditor at the April meeting:

1. To determine whether the entity has
appropriately applied the qualitative
characteristics and pervasive
constraints of information; and

2. To determine whether the “criteria”
are suitable (for the purpose of
performing an audit).

The issues paper considers the advantages
and disadvantages of linking to the QCs in
PBE FRS 48. Staff recommendation is to
continue to refer to the assurance
framework terminology.
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information provides the NZAuASB with a unique opportunity to ensure there is
complete alighment between the accounting standard and the auditing
standard.

As a result, for example, the qualitative characteristics referred to in paragraph A17
of the ED should be consistent with the qualitative characteristics used in paragraph
9 of PBE FRS 48

Recommendation
On the basis of the above, we recommend:

e The terminology in the ED should be consistent with the terminology used in
PBE FRS 48.

e That any other source of authoritative guidance issued by the NZASB or the
NZAuUASB on the preparation, and the audit or review, of service
performance information use consistent terminology to that used in PBE FRS
48.

ISA (NZ)s should be amended to reflect the audit of service performance
information

In order to emphasise the concurrent nature of the audit of financial and service
performance information, we consider that any “Requirements” and
“Application and Other Explanatory Guidance” which do not directly relate to
the audit of service performance information, and that are already addressed in
other ISA (NZ)s, should be removed from the ED.

For example, the references to “Special Considerations — Audits of Groups”,
“Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert” and “Using the Work of Another
Practitioner” should be removed to enhance the focus of the ED on those
matters that directly impact on the audit of service performance information.

We agree that auditors will need to extend the scope of their audit work in these
and other core areas, in order to capture service performance information

The NZAuASB has previously debated and
rejected the idea of reopening the ISAs (NZ).
The majority of the submissions are
supportive of the approach taken.

The matter of whether specific paragraphs
(as suggested here) can be removed from
the standard was agreed in April. Ways to
shorten the standard have been explored as
well what guidance is needed and where
this guidance is best positioned.
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concurrently with financial information. In our view, this is best done through
making consequential amendments to the underlying ISA (NZ)s2. This approach
will reflect the desirability of an integrated approach to the audit of financial and
service performance information.

This reflects our view that the ED should be limited to the small number of
relatively high level requirements which are either new to the audit of service
performance information, or significantly different or more complicated. These
include, for example the concept of materiality in the context of auditing service
performance information and the evaluation of misstatements.

Recommendation
To emphasise the concurrent nature of the audit of financial and service

performance information, the associated ISA (NZ)s should be amended
appropriately.

The NZAuASB agreed not to reopen the
ISAs, to avoid multiple NZ paragraphs in the
ISAs (NZ) that apply only to certain sectors.
Rather including the relevant requirements
in a separate standard was preferred.

The ED is difficult to understand

The ED is difficult to read. We are concerned that, if we with many years’
practical experience in auditing non-financial performance information, struggle
to clearly understand and then apply the ED, auditors who are relatively
inexperienced will struggle more.

As a general observation, it is our view that the presentation of the ED can be
improved. For example, the main body of the ED should include only the
essential requirements; that is the procedures that an auditor must perform.
Application and Other Guidance should be located in the Appendix so that it is
clear that it is guidance, rather than mandatory.

Concern noted

The NZAuUASB has reduced the number of
requirements, streamlined the wording and
worked to simplify the draft where possible.

2 This is something that auditors in the public sector in New Zealand are used to. The Auditor-General issues his own auditing standards, many of which extend the scope of
existing ISA (NZ)s to cover the audit of service performance information.
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In addition, while we acknowledge that the headings used in the ED are intended
to align with existing ISA (NZ)s, it is our view that some the headings could be
drafted more plainly. For example Preconditions for an audit of the General
Purpose Financial Report, and Agreement on Engagement Terms could be
grouped together under a heading of Planning and Pre-engagement along with
other relevant sections.

Service performance information is different in nature to financial information.
As a result, some audit processes and procedures that are applied when auditing
financial information cannot be directly applied to service performance
information. This introduces some complexities that need to be clearly explained
to enable practitioners to consistently apply the ED.

Recommendation

The presentation of the ED could be improved by:

e Limiting the “Requirements” section to a small number of relatively high
level requirements that directly relate to the audit of service performance
information, and that the auditor must comply with; and

® Including more practical guidance in the “Application and Other Explanatory
Material” that illustrates how the auditor might apply a requirement.

The section on preconditions has been
moved and merged with obtaining an
understanding of the entity.

The number of requirements has been
reduced.

Limited additional guidance included.
Practical examples to be developed in
separate guidance given criticism of length
of the proposed standard.

Scope of the ED
We note that service performance information is described in paragraph 2 of
PBE FRS 48 as follows:

“Service performance information is information about what the entity has done
during the reporting period in working towards its broader aims and objectives,
together with supporting contextual information” (emphasis added).

We also note that this description of service performance information does not
prohibit an entity from including performance information that is wider in scope
and may be focused on:

This sentence from PBE FRS 48 has been
included in the application material, refer para
Al. The scope of the ED was intended to reflect
the requirements of PBE FRS 48.

PBE FRS 48 requires that the service
performance information must provide users
with sufficient contextual information to enable
an understanding of the entity, what it intends
to achieve and what it has done inworking
towards its aims and objectives. The NZASB
added a requirement (para 29 of PBE FRS-48)
that requires an entity to clearly identify the
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o the extent to which the entity has made progress towards achieving its aims
and objectives;

e the contribution that the entity (along with other entities) has made towards
the achievement of its aims and objectives;

e the entity’s capability or readiness to respond to events for which it was
established; or

e other categories of performance that would not generally be regarded as
service performance information.

Our experience is that including such information leads to more
meaningful/fuller performance reporting. Entities should be encouraged to
include “supporting contextual information” as part of their service performance
information, wherever possible.

Recommendation

The ED should clarify under the heading “Scope of this NZ AS”:

e That an entity may choose to report supporting contextual information that
is not captured within the description of service performance information in
PBE FRS 48; and

e  Where such information is included in the entity’s service performance
information, and the entity requests the auditor to audit this information,
the auditor should do so by reference to the ED.

service performance information presented in
accordance with the Standard.

If an entity includes information in addition to
PBE FRS 48 and does not identify this
information as part of its service performance
information, by definition this is other
information under the proposed auditing
standard. If an entity or user require this
information to be audited, this should be agreed
to and the scope of the audit would be adjusted
accordingly.

PBE FRS 48 encourages an entity to report
against targets and explain variances. We
consider that this will be SPI under the standard
and would be within the scope of the audit.

Service performance criteria

We think the use of the term “service performance criteria” within the ED is
problematic, for the reasons set out below.

Inappropriate alignment with ISAE (NZ) 3000

The description of “service performance criteria” used in the ED appears to have
been selected in order to align with the description of criteria in paragraph 12(c)
of ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised). However, we consider that this reference is not
helpful, for two reasons.

Firstly, the ED has been developed as an auditing standard, rather than under
the umbrella of ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised). This is a deliberate decision that has

The NZAuASB discussed how the
overarching “criteria” for the engagement is
PBE FRS 48. However due to the principled
nature of the standard, and the wide range
of subject matter that the standard
addresses, the applicable criteria for each
engagement will be the specific
performance measures and descriptions
used to evaluate its service performance,
applied to its circumstances. (i.e., the
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been determined after much consideration. Furthermore, paragraph A10
specifically excludes ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) from being applied by auditors to
service performance information. As a result of these factors, we believe that it
is not appropriate to include descriptions that are drawn from ISAE (NZ) 3000
(Revised).

Secondly, ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) was developed in order to assist practitioners
who undertake a variety of assurance engagements. In these situations, it is
often necessary to develop bespoke criteria that are specific to the nature of the
assurance engagement, as there may not be a generally accepted set of
principles already in place. The development of bespoke criteria is not required
when preparing and auditing service performance information; these are set out
in PBE FRS 48.

Lack of conceptual clarity

We found the term “service performance criteria”, and its definition “the
benchmarks used to measure or evaluate the entity’s service performance”,
confusing.

PBE FRS 48 does not use the term “service performance criteria”, but does
require preparers of service performance information to apply the qualitative
characteristics of information and the pervasive constraints on information
identified in the PBE Conceptual Framework. One of the key principles
underlying PBE FRS 48 is that the service performance information is appropriate
and meaningful, which we agree is important.

In our view, the concepts as set out in PBE FRS 48, are clear and easy to
understand. We believe that the ED would be less confusing, if the concepts
within it were consistent with the concepts already set out in PBE FRS 48 and the
PBE Conceptual Framework.

It is our view that if the concept of “service performance criteria” is removed
from the ED, and instead, the auditor has to assess the appropriateness of an

NZAuUASB agreed to retain the approach
that there is a need for a sub-layer of
criteria to be identified by the preparer and
then evaluated by the auditor).

In order to recognise the OAG’s concern,
the Board agreed to drop the term “criteria”
but to replace the term with “reporting
policies and procedures” and continues to
debate the best words to articulate step 1—
i.e. retain the same approach but to use
different words to describe the process. The
Board agreed that there are ways to make
use of other terminology to assist
practitioners to better understand the
standard, as it is clear that there is a
misunderstanding of the term “criteria”.

The need for framework neutrality is
explored in the issues paper.
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entity’s reported service performance (with reference to the qualitative

characteristics and the pervasive constraints described in paragraphs 9 and 10 of

PBE FRS 48). This would remove our confusion around the use of the term

“service performance criteria”.

Recommendation

The ED should be amended to:

e Remove all references to “service performance criteria”.

e Use consistent terminology to describe what an entity has chosen to use as
indicators of its performance as “performance measures”. This is the
terminology used in PBE FRS 48 - particularly in paragraphs 20 to 27.

6. The auditor’s evaluation of the suitability of an entity’s performance
information

The ED (in paragraph 11) requires the auditor to evaluate whether the service
performance criteria adopted by the entity:
e Are suitable; and
e Are available to intended users.
For the reasons explained above, it is our view that the reference to criteria
should be replaced by a reference to the qualitative characteristics and pervasive
constraints referred to in paragraphs 9 and 10 of PBE FRS 48.
It is also our view, that the requirement in paragraph 11 should be amended to
require the auditor to evaluate the suitability of the entity’s performance
information against the qualitative characteristics and pervasive constraints.
There is no necessity for the auditor to evaluate if the qualitative characteristics
and pervasive constraints are publicly available, because they are specified in
paragraphs 9 and 10 of PBE FRS 48. The measures used by the entity to assess its
performance are reported, and therefore should be available to users of the
service performance information.
When should the auditor evaluate the suitability of an entity’s performance
information?

The importance of making the criteria
available to the user is noted in the
submission by the AUASB technical team.

The entity’s disclosure of the judgements
made is a key part of making the approach
to reporting of SPI clear to intended users.
The Board agreed that the auditor shall
evaluate whether the reporting policies and
procedures are available to users through
the disclosures made by the preparer. (The
best way to articulate this requirement is
considered in the amended draft).

The evaluation of the suitability of the SPI
has been moved and merged with the
requirements to obtain an understanding of
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In our view the ED should include, within the Application and Other Explanatory
Material, additional guidance to auditors on when they should carry out their
work to evaluate the suitability of performance information.

In our experience, the auditor should carry out their evaluation as soon as the
entity has completed its initial processes in deciding the performance
information it intends to report and how it intends to present that information.
The auditor’s evaluation will normally be carried out once the auditor has carried
out sufficient work to understand the entity in accordance with ISA (NZ) 315
(Revised): Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement through
Understanding the Entity and its Environment.

The purpose of carrying out the work at this time is so the auditor can
communicate any concerns to the entity in sufficient time to enable the entity to
amend its proposed performance information, if considered necessary.

In the public sector, many entities are required to identify the performance
measures against which actual performance will be assessed prior to the
commencement of the reporting period. It is best practice for the auditor to
complete their evaluation of the suitability of performance measures shortly
after. This may occur more than 12 months before the audit of the service
performance information is completed.

How does the auditor evaluate the suitability of performance information?

In our view, the ED should include, in the Application and Other Explanatory
Material, guidance to auditors of a more practical nature on how they might
evaluate the suitability of performance information.

Our expectation is that the auditor will evaluate the suitability of the entity’s
performance measures against the qualitative characteristics and pervasive
constraints.

Ideally, the entity will have clearly identified the reasons that support the
selection of its intended performance information. We would also expect the
entity to have documented this analysis, which will provide a basis for the
auditor’s evaluation.

Typically, the qualitative characteristics will form the basis for the auditor’s
evaluation. However, the qualitative characteristics are often in conflict. For
instance, “relevance” often conflicts with “faithful representation” and

the entity, given that for the audit of the
SPI, the engagement to audit the GPFR
would still continue.

Additional application material is added to
clarify that this is an iterative process. The
ED is clear that any concerns should be
expressed to the preparer as soon as
possible.

Ideally this would be useful for the auditor.
Any guidance on the balance between the
gualitative characteristics and the pervasive
constraints of information should be aimed
at the preparer — it is the preparers role to
meet these requirements and the auditor’s
role to audit what has been prepared by the
preparer.
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“verifiability”. The conflict demands a high level of professional judgement to be
exercised by both the preparers of the service performance information, and by
the auditors.

“Relevance” remains a critical qualitative characteristic when the auditor carries
out their evaluation of suitability. Typically “relevance” is evaluated against the
entity’s purposes, as expressed in its founding documents or, in the case of
public sector entities, in legislation.

The outcome of the auditor’s evaluation might be a conclusion that:

a) All of the aspects of service performance information are suitable and there
are no obvious omissions; or

b) Although all aspects of performance information are included, with no
obvious omissions, there may be additional measures to be included that the
auditor would not regard as being essential; or

c) The performance measures the entity has chosen to report against are
suitable, but the auditor assesses that there are some important aspects of
the entity’s performance for which no suitable measures have been
included. This situation, in the view of the auditor, could result in the
performance report presenting a misleading picture of the entity’s
performance; or

d) The performance measures to be reported are evaluated by the auditor to
be suitable whilst others are assessed to be unsuitable. In this situation the
auditor concludes that the performance report gives a misleading
impression of the entity’s performance; or

e) All, or the majority, of the performance measures proposed to be reported
by the entity are evaluated by the auditor to be unsuitable.

Where the auditor encounters situations c) to e) above, the appropriate
response should be to communicate their conclusions to the entity with an
expectation that the entity will make changes to their performance information.
If the entity makes no changes to their performance information in these
circumstances, the auditor will need to assess the effect on the audit report.

Captured in ED para:

a)29(a)

b)unclear how this differs — captured in
29(a)

c) added additional guidance.

d) illustration 2 of the modified opinions
covers this.

e) would be an extension of illustration 2
therefore unclear if need to repeat given
criticism of length.

This is the approach reflected in the ED.
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In response to situation b) the auditor may communicate their view to the entity
that some of the performance information to be reported is unnecessary. It is
unlikely that the auditor would need to modify their audit report in this
situation.

In addition, the auditor may be concerned that some, or all, of the performance
measures selected by the entity for inclusion in its service performance
information are not capable of verification given the inadequacy of the entity’s
systems and processes. This is a matter that the auditor should communicate to
the entity.

Depending on the entity’s response to the auditor’s concerns, the auditor will
make an initial evaluation of the impact of any deficiencies they have observed
on the audit report.

Recommendation

The ED should include: The advantages and disadvantages of
e Arequirement for the auditor to evaluate the suitability of the entity’s referring to the QCs are considered in the

performance measures against the qualitative characteristics and pervasive issues paper.
constraints.
e Include “Application and Other Explanatory Material” that provides greater

. Application material has been added to
clarity around:

o  When the auditor should evaluate the suitability of an entity’s cla.rlf.y Fhat this is an IteratlYe prc.>cess.
performance measures; and This is judgemental. The suitability of the

o How the auditor might evaluate the suitability of performance performance measures will be made with

measures. reference to the characteristics of suitable
criteria in accordance with the assurance
framework nd the application material
provides examples of the things that the
auditor may consider in making such an
evaluation.

7. Materiality in Planning and Performing the Audit
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Determining materiality in the context of the audit of performance information
is difficult. Although the concept of materiality applies to performance
information, its application is different when compared to the audit of financial
information.

In our view, the ED should include one requirement for the auditor to determine
and document the materiality to be applied to the service performance
information. The requirement should be supported by “Application and Other
Explanatory Information” that provides practical guidance on how the auditor
might apply the requirement.

Based on our experience, the “Application and Other Explanatory Information”
might usefully address the matters set out below. It might:

e Emphasise that assessing a performance measure to be suitable does not
automatically mean that the performance measure is material.

e Note that a material performance measure tends to exhibit characteristics
that relate to:

the primary functions or purposes of the entity;

an activity that could be of significant national or community interest;
an activity that could be of significant interest to users of the service
performance information;

an activity that is financially significant;

a function where there is a significant risk of performance failure by the
entity;

an activity that could be a significant risk to the public (for example, the
provision of health services);

errors or omissions that could significantly affect the reputation of the
entity; and/or

an activity that may have a significant effect on management
performance rewards.

Noted and agreed.

The draft includes this as a requirement.
Ways to reduce the level of prescription are
included in the amended draft.

The draft focuses on the risk of material
misstatement (para 22 states that the
auditor shall determine materiality for the
purpose of assessing the risk of material
misstatement). Added para 37 to remind
the auditor to design and perform
procedures for all material SPI.

The changes to the materiality application
material are highlighted in green in the
amended draft.
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State that materiality relates to both the performance measure and to the
level of misstatement related to actual performance that is acceptable
before the auditor regards the misstatement as misleading.

Note that there are some terms that apply to financial materiality and to
performance information, and others that don’t. For example:

Materiality base:

Materiality level:

Materiality factor:

Performance materiality:

The concept of a materiality base applies to
the audit of service performance
information, but it can only be applied to
each material performance measure
because every performance measure uses a
different basis to measure performance.
The auditor will need to select a materiality
level for each material performance
measure beyond which a misstatement will
be considered to be material.

The notion of a materiality factor, when
assessing the material performance
measures, is more likely to be embodied in
the characteristics noted above. We would
also observe that the concept of a
materiality factor is not emphasised in ISA
(NZz) 320.

Every performance measure has a unique
measurement base. Therefore, the
requirement for the auditor to establish
performance materiality is not relevant to
the audit of service performance
information.

In addition, paragraph A38 (b) refers to “... the materiality levels for the
service performance information as a whole ...” The nature of service
performance information means that there can be no materiality level for
the service performance information as a whole. However, the auditor
should record all of the misstatements that they identify during the course

We recommend deleting reference to
performance materiality

This reference is removed.
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of their audit. The misstatements should be considered by the auditor and
an assessment made as to whether the cumulative effect of the
misstatements is that the entity’s service performance information does not
fairly reflect the entity’s performance.

e Indicate, for those reported performance measures that the auditor assesses
not to be material, the minimum audit procedures to be carried out by the
auditor. In our view such procedures are likely to be limited to
reasonableness tests based on the auditor’s knowledge of the entity.

Recommendation

The ED should:

e Include a requirement for the auditor to determine the entity’s performance
measures that are considered to be material; and

o Include “Application and Other Explanatory Material” that illustrates the
application of this requirement.

Added para 37 to remind the auditor that
irrespective of the assessed risk of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design
substantive procedures for all material SPI.

OAG

8.

Introduction of new assertions

Paragraph 38 of the ED requires auditors to identify the risk of material

misstatement at the “assertion level for material service performance

information”. Paragraph A49 provides additional guidance in relation to the
assertions, and introduces two new assertions in relation to service
performance information.

- Attributable to the entity — the service performance reported by the
entity includes only service performance that the entity has evidence to
support its involvement with.

- Consistency — service performance information is consistent with the
prior period, or changes are justified and appropriately disclosed.

While we agree that these are important concepts to be considered by

auditors, in our view, these are not assertions. Instead, we think they are

more accurately described as being part of the qualitative characteristics of
information.

In our opinion, the assertion “attributable to the entity” is embodied in the

qualitative characteristic of “relevance”. Paragraph 9 (a) of PBE FRS 48

Concern related to attribution and
consistency noted. Considered in issues

paper.
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states that “relevant information assists users in forming assessments about
an entity’s accountability for service performance”. The “attributable to the
entity” assertion is implicit in this statement, although with a wider meaning,
as it may capture performance that the entity has influenced or contributed
to, and not just the performance that is attributable to the entity.
In addition, there is a significant overlap between the “occurrence” and
“Attributable to the entity” assertions. This overlap introduces a level of
confusion.
Similarly, the “consistency” assertion is embodied in the qualitative
characteristic of “comparability”.
We are concerned that there is no reference made to the “Classification”
assertion in the context of service performance information. Service
performance information requires a lot of judgement to be applied, by the
entity and the auditor. As a result, it is important to have a good
understanding of how the entity classifies activities. For example, if an entity
reports response times to urgent call outs, it is crucial to know how the
entity defines “urgent call outs”.
Recommendation
The ED should:

e Include the “Classification” assertion.

e Remove the “Attributable to the entity” and “Consistency”

assertions.

AUASB
technical
team

We are pleased to have the opportunity to comment on the NZAuASB's ED 2017-2:
New Zealand Auditing Standard XX The Audit of Service Performance Information.
Overall, the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AUASB) are very
supportive of the leading role the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board (NZAUASB) has taken in issuing an exposure draft on the audit of service
performance information (SPI) under the New Zealand reporting framework as part of
the General Purpose Financial Report (GPFR) for some Public Benefit Entities (PBE).
The AUASB see the reporting and assurance of SPI as an important area for the PBE
sector, and that the information needs and assurance requirements of the report users
are at the forefront of this thinking.

Support noted.
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In formulating this response, the AUASB Technical Group (ATG) sought input from
AUASB members at the November 2017 AUASB meeting. The views of those
AUASB members who commented on this matter are reflected in this letter. We have
also included specific comments to some of the questions in the ITC in Attachment 1.
Additionally the AUASB Chair and Technical staff have been actively involved in the
NZAUASB project to develop this standard through attending subcommittee meetings
to monitor and provide feedback as the exposure draft has progressed, as well as
consider any implications for the Australian reporting and assurance frameworks and
the users of this type of information in the Australian jurisdiction.

To begin, the ATG would like to highlight the way the NZ accounting and assurance
standards complement each other, noting that in bringing their respective standards to
fruition the NZASB and NZAuASB have been conscious of the need to align the
different approaches taken by each Board in this area.

As part of our review the ATG considered that the NZAUuASB ED 2017-2 is
applicable to an audit of SPI done in conjunction with the audit of the GPFR and
therefore must be done in accordance with ISA (NZ) 700 (Revised).

Specifically, our key concern is that the requirements for the preparer of the SPI
outlined in PBE FRS 48, do not explicitly require a basis of preparation. This could
result in the user of the SPI not fully understanding how the SPI was prepared. This
also impacts the information on which the auditor bases their opinion, as required by
ED 2017-2.

Whilst we acknowledge PBE FRS 48 does require the preparer to disclose the
significant judgements they applied to the preparation of the SPI, ED 2017-2 requires
the auditor to opine on whether the service performance information adequately refers
to or describes the entity's service performance criteria. We are concerned that for
some NZ PBEs there is not necessarily going to be a formal performance framework
in place which may mean the auditor has difficulty identifying and understanding the SPI
criteria or framework against which it is opining.

In the ATG's view it is not ideal that the proposed audit requirements and the disclosure in the
auditor's opinion in relation to an entity's service performance criteria and evaluation of the
criteria's suitability as part of the assurance practitioner's responsibilities, could be considered
more detailed and specific in nature than the requirements for PBE preparers of the SP1 under
PBE FRS 48.

Consequently, whilst we do not propose any changes to the ED for this purpose, we'd
encourage the NZASB and NZAuASB to work together to produce additional guidance for
preparers and auditors which specifies what disclosures are required by the SPI preparer to

Acknowledgement that the NZAuASB have
been conscious of the need to align the
different approached noted.

Concern raised that the preparer is not
explicitly required to prepare a basis of
preparation. This has been shared with
the NZASB. Reference to transparency of
the compilation methods may help.

The NZAuASB have previously given similar
feedback to the NZASB. The revised draft
requires the auditor to evaluate whether
the information provided by the preparer
will make the basis of preparation clear to
the user, and in so doing make the
“criteria” available to the user.

Support for the requirement to describe
the entity’s service performance criteria
noted.
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ensure the information can be audited appropriately, and any potential limitations of scope or
incorrect audit conclusions are avoided.

The ATG notes that the NZAuASB has considered the requirements of the ISAs (NZ) as well
as the ISAEs (NZ) in developing this ED. Where applicable, requirements from ISAE (NZ)
3000 (Revised) have been included within the ED. We support this approach, which will avoid
the need for the auditor to refer to multiple standards within the assurance framework when
auditing the GPFR.

AUASB
technical
team

On a different matter, because of the different reporting frameworks that exist in each of our
respective jurisdictions, any new reporting standard for SPI in Australia would be highly
unlikely to be part of the GPFR. Accordingly, any future assurance standard issued by the
AUASB on SPI would probably be issued as a Standard on Assurance Engagements (e.g.
ASAE 3000) under our Framework for Assurance Engagements. We highlight this as ED
2017-2 and any future Australian Assurance Standard on SPI may not necessarily be
consistent because of where these engagements reside within the Assurance Framework. This
means that if the AUASB were to develop an assurance standard on SPI or adapt the
NZAUASB's proposed standard The Audit of Service Performance Information in future,
there are likely to be differences between the two assurance standards, contrary to the current
protocol that exists between the New Zealand External Reporting Board (XRB) and the
AUASB which requires us to minimise the differences between auditing and assurance
standards issued in Australia and New Zealand.

Noted- support for relevance of ISAE 3000
noted.

CAANZ

We welcome the opportunity to provide feedback on the Exposure Draft (“the ED”).

We recognise the increasing prevalence of, and demand for, service performance
information and commend the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board (NZAuUASB) efforts to establish an auditing standard as part of the
framework for such reporting. We are supportive of the approach taken in the ED.
Appendix A provides our responses to the specific questions raised in the ED.

We note that under the Financial Reporting Strategy Parameters for the NZAUASB
that domestic standards should only be developed where there is a gap in
international standards, and not to replace an international standard. We
appreciate that the NZAUASB has considered ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised)
Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and has concluded the standard too generic to address service
performance information specifically but has included the requirements of ISAE
(NZ) 3000 within the ED where applicable.

Support noted, including reference to ISAE
3000.

Treasury

We thank the NZAuASB for releasing this ED on auditing Service Performance
Information. The Treasury’s main reason for commenting on the ED is our objective

Concern noted.
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to ensure that the flexibility available to report service performance information
provided in PBE FRS 48 Service Performance Reporting is not unintentionally
reduced by the content or implementation of this ED.

The Treasury has a stewardship role with regard to the Public Finance Act 1989 (PFA)
and Crown Entities Act 2004 (CEA), which set out the legislative requirements for
reporting service performance information for public sector public benefit entities.
Treasury’s role also includes, in conjunction with the State Services Commission,
supporting State sector system performance management system, such as
accounting and auditing standards, support and reinforce the levers we use to
support performance. This includes the 2013 changes that were made to the PFA
and CEA.

While changes were made to the PFA and CEA in 2013 to support more flexible
service performance reporting, we have not seen significant change in practice. The
role that the auditor plays is important; and we observe that sometimes there is
misunderstanding and/or uncertainty around the concept of flexible performance
reporting amongst some auditors and some entities.

The general tenor from the roundtable attendees in Wellington on 16 November
2017 (ourselves included) was that the ED is hard to follow. This is, in part, because it
lacks a clear objective and content that can be easily understood —including by
those who are new to auditing service performance reporting (which is the target
audience). The ED is currently too long, detailed and difficult to read and
understand. There are 73 paragraphs in the standard and 74 paragraphs in the
Application Material.

We would recommend that you consider reducing the length and complexity of the
ED by including some material in a separate guidance document to help interpret the
ED. We also think the ED would benefit from a clear objective statement; e.g. to
support the effective auditing of service performance reporting.

The roundtable session also made clear some of the perceived restrictions in
preparing the ED, including the need to straddle existing standards and

The NZAuASB has identified ways to
improve the understandability of the
document by reducing the number of
requirements, moving and merging
requirements to improve the flow and
replacing the term criteria.

The objective of the ED is included in para
6. This approach is consistent with
approach in the ISAs. No changes
recommended.
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requirements in New Zealand and international frameworks which differ slightly
from each other. Examples of the slight variations were shown, and while the text is
different, the intent is not. We suggest addressing this issue by elevating the text to
a higher level and noting the differences between existing standards and
frameworks in an appendix for technical readers.

In light of the above, our view is that this ED does not support what Treasury is
seeking to achieve in improving the understanding and reporting of performance in
the State sector. It is also our view that, across the wider public benefit landscape,
the ED as currently drafted leaves open the possibility of audits which deliver worse
outcomes than the status quo. The Treasury would strongly support significant
changes to this ED and the material is re-issued for comment.

Text has been elevated as much as possible
to avoid technical terms like “criteria” and
avoid repeating the accounting standard.

Wellington e Too long Concern noted and amendments made as
roundtable e Difficult terminology above.
e Too much focus on measurement References to measurement always
e Roy-—comment was the ED was incomprehensible — asked whether re- followed by reference to descriptions as
exposure would be needed? required by the accounting standard.
Removal of criteria and definition that
refers to measurement may help.
NZASB Members acknowledged that, in light of the range of views received, it would be a Agreed.
subcommittee | challenge for the NZAuASB to respond to the wide range of views expressed, in order
members to progress the standard.
NZASB NZASB members thought that the comments about cost benefit issues (PwC As above- raised with the XRB.
subcommittee | submission) were an interesting observation that might be worthy of further
members consideration and that guidance might be an option for addressing concern.
NZASB NZAuASB members were provided with a brief update on the NZASB project on To monitor going forward.
subcommittee | guidance for reporting service performance information. Requested that staff from
members the NZASB and NZAuASB continue to liaise closely as the guidance develops.
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NZASB
subcommittee
members

Considers that materiality in the context of service performance information is
different from materiality in the context of financial statement information. It could,
therefore, be helpful to elaborate on this for auditors as this is important from a
practical perspective.

In response to a question whether the same comment applies from a preparer’s
perspective, an NZASB member considers that the same comment wouldn’t
necessarily apply to preparers.

Preparers need to think about PBE FRS 48. Materiality comes into that as one of the
pervasive constraints from a preparer perspective. There could be service
performance information in the report that isn’t material from the preparer’s
perspective, just as there could be information in the financial statements that isn’t
material from an auditor’s perspective.

Although materiality will be an issue for both preparers and auditors, some
applications will be auditor only, and others apply more to the preparer. Broader
challenges will be equally applicable to both preparer and auditor but they will not
necessarily be the same. One wouldn’t expect a preparer to put only material
information into the report.

NZAuASB noted that materiality might not be about including information that is
immaterial but more about the risk of material information not being reported by
the preparer. This is why the two-step approach is important: are we reporting on
the appropriate information before going into the second phase of verifying that
information.

Agreed, the document includes additional
guidance related to qualitative factors and
highlights the need to set various
materiality levels as there is not one.

The Board noted the need for a materiality
process for the preparer and suggested that
this could form a part of the preparer’s
guidance — where the entity is clear about
the important matters, materiality from the
auditor’s perspective is not that challenging.
Materiality is linked to relevance from a
preparer’s perspective — when would
information that is not relevant be included
in the SPI and be in accordance with the
accounting standard? The auditing
standard’s focus is on establishing
materiality for the purpose of assessing the
risk of material misstatement.
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Question 1: Do you agree with the proposed approach to develop an auditing standard rather than a standard under the umbrella of ISAE
(NZ) 3000 (Revised)? If not, please explain why not, and why an alternative approach is preferable.

Respondent

KPMG

BDO

Staples
Rodway

PWC

OAG

199462.1

Comment

We agree with the proposed approach and acknowledge the consistency that

comes with developing this as an auditing standard.

We agree with the NZAuASB'’s approach to the development of the Exposure

Draft. We consider that:

e Service performance information, where required, is integral to a public
benefit entity’s general purpose financial report

e Where a public benefit entity’s general purpose financial report is audited,
the audit should cover both the financial information and the service
performance information

The audit of service performance information and financial information in a

general purpose financial report should be undertaken concurrently and using

a consistent suite of standards.

Yes, we agree with the proposed approach of developing an auditing standard

rather than a standard under the umbrella of ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised). We

consider this is an important signal that the audit of service performance

information is of equal nature to the audit of the financial statements, and

that, as such, these should be undertaken concurrently. On a practical level it

will also be helpful to auditors to consider only one set of standards when

undertaking an audit engagement where service performance information

forms part of the engagement scope.

We support the standards development as an auditing standard as this aligns

with the requirement to include service performance reporting as part of the

financial statements under PBE FRS XX Service Performance Reporting.

We agree that the proposed standard should be included within the body of

standards that govern the audit or review of historical financial information.

The main reason for our view is that non-financial performance information

and the associated financial information are integral to assessing the

Staff Response to the comment
Support noted.

Support noted.

Support noted

Support noted

Support noted.



Agenda item 5.5

Question 1: Do you agree with the proposed approach to develop an auditing standard rather than a standard under the umbrella of ISAE
(NZ) 3000 (Revised)? If not, please explain why not, and why an alternative approach is preferable.

Respondent

AUASB
CAANZ

Treasury
Mr. Carson

199462.1

Comment Staff Response to the comment
performance of an entity with “public benefit entity” (PBE) objectives. This is

because a user can only make a proper assessment of a PBE’s performance if

they are in possession of both relevant financial and non-financial

performance information contained in a general purpose financial report.

Therefore, it follows that the audit of a general purpose financial report of a
PBE should be carried out under a single body of standards — namely the ISA
(NZ)s that integrate both financial and non-financial components of a general
purpose financial report. If this is done appropriately, it should help to further
emphasise the intended concurrent nature of an audit.

N/A

We acknowledge there is a case for both because technically the scope of the  Support noted.
ISAs (NZ) is only historical financial information, but in the New Zealand
context the definition of “financial statements” includes service performance
information (SPI). Therefore, we agree with the proposal to develop an
auditing standard rather than an ‘other assurance’ standard. We agree that
this will assist auditors to perform an audit of a general purpose financial
report (GPFR), inclusive of SPI, as one engagement. This enables a more
efficient and effective engagement to be performed which contributes to
achieving an appropriate balance, as referred to in question 4.

N/A

| agree with a separate auditing standard approach for the audit of service Support noted.
performance information. While the auditing methodology of service
performance information is the same as for the audit of financial information,
the very nature of non-financial information requires a separate auditing
standard rather than including it as part of ISAE (NZ) 3000.
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Question 1: Do you agree with the proposed approach to develop an auditing standard rather than a standard under the umbrella of ISAE

(NZ) 3000 (Revised)? If not, please explain why not, and why an alternative approach is preferable.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

Auckland One participant was unsure why the move away from ISAE 3000. General support noted.

roundtable General agreement that it was appropriate to emphasize the concurrent

nature of the engagement.

Wellington Did you think of reopening every ISA (NZ) rather? The NZAuASB has rejected this option. Staff

roundtable do not recommend reopening this debate
given the high level of support from other
submitters for the approach taken.
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Question 2: Do you agree that the ED is understandable and is scalable so as to be applicable to the audit of service performance
information, regardless of the size of the entity and the tier under which it reports?

Respondent

KPMG
BDO

Staples
Rodway

PWC

199462.1

Comment

We agree that this ED is understandable and scalable.

We consider that the Exposure Draft is understandable and scalable. We note,
however, that the Exposure Draft may in part be more prescriptive than is
appropriate and may consequently limit the exercise of auditor judgement

We consider that the ED is understandable and scalable. However, we do
consider there is scope to reduce the amount of information from other
auditing standards that is included in the ED. The references that we consider
could be removed are: The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks (paras 39 —
42), Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation
(para 43), Evaluation of Misstatements ldentified During the Audit (paras 44
and 45) and Special Considerations — Audit of Groups (para 53). We do not
consider that the approaches to applying these standards in the course of the
financial statement audit and the audit of service performance information are
different enough to require their inclusion in the standard. Para 8 of the ED
makes it clear that the auditor shall apply all the ISAs (NZ) as appropriate.
We understand the objective for a consistent approach and agree that the
approach taken is sensible. Based on the proposed ED we expect audits to be
scalable, however, we consider that the requirements for smaller PBE and
NFPs may be overly onerous due to:

- Investment required in systems to identify, capture monitor and record

relevant information
- Staff capacity and expertise required to make judgements and to
consider information disclosed
- Alack of guidance to ensure consistency and comparability
- Additional time and resource costs including additional audit costs

Staff Response to the comment

Support noted.

Support noted.

Reduced the number of requirements which
may help to address concern re level of
prescription.

Support noted.

Amendments have reduced the length.

Support noted.

Concern that requirements may be onerous
for smaller entities noted. Linked to
comments around whether an audit is
appropriate — referred to XRB board.
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Question 2: Do you agree that the ED is understandable and is scalable so as to be applicable to the audit of service performance
information, regardless of the size of the entity and the tier under which it reports?

Respondent

OAG

AUASB
CAANZ
Treasury
Mr. Carson

199462.1

Comment

We agree that the ED should apply to the audit of non-financial performance
information, irrespective of the size of the reporting entity, or the tier under
which it reports. At present we consider the ED is too difficult for a
practitioner to engage with because it is overly technical, confusing and is not
supported by relevant practical guidance. It is particularly important that the
ED addresses these concerns given it is covering an area that is new to many
practitioners who are likely to be auditing service performance information of
small PBEs for the first time.

N/A

We agree that the ED is understandable and scalable.

N/A

Yes | agree. Any difference between public sector and not-for-profit entities
could be explained by means of additional explanatory guidance or notes in
the audit standard.

Staff Response to the comment
Support noted.

Ways to enhance understandability have
resulted in amendments.

Support noted.

Support noted.
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Question 3: Do you consider there are additional areas where further requirements or application material is needed that are not addressed
by the ED or where further guidance is needed on how the ISAs (NZ) are to be applied to the service performance information? Please be

specific.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

KPMG

BDO

Staples
Rodway

199462.1

We acknowledge that there is significant additional guidance provided in
relation to a. evaluating the suitability of the entity’s service performance
criteria. However this remains an incredibly subjective area where auditors
may still struggle to form a conclusion. Whilst the understanding of the entity
will provide a basis for the suitability of the criteria, asserting that those
criteria presented are complete and no additional criteria should be included
(paragraph A20) and whether negative aspects should be included (paragraph
A23) can be a difficult conclusion to make. We do not believe additional
guidance can alleviate this challenge in all cases.

We do not consider that additional requirements or application material are
required.

We consider the ED contains useful guidance to assist auditors in auditing
service performance information. In particular we consider that the guidance
on assessing materiality for service performance information and determining
materiality factors (A41) of the ED will be useful in applying the ED. Given its
usefulness we encourage the NZAuASB to consider including some of the
guidance on assessing materiality (specifically the characteristics of suitable
criteria included in para A17 of the ED) in the standard itself (para 31). This will
help to ensure that the standard ‘stands alone’ and will ensure consistency in
assessing materiality between auditors and audit firms. We acknowledge that
the qualitative characteristics have been included in para 58 of the ED (under
‘forming an opinion and reporting’). It would be beneficial to introduce the
qualitative characteristics in an earlier section of the ED (ie when introducing
the assessment of the suitability of the criteria in para 12, rather than referring
auditors to the PBE Conceptual Framework).

Concern noted. Agreed that these are key
challenges in forming a conclusion. Note
support for guidance included in the draft to
counter the OAG’s consideration that
additional guidance is needed.

Noted.

Support for guidance in ED noted.
Support for proposed guidance on
materiality is noted.

The NZAuASB agreed to elevate these
factors to the requirements.
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Question 3: Do you consider there are additional areas where further requirements or application material is needed that are not addressed
by the ED or where further guidance is needed on how the ISAs (NZ) are to be applied to the service performance information? Please be
specific.

PWC Additional application guidance on what appropriate service performance Suggestion noted. Possibly best covered in
criteria might be, or sector specific measures would assist in streamlining both | guidance (and if possible joint guidance).
the preparation and auditing process.

OAG Entities that report service performance information often contract with other  Suggestion noted.
entities to deliver services. Alternatively entities may use a service
organisation to deliver services on their behalf. It would be helpful if the ED
included “Application and Other Explanatory Material” that assists auditors
when they need to obtain evidence about services delivered by contractors,
service organisations or other third parties, in particular where those third
parties are directly responsible for collecting the service performance
information that is reported. For example, where local authorities report road
smoothness information provided by third party contractors or entities that
provide grants report on what that grant has been used for, based on
information from the recipient.

AUASB N/A

CAANZ We have not noted a need for any additional areas in the requirements or in Noted
the guidance.

Treasury N/A

Mr. Carson The two-step approach is acceptable as this is how a preparer of the Lack of understanding the term criteria
statement of service performance approaches the development of service noted. Alternatives are under consideration.

performance information for its performance report. However, | have
considerable difficulty with the word “criteria” used in step 1. My experience
has been in the use of the concept of a framework that includes the use of
intervention logic in how outputs contribute to the achievement of outcomes
(including intermediary outcomes) and how performance measures are linked
to outputs. The Charities Service information material for registered charities
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Question 3: Do you consider there are additional areas where further requirements or application material is needed that are not addressed
by the ED or where further guidance is needed on how the ISAs (NZ) are to be applied to the service performance information? Please be

specific.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

Auckland
roundtable

199462.1

talks about outcomes and outputs and how these are related, i.e. a
framework. The dictionary definition of criteria is standards and | do not think
that this word is appropriate. The problem, as | understand, is that the ISAE
(NZ) 3000 uses the word criteria; however could this not be amended or if
used in the proposed audit standard for service performance explained in
detail with a diagram to show the linkages between an entity’s mission and
goals, its outcomes and outputs, and its performance measures.

Darren concern on focus on numbers — consider amending para 48.

Discussion on need to know how to audit a description.

Need to identify user — para 22 (b) - Ann likes this — keep it simple — top 3

Darren concern at onerous documentation requirement to identify users needs?

Is it more about the client understanding?

Focus on identification of key users - maybe delete the words ‘and what their
information needs are”

Auditors got the hard yard

ED too long (versus accounting std) — but preparer often not professionals — auditors
are.

Amended in draft

Need to reduce length actioned. Acceptance
of length noted — given auditors are
professionals and preparers may not be.



Agenda item 5.5

Question 4: Do you believe that the ED achieves an appropriate balance between improving the consistency and quality of an audit of GPFR
that includes service performance information and the potential cost of such engagements as a result of work effort required by the ED? If
not, please expand on where and why you consider the costs exceed the benefits.
KPMG In relation to step 1 Evaluate the Suitability of the entity’s service performance  Agreed. We consider that this is
criteria, as discussed above, we believe this step could be challenging in some  judgemental rather than subjective.
cases. Whilst the criteria for some entities may be straight-forward, there
could be other cases where this aspect is incredibly subjective. Requiring an Concern noted.
auditor to challenge those charged with governance in relation to the
judgements over suitable criteria could become costly and would outweigh the
benefit in these cases. Paragraph 36 acknowledges that “An entity’s service
performance criteria may develop over time. Initially an entity may select
service performance criteria, including performance measures that are easiest
to measure and report, that do not necessarily meet the qualitative
characteristics described in the applicable financial reporting framework”. In Additional application material (similar to
these cases, would an auditor be required to qualify their opinion in the initial  guidance in IRBA guide) included
years when easy measures are selected?
BDO We consider that the Exposure Draft achieves an appropriate balance between Support noted.
improving the consistency and quality of an audit of general purpose financial
reports that include service performance information and the potential cost of
such engagements.
Staples While the high-level, principles-based nature of the ED goes a long way
Rodway towards balancing consistency and quality of an audit that includes service
performance information there appears to be significant reliance on the use of
professional judgement. In our opinion this reliance will impact on the
consistency of the audits of service performance information and will also Application material refers to the
require greater use of senior time on these engagements. It would be useful if  importance of the disclosure of judgements.
additional guidance or direction could be incorporated in the standard so that
the degree of professional judgement required is reduced. One example would
be to make more explicit reference in the auditing standard to the disclosure
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Question 4: Do you believe that the ED achieves an appropriate balance between improving the consistency and quality of an audit of GPFR
that includes service performance information and the potential cost of such engagements as a result of work effort required by the ED? If
not, please expand on where and why you consider the costs exceed the benefits.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

PWC

OAG

199462.1

of judgements section required in para 44 of FRS -48 Service Performance
Information. In our view, this is the key requirement in the financial reporting
standard that places the onus on the preparer (management and TCWG) to
make judgements regarding what should be reported, and what level of detail
is appropriate. Greater emphasis on gaining comfort around this section
should help to rebalance the roles of preparer and auditor.

The PBE conceptual framework contemplates the cost / benefit balance as an
important consideration for governing bodies and management when
reporting financial information. The range of entities captured by the
thresholds set in the standards is very extensive, given the threshold of $1
million of operating expenses. In our experience, many smaller PBE entities
have limited financial reporting resource and capability and they are likely to
find the preparation of service performance reports challenging, given the
level of judgement involved and customised nature of the information. The
cost of designing and implementing relevant performance measures, including
relevant controls around those performance measures, and capturing and
monitoring the relevant data may be prohibitive.

For the smaller organisations, this may result in the cost of an audit of General
Purpose Financial Reporting (GPFR) that includes service performance
information being disproportionately high in comparison with, for example,
the cost of an audit of the historical financial information. We acknowledge
this is a financial reporting framework challenge.

At present, we do not consider the ED achieves the necessary balance
between audit quality and cost. In particular, it is our view that in its current
form, there is an excessive number of requirements imposed on auditors in
respect of the service performance information.

Concern noted. The NZAuASB has not
determined who must prepare. Issue raised
with the XRB board.

Concern noted. The number of requirements
have been reduced.
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Question 4: Do you believe that the ED achieves an appropriate balance between improving the consistency and quality of an audit of GPFR
that includes service performance information and the potential cost of such engagements as a result of work effort required by the ED? If
not, please expand on where and why you consider the costs exceed the benefits.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

AUASB N/A

CAANZ We have not noted any obvious areas where costs may exceed benefits. Noted
Treasury N/A
Mr. Carson  Yes Support noted.
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Question 5: Is the ED clear in emphasising the concurrent nature of the audit? If not, please provide paragraph references as to where you
consider additional emphasis is needed.
KPMG We believe the statements made in paragraph 1 of the ED make this clear. Support noted
BDO We consider that the Exposure Draft clearly emphasises that the audit of Support noted
service performance information should be undertaken concurrently with the
audit of financial information.

Staples Yes, we consider that the ED is clear in emphasising the concurrent nature of Support noted
Rodway the audit. Refer to our response to question 1 above.

PWC Yes, no specific comments. Support noted
OAG It is our view that the appropriate means of emphasising the concurrent Support noted

nature of the audit of financial and service performance information is to
suitably amend the ISA (NZ)s.

AUASB N/A
CAANZ In our view the concurrent approach is clearly described throughout the ED. Support noted
Treasury N/A
Mr. Carson Yes Support noted

199462.1
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Question 6: Do you agree with the definition of the entity’s service performance criteria? If not, please explain why not and provide an
alternative suggestion.

Staff Response to the comment

Respondent Comment

KPMG

BDO

Staples
Rodway

PWC
OAG

AUASB

199462.1

We agree with the given definition.

We largely agree with the Exposure Draft’s definition of the entity’s service
performance criteria. However, we consider that there may be instances
where a public benefit entity is providing access to facilities (such as a drop in
centre), or to assets (such as computers), rather than (or in addition to) goods
or services, and we consider that it might be appropriate to change the
definition to reflect that.

We suggest that the definition of service performance criteria could be

shortened to improve its readability and understandability as follows:
“the benchmarks used to measure or evaluate the entity’s service performance. The
include the goods and services and related
performance measures and/or descriptions
. applicable to its circumstances, to the entity’s
overall purpose and strategies, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework”.

Given the importance of the term ‘service performance information’ and its use throughout the ED, we
consider it would be useful if the standard also defined this term. We note that there is some discussion
of what service performance information is, and isn’t, and what references to service performance
information should be considered to include in A2 and A8 of the ED. While this is useful, it would be

more useful to define service performance information in the standard itself.

The definition in paragraph 7e looks sensible. However, we note this definition
is not explicit in PBE FRS XX Service Performance Reporting Standard.

No, please refer to the comments on service performance criteria at section 5
of Attachment 1.

Overall the service performance criteria definition in para 7(f) is sufficient and
consistent with the principles of ISAE 3000. In addition to the references to
strategy, the definition may also benefit from connectivity to:

Support noted — the term criteria will be
replaced.

Support noted

Is providing access to facilities or assets not
covered by a “service” — do not recommend
that we should emphasize these examples
specifically if not done so in the accounting
standard.

Overall support with suggestions for
improvement.

Para A1l repeats the accounting standards
description of SPI.

Support noted.
Disagreement noted. Considered above.
Support noted.

Definition of criteria deleted. Additional
application material highlights a variety of
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Question 6: Do you agree with the definition of the entity’s service performance criteria? If not, please explain why not and provide an
alternative suggestion.

Staff Response to the comment

Respondent Comment

CAANZ

Treasury

Mr. Carson

199462.1

e Business model (to implement strategy);

e Sectoral performance measures (e.g. GRI Sector Guides); and

e Global performance measures (e.g. Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs),
global megatrends).

We believe the definition would be clearer if “used for the particular
engagement, adopted by the entity” were deleted as follows:

Service performance criteria — The benchmarks used to measure or evaluate
the entity’s service performance. The entity’s service performance criteria
include the goods and services reported and related performance measures
and/or descriptions, applicable to its circumstances, with logical links to the
entity’s overall purpose and strategies, in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.

The ED soon narrows the flexibility available in the accounting standard in the
definition of service performance criteria, which focuses on performance
measures rather than the flexibility available in the accounting standard.

The term criteria is problematic because it implies a set of objective standards
that performance information can be compared to. This is inconsistent with
the definition of service performance criteria in the ED. We think that
replacing the term criteria with either framework or information would solve
this problem and also refocus the ED away from detail.

However, | have considerable difficulty with the word “criteria” used in step 1.
My experience has been in the use of the concept of a framework that
includes the use of intervention logic in how outputs contribute to the
achievement of outcomes (including intermediary outcomes) and how
performance measures are linked to outputs. The Charities Service

frameworks/quidance/codes generically rather
than specifically to GRI or sustainability goals
as SPI may be broader than GRI or
sustainability reporting — still a need to
distinguish between SPI and GRI and IIRC
Replaced criteria.

Suggestion for inclusion of the idea of a
framework noted but previously rejected on
the grounds that the accounting standard
does not mandate the use of a performance
framework.

In order for an assurance engagement there
needs to be objective criteria to evaluate the
performance otherwise this is just the
auditor’s individual view, not an
independent assurance opinion.

Difficulty noted.

Staff highlight the need to avoid terms like
outcomes and outputs.
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Question 6: Do you agree with the definition of the entity’s service performance criteria? If not, please explain why not and provide an
alternative suggestion.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

Auckland
roundtable

Wellington
roundtable

NZASB sub-
committee
members

199462.1

information material for registered charities talks about outcomes and outputs

and how these are related, ie. a framework. The dictionary definition of
criteria is standards and | do not think that this word is appropriate. The
problem is, | understand, is that the ISAE (NZ) 3000 uses the word criteria;
however could this not be amended or if used in the proposed audit standard
for service performance explained in detail with a diagram to show the
linkages between an entity’s mission and goals, its outcomes and outputs, and
its performance measures.
Too long the second sentence.
“Benchmarks” —again undue focus on a number not a description?
Refer to achievements rather — although maybe that only focusses on “good
news” stories.
Ask Auckland uni specialist for assistance in defining
Delete “the entity’s service performance and the beginning of the second sentence
“the benchmarks used to measure or evaluate the goods and services reported and
related performance measures and/or descriptions.....”
Change the first sentence “the benchmarks used to measure or evaluate the
performance of service”
How to evaluate what is suitable — concise
Neutrality is a concern (Wayne)
What about if talk about intention - forecast info — look at track record of setting and
achieving in the past.

e Too much focus on measurement

e Majority seemed to relate better to the term “Performance Framework”

e Found terminology (from 3000) confusing
Concern raised
This matter links to both concerns raised earlier in previous joint sub-committee
meetings by NZASB members and reflections regarding the submissions received.

Suggestions for improvements noted.
Criteria replaced

Preference for use of the term “performance
framework” noted.

Noted.
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Question 6: Do you agree with the definition of the entity’s service performance criteria? If not, please explain why not and provide an
alternative suggestion.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

199462.1

NZASB members had noted the range of responses received: along a spectrum with
views expressed at either end and in the middle.

NZASB members thought that the first step may be to not focus on the drafting of the
words. Rather, from a conceptual perspective, what are the performance criteria
trying to achieve, and how does that fit in with the accounting standard.

NZASB members consider that looking at ISAE (NZ) 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information (ISAE (NZ) 3000),
service performance measures are benchmarks that are used to evaluate the
underlying subject matter. However, the NZASB members consider that the ordinary
definition of ‘benchmark’ is that it’s a point of reference against which something can
be compared. What does this mean in the context of financial performance?

Kimberly gave an example. Although financial statements are used to report net
surplus or deficit, there could be other standardised/alternative measures.
Ultimately, they are measures for the period: they are not in or of themselves
benchmarks.

The NZASB members are concerned that if the entity uses “benchmarks”, the service
performance information would be compared against targets or expectations which
may have been set at the beginning of the year. This is how the NZASB members
understand the way ISAE (NZ) 3000 has been set up.

NZASB members commented that setting up targets or expectations and comparing
them with service performance information would be useful to people and that it
could be good governance practice. However, the NZASB was trying to put service
performance information on the same footing as financial statements. The entity

Conceptually the need to evaluate the
suitability of the criteria, gives life to the first
step in the two step process. Conceptually
the NZASB are supportive of this approach.

The term criteria does not create or imply
the need for the preparer to report against
targets/budgets. Criteria to be replaced.
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Question 6: Do you agree with the definition of the entity’s service performance criteria? If not, please explain why not and provide an
alternative suggestion.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

199462.1

should be describing what it did and the judgements it made about what to report
and how it should be reported. Service performance measures and descriptions are
measures of what the entity did during the period rather than benchmarks.

The public sector has a history or establishing targets and reporting against those
targets. However, not-for-profit entities (NFPs) don’t have those requirements or
practice. The NZASB decided that it did not have the mandate to require NFPs to
report targets or benchmarks.

When the NZASB was developing PBE FRS 48 there was a conscious effort to separate
what an entity has achieved during the period from what an entity expected to
achieve during the period (ex ante). PBE FRS 48 applies to all PBEs and it has to be
remembered that NFPs do not have the same requirements as public sector entities.
The NZASB encourages the NZAuASB to also consider this when developing the
auditing standard.

PBE FRS 48 takes entities through things to think about: for example, keep in mind the
qualitative characteristics (QCs) when deciding on the contextual information and the
performance measures to use for reporting service performance information. The
NZASB considers that it would be appropriate for the auditing standard to have a
similar approach to the assurance of that information.

In other words, the NZASB is asking the NZAuASB to rethink its criteria from this same
perspective. For example, it may require changes to the way criteria have been
defined. If this is thought about in the context of PBE FRS 48 (quite a high-level,
principles-based standard), the changes made to the auditing standard might work

Discussion on the need to refer to the QCs
included in the issues paper.

The Board discussed the ongoing need for
the “reporting policies and
procedures”/compilation methods to be
clear to the user of the report as these are
bespoke to the engagement circumstances.
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Question 6: Do you agree with the definition of the entity’s service performance criteria? If not, please explain why not and provide an
alternative suggestion.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

across all tiers if PBE FRS 48 is used as the starting point. Auditors of tier 3 entities
might need some additional guidance to help with language differences.

NZASB members struggled with the reference to ‘basis of preparation’ in one of the
submissions. The entity is describing its performance measures therefore the NZASB
struggles to understand what is required by “disclosure of benchmarks”.

199462.1
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Question 7: Do you agree with the general two-step approach taken in the ED, in particular, the requirements for the auditor to first
evaluate the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria and then obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support the
service performance information? If not, please explain why not and identify any alternative proposals.

Respondent

KPMG

BDO

Staples Rodway

199462.1

Comment

See comments made in relation to question 4 above. We have concerns
around the requirement to assess the suitability of the criteria as we do not
believe this would be achievable in all circumstances. We believe that given
the levels of discretion and the flexibility allowed within the accounting
standards, there may be circumstances when we (as assurance
practitioners) are unable to ascertain whether the criteria is suitable or not.
We are of the opinion that the responsibility for assessing the suitability of
the criteria should be with Those Charged with Governance as they have a
better understanding of their financial statement users.

We are also of the opinion that this would be implied when we opine on
the Statement of Service Performance (SSP) itself. That is, we believe that
when opining on the GPFS (and therefore the SSP), the auditor would be
required to consider if the prepares selection of reporting measures gives a
true and fair view of the entity. Given that, we do not believe that there if a
need for this to be explicitly called out.

We consider that the two-step approach proposed in the Exposure Draft is
necessary to an effective audit of service performance information.

We agree that the two-step approach taken in the ED, in particular the
requirement for the auditor to first evaluate the suitability of the entity’s

service performance criteria, and secondly obtain sufficient and appropriate

audit evidence to support the service performance information, is
appropriate. We consider that it would be useful to include both of these
steps in the audit report itself to make this distinction clear to users. It may
also be useful to make it clear that step two builds on step one (ie the
reported information should link back to the criteria selected by the entity
and assessed as suitable by the auditor).

Staff Response to the comment

Concern noted.

The responsibility for evaluating the
suitability of criteria is a precondition for
any assurance engagement. The
responsibility of the preparer is key and
that these roles should not be blurred.
This is specified in the terms of the
agreement.

Support for two step process noted.

Support noted

Preference for a separate opinion noted.
Majority supportive of one opinion as
proposed. Agreed to retain proposed
opinion.
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Question 7: Do you agree with the general two-step approach taken in the ED, in particular, the requirements for the auditor to first
evaluate the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria and then obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support the
service performance information? If not, please explain why not and identify any alternative proposals.
Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment
PWC Step 1 - Since this forms part of the GPFR the suitability should be assessed  Concern related to cost noted.
by the auditor. However, due to the broad range, judgmental and specific
nature of SPI for each entity our concern is that this is a significant
undertaking, which may result in significant, additional audit effort and
cost.
Concern related to smaller entities noted.
Step 2 - Yes we agree that the auditor should verify what is reported. As
discussed the challenge that we foresee, particularly for smaller entities, is
that the information required for an auditor to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to conclude may not be readily available.

OAG Yes, we agree with this approach, subject to the removal of the term Support for two step process noted.
“service performance criteria”.

AUASB The two-step approach is consistent with the concepts in ISAE 3000 so Support noted.
overall we are supportive of the approach taken in ED 2017-2. The concept ~ Reconsider need for repetition, noting others
is repeated in paragraphs 28 and 35 so the NZAuASB may need have raised concern re the length.

to consider this approach. Scoping complexity was presented as a challenge
in the Australian jurisdiction for extended external reporting engagements
(EER) of which SPI would be included; hence there may also be more
complexity for SPIl in Australia than the two-step approach adopted in NZ.
This area will hopefully be addressed as part of the IAASB EER project on
assurance challenges for EER.

ED 2017-2 uses terminology in its two-step approach to audit of SPI —
"verifying" what is reported. The term 'verify' has been used in ED 2017-2
as it is linked to the concept of "verifiability- in the PBE Conceptual
Framework. This term is not one applied or defined in the Australian or

Remove reference to verifiability
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Question 7: Do you agree with the general two-step approach taken in the ED, in particular, the requirements for the auditor to first
evaluate the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria and then obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support the
service performance information? If not, please explain why not and identify any alternative proposals.
Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

International Framework for Assurance Engagements so the AUASB may

need to consider this further if an assurance standard on SPI is developed.

CAANZ In our view, determining the appropriateness of the entity’s service Support noted.

performance criteria is a prerequisite to designing and performing

procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence over the SPI.

Therefore, we agree with this two-step approach.

TREASURY We understand that the general two-step approach is the current approach Support noted.
to auditing service performance information used by the OAG. We support  Concern comment may be useful to
this approach as long as it does not become an audit judgement about the include in guidance.

quality of the performance framework rather than a review of the choices
and trade-offs made by the entity in determining the most appropriate
performance framework given their context.

MR. CARSON Yes. See my comments above. Support noted.
AUCKLAND General agreement with the two step approach. Support noted
ROUNDTABLE Motat a good example where it is refreshing to hear about what not gone

well.

Challenge for NFP sector — resourcing

Liam (foundation North) — suitability — preparer needs to address — auditor

should review process adopted by the entity

NFP sector — controls generally not good — mismatch of info — good at doing

good work, not good at record keeping.

Examples of qualifications — 7™ day Adventist and Auckland Mission

WELLINGTON Strong support — NB to stand back and consider whether what is reported achieves Support noted.
ROUNDTABLE fair presentation
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Question 7: Do you agree with the general two-step approach taken in the ED, in particular, the requirements for the auditor to first
evaluate the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria and then obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support the
service performance information? If not, please explain why not and identify any alternative proposals.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment
NZASB This point has not been explicitly raised by NZASB members but all agreed that the  Support noted.
SUBCOMMITTEE | approach makes sense. This approach was also supported by respondents to the

MEMBERS ED. NZASB members encourage the NZAuASB to continue with the two-step

approach. NZASB summarised that this approach involves thinking about (i) the
suitability of the measures/descriptors for reporting service performance
information (and how they were determined); and (ii) the information that has
been reported (verification). From a public sector perspective, NZASB members
commented that thinking about the suitability of the measures that will
adequately tell the entity’s story is considered to be really important.

199462.1
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Question 8: Do you consider that the ED is clear that the evaluation of the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria is an
iterative process, and therefore allows for the possibility of changes to be made by the entity during the current financial reporting period or
do you consider that the ED should be more explicit with respect to changes that may be made to the entity’s service performance criteria
during the financial reporting period? If you consider further clarification is needed, please be specific as to what amendments you consider
necessary.
KPMG See response to question above. Whilst we do agree this is an iterative Noted.

process, this creates a challenge for practitioners who are required to opine on

the suitability.
BDO We consider that the Exposure Draft clearly states that, if the auditor is Support that ED is clear noted.

concerned about the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria, the

entity may change its service performance criteria.

Staples Yes, we consider the ED is clear in this regard. In terms of further clarification,  Support for clarity noted.
Rodway it may be worth including a statement in the ED acknowledging that additional Refer application material for possible
selection bias may be introduced where the entity makes changes to its amendments.

service performance criteria during the financial year. We consider that, on
balance, it is important to allow entities to make changes to these criteria
during the year, as many entities will be working to improve their service
performance frameworks and may be taking into account feedback received
from their auditors at the start of the financial year (in line with para 14 of the

ED).
PWC Yes, no specific comments. Support noted.
OAG We agree that an entity should be able to change its performance measures, Support noted.

provided the new performance measure is an improvement on the previous
performance measure. This matter is adequately addressed in paragraph 32 of
the ED, and in paragraph 40 of PBE FRS 48: Service Performance Reporting.

AUASB N/A
CAANZ No, it is not clear that the evaluation of the suitability of the entity’s service Call for clarification noted — refer application
performance criteria is an iterative process, and therefore allows for the material for suggested clarification

possibility of changes to be made by the entity during the current financial
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Question 8: Do you consider that the ED is clear that the evaluation of the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria is an
iterative process, and therefore allows for the possibility of changes to be made by the entity during the current financial reporting period or
do you consider that the ED should be more explicit with respect to changes that may be made to the entity’s service performance criteria
during the financial reporting period? If you consider further clarification is needed, please be specific as to what amendments you consider

necessary.

Respondent Comment Staff Response to the comment

Treasury

Mr. Carson

199462.1

reporting period. Paragraph 32 implies that the entity’s service performance

criteria may have changed from the prior period, so this may be an

appropriate place for clarification.

We would be comfortable with this due to the current flexibility to amend Noted

performance information for Public Service Departments and Crown entities

during the year as long as the changes are recorded in the “Supplementary

Estimates of Appropriation” in the relevant year.

A registered charity should be setting its annual service performance budget at Noted.

the start (or before) of its financial year just the same as it does with its There is no requirement for charities to
financial budgets. During the year the entity may revise one or more parts (ie report against budgeted information.
outputs) of its service performance budget as it does for its financial budgets.

The question is which budget should be reported at year end in the entity’s

performance report. Central government departments report the original

budget (Main Estimates) voted plus amended budgets (voted Supplementary

Estimates). Therefore, | believe that the original service performance budget

amended by any revision is the one to be reported, and thus audited (including

how the entity arrived at the revised budget.
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Question 9: Do you consider that the guidance in the ED with respect to evaluating the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria
fits together well with the requirements and guidance in the proposed financial reporting standard, with respect to the selection of
information and disclosure of critical judgements? If not, what recommendations do you have to enhance the way in which the proposed
financial reporting standard and the proposed auditing standard work together?

Respondent Comment Staff response to the comment

KPMG

BDO

Staples
Rodway

PWC
OAG

199462.1

We do acknowledge that suitable criteria is necessary to achieve sufficient
service reporting, and that the assessment of suitable criteria aligns with the
concepts of financial reporting. In this regard we believe
the guidance is clear. However, please see our responses to question 3, 4 and
7 which highlight the inherent issues with auditors being required to opine on
the suitability of the criteria.
We consider that the guidance proposed in the Exposure Draft with respect to
evaluating the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria:
e Aligns to an appropriate extent with the requirements and guidance in
PBE FRS 48 Service Performance Reporting
e s sufficiently broad that it will also apply when an entity is reporting
service performance information under other financial reporting
standards, such as those applying to Tier 3 and Tier 4 public benefit
entities.
As noted in question 4 above, we consider that explicit reference to the
disclosure of judgements section in FRS-48 would go some way to linking the
requirements of the auditing standard with the requirements of the financial
reporting standard. While we acknowledge that the application material refers
to the disclosure of the critical judgements (A28), it would be useful if explicit
reference was included within the standard itself.
Yes, no specific comments.
Consistent use of terminology. It is essential that consistent terminology is
used throughout the NZAuASB and NZASB standards and guidance to describe
the qualitative characteristics and pervasive constraints in paragraphs 9 and 10
of PBE FRS 48: Service Performance Reporting. Unless consistent terminology

Noted

Noted
Support for alignment with the accounting
requirements noted.

Requirements already refers to disclosure of
judgements. The NZAuASB agreed it better
to lift the standard higher and limit the
direct quoting and referencing between the
standards to better future proof the
standard.

Support noted.

Refer to issues paper

Strong support for the level of guidance
already included in the ED by others. Board
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Question 9: Do you consider that the guidance in the ED with respect to evaluating the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria
fits together well with the requirements and guidance in the proposed financial reporting standard, with respect to the selection of
information and disclosure of critical judgements? If not, what recommendations do you have to enhance the way in which the proposed
financial reporting standard and the proposed auditing standard work together?

is used the potential for confusion amongst preparers and auditors of non- discussed the need for additional guidance

financial performance information is considered to be high. to be developed separately from the

In addition, we consider that the application guidance needs to be much more standard.

practical so that auditors who are unfamiliar with the audit of non-financial

performance information are more readily able to translate the requirements

into audit procedures.

Disclosure of critical judgements. We note that paragraph 44 of PBE FRS 48:

Service Performance Reporting requires an entity to disclose the critical

judgements it has made in reporting non-financial performance information.

We are of the view that the primary role of the auditor is to challenge entities

so that the disclosures are limited to the critical judgements only. The risk is

the inclusion of unnecessary disclosures that create clutter and distract users

from the critical judgements. We suggest that paragraph A28 of the ED asks

auditors to evaluate whether disclosures are appropriately focused on the

critical judgements that have been, or should be, disclosed.

AUASB n/a

CAANZ References to “qualitative characteristics” (as per paragraph 9 of PBE FRS 48 Amendments to clarify the difference and
and chapter 3 of the PBE Conceptual Framework) and “characteristics” for similarity between the QCs and
suitable criteria (as per paragraph 24(b)(ii) of ISAE (NZ) 3000) are used characteristics of suitable criteria

interchangeably in the ED which may cause confusion. By way of example,
paragraph 58(a)(ii) of the ED refers to qualitative characteristics but lists the
service performance criteria characteristics.

Furthermore, paragraph 58(a)(ii) mentions the “pervasive constraints on
information”. It may be worth identifying that these are materiality, cost-

199462.1
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Question 9: Do you consider that the guidance in the ED with respect to evaluating the suitability of the entity’s service performance criteria
fits together well with the requirements and guidance in the proposed financial reporting standard, with respect to the selection of
information and disclosure of critical judgements? If not, what recommendations do you have to enhance the way in which the proposed
financial reporting standard and the proposed auditing standard work together?

benefit and balance between the qualitative characteristics to avoid the need

for the auditor to cross-reference to paragraph 10 of PBE FRS 48 or paragraph

3.3 of the PBE Conceptual Framework.

Treasury N/A
Mr. Carson  Yes, but there needs to be more explanation and guidance about intervention  Noted. Possibly to be covered by NZASB
logic,